
 
 

BOULDER CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 1777 BROADWAY 

Tuesday, October 15, 2013 
5 p.m. 

 
               AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

A. Moment of silence to honor Amy Dombroski 
 

B. Declaration honoring Mara Abbott 
 

C. Flood Recovery Update 
 
2. OPEN COMMENT and COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE (limited to 45 min.) Public may 

address any city business for which a public hearing is not scheduled later in the meeting (this 
includes the consent agenda and first readings).  After all public hearings have taken place, any 
remaining speakers will be allowed to address council.  All speakers are limited to three minutes. 

 
A. Consideration of a motion to adopt overarching goals regarding cleanup and flood 

recovery measures 
 

B. Status report on Urban Wildlife Issues 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA (to include first reading of ordinances) Vote to be taken on the 
motion at this time. (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
A. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Emergency Ordinance No. 7946 

amending the Boulder Revised Code and extending temporary exceptions to specific 
city regulations to facilitate clean up and recovery from flood impacts 
 

B. Consideration of a motion to adopt a Resolution in support of Ballot Question 2G, a 
proposed amendment to the Boulder Home Rule Charter Sections 74, 130, 157, 172, and 
185 removing the requirement that individuals be City electors to serve on City Boards 
and Commissions 

 
4. POTENTIAL CALL- UP CHECK IN  

Opportunity for Council to indicate possible interest in the call- up of an item listed under agenda 
Item 8-A1.   

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS   

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS  (One public hearing will be held for all budget related items) 
 

Packet Page     1



 
 

A. Consideration of the following items relating to the 2014 Budget: 
 

1. Public hearing on the proposed 2014 City of Boulder Budget; and 
 
2. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7942 that 

adopts a budget for the City of Boulder, Colorado, for the fiscal year commencing on 
the first day of January 2014 and ending on the last day of December 2014, and setting 
forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
3. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7943 that 

establishes the 2013 City of Boulder property tax mill levies which are to be 
collected by the County of Boulder, State of Colorado, within the City of Boulder in 
2014 for payment of expenditures by the City of Boulder, County of boulder, State of 
Colorado, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
4. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7944 that 

appropriates money to defray expenses and liabilities of the City of Boulder, 
Colorado, for the 2014 fiscal year of the City of Boulder, commencing on the first day 
of January 2014, and ending on the last day of December 2014, and setting forth details 
in relation thereto; and 

 
5. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7945 that 

amends Chapters 3-8, 3-9 and 4-20 of the B.R.C. 1981changing certain fees, and 
setting forth details in relation thereto 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder City Council and convene as the 
Central Area General Improvement District Board of Directors 

 
B. Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to the 2014 budget of 

the City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 
Central Area General Improvement District Fund): 

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund 

(formerly known as the Central Area General Improvement District Fund), adopting a 
budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 
 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder Central Area General Improvement 
District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in part, of the District 
during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 
 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the Central 
General Improvement District Fund) for the 2014 fiscal year and setting forth details in 
relation thereto; and  

 

Packet Page     2



 
 

Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the CAGID Board of Directors and to convene as 
the university Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) Board of Directors 
 
C. Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to the 2014 budget of 

the City of Boulder university Hill Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 
University Hill General Improvement District Fund): 

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder University Hill Commercial District Fund 

(formerly known as the University Hill General Improvement District Fund), adopting 
a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 
 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder University Hill General 
Improvement District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in part, of 
the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 
 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
of Boulder University Hill Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 
University Hill Commercial District Fund) for the 2014 fiscal year and setting forth 
details in relation thereto; and  

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the UHGID Board of Directors and convene as the 
Boulder Municipal Property Authority Board of Directors 
 
D. Consideration of a motion to adopt a resolution formally adopting the 2014 budget for 

the Boulder Municipal Property Authority; and  
 

Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Municipal Property Authority Board 
of Directors and convene as the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District 
Board of Directors 
 
E. Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to the 2014 budget of 

the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District Fund:  
 

1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General 
Improvement District, adopting a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 
2014; and 
 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General 
Improvement District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in part, of 
the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 
 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District for the 2014 fiscal 
year and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 

Packet Page     3



 
 

Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass 
General Improvement District Board of Directors, and convene as the Boulder Junction 
Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Board of Directors 
 
F. Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to the 2014 budget of 

the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Parking Fund:  

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Parking Fund, adopting a budget for the fiscal year 
beginning January 1, 2014; and 
 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 
Commission General Improvement District – Parking Property Tax Mill Levy for 
payment of expenditures, in part, of the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting 
forth details in relation thereto; and 
 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
for Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – 
Parking Fund for the 2014 fiscal year and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Parking Board of Directors and convene as the Board of Directors of 
the Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand 
Management 
 
G. Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to the 2014 budget of 

the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Fund:  

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund, adopting a budget 
for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 
 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 
Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Property 
Tax Mill Levy for payments of expenditures, in part, of the District during the 2014 
fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 
 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – 
Travel Demand Management Fund for the 2014 fiscal year and setting forth details in 
relation thereto; and  

 

Packet Page     4



 
 

Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Board of Directors and reconvene as 
the City Council 
 
H. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt three ordinances relating to 

alcohol:  
 

1. Amend on second reading and order published by title only Ordinance No. 7938 
amending Chapter 6-3, “Trash Recyclables and Compostables,” and Title 9, “Land Use 
Code,” B.R.C. 1981, to reduce impacts of hospitality establishments on neighboring 
properties and setting forth related details; and 
 

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 7939 amending section 4-2-4, “State Law Procedures Apply,” 
B.R.C., 1981, to modify the 500-foot Rule to allow Beer and Wine licenses only and 
setting forth related details; and 
 

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 7940 removing Sections 2-3-3, “Beverage Licensing 
Authority,” and replacing with a new Section 4-2-12, “Beverage Licensing 
Authority,” amending 4-2-3, “Authority to Issue City Licenses,” 2-6-3, “Creation, 
Jurisdiction, and Powers of Municipal Court,” 2-6-4, “Judges,” B.R.C. 1981, and 
setting forth related details 

 
6. MATTERS FROM THE CITY MANAGER   

 
A. Request for direction on a proposal for a Boulder Stage of the 2014 U.S. Pro Cycling 

Challenge 
 

B. Municipalization Exploration Project Update 
 
7. MATTERS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY   
  

None 
 
8. MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

 
A. Potential Call-Ups 

 
1. Vacation of an 829 square-foot portion of an existing fourteen-foot utility 

easement that runs along the north and east property lines at 3220 Arnett Street 
(ADR2013-00170) Information Packet Date: October 15 Last Opportunity: October 15 
 

2. Landmark Alteration Certificate for rehabilitation and new construction at 3015 
Kalmia Information Packet Date: October 15 Last Opportunity: October 15 
 

3. Vacation of Existing utility Easement at 1005 Gilbert Street Information Packet 

Packet Page     5



 
 

Date: October 15 Last Opportunity: October 15 
 

B. Update on MPACT64 – Statewide Transportation 
 

C. Update on NAMS – US Highway 36 Transit Study  
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS (15 min.) Public comment on any motions made 

under Matters. 
 

10. FINAL DECISIONS ON MATTERS Action on motions made under Matters. 
 

11. DEBRIEF (5 Min.) Opportunity for Council to discuss how the meeting was conducted 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

This agenda and the meetings can be viewed at www.bouldercolorado.gov / City Council.  
Meetings are aired live on Municipal Channel 8 and the city’s Web site and are re-cablecast at 6 
p.m. Wednesdays and 11 a.m. Fridays in the two weeks following a regular council meeting.  
DVDs may be checked out from the Main Boulder Public Library.  Anyone requiring special 
packet preparation such as Braille, large print, or tape recorded versions may contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (303) 441-3002, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. Monday through Friday.  48 hours notification 
prior to the meeting or preparation of special materials IS REQUIRED.  If you need Spanish 
interpretation or other language-related assistance for this meeting, please call (303) 441-1905 at 
least three days prior to the meeting.  Si usted necesita interpretación o cualquier otra ayuda con 
relación al idioma para esta junta, por favor comuníquese al (303) 441-1905 por lo menos 3 
días antes de la junta. Electronic presentations to the city council must be pre-loaded by staff at 
the time of sign up and will NOT be accepted after 3:30 p.m. at regularly scheduled meetings.  
Electronic media must come on a prepared USB jump (flash/thumb) drive and no technical 
support is provided by staff. 

 

Packet Page     6

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/


 
 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: October 15, 2013 
 

To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
  
Date:   October 10, 2013 
 
Subject: Update on Flood Recovery and Disaster Assistance Status 
 Consideration of Overarching Goals Regarding Cleanup and Flood Recovery 

Measures 
  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
As stated in the Oct. 1, 2013 City Council Memo, Boulder has transitioned into disaster 
assistance and recovery operations for the flood of Sept. 11 through 15. City staff continues to 
work with state and federal agencies to connect impacted residents to individual disaster 
assistance and is working to restore city facilities and streets. This memo provides an update of 
the progress made since the report to Council on Oct. 1, a revised damage assessment submitted 
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) on Oct. 8, and the revised “Key 
Objectives for near-term recovery and long-term resiliency relative to the 2013 Flood” reflecting 
council’s direction. 
 
On Oct. 8, the city provided the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) with a 
revised preliminary damage assessment stemming from the storms and floods of approximately 
$43.6 million. This assessment is likely to change as staff and contractors gain access to 
additional damaged areas and begin restoration of city assets. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 
In an effort to address the council’s input of Oct. 8, 2013 on the city’s proposed key objectives in 
response to the flood, the “Key Objectives for near-term recovery and long-term resiliency 
relative to the 2013 Flood” have been revised.  City Council consideration is requested of this 
matter and action in the form of the following motion: 
 
Motion to approve the Key Objectives for near-term recovery and long-term resiliency relative to 
the 2013 Flood (stated in ATTACHMENT A). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
By Sept. 17, most city departments transitioned from emergency response to disaster assistance 
efforts and have been working cross-functionally to remove debris and restore municipal 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 1Packet Page     7



government operations, facilities and community infrastructure. A summary of the disaster 
assistance and recovery status, accomplishments from Sept. 27 through Oct. 10 and near-term 
priorities are included in ATTACHMENT B. Accomplishments that were listed in the Oct. 1, 
2013 council memo, while not included in Attachment B, are available through the following 
link: https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-
201309271640.pdf 
 
In addition, staff has revised the preliminary estimates provided to FEMA for the initial 
assessment of damages caused by the flood. The following table explains these estimates, which 
are preliminary and will likely change as we are able to more fully assess the extent of 
infrastructure damage. 
 
PRELIMINARY DAMAGE ASSESSMENT: 
  

FEMA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE DECLARATION - CITY OF BOULDER 
SUMMARY* 

CATEGORY A - Debris Removal 
$             
4,953,440  

CATEGORY B - Emergency Protective Measures 
$             
1,296,685  

CATEGORY C - Road & Bridge Systems 
$             
2,380,000  

CATEGORY D - Water Control Facilities 
$          
10,850,000  

CATEGORY E - Public Buildings & Equipment 
$             
4,170,000  

CATEGORY F - Public Utilities 
$             
4,250,000  

CATEGORY G - "Other" (Parks and Recreation, Open Space, Multi-
Use paths) 

$          
15,704,220  

PRELIMINARY RECOVERY ESTIMATE BY CATEGORY 
$          
43,604,345  

  
* Based on revised assessments as of Oct. 8, 2013 and recognizing that some of the infrastructure 
is still covered by debris and water and therefore unable to be assessed at this time. 
 
 
NEXT STEPS: 
Adopt a motion to approve the revised Key Objectives for the near-term recovery and long-term 
resiliency. 

 
ATTACHMENT A – Responding to the 2013 Flood: Key Objectives for Near-term Recovery 
and Long-term Resiliency 

 
ATTACHMENT B -- Department status updates and priorities/goals going forward 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 2Packet Page     8

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
 

Responding to the 2013 Flood:  
Key Objectives for Near-term Recovery and Long-term Resiliency 

 
September 2013 brought unprecedented rainfall to our region, causing significant flooding, loss 
of life, and widespread damage. The Boulder community is quickly getting back on its feet. But 
while many are back to normal routines, others will be dealing with the floods’ impacts for 
months and years to come. As a community, adequate care and support should be ensured for 
those most affected, in Boulder and surrounding areas, while focusing on the important work of 
reconstruction and other priorities. The flood has caused harm, but has also created an 
opportunity: to think critically about our future, and to work together like never before in support 
of long-term community sustainability and resiliency. 
 
Our key objectives for the near-term recovery and long-term resiliency are: 
 

1. Help people get assistance. Facilitate access to individual assistance for affected 
homeowners, renters and businesses to support their recovery from flood impacts and 
strengthen long-term resilience. 
 

2. Restore and enhance our infrastructure. Invest in projects to restore services and to 
rebuild and enhance infrastructure, as appropriate, in the interests of public health and 
safety, community quality of life, and long-term resilience. 
 

3. Assist business recovery. Work with the Boulder business community and key partners 
to connect affected businesses with resources, recover quickly from flood impacts, and 
support long-term economic vitality.  
 

4. Pursue and focus resources to support recovery efforts. Work in partnership with 
volunteers, governmental and other agencies to maximize financial resources and 
efficiencies for recovery.  
 

5. Learn together and plan for the future. Engage the Boulder community in assessing 
neighborhood  impacts, refining and rethinking community design options, prioritizing 
actions and opportunities that mitigate hazards before rebuilding and support long-term 
community resilience and sustainability. In doing so, we build a city both greater and 
more beautiful than we were before.   

Agenda Item 2A     Page 3Packet Page     9



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 4Packet Page     10



ATTACHMENT B 
 

Department Status Updates And Priorities/Goals Going Forward 
 
Across the city organization, the focus has been on continuing to assess the flood-related 
damage, coordinating with FEMA and providing initial cost estimate information, and drafting 
scope of work related to recovery projects. Information related to specific status updates and 
accomplishments towards recovery goals for Public Works is listed below. Accomplishments 
that were listed in the Oct. 1, 2013 council memo, while not included below, are available 
through the following link. https://www-
static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT: 
UTILITIES: 
 
Source Water System 
Recovery Goal: 
Restore and stabilize all critical elements of the water system before the onset of winter or 
approximately Nov. 1, 2013 in mountainous areas.  
 
Status:  
Dams, diversion and source water pipelines were inspected for damage and confirmed safe and 
operable. Hydroelectric facilities were inspected for damage and are back online with the 
exception of the Orodell facility which is offline due to non flood related issues.   
 
Water Treatment and Distribution 
Recovery Goal:  
Restore and stabilize all critical elements of the water system by Nov. 1, 2013.  
 
Status:  
The city’s two treated water pipelines in Boulder Canyon were impacted by flood erosion and 
unstable slopes, and one of these pipes is currently offline pending the completion of 
stabilization work.  
 
The Betasso Water Treatment Facility suffered minimal damage but had to operate on the 
emergency generator until power was restored by Xcel Energy.  The back-up generator fuel 
tanks are being topped off in the event that there are further outages. The Boulder Canyon 
roadway was restored on Oct. 7 and so fuel and chemical deliveries will no longer need to be 
coordinated with CDOT. 
 
The Boulder Reservoir Water Treatment Facility lost power during the flood and remained 
offline due to high turbidities in Boulder Reservoir and damage to the Boulder Feeder Canal that 
delivers water from Carter Lake.  The treatment facility was put back into operation on Oct. 10, 
2013 using water pumped from Boulder Reservoir since the Boulder Feeder Canal is not capable 
of delivering water at this time. In addition, it has been determined that the influent pipe from the 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 5Packet Page     11

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf


canal has been plugged due to sediment carried by the canal. Bids are being solicited to remove 
this sediment. 
 
A temporary water interconnect to the Spring Valley Water District is still in place and probably 
will be for another two weeks while repairs continue to be made on the water line.  
 
Several access roads suffered damage from erosion, the most serious being the road leading up to 
the Booten (Fourmile Canyon Creek crossing) water storage tank. Boulder County restored 
Wagon Wheel Gap Road (access to Booten).  Now that this roadway has been restored, work 
will be initiated to restore the access road to the Booten water storage tank. 
 
Accomplishments:   

• Completed restoration work on the Devil’s Thumb and Chautauqua water storage tank 
access roads.  

 
Wastewater Collection System 
Recovery Goal:  
Restore or stabilize all critical elements of the wastewater collection system by Nov. 1, 2013. 
This date has been changed from Oct. 1 due to the newly identified issue related to the 
interceptor sewer, as mentioned below. 
 
Status:  
Floodwater in Two-mile Canyon Creek destroyed a section of sewer serving about 50 homes 
along Spring Valley Road and West Linden Drive. Reconstruction of the destroyed section of 
line has been completed.  
 
It was determined that Boulder Creek breached its north bank just upstream of the confluence 
with South Boulder Creek. The creek is now flowing through Pit D and across the interceptor 
sewer at the northeast corner of Pit D. The reinforcement of the interceptor sewer needs to be 
more fully assessed and will be completed by Nov. 1. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) 
Recovery Goal:  
Restore all critical elements of the wastewater treatment facility by Nov. 1, 2013, including the 
influent bar screens in the “headworks” portion of the facility. 
 
Status:  
The influent 24-hour flow totals have reduced to 21 million gallons per day (Mg/D). It is 
anticipated that there will be a slow and steady return to pre-flood flows (normal, pre-flood was 
13 Mg/D on average) over the next month. Damaged headworks screens were shipped for repairs 
at the manufacturer’s facility.  One is back in service and the other screen remains with the 
manufacturer, with an unknown return date. On Sept. 30, 2013, city staff and a contractor began 
debris removal work from the headworks process and primary clarifiers.  So far, they have 
removed enough sand/grit/rocks to fill two roll-off dumpsters. This work is planned to continue 
through Friday, Oct. 11. 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 6Packet Page     12



 
Accomplishments:  

• The one repaired headworks screen was put back into operation on Sept. 26, 2013 and it 
continues to operate well. 

 
Storm water collection system 
Recovery Goal: 
By April 1, 2014, restore the capacity of the storm sewer and local drainage systems. This will 
require removal of significant debris and sediment lodged in pipes, catch basins and inlets. 
 
Status:  
Continuing to work to remove debris and sediment lodged in pipes, catch basins and inlets. It is 
anticipated this work will continue through the winter and be completed by April 1, 2014. 
 
Major Drainageway System 
Recovery Goal: 
By April 1, 2014, restore the capacity of the major drainageway system, with the exception of 
Fourmile Canyon Creek.  Restore the capacity of the Fourmile Canyon Creek drainageway by 
Oct. 1, 2014. This will require removal of significant debris and sediment as well as the 
restoration or reconstruction of improved drainageway features such as drop structures, retaining 
walls and eroded channel bottoms. 
 
Status:  
A plan is being developed for long-term reconstruction, sediment and debris removal for heavily 
impacted drainageways including Bluebell Creek, Gregory Canyon Creek, Two-mile Canyon 
Creek and Fourmile Canyon Creek. 
 
Continue to clear sediment and debris and restore drainageway features along Two-mile Canyon 
and Fourmile Canyon creeks in cooperation with the Urban Drainage and Flood Control District. 
Work to clear sediment and debris and restore drainageway features along Gregory Canyon has 
been initiated. 
 
Accomplishments: 

• An information open house for residents of the Fourmile Canyon Creek area west of 26th 
Street was hosted on Oct. 3, 2013. 

 
 
TRANSPORTATION: 
 
Street Damage 
Recovery Goal:  
Reconstruct and open residential streets (i.e., Willow Brook) impacted by flooding by December 
2013. Clear and/or reconstruct culverts and adjacent impacted roadways (i.e. 47th north of 
Independence, Pennsylvania west of 7th, and 55th and Cypress) by the end of October 2013. 
 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 7Packet Page     13



Status: 
A few residential roadways remain closed and/or will need to be reconstructed because of flood 
damage. A list of current closures can be found at www.BoulderFloodinfo.net. 
Numerous storm water channels through bridges and culverts need to be cleared of sediment and 
debris.  
 
Accomplishments: 

• Reopened Table Mesa Drive (Gillaspie to Lehigh) to traffic – an exposed gas and 
communication line were supported and undermining on this major arterial was repaired 
to open all lanes to traffic including the Skip transit route and damaged sidewalk was 
repaired; 

• Opened access to high priority residential streets - Asphalt has been removed and a 
temporary gravel surface has been placed on streets that had significant damage and 
homes could not be accessed.  The streets will be paved after underground utilities are 
evaluated.  Example Streets include King Avenue from 17th to 18th Streets; Willowbrook 
Drive north of Cascade and 7th Street from Pennsylvania to University.  Some pavement 
has been placed on 7th Street to minimize on-going erosion from minor storms; and 

• Inspected vehicular bridges - To date, all major structures (more than 20 feet in length) 
have been evaluated and confirmed to be safe and operable.  Most minor structures (less 
than 20 feet in length) have been evaluated and many need debris removal and have 
scouring around the foundation. 

 
Debris on streets 
Recovery Goal:  
Clear majority of the debris from streets and sidewalks deposited by the flooding by Nov. 1, 
2013.  Debris removal is expected to continue throughout the end of the year.  
 
Status:  
Work to clear sediment and debris on roadways and street sweeping was initiated to follow up 
debris removal. The city’s debris removal contractor will continue with debris removal 
throughout the city. 
 
Street Sweeping 
Continue to sweep the street system concentrating on hardest hit areas first.  Sweep and clear 
debris from all roadways with bike lanes, making them useable by the middle of October 2013. 
Sweeping will be on-going with a big focus on this effort the next two weeks and continuing 
with fewer sweepers into November and later, as needed.   
 
Status:  
Currently using the two city sweepers and two sweepers on loan by City of Lakewood. Crews 
have concentrated on the hardest hit areas first. Sweeping and debris removal in certain areas 
need to be coordinated and posted for "No Parking" in order to access the parking areas.   

 
Bike/Multi-Use path system and Underpasses 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 8Packet Page     14

http://www.boulderfloodinfo.net/


Recovery Goal: 
Clear debris from paths and underpasses; remove trees that were undermined; reconstruct 
damaged path sections and open all of the greenways system to public use by the end of the year.  
Some of the system is still underwater, mostly at underpasses, and if significant damage is 
uncovered repairs could extend into spring 2014.  Coordination will be required for most 
damaged sections with channel debris removal and reconstruction. 
 
Status:  
Much of the flood impacted path system is open, crews continue to pick up debris and sweep 
sand from paths.  Several underpasses are still filled with debris.  The Transportation Division 
has identified segments that have major damage and require capital reconstruction (unless they 
are still filled with debris and is working on contracting processes to address many of the 
repairs).  Up-to-date path and underpass closure can be found at www.BoulderFloodinfo.net.  
The areas that have the most damage and high water include Boulder Creek and sections of 
Fourmile Canyon Creek. 
 
FACILITIES AND ASSET MANAGEMENT (FAM) 
Recovery Goals: [Goals are listed in Oct. 1 council memo. New or revised goals are listed 
below] 

• Complete all facility assessments and damage costs estimates by mid-November [revised 
from completion date of October];  

• Open all community use facilities for full use by the end of October (Reynolds Library, 
West Senior Center, parts of North Boulder Recreation Center);  

• Identify all latent flood damages to electrical, lighting and HVAC systems by the end of 
October; and  

• Incorporate flood mitigation work with damage repairs, especially at the recreation 
centers, Reynolds Library and fire stations. [new goal] 

 
Status:   
Of the 373 city buildings and structures, 352 (94 percent) have been assessed. Utility structures, 
mostly dams, still require full assessments. Of the 352 that have been assessed, 46, or 12 percent, 
are estimated to have damage. Four facilities remain closed (West Senior Center, Reynolds 
Library, Wildland Fire Cache and the FlatIrons Event Center) with immediate restoration actions 
completed: 

• Fire Station #4 was one of the facilities that was closed and  re-opened on Sept. 30 
with permanent repairs still to be completed;  

• West Senior Center and Reynolds Library are anticipated to be re-opened by the end 
of October 2013; and 

• Assessments continue for the Wildland Fire Cache and FlatIrons Event Center, with 
the Spice of Life kitchen continuing to operate in safe areas of the FlatIrons Event 
Center. Staff is working to ensure repairs and flood mitigation are completed in 
accordance with FEMA requirements 

 
Accomplishments: 

• 94 percent of buildings and structures have been assessed for flood damage;  

Agenda Item 2A     Page 9Packet Page     15

http://www.boulderfloodinfo.net/


• Flood damage to 46 facilities had air, water and materials tested to varying degrees; 
• North Boulder Recreation Center gymnasium room has been restored and is back in use; 
• New South Boulder Recreation Center gym floor was successfully air-dried with a large 

tent system and blowers; and  
• Roof repair estimates have been completed. 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT: 
Accomplishments: 

1. South Boulder Recreation Center gymnasium has reopened. 
2. North Boulder Recreation Gymnastics program restarted with some facility adjustments. 
3. On Oct. 5 and 6, 300 volunteers performed volunteer work at Boulder Reservoir, Coot 

Lake, and Tom Watson Park. Tasks included removing debris, trail and path restoration, 
spreading sand, reseeding, and much more.  

4. Nearly all of the Boulder Creek Bike Path has been opened in part to a very collaborative 
effort with city departments. 

5. Conducted six volunteer clean ups with over 500 volunteers removing flood debris and 
repairing parks and recreation facilities. 

6. Held the Emma Gomez Martinez renaming ceremony on Oct. 12t.  
 
Priorities: 
Unchanged 
 
Goals: 

1. Open all parks by the end of October with the exception of severely damaged areas such 
as the Evert Pierson Kids Fishing Ponds, E.G. Fine Park, Elk’s Park, Elmer’s Two Mile 
Park, and Knollwood Tennis Courts. 

2. Develop and execute community-building volunteer events in the parks, facilities and 
Boulder Reservoir for the fall of 2013. Coordinate volunteer and other events across the 
city. 

3. Coordinate with FAM to assess the opening all of the North Boulder Recreation Center 
by early spring 2014. 

4. Continue volunteer projects for neighborhood parks as well as larger restoration projects 
in the spring. 

 

 

OPEN SPACE AND MOUNTAIN PARKS DEPARTMENT: 
Immediately following the September 2013 Colorado Northern Front Range Flood, Open Space 
and Mountain Parks lands were closed to public access to protect the health and safety of 
community members and to reduce the likelihood that strained emergency response services 
would be called to a rescue on city open space lands.  Since then, the priorities for the Open 
Space and Mountain Parks Department have been to restore safe access to OSMP lands for 
community enjoyment, to support agricultural operations, and take actions to protect ecological 
systems. This recovery work includes providing community members opportunities to participate 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 10Packet Page     16



as volunteers, join naturalist led hikes, and find regular and accurate updates about the status and 
condition of OSMP lands through a variety of media.  
 
Flood recovery work is occurring throughout the OSMP land system to repair trails and 
trailheads.  Flooding had significant or severe effects to over half, or nearly 80 miles of trail 
spread across the system.  Many of the severely affected trails will need to be reconstructed. 
While the about 46 percent of the trails were assessed at having minimal impact, even these 
sections need some level of repair. Agricultural operations have been disrupted as well.  There is 
damage to or destruction of almost 80,000 feet of fencing, and many of the more than 40 ditches 
that serve OSMP ranchers and farmers are inoperable.  Most of the stream channels have been 
filled in with an incredible amount of sediment – from fine sand to cobble. There are also many 
areas with stream banks vulnerable to further erosion, and debris in the channel that have 
dramatically changed habitat for aquatic plants and animals.   
 
Visitor Access: Trailheads 
Recovery Goal:  
Restore 80 percent (=28) of OSMP trailheads by Nov. 1, 2013 so they can be used for visitor 
access or for staging of reconstruction materials and equipment for flood recovery. 
 
Status:  
As of Oct. 9, approximately 50 percent (17) of the 35 OSMP trailheads are open to the public. 
OSMP has progressed 63 percent of the way to achieving this flood recovery goal, and is on a 
trajectory to meet this goal on time (see Figure 1).  
 
Accomplishments: 

• Eight (8) OSMP trailheads have been opened in the period between the drafting of City 
Council updates (Sept.26-Oct. 9.). 

• The city website is updated daily showing each trailhead that opened.  A map showing all 
opened and closed trailheads is updated daily when there is a change.  

 
Figure 1: Post Flood OSMP Trailhead Openings (Total number of trailheads= 35) 

 GOAL: 
28 (80% of) trailheads 
open by Nov. 1, 2013. 

 STATUS: 
17 (50% of) trailheads open as of 
October 9, 2013. 
63% of the way to this goal. 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 11Packet Page     17



 
Long-term Trail Recovery Project Timeline 
Recovery Goal:  
By Nov. 1, 2013, complete a trail recovery project timeline describing the anticipated duration of 
trail projects to address reconstruction, rerouting or resource/hazard mitigation efforts. 
 
Status:  
Trails greatly affected by flooding are in the steep terrain of Boulder’s mountain backdrop or 
along drainages anywhere on the OSMP system. The most severely affected trails are where 
these settings intersect—alongside steep mountain drainages in the mountain backdrop.   In some 
cases, the land where a trail had been located for decades was washed away by floodwaters.  
Some severely affected trails doubled as emergency access roads which are wider than other 
trails, and often surfaced with gravel or other materials brought from outside OSMP lands.  The 
flood also created new hazards and challenges to the protection of sensitive resources. Severely 
affected trails and roads—especially those newly positioned near hazards or sensitive resources 
will require special design, equipment and materials to repair, reroute or replace. This process is 
likely to takes time to provide safe and sustainable access.  OSMP intends to address on-trail 
hazards before the end of the year and open trails as those issues are addressed.  However, some 
trails and roads will remain closed beyond the start of 2014 because of the complexity and scale 
of the reconstruction work that will need to be done and  difficulties and unpredictability 
associated with winter access and construction in the mountain backdrop.  
 
The preliminary assessment information has been to identify the most severely affected trails and 
trail segments, examining the distribution of these by assessment zone and is on target for 
meeting this goal. 
 
Accomplishments:   

• Trained and deployed volunteers from the Front Range Climbing Council and Rocky 
Mountain Rescue to conduct trail assessments for trails not visited during staff’s initial 
assessments.  

• Started detailed evaluation and categorization of significantly and severely impacted 
trails in preparation of recovery work and compliance with Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) documentation requirements.   

 
 
Trail Access: Commercial/Special Use Permitting 
Recovery Goals: 
Restore access to 50 percent (=70 miles) of OSMP trails by Jan. 1, 2014. Guarantee up to date 
information about OSMP trail and trailhead openings will be posted to the city website daily. 
 
Status:  
As of Oct. 9, 63 miles, or 43 percent of OSMP’s trails have been open to visitor access. The rate 
of trail openings has slowed as staff encounters trails with more severe flood impacts and greater 
potential hazards (see Figure 2).  However, OSMP has completed 90 percent of this recovery 
goal and is on track to fully meet this goal. 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 12Packet Page     18



 
Accomplishments:   

• Thirteen (13) miles of OSMP trails have been opened in the period between the drafting 
of City Council flood updates (Sept.26-Oct. 9.). 

• Each trail opening includes the following actions: 
o Evaluate site specific conditions;  
o Repair trails to a standard adequate for public access by identifying and addressing 

critical hazards; 
o Place signs and barricades restricting access to closed areas and 
o Remove/change signs allowing access to newly opened areas. 

• Updating the city website daily to list each trail/trail segment opened that day.  A map 
showing the all opened (and closed) trails is also updated daily when there is a change.  
 

 
Figure 2: Post flood OSMP trail openings (Total trail mileage = 145) 

 

 
Visitor and Infrastructure Protection 
Recovery Goal:  
Complete a geotechnical analysis of those areas of the existing trail system where slope failure 
and related threats have affected OSMP infrastructure.   
 
Status:  
Achieving this goal requires working with experts in the fields of geology, geomorphology and 
geotechnical engineering—areas of expertise outside of what OSMP staff can provide.  For the 
past two weeks, city staff has been working with disaster recovery consultants (Adjusters 
International or “AI”) to identify the purchasing and procurement practices likely to result in 
reimbursement by FEMA.   
 
Accomplishments:   

  GOAL: 
70 trail miles (ca. 50%) 
open by Jan. 1, 2014.   STATUS: 

43% (63) trail miles 
open as of October 9, 2013. 
90% of the way to this goal.  

Agenda Item 2A     Page 13Packet Page     19



• Developed a scope of work for external consultants 
o Created a draft scope of work including desired deliverables, timeline, and 

available funding/anticipated costs. 
o Submitted draft scope of work to the Office of the City Attorney for review. 

 
 
Community Outreach: Media Relations 
Recovery Goal:  
By the first week in October conduct media tours of damaged and restored OSMP resources to 
tell stories about why some open space areas are closed to visitors and how the city has 
successfully and promptly provided visitor access to OSMP lands.  
 
Status:  
On Sept. 27, OSMP hosted a media tour .   
 
Community Outreach: Volunteer Programming 
Recovery Goal:  
Starting the week of Sept. 23 offer at least four volunteer flood restoration projects weekly. 
Volunteer opportunities will include chances for community members, employee groups, 
AmeriCorps and others to: 1) Improve the condition of OSMP trails, 2) Repair or restore 
agricultural operations, 2) Control the spread of weeds and other threats to ecological 
sustainability. 
 
Status:  
During the week of Sept. 23, six projects were offered that involved 109 volunteers including an 
AmeriCorps team, the Boulder Mountain Bike Alliance/Boulder Bike Patrol, individuals 
working off community service requirements and members of the general public. 
 
During the week of Sept. 30, five projects were offered that involved 120 volunteers. Along with 
unaffiliated members of the public and community service volunteers, groups included GoLite 
employees. 
 
Six projects are planned for the week of Oct. 7.  
 
Accomplishments:   
Volunteer Projects Completed 
• Tuesday, Sept. 24: 5 volunteers. Clearing Bluebell road of “ankle twisters.”  
• Wednesday, Sept. 25: 10 volunteers. Clearing debris and moving rocks around a washed out 

drainage at the Royal Arch Trail.  
• Friday, Sept. 27: 18 AmeriCorps volunteers. Digging out Silver Lake Ditch at the Mount 

Sanitas area. 
• Friday, Sept. 27: 10 volunteers. Small restoration project shoveled gravel from an OSMP 

wetland near the South Boulder Creek West Trailhead. 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 14Packet Page     20



• Saturday, Sept. 28 (National Public Lands Day): 36 volunteers including Boulder Mountain 
Bike Alliance and the Boulder Mountain Bike Patrol.  Setting 31 below grade checks and 
spreading 20 tons of roadbase to surface the rutted sections of the High Plains trail.  

• Saturday, Sept. 28: 10 community service volunteers. Tamping and smoothing accessible 
trails at Sombrero Marsh. 

• Wednesday, Oct 2:  20 volunteers from GoLite.  Cattle fence cleanup on the Weiser property.  
• Thursday, Oct. 3: 15 volunteers.  Spreading 30 tons of crusher fines to fill trail gullies, and 

smoothed 500 feet of trail at Boulder Valley Ranch’s Sage Trail.  
• Saturday, Oct. 5: 40 volunteers with three REI staff.  Joint project with the Silver Lake Ditch 

Company, digging over 100 cubic yards of sediment from the ditch and assisting in restoring 
trail access as well.  

• Saturday, Oct. 5: 35 volunteers . Working with Western Resource Volunteers ( WRV) to 
collect native seed near the Greenbelt Plateau Trailhead . 

• Saturday, Oct. 5: 10  community service volunteers. Repairing the Cherryvale ADA trail and 
cleaning up at Settler’s Park. 

• Tuesday, Oct. 8: 22 volunteers from Boulder Mountain Bike Alliance and Boulder Trail 
Runners.   Clearing out a landslide/slump & working on a fence/gate repair at Flatirons Vista. 

 
Volunteer Projects Planned 
• Wednesday, Oct. 9: Volunteers from White Wave Food & Deuter –Fence repairs on along 

Coal Creek before Bald Eagle Closure (Nov. 1).  
• Wednesday, Oct. 9: Training for trail assessment volunteers from the Flatirons Climbing 

Council and Rocky Mountain Rescue.  
• Thursday, Oct. 10: 15 volunteers. Tallgrass Species Seed Collection in the vicinity of the 

Cherryvale Trailhead.  
• Saturday, Oct. 12:  AmeriCorps crew. Fence repair along Coal Creek. 
• Saturday, Oct. 19: 15-20 members of CU Alpha Sigma Phi Fraternity repairing fencing along 

Coal Creek.  
• Tuesday, Oct. 22: 10 volunteers.  Small restoration project shoveling gravel out of a wetland 

near the South Boulder Creek West Trailhead.  
• Saturday, Oct. 26: 50 volunteers through WRV. Repairing fencing along Coal Creek.  
• Saturday, Nov.  2:  20 volunteers from CU ‘s “Give A Day" project for students. 
 
In addition to volunteer programs, Open Space and Mountain Parks has developed an innovative 
public program called Changing Landscapes - OSMP after the Floods.  The program is centered 
on a two-hour hike guided by OSMP interpretive naturalists.  Visitors are taken into flood-
damaged areas where they are offered time to contemplate and absorb changes on the land, as 
well as a brief overview of these events from the perspective of natural geologic change. 

Ecological Systems: 
The flooding had a mixed effect on OSMP resources and not all impacts can be characterized as 
negative.  Many of the changes that result from flooding are ecological desirable as they result in 
the mosaic of ecological conditions and microhabitats that support a wide range of species.  For 
example, interesting wetlands have developed in clay lined depression resulting from past 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 15Packet Page     21



slumps; and the typical natural process for the establishment of riparian and floodplain 
vegetation is the deposition of sands and silts by floodwaters.   
 
Flooding has had the most dramatic effect on OSMP streams and riparian areas where the depth 
and velocity of water was greatest.  Some of these impacts have or will have a positive effect on 
the natural system.  Erosion of stream banks and deposition of sediment have created point bars 
where cottonwood trees and willows will establish.  Overbank flooding cycle’s nutrients through 
terrestrial, riparian and wetland systems by depositing nutrient rich sediments and organic matter 
across the floodplain.  Some steam channels have changed course, leaving behind oxbows or 
river bends filled with water. These abandoned river channels provide diverse habitat no longer 
widespread in highly modified floodplains of Boulder Creek and its tributaries.   
 
Recovery Goals:  
Develop and prioritize at least three distinct post-flood ecological management projects. 
 
Status:  
One project class under development is preempting weed establishment by planting and seeding 
native species in areas disturbed by the flood.  For example, where saturated hillsides became 
unstable and created a slide, areas of bare soil have been exposed.  Vegetation development on 
many of these sites will be monitored to ensure noxious weeds do not invade. Where appropriate, 
staff anticipates  that seeding or planting native species will reduce weed establishment and 
spread.  No earthmoving is anticipated to “restore” these areas as there is considerable value in 
habitats resulting from disturbance.   Similar native planting projects may also be used in and 
around riparian areas where flood waters deposited seeds for noxious weeds such as salt cedar;  
and where crack willow and other species are likely to become established through rapid and 
pervasive sprouting from the fragments left behind by the floodwaters.   
 
Another class of projects in development will address restoration of restoration structures 
damaged or destroyed by the floodwaters.  OSMP, working with partners such as Trout 
Unlimited and the Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife, made considerable investments in 
aquatic habitat improvements over the past 15 years.  Projects include in stream structural 
improvements as well as fish passage structures at ditch headgates.  While creek flows remain 
too high in some places to assess the condition of some in-channel features, others are known to 
have suffered significant or severe impact.  The condition of these structures will continue to be 
assessed and plans developed to rebuild or replace them.  
 
Many stream channels are now filled with sediment – from fine sand to large cobble – 
destroying, at least temporarily, habitat for some aquatic plants and animals.  There are also 
many highly erosive stream banks which continue to contribute large amounts of sediment to the 
creeks.  There is also a large amount of human-made debris in the creek channels.  As part of a 
third class of ecological restoration activities, OSMP will determine where, and under what 
conditions it is appropriate to restore areas of aquatic habitat.  Such actions may  provide 
temporary refuge for species that might otherwise become locally extirpated (die out), and be 
unable to recolonize local streams when conditions improve. 
 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 16Packet Page     22



In several locations along Boulder Creek and South Boulder Creek low-lying gravel pits have 
captured the majority of the flows after the creeks eroded through their banks into the adjacent 
ponds.  The new flow channels are flooding roads, threatening utilities and impacting water 
delivery associated with irrigation ditches.  OSMP staff is working with other city departments 
and outside agencies to address these situations to avoid unnecessary additional impacts to 
already stressed aquatic systems, and where possible leverage compensatory mitigation to restore 
or improve creek function consistent with the management of public facilities. 
 
Accomplishments: 

• Ecological Systems staff  has participated in over 50 small-scale trail project reviews to 
ensure work being conducted to open trails to public access is consistent with 
environmental protection practices and regulations 

• Staff ecologists continue their work assessing impacts to ecological systems across the 
system as floodwater recede. 

 
  
Ecological Systems &  Resource Operations: 
The two classes of impacts to OSMP for which recovery costs may not be considered 
reimbursable by FEMA are 1) management of unimproved natural systems, and 2) impacts to 
water delivery infrastructure.  The first of these is described in the status section of the previous 
goal.  Impacts to water delivery infrastructure include, but are not limited to, damage or 
destruction of the headgates that divert creek flows into irrigation ditches, as well as 
sedimentation and erosion of irrigation ditches. 

 
Recovery Goal:  
Identify at least two sources of funding for emergency projects which are unlikely to be 
reimbursed by FEMA.  
 
Status:  
Staff has estimated the costs of restoration to unimproved natural systems at approximately $2 
million, and the department’s share of impacts to water delivery infrastructure (largely ditches, 
headgates and reservoir dams/berms) at over $1.5 million.   Alternatives to FEMA 
reimbursement are being explored in case, the flood impacts to these are determined by FEMA to 
be ineligible for FEMA public assistance program,.  
 
Flood recovery efforts by federal agencies other that FEMA have been stalled by the federal 
government shutdown.  Most state, regional and watershed agencies are still in the process of 
identifying funds for grants, loans and other assistance.  As they attend meetings staff members 
are is tracking and sharing information about the availability of funding or services sources other 
than FEMA.  
 
Accomplishments:   

• Staff is in the process of identifying funding opportunities as they become available. 
 
COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNCTIONS: 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 17Packet Page     23



 
Human Services:  
Accomplishments 
 

• City and county services for individual assistance returned to their home sites effective 
Oct 1. FEMA, Red Cross, Salvation Army, Southern Baptist Disaster Relief, and several 
other nonprofit organizations continue to provide services at the Disaster Assistance 
Center (DAC). The DAC is now the FEMA Disaster Recovery Center (DRC). FEMA 
will remain on site indefinitely and will refer residents who come to the site for other 
community assistance, as needed.  

• As of Oct 1, over 3,848 individuals and 1,687 households had been served at the DAC.  
 
Priorities 

1. Continue to provide auxiliary support for FEMA DRC until closing. 
2. Serve with Boulder County, City of Longmont, Community Foundation Serving Boulder 

County, Foothills United Way and Town of Lyons and others on committee to allocate  
Foothills United Way Flood Relief Fund for immediate, short and long term community 
needs.  

3. Coordinate with committee and Boulder County development of longer term recovery 
plan and human services recovery structure.   

 
Recovery Goal:  

1. To support displaced residents in stabilizing living situations and meeting basic health 
and human services needs. 

2. To support community non-profits and organizations in providing services assisting 
residents in regaining stability.  

 
Housing: 
Accomplishments 

• Organized partnership to provide short-term rental housing for displaced households.  
Participants:  Housing Helpers (recruit units, provide leasing service for households, 
partial fee reduction), Foothills United Way through Flood Relief Fund (payment of 
reduced leasing service fee), property owners (increased flexibility in lease terms), and 
Boulder, Longmont and Boulder County (information and referral, program monitoring 
and administration).  More than 30 households matched with housing.  More than 70 
units identified. 

• Collaborating with Habitat for Humanity on housing clean-up and rehabilitation 
assistance for low-income homeowners and community agencies serving low-income 
people. 

• Provided information to private non-profits about potential FEMA public assistance. 
• Identified 3-5 units available for short-term housing. 
• Met with CU housing staff to understand the impact to students. 
• Met with state about coordinating Community Development Block Grant – Disaster 

Relief  (CDBG-DR) funding and other possible recovery resources (LIHTC, PABs, 
regulatory waivers, etc.) 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 18Packet Page     24



 
Priorities 

• Ensuring the city is positioned to receive and administer any CDBG-DR funding. 
• Supporting community partners, both housing and service providers, and the owners of 

permanently affordable homes with their recovery efforts. 
• Supporting county-led housing recovery efforts. 
• Getting data on displaced households and their housing needs from the county and/or 

FEMA. 
 
Recovery Goal:  

• Secure CDBG-DR funding for city recovery efforts. 
• Support displaced city residents with short-term housing options that minimize household 

and community disruption and facilitate access to information and resources to restore 
damaged housing. 

• Coordinate and collaborate on housing recovery efforts with the county. 
• Develop a housing recovery plan for future use. 
• Update city’s emergency response plan to include formal role for Housing Division. 

 
Community Planning And Sustainability: 
Accomplishments: 
• Three neighborhood flood recovery open houses scheduled as follows: 

Oct. 17 – Twomile Canyon and Upper Goose Creek at Municipal Building, 4:30–6 p.m. 
Oct. 23 – Gregory Canyon Creek at Flatirons Elementary, 4:30 – 6 p.m. 
Either Oct. Oct. 24 – Skunk Creek, Bluebell Canyon, Kings Gulch Open House at New 
Vista High School, 4:30 – 6 p.m. 
• Sending out 5,000 postcards to properties within the flood drainages and within 500 

feet of them   
• Coordinating interdepartmental team from Utilities, Transportation, Planning and 

Development Services, and Open Space to provide information or attend these open 
houses.  

 
Priorities: 

• Support appropriate mitigation of flood damaged properties by providing accurate 
information and access to resources on web site, through outreach and through 
coordination with our partner agencies (Boulder County, University of Colorado, 
BARHA, etc.) 

• Inspection of work being done in flood damaged properties 
• Develop a public engagement strategy to  

 
Recovery Goal:  

• Protect health and safety of residents and businesses by encouraging appropriate repair of 
flood damaged properties.  
 

Debris & Pest Management: 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 19Packet Page     25



Accomplishments 
• Continued residential debris collection; completing first pass through all of town on Friday, 

Oct. 4; began second pass, including any missed debris piles on Saturday, Oct. 5.  
• The last day of curbside debris collection is Monday, Oct. 14. 
• On Monday, Oct. 7 began residential collection of mud, silt and dirt that resulted from flood 

activities. 
• Enlisted the help of debris collection crews and FEMA debris monitors for mud, silt and dirt 

that accumulated in city properties including bike paths, parks, streets, sidewalks and 
landscaping strips where appropriate; and for removal of the large pile of dirt that had been 
collected from public streets and rights-of-ways and was consolidated at the City Yards. 

• As of Monday, Oct. 7, 1,067 tons of debris has been removed through the residential 
curbside collection program. 

• It is estimated that an additional ~6,000 tons of dirt and silt will be collected over the coming 
week. Of this, approximately 5,500 tons is estimated to be from city owned property and 
~500 tons from residents. 
 

Priorities: 
• Make final determination on authority to clear debris from city easements where property is 

not owned in fee 
• Investigate federal jurisdiction issues with silt and sediment in stream beds, channels, 

wetlands, and wetland buffers. 
 
Recovery Goal:  
• Assist residents with flood-related debris removal to protect public health and safety. 
• Clear all public streets and rights of ways of flood-related debris in a timely manner to 

protect public health and safety. 
• Ensure debris removal activities comply with all FEMA regulations and guidelines to allow 

for appropriate reimbursement from FEMA for flood debris removal activities 
 
 
Business: 
Accomplishments: 

1. Over 100 businesses have been contacted by the city and the Boulder Economic Council 
2. Continue to work with city Parks and Recreation staff and Spice of Life owners (tenants 

and potential business retention clients)  to discuss next steps after flood damage to the 
city-owned Flatirons Events Center building, including evaluating site options for 
community events and meetings, and  Spice of Life events and catering 

3. Prepared presentation and resources and participated at the Sept. 24 business flood 
information workshops at the Boulder Chamber, attended by over 50 people  

4. Posted Business FAQs on boulderfloodinfo.net with detailed information and links for 
FEMA and SBA disaster assistance 

 
Priorities:   

1. Assess flood impacts to Boulder businesses and offer support through proactive outreach 
2. Provide immediate assistance to businesses that sustained flood damage 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 20Packet Page     26



3. Create business flood resources/info. on the city’s web site 
4. Work closely with the businesses that sustained substantial damage through the recovery 

period 
 
Recovery Goal:  

1. To partner with local, state, and federal agencies to provide flood recovery services to 
Boulder businesses including outreach and education, business assistance, and financial 
assistance 

2. To directly connect Boulder businesses and business partners with the appropriate city 
and federal agency contacts for flood recovery 

 
 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 21Packet Page     27



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 2A     Page 22Packet Page     28



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE:  Status report on Urban Wildlife Issues 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Tom Carr, City Attorney 
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
Mark Beckner, Police Chief 
Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Panning & Sustainability 
Valerie Matheson, Urban Wildlife Conservation Coordinator 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Tragically, four bears have been euthanized in Boulder this year, while another two have 
been killed by cars.  These bears, whose deaths have saddened the community, have 
come to depend on trash in urban areas for food.  The purpose of this agenda item is to 
provide council with an update on the city’s efforts to address this serious situation. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
  

• Economic - Proper storage of trash and preventing trash from being strewn by 
animals supports the aesthetic character and economic vitality of Boulder. 

• Environmental - Unsecured trash is harmful to native wildlife. Trash that is easily 
accessible invites bears to forage in town as opposed to adjacent natural areas. 
Trash consumption by bears results in cellophane, foil, and other non-digestible 
materials to be ingested by bears with food waste. Ingesting these materials is 
harmful to bears. In addition, bears in town that are repeatedly a nuisance, or pose 
a direct threat to public safety, are destroyed. 

• Social - Though there have been no attacks on humans by black bears in the City 
of Boulder, the presence of these large predators in the urban area poses a safety 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 1Packet Page     29



threat to the community. Bear activity has been reported near areas where 
children congregate and along streets and alleys where children walk to school. In 
addition, bears that access trash often drag and spread household waste on streets, 
lawns and alleys, compromising basic neighborhood sanitation and aesthetics.  
Euthanizing bears can be traumatic for members of the community, particularly 
for children.  Doing so compromises the civic value of living in harmony with the 
natural surroundings.  
 

OTHER IMPACTS 
 

• Fiscal - Budgetary impacts depend on council direction.      
• Staff time - Current activities are covered by existing department work plans.  

Additional enforcement or introduction of bear proof trash containers will require 
additional staff time. 
 

BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
None. 
 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
Community input has stressed the trauma caused by the need to euthanize four bears in 
Boulder this year.   
 
BACKGROUND 
David Baron in A Beast in the Garden wrote “reducing conflicts between people and wild 
animals will require controls on human actions: where we build our homes, how we 
landscape our yards, the way we dispose of our trash and house our pets.”  Boulder 
presents unique challenges for managing human bear interactions.  The community 
abundant adjacent open space provides a natural wild habitat.  The western edge, adjacent 
to this habitat is heavily populated, including many students who may not be familiar 
with the issues presented by bears in the area. 
 
Addressing these issues has been a long term priority for the city.  The city has an Urban 
Wildlife Management Plan (UWMP).  Council identified the need for the UWMP during 
the development of the city's wildlife protection ordinance in 2005.  During the ordinance 
adoption process, council highlighted the need for a broad, citywide context for making 
site-specific wildlife management decisions.  In response to this need, council directed 
staff to develop an urban wildlife management plan, beginning with a prairie dog 
management component.  The first phase of the UWMP was the development of guiding 
principles, vision and goals for urban wildlife management accepted by City Council in 
January 2006.  The guiding principles emphasize the use of humane, non-lethal control 
methods when wildlife in the city is in conflict with use or development of a site. 
 
Phase II of the UWMP is focused on species-specific components of the plan.  The first 
component, accepted by City Council in 2006, addressed the management of black-tailed 
prairie dogs in the city.  On October 18, 2011, the council adopted the bear and mountain 
lion component of the city’s UWMP.  The bear and mountain lion component includes 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 2Packet Page     30



strategies to minimize human/wildlife conflicts and increase public awareness on how to 
better coexist with these animals. The plan objectives included: 
 

• Develop strategies to reduce bear attractants in the urban area; 
• Increase public awareness of how to minimize conflicts with black bears and 

mountain lions; 
• Identify costs and prioritize actions for plan implementation; and 
• Identify and clarify the role of the city in black bear and mountain lion 

management. 
 

While the plan addresses human behavior and human land uses, that can reduce conflicts 
with wildlife, Colorado Parks and Wildlife (formally Division of Wildlife) is responsible 
for direct management of the wildlife. A copy of the plan is attached (ATTACHMENT 
A).   
 
Many people have expressed concern about Colorado Parks and Wildlife’s (CPW)“two 
strikes” policy.  The policy, or administrative directive (ATTACHMENT B), addresses 
how black bears are managed in light of public safety issues.  CPW has also identified 
misconceptions about the “two strikes” policy in an article recently submitted to The 
Blueline (ATTACHMENT C). 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The greatest danger to bears occurs when bears become dependent on human food.  The 
average trash receptacle contains thousands of usable and easily accessible calories for a 
bear to consume.  Bears discover and can become dependent on this abundant food 
source.  Dependent bears will return to a food source.  The best way to deal with this 
issue is to reduce bears’ access to trash.  Boulder has taken many of the steps 
recommended as best practices for limiting bears’ access to trash.  Boulder prohibits 
residents from putting trash out before 5 a.m. on the day of collection except in 
alleyways.  The law also prohibits allowing trash to be scattered by wild animals.  The 
city has three code enforcement officers who enforce these and many other provisions of 
the municipal code.  In 2013 alone, these officers have taken over 840 enforcement 
actions for trash violations.   
 
The officers give first offenders educational materials and a notice of violation requiring 
trash issues to be fixed within 24 hours.  They also knock on every door and provide 
education to the tenant or owner.  If not home, a notice with an educational flyer is left on 
the front door.  In the case of rentals, officers also send a notice to the listed property 
owner warning that the tenant received a notice and that the property owner is equally 
liable and also could be subject to enforcement action.  On a second violation, the 
officers issue a summons to the tenant or owner.  When no one is home, the officers go 
back at a different time or give the summons to patrol to issue during evening hours.  
They may also choose to send a certified letter with summons to the landlord if the 
officers are unable to contact the tenants. 
 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 3Packet Page     31



During the current Bear Enforcement and Education Pilot there has been a documented 
behavior change in most cases after enforcement action has been taken, albeit based on a 
small sample size.  In the pilot area in 2012, 24 residences received notice of violation for 
putting their trash out the night before pick-up.  Over half of the residents that received 
notice (14) did not repeat the same behavior.  Of the 10 that did repeat the behavior, 8 
were issued a second summons.  None of the 8 residents that received a second summons 
repeated the same behavior a third time. 
 
The primary neighborhoods where code enforcement officers work on this issue are the 
Hill, Flatirons, Grant and northwest Boulder.  This approach is modeled on community 
policing principles employing components such as warnings, education, enforcement, 
working with community members (landlords and neighborhoods) and business in 
finding longer term solutions to achieve the desired approach and to create a permanent 
culture change.  The personal contact between the officer and the resident promotes 
understanding and is usually more effective than a strictly enforcement based approach. 
 
However, education-based efforts have limited effectiveness when the affected areas are 
populated with a large number of new residents right in the middle of bear season.  The 
city and the university have been proactive in partnering to introduce new students to the 
expectations of our community.  These efforts will continue. 
 
This is not to say that the city cannot do more.  Staff intends to provide council with 
options in the first quarter of 2014 to address many of the issues raised recently by the 
community.  In the interim, staff will continue the process of community outreach to 
better understand the potential impacts of options such as requiring bear-proof containers 
or limiting trash containers in alleys.  In 2012, Durango passed an ordinance requiring 
bear-proof containers at residences where bears had accessed trash, and embarked on a   
5-year study investigating how bear populations use urban areas, and how to reduce bear-
human conflicts.  While they do not yet have sufficient data to evaluate the effectiveness 
of bear-proof containers, preliminary results have shown that garbage-eating bears have 
higher reproductive rates, and mortality rates than wild bears.  The implication of these 
findings is that sows that eat trash have more cubs.  As a consequence, the urban 
population of bears increases, and more bears die than would have in natural areas.  This 
seems to hold true in Boulder.  In 2012, there were an estimated 16 bears using the urban 
interface, which appears to be an increase over prior years.  In addition to the four bears 
that have been euthanized, two bears, including “falling bear” the bear on CU property 
that gained wide recognition from a photo taken on site, were hit by cars.  In light of the 
impact of trash on urban bear populations, it is important to recognize that even if a 
proposed solution to securing trash was 100 percent adopted and 100 percent effective, it 
would still take some time, perhaps years, to change bear behavior.  In fact, making trash 
more inaccessible might increase human bear interactions in the short term by driving 
bears further into the community in search of food.  Real results can only be achieved in 
the long term by developing a generation of bears not dependent on human trash.   
 
For this season, the code enforcement officers within the police department will increase 
emphasis on trash violations during the next few weeks.  October and early November 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 4Packet Page     32



tend to be the period for the highest number of human bear interactions as bears seek 
calories to prepare for winter hibernation.  Thus, it is important that we do what we can in 
the next few weeks.  This means that attention to other code enforcement issues will be 
reduced during this period.   
 
Staff members have been meeting with representatives of Western Disposal to explore 
strategies for better securing trash against bears.  Staff will continue this work to look for 
solutions. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
Attachment A  - City of Boulder Urban Wildlife Management Plan Black Bear and          

Mountain Lion Component  

Attachment B – Colorado Parks and Wildlife – Administrative Directive W-2 

Attachment C -  Colorado Parks and Wildlife Blue Line article. 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 5Packet Page     33



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 6Packet Page     34



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 7Packet Page     35



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 8Packet Page     36



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 9Packet Page     37



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 10Packet Page     38



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 11Packet Page     39



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 12Packet Page     40



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 13Packet Page     41



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 14Packet Page     42



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 15Packet Page     43



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 16Packet Page     44



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 17Packet Page     45



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 18Packet Page     46



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 19Packet Page     47



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 20Packet Page     48



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 21Packet Page     49



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 22Packet Page     50



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 23Packet Page     51



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 24Packet Page     52



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 25Packet Page     53



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 26Packet Page     54



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 27Packet Page     55



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 28Packet Page     56



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 29Packet Page     57



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 30Packet Page     58



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 31Packet Page     59



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 32Packet Page     60



A
TTA

C
H

M
E

N
T A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 33Packet Page     61



A
TTA

C
H

M
E

N
T A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 34Packet Page     62



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 35Packet Page     63



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 36Packet Page     64



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 37Packet Page     65



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 38Packet Page     66



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 39Packet Page     67



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 40Packet Page     68



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 41Packet Page     69



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 42Packet Page     70



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 43Packet Page     71



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 44Packet Page     72



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 45Packet Page     73



ATTACHMENT A

Agenda Item 2B     Page 46Packet Page     74



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 47Packet Page     75



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 48Packet Page     76



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 49Packet Page     77



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 50Packet Page     78



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 51Packet Page     79



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 52Packet Page     80



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 53Packet Page     81



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 54Packet Page     82



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 55Packet Page     83



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 56Packet Page     84



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 57Packet Page     85



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 58Packet Page     86



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 59Packet Page     87



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 60Packet Page     88



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 61Packet Page     89



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 62Packet Page     90



Attachment B

Agenda Item 2B     Page 63Packet Page     91



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 2B     Page 64Packet Page     92



Misconceptions of Colorado Parks and Wildlife’s “Two-Strike Policy” 

Nowhere in Colorado Parks and Wildlife’s (CPW) directive on black bear incidents are the words “two-
strikes.”  Rather it states “Any previously translocated bear that is currently judged to be dangerous 
because of its location shall be destroyed.”  I’m not sure when we started referring to it as the “two-
strike policy” but that phrase has outlived any usefulness it may have provided in helping explain the 
concept.  This isn’t a baseball game and we do not relocate and destroy bears as some form of penalty. 
 
Put this one part of the larger policy in perspective.    Why would we relocate a bear?  To move it away 
from a school or park, to get it out of an urban neighborhood it is not leaving on its own, or to remove it 
from poor-bear habitat it has wandered into (i.e. Broomfield).  At times it may be worth it to try moving 
a bear away from town before it becomes a chronic problem or road kill statistic.  For that reason, in late 
September CPW with the help of Boulder PD and OSMP Rangers tranquilized a sow with a single cub 
that had wandered into a neighborhood southeast of Broadway and Iris, and released it in South Park.  
This was the first time these bears had been documented in Boulder there was no history with garbage, 
they were timid around humans and there was a good relocation site available a long ways from 
Boulder.  In considering whether or not to move the bears to a new location a reasonable biologist must 
also consider the impact on the dynamics of a social creature on the local population where the bears 
are moved to.  One must also consider the chance of moving a disease, we are very active for a skunk 
subtype rabies on the northern Front Range, into a new locale along with the animals being released.  
Obviously we should try to minimize that risk.  The effort was worth it in this case and our fingers are 
crossed that the sow and cub stay and thrive near the release site.  However, if this relocation is a 
success, unfortunately, it will also be a rare exception. 
 
We do not relocate a bear more than once because a majority of the time relocations do not work.  All 
three bears that were killed by CPW in Boulder in September had been relocated and had returned 
within weeks if not days to their original point of capture, the city of Boulder, regardless of being taken 
far or farther away.  The “CU Falling Bear” was hit by a car as it attempted to return to its original 
capture location on the CU campus in 2012.  In September 2010 CPW killed a mother bear that had a 
severe injury to its jaw and relocated its cub to Kremmling.  Just a little over a year later this same bear, 
the former cub, was struck and killed by a vehicle near the mouth of Boulder Canyon.  Relocating bears 
does not remove them from an area because bears are intelligent animals that make their living by 
learning and remembering where food is in the habitat and they are excellent land navigators.  Bears 
skillfully find their way back to that food. Studies and attempts to relocate bears in other portions of 
Colorado indicate the same outcomes.     
 
Changing the so called two strike policy will not save bears.  Relocating a bear over and over again is no 
better a solution than leaving the bear where it is.  In fact it is arguably crueler as these bears face perils 
whether they stay in the completely new environment or if they journey back.   
 
So why relocate bears at all?  Why not just leave bears alone?  For the most part we do.   
 
During the same time period that we relocated the bears from Boulder we did not relocate any bears 
from any of the subdivisions, campgrounds, or towns located in the foothills and forests (a.k.a. bear 
habitat) west of Boulder.  That’s where bears are supposed to be and it is up to the residents and visitors 
there to adapt to living and recreating in bear habitat.  That doesn’t mean that there are not human-
bear conflicts in these areas or that bears never pose a threat to people in these communities but they 
are very different places than the center of Boulder, a city of almost 100,000 people.   

Attachment C

Agenda Item 2B     Page 65Packet Page     93



 
We also don’t take action on every bear that comes into Boulder.  That’s another way the so called “two 
strike policy” has been misunderstood.  These bears aren’t “given a strike” every time they come into 
town.  They aren’t even “given a strike” every time they are reported in town.  There are no “strikes” for 
being up a tree and requiring volunteers to watch after them all day.  There are no “strikes” for knocking 
down garbage cans or destroying bird feeders.  All three of these bears were given time and many 
opportunities to find their own way out of town.  They were even given encouragement in the form of 
non lethal, rubber buckshot/hazing rounds to the backside.  All of these bears returned to and then 
stayed in town over many days to forage in garbage.  And why wouldn’t they?  These aren’t “bad” bears, 
they are bears that were taking advantage of an easily available food source.  But because of that they 
were consistently near schools, parks, and houses in a city where no adequate natural bear habitat 
exists.  At some point it becomes obvious that these bears became chronic trash bears and something 
had to be done. 
 
When we, as the agency responsible for managing wildlife in Colorado, are presented with situations in 
which individual wildlife pose an increased threat to human health and safety we have an overriding 
obligation to take reasonable action to prevent potential injury to people.  There is a wide range of 
public opinion as to what that reasonable action should be.  On one end is the opinion that we should 
never kill any wildlife for any reason.  On the other end is the opinion that any large predator’s existence 
is not worth the risk to human life no matter how small that risk is.  What most of us would find 
reasonable is somewhere in between.  There is no way CPW can prevent all injury or death caused by 
wildlife but under certain circumstances we have to try. 
 
It’s hard to imagine that the same bear using the crook of a cottonwood tree as a hammock for hours at 
a time could be dangerous and in fact most bears generally are not.  When confronted a majority of the 
time they will run away or climb a tree, they are not interested in starting a fight.  Despite this bears are 
responsible for injuries to people in Colorado every year.   A woman in Trinidad was injured when she 
tried to scare a bear away with pots and pans.  A man south of Denver was injured when a bear went 
after his dogs that were on a leash.  I cannot tell you if any of these Boulder bears would have hurt 
anyone with any certainty and I understand that ambiguity is unsatisfying.   
 
We are never going to prevent bears from coming into the city of Boulder altogether and the occasional 
bear walking down the street, in the back yard, or up a tree is going to be constant so long as Boulder 
has its open space, lush vegetation, and water sources.  CPW is not interested in “punishing” bears or 
any other wildlife for looking for food in the city.  I do not patrol Boulder’s streets, tranquillizer dart gun 
at the ready, looking for the wayward bear to send packing.  I do not call strikes.  I do, however, become 
concerned when a bear is so habituated to people as a result of constantly eating garbage that it fails to 
run away or go up a tree when confronted.  I worry when a bear is in the city so much that the chance is 
high that the bear will have a negative encounter with the many people that travel the same streets and 
alleys as that bear. 
 
So, ultimately, I probably cannot satisfy the many people that are saddened and angered by the deaths 
of these bears and feel our policies are cruel because there is no absolute answer as to where exactly to 
draw the line between a bear’s welfare and public safety that we all can agree on.  I can tell you that we 
will continue to favor public safety at the expense of bears.  I can also say that a majority of the time 
bears become a safety threat because of avoidable human actions. So please, forget about strikes and 
instead focus on the fact that if there was no reason for the bears to stay in town then, figuratively, they 
would never come up to bat. 

Attachment C

Agenda Item 2B     Page 66Packet Page     94



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 

 
 
Agenda Title:  Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Emergency 
Ordinance No. 7946  amending the Boulder Revised Code and extending temporary 
exceptions to specific city regulations to facilitate clean up and recovery from flood 
impacts. 
 
 
REQUESTING STAFF AND DEPARTMENTS: 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Tom Carr, City Attorney 
David Gehr, Deputy City Attorney 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
David Driskell, Executive Director, Community Planning and Sustainability (CP&S) 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this item is for City Council to extend emergency orders to facilitate repair 
and recovery from the impacts of the recent flood.  The ordinance addresses: 
 

A. Waiving certain fees for flood recovery. 
B. Suspension and modification of contractor licensing requirements.     
C. Dumpsters and temporary storage units in the public right-of-way.   
D. Modifications to camping requirements and the establishment of campgrounds.   
E. Modifications to working hours requirements.   
F. Allowing the use of mobile homes for limited non-residential purposes. 
G. Extending the disaster declaration to facilitate flood recovery. 

 
  

Agenda Item 3A     Page 1Packet Page     95



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
  
Motion to adopt Emergency Ordinance No. 7946 amending specified sections of the 
Boulder Revised Code and extending the city’s Disaster Declaration to support flood 
recovery. 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENT AND IMPACTS 
 

• Economic:   
No direct economic impact from these code changes is anticipated.  Indirectly, the 
sooner businesses and residents can remove debris, drain their properties and 
restore damaged buildings, the sooner they can resume normal business operations 
and return to their regular job responsibilities. These changes will expedite that 
process.  Waived fees will diminish some revenues, but would not affect the normal 
revenues for regular projects that would be occurring without the flood and reduces 
the economic burden on those seeking to obtain permits.  
 

• Environmental:  
The main environmental concern would be potential harm of repair work in 
wetlands and drainage channels; however, much care is being taken by the city and 
its contractors to do no more damage than what has already occurred during the 
flood and to assist with restoration.   

 
 

• Social:   
Some residents and businesses will experience noise impacts due to trash removal 
and inconveniences from dumpster parking in the right-of-way.  However, these 
will be temporary, and the ordinances expedite debris removal for health and safety 
purposes.  Those with concerns will be encouraged to report them through 
InquireBoulder; the appropriate staff person will work to address and help resolve 
the issue. 

 
OTHER IMPACTS 

• Fiscal:   See section on economic impacts above 
• Staff time:   All work will be completed with existing resources. 
• Intergovernmental:   None 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 2Packet Page     96



PUBLIC FEEDBACK:  
 
Due to the urgent nature of the flood recovery tasks at hand, public feedback has not been 
sought for these emergency orders.  However, informal comments from members of the 
public will be catalogued to better understand future similar efforts.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The September 2013 flood has had an unprecedented impact on the Boulder community.  
Efforts to ensure temporary shelter for emergency responders and displaced residents, clean 
up and repair damage, and restore impacted buildings and land will occur more quickly and 
efficiently if special, temporary exception is made to some of the city’s regulations 
governing noise, occupancy, right-of-way use and wetland protection.  Each of the 
proposed changes has been reviewed and is supported by the appropriate departments, 
including the City Attorney’s and City Manager’s Offices, Public Works, Police, Fire, 
Finance, and Community Planning and Sustainability. 
 
On September 12, 2013, the city manager declared an emergency under the provisions of 
Chapter 2-2.5, “Civil Emergencies and Disasters,” B.R.C. 1981.  At its September 19, 2013 
business meeting, the council extended the emergency declaration to October 16, 2013.   At 
that point, the city will be out of the emergency response mode and into disaster recovery 
mode.  Proposed Emergency Ordinance  No.7946 would extend the Disaster Declaration 
until further notice to facilitate recovery.  State emergency officials encouraged the city to 
maintain a Disaster Declaration during the recovery phase.  The extension of the city 
manager’s emergency powers is no longer necessary.  Accordingly, those powers are not 
extended by the proposed ordinance.   
 
Emergency Ordinance No. 7946 is necessary to provide support for persons and businesses 
that have been affected by the rains and floods from September 11 to 14.   Staff continues 
to learn more daily as to what will be necessary to continue our efforts in the area of flood 
recovery.  Therefore, it is possible that additional amendments may be proposed for this 
ordinance at the second reading scheduled for October 15, 2013. 
 
Staff reviewed the emergency rules and orders that have been issued, in addition to 
considering other potential issues that could arise as part of the flood recovery efforts and 
recommends that the council adopt the attached ordinance as an emergency measure.  The 
following amendments to the Boulder Revised Code are presented in the attached 
ordinance.  
 

Dumpsters and Temporary Storage Units in the Public Right-of-Way.  This 
proposed change would modify the requirements related to placing dumpsters or temporary 
storage units in the public right-of-way.  This change is intended to facilitate recovery by 
allowing dumpsters and temporary storage units on city streets.  The dumpsters will allow 
residents to deal with debris more efficiently.  Additionally, in damaged properties, people 
may need additional places to store personal property.  Temporary placement of storage 
units is intended to assist with this. 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 3Packet Page     97



Modifications to Camping Requirements and the Establishment of Campgrounds. A 
modification is proposed to our camping requirements to clarify that camping does not 
include temporary residence associated with the performance of a governmental service or 
by emergency responders or relief workers during a disaster emergency.   A simple 
permitting procedure was placed in the code to allow the creation of temporary 
campgrounds in the city.  Presently, under the land use code, campgrounds, as a use of 
land, is only permitted in industrial and public districts pursuant to a use review.   The 
proposed change permits them in most zoning districts subject to conditions.  The 
temporary land use would extend until April 15, 2014. 

 
Modifications to working hours requirements.   A provision was added to permit 

construction and debris removal necessitated by flooding, from 5 a.m. until midnight April 
15, 2014. 

 
Waiving certain fees for flood recovery.  The ordinance provides for the authority 

to waive some city permitting fees associated with flood recovery.   The waiver will 
provide some financial relief to persons affected by the flood.  Additionally, the city wants 
to encourage people to obtain building permits, together with prompt plan check and 
inspection services. 

 
Non-residential use of mobile homes. The ordinance provides for a waiver of 

zoning restrictions on non-residential use of mobile homes.  This will allow flood damaged 
businesses to use mobile homes parked on private property during the recovery period. 
 
In addition to the proposed changes, staff is seeking feedback regarding occupancy limits.  
Staff has considered recommending a temporary modification of the city’s occupancy 
limits to accommodate flood victims.   Staff would like council to consider three options. 
 
1.  No action – Under this alternative, the city would continue with the current system of 
complaint-based enforcement.  Due to staff constraints and resources necessary to 
investigate and prosecute violations, it is challenging to enforce the city’s occupancy 
restrictions at present.  Except in an egregious circumstance, it is unlikely that flood 
victims would face eviction under our current enforcement regime.  Under this option, the 
city manager would not enforce occupancy limits with respect to flood victims until 
January 31, 2014. 
 
2.  Suspension– Under this alternative, the city could suspend legislatively the application 
of the occupancy limit for flood victims for a limited period of time by ordinance. 
 
3.   Permit or notification – Under this alternative, the city could develop a code 
amendment that provides for a permitting system to require a permit for those who seek to 
occupy in excess of the limit. Such permits could be conditioned on compliance with noise 
and other quality of life standards.  A system such as this, although requiring more 
administration would allow the city to track the use of this provision and know where over-
occupancy is occurring for this purpose. 
 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 4Packet Page     98



Staff recommends taking no action on the occupancy regulations at this point in time.  The 
city manager in terms of investigation and the city attorney in terms of using prosecution 
resources will suspend enforcement of the occupancy rules for person directly affected by 
the flood until January 31, 2014.  The city will continue to enforce other quality of life 
regulations during this period.  If there are unforeseen consequences from this course of 
action, staff will request further guidance from the City Council.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A: Proposed Emergency Ordinance No.  7946 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 5Packet Page     99



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 6Packet Page     100



 
EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 7946 

 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SECTION 
4-20-67, “FLOOD RELATED FEE WAIVER,” B.R.C. 1981, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANGER TO WAIVE CERTAIN 
FEES; AMENDING SECTION 4-6-2 “LICENSED REQUIRED,” 
B.R.C 1981 TO ALLOW FOR CERTAIN USES OF THE RIGHT 
OF WAY; AMENDING SECTION 5-6-10 “CAMPING OR 
LODGING ON PROPERTY WITHOUT CONSENT,” B.R.C. 
1981 TO ALLOW FOR CAMPING BY EMERGENCY 
RESPONDERS OR RELIEF WORKERS AND ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 5-9-11 “FLOOD DEBRIS REMOVAL,” B.R.C 1981 
SUSPENDING THE NOISE ORDINANCE FOR TRASH 
REMOVAL BETWEEN 5 A.M. AND MIDNIGHT; AMENDING 
SECTION 8-6-8 “EXEMPT ENCROACHMENTS,” B.R.C. 1981 
TO ALLOW FOR CERTAIN USES OF THE RIGHT OF WAY;  
AMENDING SECTION 10-12-6 “NONRESIDENTIAL USE OF 
MOBILE HOMES,” B.R.C. 1981, TO ALLOW THE CITY 
MANAGER TO WAIVE CERTAIN ZONING 
LIMITIATIONS,ALL TO FACILITATE FLOOD RESPONSE; 
AND SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS.  
 

 WHEREAS the City Council finds that:  

A. Between Monday, September 9, 2013 and Tuesday, September 19, 2103 the City 

of Boulder received an estimated 17.2 inches of rainfall;  

B. The city set daily precipitation records on September 10, 11, 12, 13 and 15.  The 

9.08 inches received on September 12, was the most rainfall ever received on a single day in 

Boulder since records have been kept.  The rain also set records for the month of September and 

for annual precipitation;   

C. The storm has been characterized as both a 100-year flood and a 1000-year event;  

D. The storm inflicted severe damage on many home, businesses, parks, open space 

and public infrastructure; 

E. On September 12, 2013, the city manager issued a Declaration of Disaster 

Emergency pursuant to the authority granted in Section 2-2.5-3, B.R.C. 1981 and Colo. Rev. 

Stat. § 24-33.5-709;  

F. On September 17, 2013, the City Council approved the Declaration of Disaster 

Emergency and extended it until October 15, 2013;  

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 7Packet Page     101



G. The city manager has adopted emergency rules pursuant to Section 2-2.5-9, 

B.R.C. 1981, which will expire upon the expiration of the Declaration of Disaster Emergency;  

H. It is necessary to facilitate disaster response for the city to enact certain measures 

that will assist community recovery. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  A new Section 4-20-67, B.R.C. 1981 is added to read: 

4-20-67 Flood Related Fee Waiver. 

For permits applied for or applications made before December 31, 2013, the city manager 

may waive any fee required under any of the following sections to facilitate recovery and repair 

resulting from flooding: 

(a)  Building Permit fees as required by Subsections 4-20-4(c) and Paragraph 4-20-4(f)(7), 

Subsection 4-20-8(a), Subsections 4-20-13(c), (d), and Subsection 4-20-15(b), B.R.C. 

1981, 

(b)  Right- of -Way Permit fees as required by Subsection 4-20-6(b), B.R.C. 1981. 

 (c)  Water Permit fees as required by Paragraphs 4-20-23(a)(3), (b)(1) & (b)(2), B.R.C. 1981. 

(d)  Water Service fees as required by Subsection 4-20-24(g), B.R.C. 1981. 

(d)  Wastewater Permit fees as required by Paragraphs 4-20-27(a)(1)-(3), (b)(1) & (b)(2), 

B.R.C. 1981. 

(e)  Flood Development Permit fees as required by Paragraphs 4-20-44 (a)(2), (a)(4) & (b)(1), 

B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 2.  Section 4-4-3, B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

4-4-3 License Required. 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 8Packet Page     102



(a)  No person shall perform any work as a contractor in the City without first obtaining a 

license from the city manager under this chapter. 

(b)  No permit shall be issued for work to be done by a person who does not have a valid, 

current license as required by this chapter for the type of work to be performed. 

(c)  No person other than a Class A or Class B licensed contractor shall perform work 

requiring the supervision of an architect or structural engineer. 

(d)  No person other than a Class A, Class B, Class C, or Class D licensed contractor shall 

wreck any structure. 

(e)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, until December 15, 2013 contractors, not licensed as 

contractors in the city of Boulder, for work related to flood recovery and repair provided 

that such contractors:  

(1)  Provide proof of licensing in another jurisdiction for the work proposed to be 

performed; 

(2)  Provide proof of insurance required by Section 4-1-8, "Insurance Required," 

B.R.C. 1981;  

(3)  Obtain a license as required by Subsections (a) through (d) above within 30 days 

of beginning work or by the end of the term of this subsection, whichever is 

sooner..  

Section 3.  Section 4-6-2, B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

4-6-2 License Required. 

No developer, contractor, or subcontractor shall perform any work affecting public 

property, rights of way, grounds, any City-owned utility system, or any other utility system or in 

the street right of way or utility easement, whether or not the work is performed for the City, 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 9Packet Page     103



without first obtaining a license from the city manager as prescribed by this chapter before 

commencing any such work.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, until April 15, 2014, a contractor 

or subcontractor may place a dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit in the right- 

of- way provided that the dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit shall be: 

(1) as close to the curb as possible;  

(2) not impede traffic flow;  

(3) not impede emergency response; and  

(4) not block drainage, driveways, sidewalks or fire hydrants.   

Such dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit shall be removed or relocated at the 

direction of any authorized city representative. 

Section 4.  Subsection 5-6-10(d), B.R.C. 1981 is amended to read: 

5-6-10 Camping or Lodging on Property Without Consent. 

… 

(d)  For purposes of this section "camp" means to reside or dwell temporarily in a place, with 

shelter, and conduct activities of daily living, such as eating or sleeping, in such place. 

But the term does not include napping during the day or picnicking. The term "shelter" 

includes, without limitation, any cover or protection from the elements other than 

clothing. The phrase "during the day" means from one hour after sunrise until sunset, as 

those terms are defined in chapter 7-1, "Definitions," B.R.C. 1981.  “Camp” does not 

include temporary residence associated with the performance of a governmental service 

by emergency responders or relief workers during a Disaster Emergency as defined in 

Section 2-2.5-2 “Definitions,” B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 5.  A new Section 5-9-11, B.R.C. 1981 is added to read: 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 10Packet Page     104



5-9-11 Flood Debris Removal. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, until April 15, 2014, individuals and 

entities involved in debris removal necessitated by flooding, may engage in operations as 

necessary from 5 a.m. until midnight. 

Section 6.  Section 8-6-8, B.R.C. 1981 is amended to add a new subsection (f) to read: 

8-6-8  Exempt Encroachments. 

… 

(f)    Until April 15, 2014, any dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit, provided 

that the dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit shall be; 

(1)  as close to the curb as possible;  

(2)  not impede traffic flow;  

(3)  not impede emergency response; and 

 (4)  not block drainage, driveways, sidewalks or fire hydrants.   

Such dumpster, trash receptacle or temporary storage unit shall be removed or relocated 

at the direction of any authorized city representative. 

Section 7.  Section 10-12-6, B.R.C. 1981 is amended to add a new subsection (d) to read: 

10-12-6  Nonresidential Use of Mobile Home.  

… 

(d)   Until April 15, 2014, the city manager may waive any zoning requirement, building 

provision or other provision of this code for the non-residential use of a mobile home as 

made necessary by flooding. 

 

 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 11Packet Page     105



Section 8.    Pursuant to Section 2-2.5-5 “Term of Declaration,” B.R.C. 1981 the 

emergency declaration issued by the city manager on September 12, 2013 and extended by 

resolution on September 17, 2013 shall be extended until further notice, provided, however, the 

powers of the city manager pursuant to Section 2-2.5-9 shall terminate at 8 a.m. on October 16, 

2013. 

Section 9.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall for any 

reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect any of the remaining 

provisions of this ordinance.  

Section 10.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare 

of the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

 Section 11.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by 

title only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk 

for public inspection and acquisition. 

 Section 12.   The City Council finds that this ordinance is necessary for the immediate 

preservation of the public peace, health, or property.  To facilitate response and recovery from 

the recent flood this ordinance shall be effective immediately 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 12Packet Page     106



INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of OCTOBER, 2013. 

 
 
      
       Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk  
 
 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, AND ADOPTED AS AN EMERGENCY 

MEASURE BY TWO-THIRDS COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 15th day of OCTOBER, 2013. 

____________________________________ 
                  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk  
 

Attachment A

Agenda Item 3A     Page 13Packet Page     107



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3A     Page 14Packet Page     108



CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: Oct. 15, 2013 

AGENDA TITLE  
Consideration of a motion to adopt a Resolution in support of  Ballot Question 2G, a 
proposed amendment to the Boulder Home Rule Charter Sections 74, 130, 157, 172 and 
185  removing the requirement that individuals be City electors to serve on City Boards 
and Commissions. 

PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Karen Rahn, Director of Human Services 
Carmen Atilano, Manager, Community Relations and Office of Human Rights 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide City Council with a recommendation 
made by the Human Relations Commission (HRC) at its September 16, 2013 meeting 
regarding a proposed resolution in support of ballot question 2G to alter the qualifications 
for service on city boards and commissions. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 
Motion to adopt Resolution in support of Ballot Question 2G, a proposed amendment to 
the Boulder Home Rule Charter Sections 74, 130, 157, 172 and 185  removing the 
requirement that individuals be City electors to serve on City Boards and Commissions. 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 1Packet Page     109



COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS: 
• Economic – To the extent that city Boards and Commissions provide input and

assistance with economic development in the city of Boulder, economic 
development could benefit from a more diverse representation. 

• Environmental – Several boards, in particular the Environmental Advisory Board
and the Water Resources Advisory Board, provide guidance on important 
environmental issues.  Diverse representation on these boards could provide a 
benefit to the city. 

• Social – Diversity is one of the city’s most important values.  Expanding the
Board and Commission selection process to be more inclusive for those not 
presently eligible to participate will support this goal. 

BACKGROUND: 
On August 20, City Council voted 9-0 to adopt Ordinance No. 7914 regarding 
amendments to Charter Section 130 and other related Charter sections changing the 
requirement from City electors to City residents to serve on City Boards.  

The HRC met on September 16, 2013 and by a vote of 5-0 requested that staff take Ballot 
Question 2G before the Council Action Committee with a resolution to suggest Council’s 
support of the ballot question. 

ANALYSIS: 
The elector requirement excludes United States citizens who are not registered to vote 
and residents who are not United States citizens. The HRC believes that the immigrant 
population is gaining acceptance and becoming increasingly invested in the society at 
large. To continue to exclude members of the immigrant community from city boards and 
commissions is inconsistent with Boulder’s efforts to be welcoming and inclusive of all 
residents. 

City staff surveyed “peer” cities to determine whether the elector requirement is 
common.  The results showed that most cities similar to the city of Boulder do not have 
this requirement. 

Peer Cities/Counties # Boards Requiring 
Electors 

# Boards Requiring City 
Residency or No 
Residency 

Percentage Electors 
Required for Boards 

Ann Arbor, MI  0 48  0% 
Berkeley, CA1  1 43 2% 
Boulder County, CO  0 27 0% 
Davis, CA  0 0 / 16 0% 
Eugene, OR2  1  14  6% 
Fort Collins, CO  26  0  100% 
Madison, WI3  1  83    1% 
Norman, OK4  4  33  10% 

1 Berkeley requires members of its Fair Campaign Practices Commission to be electors. 
2 Eugene requires members of its Budget Committee members to be electors. 
3 Madison requires members of its Madison Election Advisory Committee to be electors. 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 2Packet Page     110



Palo Alto, CA  0    9    0% 
Provo, UT  0  15   0% 
Santa Barbara, CA5 13  19 41% 
Santa Cruz, CA6 13    4 76% 
Tempe, AZ7 1 33   3% 

Other Jurisdictions of 
Interest 

# Boards Requiring 
Electorship 

# Boards Requiring 
Residency or No 
Residency 

Percentage Electorship 
Required for Boards 

Boulder County 0 27 0% 
New York City, NY 0 59 0% 
Seattle, WA 0 45 0% 

NEXT STEPS 
Ballot Question 2G will be voted on by city electorate on Nov. 5, 2013. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A: Resolution No. 1128 in Support of Ballot Question 2G 

4Norman requires members of its Planning Commission, Board of Parks Commissioners, Norman Regional 
Hospital Authority, and Reapportionment Commission to be electors. 
5 Santa Barbara requires some or all of the members on the following committees to be electors:  
Architectural Board of Review (7 of 7 members), Arts Advisory Committee (4 of 7 members), Civil 
Service Commission (5 of 5 members), Fire and Police Commission (3 of 5 members), Harbor Commission 
(7 of 7 members), Historic Landmarks Commission (5 of 9 members), Library Board (5 of 5 members), 
Living Wage Advisory Committee (1 of 7 members), Mosquito and Vector Management District (8 of 8 
members), Parks and Recreation Commission (7 of 7 members or 6 of 7 members if one member is over 16 
years of age but not yet 18), Planning Commission (7 of 7 members), Transportation and Circulation 
Committee (5 of 7 members), and the Water Commission (5 of 5 members). 
6 Santa Cruz requires members of its Board of Building Appeals, Clean River, Beaches and Ocean Fund 
Citizen Oversight Committee, Equal Employment Opportunity Committee, Green Building Working 
Group, Historic Preservation Commission, Measure K Oversight Committee, Parks and Recreation 
Commission, Planning Commission, San Lorenzo River Committee, Successor Agency Oversight Board, 
Transportation and Public Works Commission, and Water Commission to be electors. It does not require 
members of its Arts Commission, Commission for the Prevention of Violence against Women, Downtown 
Commission, or Sister Cities Committee to be electors. 
7 Tempe requires members of its Merit System Board to be electors. 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 3Packet Page     111



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 4Packet Page     112



Attachment A: Resolution 1128 

Boulder City Council 

RESOLUTION NO. 1128 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING BALLOT QUESTION 2G, A PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT TO THE BOULDER HOME RULE CHARTER SECTIONS 74, 130, 
157, 172, 185  REMOVING THE REQUIREMENT THAT INDIVIDUALS BE CITY 
ELECTORS TO SERVE ON CITY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS.   

FINDINGS 

1. Ballot Question 2G, a proposed amendment to the Boulder Home Rule Charter
sections 74, 130, 157, 172, 185 removing the requirement that individuals be City
electors to serve on City Boards and Commissions will be placed on the
municipal  ballot this year.

2. The elector requirement excludes United States citizens who are not registered to
vote and legal residents who are not United States citizens.

3. Boulder has historically valued equity and diversity and creating opportunities for
all residents to participate in civic life.

4. Strengthening representation of all residents in the city decision-making process
will encourage more widely considered policy decisions.

5. Efforts to make our community and city government more welcoming and
inclusive of all residents is consistent with the City of Boulder’s ongoing
objective of social sustainability.

6. The Human Relations Commission has indicated that it is in support of the
passage of Ballot Question 2G.

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Boulder hereby supports and 
urges a YES vote on Ballot Question 2G, which will appear on the November 5, 2013 
election ballot.   

RESOLVED, this 15th day of October, 2013

__________________________________________ 
Matthew Appelbaum, Mayor 

Attest 

________________________ 
City Clerk 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 5Packet Page     113



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3B     Page 6Packet Page     114



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE: October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE Consideration of the following items relating to the 2014 Budget: 
 

1. Public hearing on the proposed 2014 City of Boulder Budget; and 
2. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7942 that 

adopts a budget for the City of Boulder, Colorado, for the fiscal year 
commencing on the first day of January 2014 and ending on the last day of 
December 2014 and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

3. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7943 that 
establishes the 2013 City of Boulder property tax mill levies which are to be 
collected by the County of Boulder, State of Colorado, within the City of 
Boulder in 2014 for payment of expenditures by the City of Boulder, County of 
Boulder, State of Colorado, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

4. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7944 that 
appropriates money to defray expenses and liabilities of the City of Boulder, 
Colorado, for the 2014 fiscal year of the City of Boulder, commencing on the 
first day of January 2014, and ending on the last day of December 2014, and 
setting forth details in relation thereto; 

5. Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7945 that 
amends Chapters 3-8, 3-13, 4-20 and 8-3 of the B.R.C. 1981 changing certain 
fees, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder City Council and convene 
as the Central Area General Improvement District Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer  

Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager 
 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 1Packet Page     115



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this item is the adoption of the 2014 budget and other related ordinances 
(see Attachments A-D) to appropriate city funds as presented in the 2014 Recommended 
Budget, for the 2014 fiscal year. This includes adoption of the ordinance that establishes 
the 2013 mill levy for the city and the ordinance that changes certain codified fees.  
 
Agenda item 5C, including attachments, for the Oct. 1, 2013 City Council meeting 
provides additional background information on the development and review of the 2014 
Recommended Budget.   
 
To facilitate council review of the 2014 Recommended Budget, staff has also prepared a 
list of each change proposed for the budget that occurred after council received the 2013 
Recommended Budget document (see Attachment E).  
 

Council questions and staff responses from the Oct. 1 first reading of the 2014 Budget are 
also included (Attachment F).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends adoption of the following four ordinances: 

 Budget Adoption Ordinance (Attachment A) 

The Charter of the City of Boulder requires that, before the city establishes the 
property tax mill levy, the annual budget that summarizes sources and uses must 
be approved. The ordinance included in this attachment incorporates the 2014 
Recommended Budget. 

 
 Mill Levy Ordinance (Attachment B) 

In order to prevent any ratcheting down of the city’s mill levies per the Taxpayer 
Bill of Rights (TABOR), a temporary mill levy credit was used whenever the 
calculated revenue forecast exceeded the calculated TABOR revenue limitation 
by more than 0.10 mill. As a result of the passage of Ballot Issue 201, “Retention 
of Property Tax Funds” approved by voters on Nov. 4, 2008, the remaining 
restrictions on property tax collected by the City of Boulder have been eliminated. 

 
Ballot Issue 201 had the effect of reducing the mill levy credit by 0.50 mill each 
year until the credit was completely eliminated. The mill levy credit was 
completely eliminated in the 2011 mill levy calculation (for 2012 property tax 
collections). 

 
Given the most current assessed valuation information received from Boulder 
County and the passage of Ballot Issue 201, the following is the net mill levy for 
2013 (this is unchanged from 2012):   

 
 
Mill Levy  11.981 

 

 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 2Packet Page     116

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/2014_Recommended_Budget-1-201308291220.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/2014_Recommended_Budget-1-201308291220.pdf


 Appropriation Ordinance (Attachment C) 

This ordinance appropriates funds as stated in the budget ordinance for 2014. 
 

 Fees Ordinance (Attachment D) 

City fees are adjusted based on costs of providing city services and depend on 
calculations of inflation, pricing guidelines, or service-specific cost analysis. The 
annual budget process also provides an opportunity to review and clarify the 
Boulder Revised Code language related to fees and rates.   

   

 

Suggested Motion Language: 
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motions: 

 

 Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7942 adopting the 2014 City of Boulder 
budget; 

 Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7943 establishing the City of Boulder property 
tax mill levy for 2013 to be collected in 2014; 

 Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7944 appropriating the 2013 City of Boulder 
budget; 

 Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7945 changing certain fees; and 
 

Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder City Council and convene 
as the Central Area General Improvement District Board of Directors. 

 
 

OTHER IMPACTS  
 Fiscal - This item will appropriate funds to implement the City of Boulder’s 2014 

budget. This budget is based on the City Manager’s 2014 Recommended Budget 
and in accordance with City Council’s feedback provided during the Sep. 10 
Study Session and the Oct. 1 first reading of the budget ordinances. In addition to 
the budget ordinances, the property tax mill levy and fees ordinance are also 
included. These ordinances are necessary to fund the annual budget in full.  

 
 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s 

regular annual work plan. 
 

QUESTIONS 
Council members may contact Peggy Bunzli (303-441-1848) in the Budget Division for 
any questions they have on the contents of this agenda item, including clarification of any 
budget program or fund status. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 3Packet Page     117

mailto:BunzliP@bouldercolorado.gov


BUDGET MATERIALS ONLINE 
Budget materials can be found at the following links: 
2014 Recommended Budget; 
2014-2019 CIP; 
Sept. 10 study session memo; 
Additional materials for Sept. 10 Budget Study Session; 
Sept. 10 Study Session Summary; 
Agenda item 5C, including attachments, for the Oct. 1, 2013 City Council meeting; 
Past budgets. 
 

PUBLIC FEEDBACK 

Hillary Griffith, member of the University Hill Commercial Area Management 
Commission, requested that council consider a $10,000 General Fund contribution to the 
University Hill area budget for the purposes of supporting events, creative projects and 
marketing in the University Hill area. 
 
There will be a public hearing at the Second Reading of these ordinances. 
 

NEXT STEPS 

 Tuesday, Oct. 29 - Public hearing and third reading of the 2014 City of Boulder 
budget ordinances (if needed). 

 

ATTACHMENTS  
Attachment A Ordinance No. 7942 adopting a Budget for the City of Boulder for 2014 
Attachment B Ordinance No. 7943 establishing the 2013 City of Boulder property tax 

mill levies 
Attachment C   Ordinance No. 7944 appropriating the City of Boulder budget for 2014 
Attachment D   Ordinance No. 7945 amending Chapters 3-8, 3-13, 4-20 and 8-3 of the 

B.R.C. 1981, changing certain fees 
Attachment E  Budget Changes document logging all changes proposed to the 2014 

Recommended Budget since its publication  
Attachment F Responses to City Council Questions received at the Oct. 1, 2013 City 

Council meeting. 
                                                    

Agenda Item 5A     Page 4Packet Page     118

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/2014_Recommended_Budget-1-201308291220.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/5A_CIP_Document-1-201307191548.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/09102013SSfinal-1-201308300938.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/ADDITIONAL_SS_MATERIALS_Items_not_recommended_for_funding_in_2014-1-201309060747.pdf
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf#page=43
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/10.01.13_Final_Agenda_Packet_Electronic-1-201309271640.pdf#page=451
https://bouldercolorado.gov/budget


ORDINANCE NO. 7942 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE 
CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING ON THE FIRST 
DAY OF JANUARY 2014 AND ENDING ON THE 
LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2014 AND SETTING 
FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted a recommended budget for fiscal 

year 2014 to the City Council as required by Charter; and, 

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, numerous study sessions and public 

hearings have been held on said recommended budget; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO THAT THE FOLLOWING FISCAL YEAR 2014 

BUDGET IS HEREBY ADOPTED: 

Section 1.  That estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are as follows (excludes 

carryover and the General Improvement Districts): 

General Operating Fund $115,683,987 

Capital Development Fund 373,105   

Lottery Fund   836,000 

Planning and Development Services Fund 10,517,645   

Affordable Housing Fund 1,417,349   

Community Housing Assistance Program Fund 2,306,005   

.25 Cent Sales Tax Fund   7,575,343 

Library Fund   7,629,002 

Recreation Activity Fund    10,269,708 

Climate Action Plan Fund 1,845,600   

Attachment A: Budget Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 5Packet Page     119



Open Space Fund 27,319,312   

Airport Fund   2,015,389 

Transportation Fund   31,421,772 

Transportation Development Fund   917,489 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund   684,180 

HOME Investment Partnership Grant Fund 811,331   

Permanent Parks and Recreation Fund   2,783,289 

Boulder Junction Improvement Fund 1,543,944 

Water Utility Fund 26,503,491 

Wastewater Utility Fund 16,039,376   

Stormwater/Flood Management Utility Fund 13,925,314   

Telecommunications Fund 730,326   

Property and Casualty Insurance Fund 1,988,025   

Worker's Compensation Insurance Fund 1,817,293   

Compensated Absences Fund   753,698 

Fleet Operations Fund 3,814,121 

Fleet Replacement Fund 7,345,203   

Computer Replacement Fund 1,891,092   

Equipment Replacement Fund   1,953,147 

Facility Renovation and Replacement Fund 3,544,616   

  Less: Interfund Transfers 22,721,072   

  Less: Internal Service Fund Charges 22,211,773 

TOTAL (Including Debt Service) $ 261,323,309 

 

Attachment A: Budget Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 6Packet Page     120



Section 2.  That estimated carryover funds from fiscal year 2013 are as follows 

(excludes General Improvement Districts):  

General Operating Fund $3,000,000 

Capital Development Fund 90,000 

Lottery Fund 670,000 

Planning & Development Services Fund 1,000,000 

Affordable Housing Fund 11,000,000 

CHAP Fund 2,000,000 

.25 Cent Sales Tax Fund 400,000 

Climate Action Plan Fund  700,000 

Airport Fund 250,000 

Transportation Fund 9,500,000 

Transportation Development Fund  1,900,000 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund 800,000 

HOME Investment Partnership Grant Fund 700,000 

Permanent Parks and Recreation Fund 1,000,000 

Boulder Junction Improvement Fund 600,000 

2011 Capital Improvement Bond Fund 21,473,419 

Water Utility Fund 3,500,000 

Wastewater Utility Fund 1,500,000 

Stormwater/Flood Management Fund 9,600,000 

Fleet Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 5,000,000 

Equipment Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 700,000 

 Facility Renovation and Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 7,000,000 

TOTAL  $ 82,383,419 

Attachment A: Budget Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 7Packet Page     121



Section 3.  That estimated revenues and fund balances available for fiscal year 

2014 to fund the above expenditures are as follows (excludes carryover and General 

Improvement Districts):  

Taxes                            $ 154,364,902 

Charges for Services   56,171,690                            

Internal Service Fund Charges 20,251,135                              

Sale of Goods and Capital Assets 723,535                                

License Fees and Fines 17,718,314                              

Intergovernmental and Grants 18,110,754                              

Interest/Lease/Rent 4,864,597                                

Other Revenues 1,646,482                                

Transfers In   21,214,901                            

Less: Transfers 21,214,901                             

Less: Internal Service Fund Charges 20,251,135                              

Plus: Fund Balance 11,189,844                              

TOTAL                            $ 264,790,117 

 Section 4.  That the proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized 

be adopted as the budget of the City of Boulder, Colorado, for the 2014 fiscal year. 

 Section 5.  The City Council finds that the budget must be adopted before the 

mill levy can be certified, and said levy must be certified to the County Assessor of the 

County of Boulder, State of Colorado, by December 16, 2013.  

 Section 6.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Attachment A: Budget Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 8Packet Page     122



 Section 7.  The council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by 

title only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the 

city clerk for public inspection and acquisition. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013.  

  ________________________________________ 
  Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk  
  

 

 READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 15th day of October, 2013. 

  _________________________________________ 
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A: Budget Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 9Packet Page     123



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 10Packet Page     124



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 7943 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE 2013 CITY OF 

BOULDER PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVIES WHICH ARE TO 

BE COLLECTED BY THE COUNTY OF BOULDER, STATE 

OF COLORADO, WITHIN THE CITY OF BOULDER IN 2014 

FOR PAYMENT OF EXPENDITURES BY THE CITY OF 

BOULDER DURING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014 PROVIDING 

THAT SAID LEVY BE CERTIFIED TO THE COUNTY 

ASSESSOR OF THE COUNTY OF BOULDER, STATE OF 

COLORADO, SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION 

THERETO. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 94 of the Charter of the City of Boulder, Colorado requires the 

City Council to make by ordinance the proper levy in mills on each dollar of the assessed 

valuation of all taxable property within the City, such levy representing the amount of 

taxes for City purposes necessary to provide for payment during the ensuing fiscal year of 

the properly authorized demands upon the Treasury, and to cause said total levy to be 

certified to the County Assessor of the County of Boulder, State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the requirements for anticipated expenditures as well as 

anticipated revenues from other sources for 2014, the City Council has determined that 

for the year of 2013, the proper mill levy, which shall be collected in 2014 by the 

Treasurer of the County of Boulder, State of Colorado, upon each dollar of the assessed 

valuation of all taxable property within the city, shall be 11.981 mills; and 

WHEREAS, Boulder residents approved Ballot Issue 201 on November 4, 2008, 

which has the effect of allowing the retention of property tax monies collected above the 

limits imposed by Article X, Section 20, of the Colorado Constitution, commonly 

referred to as “TABOR,” and reducing the mill levy credit by 0.50 mill each year until 

the credit is completely eliminated; and 

Attachment B: Mill Levy Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 11Packet Page     125



 WHEREAS, in line with those guidelines, no mill levy credit remains, and a total of 

11.981 mills is to be assessed upon each dollar of assessed valuation of all taxable 

property with the City.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, that: 

Section 1.  For the purpose of maintaining funds to defray the general expenses of 

the City of Boulder, Colorado, during the fiscal year of the City commencing at 12:00 

Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013, and ending at 12:00 Midnight at the end of 

December 31, 2014, there is hereby levied for the year of 2013 to be collected in 2014 a 

tax of 11.981 mills upon each dollar of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property 

within the City of Boulder, Colorado.  The levy includes the following components: 

GENERAL CITY OPERATIONS 8.748 
PERMANENT PARKS FUND (Charter Sec. 161) .900 
LIBRARY FUND (Charter Sec. 165)     .333 
TOTAL    9.981 
 
GENERAL CITY OPERATIONS (PUBLIC SAFETY) 2.000 
 
NET MILL LEVY  11.981 

 
 

Section 2.   This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 3.  The council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city 

clerk for public inspection and acquisition. 

Section 4.  Pursuant to Section 18 of the Charter of the City of Boulder, this 

ordinance shall take effect immediately upon publication after final passage. 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 12Packet Page     126



 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 
 ________________________________________ 
     Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
 _________________________________________ 
 Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk  
 

Attachment B: Mill Levy Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 13Packet Page     127



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 14Packet Page     128



 
 ORDINANCE NO. 7944 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING MONEY TO 

DEFRAY EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, FOR THE 2014 

FISCAL YEAR OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COMMENCING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 

2014, AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF 

DECEMBER 2014, AND SETTING FORTH DETAILS 

IN RELATION THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved a motion to adopt the budget for 

2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has by ordinance made the property tax levy in 

mills upon each dollar of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the 

City, such levy representing the amount of taxes for City purposes necessary to provide 

for payment in part during the City's said fiscal year of the properly authorized demands 

upon the Treasury; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council is now desirous of making appropriations for the 

ensuing fiscal year as required by Section 95 of the Charter of the City of Boulder; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, that; 

Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of 

Boulder's fiscal year commencing at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013 

and ending at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2014, for payment of 2014 City 

operating expenses, capital improvements, and general obligation and interest payments: 

General Operating Fund $115,683,987 

Capital Development Fund 373,105   

Lottery Fund   836,000 

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 15Packet Page     129



 

Planning and Development Services Fund 10,517,645   

Affordable Housing Fund 1,417,349   

Community Housing Assistance Program Fund 2,306,005   

.25 Cent Sales Tax Fund   7,575,343 

Library Fund   7,629,002 

Recreation Activity Fund    10,269,708 

Climate Action Plan Fund 1,845,600   

Open Space Fund 27,319,312   

Airport Fund   2,015,389 

Transportation Fund   31,421,772 

Transportation Development Fund   917,489 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund   684,180 

HOME Investment Partnership Grant Fund 811,331   

Permanent Parks and Recreation Fund   2,783,289 

Boulder Junction Improvement Fund 1,543,944 

Water Utility Fund 26,503,491 

Wastewater Utility Fund 16,039,376   

Stormwater/Flood Management Utility Fund 13,925,314   

Telecommunications Fund 730,326   

Property and Casualty Insurance Fund 1,988,025   

Worker's Compensation Insurance Fund 1,817,293   

Compensated Absences Fund   753,698 

Fleet Operations Fund 3,814,121 

Fleet Replacement Fund 7,345,203   

Computer Replacement Fund 1,891,092   

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 16Packet Page     130



 

Equipment Replacement Fund   1,953,147 

Facility Renovation and Replacement Fund 3,544,616   

  Less: Interfund Transfers 22,721,072   

  Less: Internal Service Fund Charges 22,211,773 

 
TOTAL (Including Debt Service) $ 261,323,309 

 Section 2.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of 

Boulder's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014 for 

estimated carryover expenditures: 

General Operating Fund $3,000,000 

Capital Development Fund 90,000 

Lottery Fund 670,000 

Planning & Development Services Fund 1,000,000 

Affordable Housing Fund 11,000,000 

CHAP Fund 2,000,000 

.25 Cent Sales Tax Fund 400,000 

Climate Action Plan Fund  700,000 

Airport Fund 250,000 

Transportation Fund 9,500,000 

Transportation Development Fund  1,900,000 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund 800,000 

HOME Investment Partnership Grant Fund 700,000 

Permanent Parks and Recreation Fund 1,000,000 

Boulder Junction Improvement Fund 600,000 

2011 Capital Improvement Bond Fund 21,473,419 

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 17Packet Page     131



 

Water Utility Fund 3,500,000 

Wastewater Utility Fund 1,500,000 

Stormwater/Flood Management Fund 9,600,000 

Fleet Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 5,000,000 

Equipment Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 700,000 

 Facility Renovation and Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund) 7,000,000 

TOTAL  82,383,419 

Section 3.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of 

Boulder's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, for 

Fund Balances: 

General Operating Fund  $29,354,000 

Capital Development Fund 6,762,198   

Lottery Fund 213,750   

Planning and Development Services Fund 3,680,481   

Affordable Housing Fund 30,763   

Community Housing Assistance Program Fund 28,653   

.25 Cent Sales Tax Fund 871,108   

Library Fund 1,358,591   

Recreation Activity Fund 1,047,281   

Climate Action Plan Fund 101,867   

Open Space Fund  14,104,894 

Airport Fund 692,724   

Transportation Fund 1,806,016   

Transportation Development Fund 367,884   

Permanent Parks and Recreation Fund 424,658   

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 18Packet Page     132



 

Boulder Junction Improvement Fund 1,034,280   

2011 Capital Improvement Bond Fund  394,322 

Water Utility Fund 32,360,110   

Wastewater Utility Fund 8,667,898   

Stormwater/Flood Management Utility Fund 3,149,506   

Telecommunications Fund  1,129,912   

Property and Casualty Insurance Fund 4,700,219   

Worker's Compensation Insurance Fund 2,881,783   

Compensated Absences Fund 1,814,069   

Fleet Operations Fund 599,920   

Fleet Replacement Fund 5,017,715   

Computer Replacement Fund 6,052,084   

Equipment Replacement Fund 3,767,347   

Facility Renovation and Replacement Fund 2,824,881   

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $135,238,914 

Section 4.  The City Council hereby appropriates as revenues all 2013 year end 

cash balances not previously reserved for insurance or bond purposes for all purposes not 

designated as "emergencies", including without limitation subsequent years' expenditures, 

capital improvements, adverse economic conditions and revenue shortfalls, pursuant to 

Article X, Section 20 to the Colorado Constitution, approved by the electorate on 

November 3, 1992; and 

Section 5.  The sums of money as appropriated for the purposes defined in this 

ordinance shall not be over expended, and that transfers between the various 

appropriations defined in this ordinance shall not be made except upon supplemental 

appropriations by ordinance authorizing such transfer duly adopted by City Council of 

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 19Packet Page     133



 

the City of Boulder, Colorado.  It is expressly provided hereby that at any time after the 

passage of this ordinance and after at least one week's public notice, the Council may 

transfer unused balances appropriated for one purpose to another purpose, and may 

appropriate available revenues not included in the annual budget and appropriations 

ordinance. 

Section 6. The City Council is of the opinion that the provisions of the within 

ordinance are necessary for the protection of the public peace, property, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 7.  Pursuant to Section 95 of the Boulder City Charter, the annual 

appropriation ordinance must be adopted by December 1 and to Section 18 of the 

Charter, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon publication after final passage. 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 
 ___________________________________  
   Mayor 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
 ____________________________________  
 Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
City Clerk  

Attachment C: Appropriation Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 20Packet Page     134



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7945 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 3-8, 3-13, 4-20, 
AND 8-3 B.R.C. 1981, CHANGING CERTAIN FEES, AND 
SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

Section 1.  Section 3-8-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

3-8-3 Tax Imposed on Nonresidential and Residential Development.  

(a) Tax Rate: No person engaged in nonresidential or residential development in the city 
shall fail to pay a development excise tax thereon according to the following rates: 

(1) For new or additional floor area for nonresidential development per square foot of 
floor area: 

 Transportation $2.48 

 Total: $2.48 

 (2)  For new detached dwelling unit: 

 Park land 
 

$1,115.831,090.74 

 Transportation $2,170.502,121.70 

 Total: $3,286.333,212.44 

 (3)  For new attached dwelling unit or mobile home: 

 Park land $775.81758.37 

 Transportation $1,608.471,572.31 

 Total: $2,384.282,330.68 

(b)  Waiver of Tax Imposed on Annexation of Developed Residential Land: For property 
annexed with existing residential development, the tax imposed by this chapter is 
prorated in accordance with the following formula: one twenty-sixth of the applicable tax 
is waived for each full year the residence existed prior to July 17, 1988. The date on 
which residential development existed for determination of the waiver is the date of the 
issuance by Boulder County of a certificate of occupancy for the structure. 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 21Packet Page     135



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Section 2.  Chapter 3-13, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

3-13-1 Legislative Purpose, Findings, and Intent.  

(a) Purpose. It is the purpose of this chapter to implement the City's utility occupation tax. 

(1) Passed by the voters on November 2, 2010, as a replacement for a fee paid under 
franchise agreement with a utility provider; 
(2) Amended by the voters on November 1, 2011, to increase the amount of the tax and 
extend the tax to December 31, 2017. 

… 

3-13-2 Imposition of Occupation Tax.  

(a) Payment of Tax Required. No utility delivering electricity and gas to residential, commercial 
or industrial customers shall fail to pay to the city manager the utility occupation tax, prescribed 
by subsection (c) of this section, unless such person is obligated to pay a comparable fee under a 
franchise agreement or other license or permit agreement with the City. 

(b) Original Tax Effective Date and Expiration Date. The utility occupation tax of $4,100,000 
was effective January 1, 2011. 

(c) Extension and Increase Dates. The increase in the amount of the utility occupation tax shall 
be effective January 1, 2012, and expire on the earlier of: (1) December 31, 2017; (2) when the 
City decides not to create a municipal utility; or (3) when the City commences delivery of 
municipal electric utility services. 

(d) Tax Rate. The utility occupation tax effective January 1, 20142012, shall be 
$6,180,0006,000,000, and adjusted annually as provided in section 3-13-3 of this chapter. 

3-13-3 Adjustments.  

(a) Limitations on Tax Increases. Beginning January 1, 2012, the maximum annual tax rate 
increase shall be the lesser of three percent or the average amount of rate increases made by 
public utility companies delivering natural gas or electricity in the City in the previous year as 
calculated pursuant to subsections (b) through (d) of this section. 

(b) Annual Utility Rate Study. The city manager shall review the rate tariffs filed by all investor-
owned public utility companies delivering gas or electricity in the City. 

(1) The city manager shall list all electrical rates in the electrical tariff expressed in terms 
of cents per kilowatt hour from lowest to highest and select from that list the median 
electric rate. If there is more than one investor-owned electric utility company delivering 
electricity in the City, the city manager shall ascertain the median electrical rate for each 
such company and then produce an average median rate charge for electricity in the City. 
(2) The city manager shall ascertain the standard rate per decatherm charged by each 
public utility company delivering gas in the City. If there is more than one investor-owned 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 22Packet Page     136



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

gas utility company delivering gas in the City, the city manager will average the standard 
rate per decatherm for each such company to produce an average standard rate per 
decatherm charged for delivering gas in the City. 

(c) Annually, the city manager shall calculate an average increase by comparing the rates 
determined in subsection (b) above with comparable rates charged in the previous calendar year 
to produce a percentage average increase for each such rate. The city manager shall then average 
those rate increases and compare that average to determine whether it is greater than or less than 
three percent. The utility occupation tax shall then be increased by the lesser of the two 
percentages. The city manager will recommend any such tax increase, subject to the limitations 
of this section, to the city council concurrent with the annual budget process. 

(d) Tax Increase Date. The effective amount of tax due shall be increased as of January 1 of each 
year. 

…. 

Section 3.  Section 4-20-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-3. Auctioneer License Fees. 

An applicant for an auctioneer license shall pay an annual fee of $77.0075.00 and $7.00 per 
person submitted for background check review. 

Section 4.  Section 4-20-5, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-5. Circus, Carnival, and Menagerie License Fees.  

An applicant for a circus, carnival, and menagerie license shall pay $405.00395.00 per day of 
operation. 

Section 5.  Section 4-20-7, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-7. Dog License Fee.  

(a) An applicant for a dog license shall pay the following fees per year:  

(1) For dogs less than one year old or for altered dogs upon presentation of a veterinary 
certificate showing alteration:   One-year license: $15.00. 

(2) For unaltered dogs one year or more old:  One-year license: $30.00. 

(3) Additional fee for licenses renewed later than FebruaryApril 1 of the calendar 
year in which renewal is due: $5.00. 

(b) An applicant to transfer a dog license shall pay the fees specified for a new license, 
subject to the proration provisions of this section. 

(c) The holder of a dog license shall pay $2.00 for a replacement dog tag. 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 23Packet Page     137



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(d) The fees prescribed in subsection (a) of this section shall be reduced for the last quarter of 
the annual license term, for all licenses except renewals. 

Section 6.  Section 4-20-10, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-10. Itinerant Merchant License Fee.  

An applicant for an itinerant merchant license shall pay $53.0052.00 per year plus $7.00 per 
person submitted for background check review. 

Section 7.  Section 4-20-11, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-11.  Mall License and Permit Fees. 

The following fees shall be paid before issuance of a mall building extension, kiosk, mobile 
vending cart, ambulatory vendor, entertainment vending, personal services vending, animal, or 
special activity permit and rental of advertising space on informational kiosks: 

(a)  For building extension permits, an annual fee of $15.5015.00 per square foot of occupied 
space; 

(b)  For kiosk permits, an annual fee to be negotiated by contract with the city manager; 

(c)  For mobile vending carts, $2,075.002,025.00 per year, payable in two equal payments by 
April 1 and August 1, or, for substitution or other permits which begin later in the year 
and are prorated, within thirty days of permit approval; 

(d)  For ambulatory vendor permits, $103.50101.00 per month from May through September 
and $51.0049.50 per month from October through April; 

(e)  For any permits requiring use of utilities to be provided by the city, up to a maximum of 
$18.0017.50 per day; 

(f)  For rental of advertising space on informational kiosks, $975.001,950.00 per quarter 
section per year; 

(g)  For animal permits, $0.00 per permit; 

(h)  For entertainment vending permits, $14.5014.00 per month; 

(i)  For personal services vending permits, $103.50101.00 per month from May through 
September and $51.0049.50 from October through April; and 

(j)  For a newspaper vending machine permit, $66.5065.00 per year. 

Section 8. Section 4-20-17, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-17. Secondhand Dealer and Pawnbroker License Fee.  

(a) An applicant for a secondhand dealer license shall pay $108.00 105.00 per year plus 
$7.00 per person submitted for background check review. 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 24Packet Page     138



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(b) An applicant for a pawnbroker license shall pay $2,029.001,980.00 per year plus $7.00 
per person submitted for background check review. 

(c) The fees for a new license prescribed in subsections (a) and (b) of this section shall be 
prorated on a monthly basis. 

Section 9. Section 4-20-20, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-20. Revocable Right of Way Permit/Lease Application Fee.  

(a)  An applicant for a revocable right of way permit shall pay: 

(1)  Initial application: $650.00. 
(2)  Resubmittal within four weeks of initial application: $325.00. 
(3)  Renewal: $113.00. 

(b)  An applicant for a revocable right of way lease shall pay: 

(1)  Initial application: $750.00. 
(2) Resubmittal within four weeks of initial application: $375.00. 
(3)  Renewal: $150.00. 

(c)  An applicant for an encroachment investigation shall pay the following fees: 

(1)  Residential encroachment: $708.00. 
(2)  Commercial encroachment: $1,415.00. 

(d)  An applicant for an encroachment off the Pearl Street Mall shall pay an annual fee of 
$10.8510.50 per square foot of leased area. 

(e)  An applicant for a monitoring well encroachment shall pay $530.00 per well per year. 

(f)  Applications for any other encroachments not covered by this section will be reviewed 
and assessed a fee designed to recover city costs associated with the review and 
inspection. 

Section 10.  Section 4-20-23, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-23. Water Permit Fees.  

An applicant for a water permit under section 11-1-14, “Permit to Make Water Main 
Connections,” 11-1-15, “Out-of-City Water Service,” or 11-1-16, “Permit to Sell Water,” B.R.C. 
1981, or for water meter installation under section 11-1-36, “Location and Installation of Meters; 
Maintenance of Access to Meters,” B.R.C. 1981, or for testing or inspection of backflow 
prevention assemblies under section 11-1-25, “Duty to Maintain Backflow Prevention Assembly 
and Prevent Cross-Connection,” B.R.C. 1981, and for inspection for cross-connections under 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 25Packet Page     139

http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_14
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_15
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_16
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_36
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_25


 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

section 11-1-25, “Duty to Maintain Backflow Prevention Assembly and Prevent Cross-
Connection,” B.R.C. 1981, shall pay the following fees: 

.... 

(b) Inspection fee (stub, connection, enlargement, renewal, abandonment): 

(1) Water residential (first two inspections 
inclusive) $169.00 

(2) Water nonresidential (first two inspections 
inclusive) 211.00 

(3) Irrigation residential (first two inspections 
inclusive) 169.00 

(4) Irrigation nonresidential (first two 
inspections inclusive) 211.00 

(5) Fire line residential (first two inspections 
inclusive) 169.00 

(6) Fire line nonresidential (first two inspections 
inclusive) 211.00 

(7) Each inspection after the first two 
inspections 94.00 

(8) Clear water testing fee 243.00143.00 
 
.... 
(d) Water meter installation fee: 

(1)  3/4" meter $    544.00523.00 

(2)  1" meter 764.00723.00 

(3)  1 1/2" meter (domestic) 2,351.001,978.00 

(4)  1 1/2" meter (sprinkler) 2,460.002,241.00 

(5)  2" meter (domestic) 2,866.002,435.00 

(6)  2" meter (sprinkler) 2,591.002,436.00 

(7)  3" meter 3,172.003,034.00 

(8)  4" meter 4,062.003,924.00 

(9)  Install 3/4" meter transponder 225.00226.00 

(10)  Install 1" meter transponder 262.00 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 26Packet Page     140

http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-1.htm#section11_1_25


 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(11)  Install 1 1/2" meter transponder 322.00324.00 

(12)  Install 2" meter transponder (domestic) 341.00343.00 

(13)  3" to 8" meter transponder (domestic) 820.00822.00 

(14)  2" to 8" meter transponder (sprinkler) 820.00822.00 

(15)  Call back for 3/4" and 1" 53.00 

(16)  Call back for 1 1/2" and 2" 95.0097.00 
 

Sales tax is due on materials portion of installation. 

(e)  Tap fee: 

(1)  3/4" in DIP or CIP $111.00117.00 

(2)  3/4" in AC or PVC 206.00211.00 

(3)  1" in DIP or CIP 118.00124.00 

(4)  1" in AC or PVC 210.00216.00 

(5)  1 1/2" 354.00367.00 

(6)  2" 452.00465.00 

(7)  4" 363.00383.00 

(8)  6" 420.00440.00 

(9)  8" 502.00522.00 

(10)  12" 658.00678.00 

(11)  Call back for installing a water tap 114.00129.00 
 

Sales tax is due on materials portion of installation. 

(f)  The emergency water conservation special permit fee is $75.00. 

(g)  Tests and inspections for backflow prevention assemblies: 

(1)  To test or inspect first backflow 
prevention assembly $115.00 

(2)  Each additional assembly at same 
location 75.00 

(3)  For cross-connection inspection first hour 115.00 

(4)  For each additional hour at same location 75.00 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 27Packet Page     141



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Section 11.  Section 4-20-24, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-24. Water Service Fees. 

A person shall pay the following charges for water services: 

(a)  To terminate water service $32.0033.00 

(b)  To deliver water service termination 
notice 14.00 

(c)  To remove water meter 60.0062.00 

(d)  To reset water meter 53.0054.00 

(e)  To resume water service 30.0031.00 

(f)  To resume water service after 3:00 p.m. 
weekends or holidays 57.0058.00 

(g)  Special meter read 38.0039.00 

(h)  To test meter and meter tests accurate 50.00 

(i)  Water monitors 110.00 

Section 12.  Section 4-20-25, B.R.C. 1981, is amended as follows: 

4-20-25. Monthly Water User Charges. 

(a)  Treated water monthly service charges: 

Meter Size Inside City Outside City 

¾" $      9.409.16 $      14.1013.74 

1" 15.8115.42 23.723.13 

1½" 34.0833.23 51.1249.85 

2" 59.7058.21 89.5687.32 

3" 132.81129.50 199.22194.25 

4" 235.17229.31 352.75343.96 

6" 527.75514.60 791.63771.89 

8" 937.34913.97 1,406.001,370.95 
 

(b)  Treated water quantity charges: 

(1)  Block Rate Structure: 

  Block Rates (per thousand Block Size 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 28Packet Page     142



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

gallons of water) (% of monthly water budget) 
Block 1 $   2.422.32 0 – 60% 

Block 2 3.233.09 61 – 100% 

Block 3 6.466.18 101 – 150% 

Block 4 9.699.27 151 – 200% 

Block 5 16.1515.45 Greater than 200% 
 

(2) Definitions: 

(A)  “Block Rate Structure” is the water budget rate structure which includes Blocks 1-
5. These blocks represent an increasing block rate structure such that the price of 
water increases as more water is used, particularly when the amount of water used 
exceeds the customer's water budget. This rate structure is intended to: 

•  promote water conservation and the efficient use of water; 

•  support community goals; 

•  reflect the value of water; 

•  send a price signal to customers who waste water; 

•  recover needed revenues for administration, operations, maintenance, 
capital projects, debt payments and reserves for the water utility; 

•  avoid additional costs of new water development; and 

•  avoid additional costs of new and expanded water treatment. 

The rate structure provides an individualized water budget to each customer that 
is expected to meet the customer’s specific water needs. The revenues generated 
from the block rate structure will be used to satisfy the quantity charge portion of 
the basic revenue requirements of the water utility. 

(B) “Monthly water budget” means the amount of water allocated to the water utility 
customers to meet their anticipated watering needs for the month. The monthly 
water budget shall be the indoor and/or outdoor allocation for each water utility 
customer. The allocation shall be based on reasonable and necessary indoor 
and/or outdoor use, water conservation, and other relevant factors associated with 
water use in the City. The allocations shall be defined by rules and guidelines 
issued by the city manager. 

(c) Bulk water and metered hydrant rate: $8.00 per thousand gallons of water used. (Service 
charges do not apply.) 

(d) Irrigation waterWater leased on an annual basis: Colorado Big Thompson $30.00 29.00 per 
acre foot; all other based on cost of assessment plus ten percent administrative fee or 
$30.0029.00 per acre foot, whichever is greater. 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 29Packet Page     143



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Section 13.  Section 4-20-26, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-26. Water Plant Investment Fees.  

(a) Water utility customers shall pay the following plant investment fees: 

The number of bedrooms, type of units, number of units, irrigated area and AWC Usage** are 
used to determine water budgets as well as calculate the Plant Investment Fee. Any changes to 
these characteristics may require payment of an additional Plant Investment Fee before any water 
budget adjustments are made. 

Customer Description PIF Amount 
(1)  Single Unit Dwelling: 

Type 

Amount of Square 
Feet of 
Irrigable Area 

Application 
Rate 

 Outdoor [per 
S.F. of 
irrigated area 
(2,000 S.F. 
minimum)] 

First 5,000 square 
feet 
of irrigable area 

15 gallons per 
square feet 
(gpsf) 

$        2.672.57 

Next 9,000 square 
feet of 
irrigable area 

12 gpsf 2.142.06 

Irrigable area in 
excess of 
14,000 square feet 

10 gpsf 1.791.72 

Indoor     11,467.0011,026.00 
  

(2)  Multi Unit Dwelling: 

Outdoor (Separate irrigation service under paragraph (4) of this section). 

Indoor 
 1 or 2 bedroom unit (per unit) $  6,554.006,302.00 

3 bedroom unit (per unit) 8,192.007,877.00 

4 bedroom unit (per unit) 9,830.009,452.00 

5 or more bedroom unit (per unit) 11,467.0011,026.00 
  

(3) Nonresidential: 
Outdoor (Separate irrigation service under paragraph (4) of this section). 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 30Packet Page     144



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Indoor: 

 
AWC Usage (Gallons)** 

Meter size* 25% 50% 85% 

¾" N/A 30,000 165,000 

1" 42,000 108,000 503,000 

1½" 99,000 228,000 924,000 

2" 183,000 483,000 1,941,000 

  PIF Amount 
Meter size* 25% 50% 85% 

¾" N/A 4,0963,938 21,94121,097 

1" 5,7345,513 14,74414,177 68,66966,028 

1½" 13,51612,996 31,12629,929 126,144121,292 

2" 24,98324,022 65,93963,403 264,983254,791 
  

Water usage other than that listed above may be evaluated and assessed a proportional PIF on a 
case by case basis. 

* Nonresidential meters larger than 2 inches require a special agreement described under 
paragraph (5) of this section. The efficiency standard option with a corresponding special 
agreement is available to all nonresidential customers. 

** Average Winter Consumption Usage, (AWC Usage), is based on a usage distribution of all 
nonresidential accounts with a given meter size. 
“N/A” means this option is not available for purchase. 

(4) Irrigation service: 

Usage Application Rate 

PIF 
Amount 

Per S.F. of irrigated area 
(2,000 S.F. minimum) 

15 gallons per square feet 
(gpsf) 

$2.672.57 

  

(5) The PIF for a customer whose total water demand exceeds the water use demand described in 
subsection 11-1-52(j), B.R.C. 1981, is as follows: 

(A) Raw Water:                              [(AYWA/30,650 acre feet) x A] plus 

(B) Water Delivery Infrastructure:     [(PDWD/53,000,000 gallons per day) x B] = Total PIF 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 31Packet Page     145



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Where: 

AYWA = customer's average year water demand in acre feet 

30,650 acre feet = City's usable water rights capacity 

A = value of City's raw water 

PDWD = customer's peak day water demand in million gallons per day 

53,000,000 gallons per day = City's current treated water delivery capacity 
B = value of City's water delivery infrastructure 

  Water Asset Valuations 
   

A $418,072,046.00 

B   834,411,978.00802,319,210.00 
 

Section 14.  Section 4-20-27, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-27. Wastewater Permit Fees.  

An applicant for a wastewater tap or permit under section 11-2-8, “When Connections With 
Sanitary Sewer Mains Required,” or 11-2-9, “Permit to Make Sanitary Sewer Connection,” 
B.R.C. 1981, shall pay the following fees:  

(a)  Permit fee (stub, connection, enlargement, renewal, abandonment): 

(1) Wastewater residential $127.00 

(2) Wastewater nonresidential 169.00 

(3) Wastewater private property repair 42.00 

(4) Sewer main extension permit 326.00 
(b)  Inspection fee (stub, connection, enlargement, abandonment): 

(1) Wastewater residential (first two inspections inclusive) $169.00 

(2) Wastewater nonresidential (first two inspections inclusive) 211.00 

(3) Each inspection after the first two inspections 94.00 
(c)  Sewer tap fee: 

(1) 4" PVC and VCP $127.00133.00 

(2) 4" RCP 194.00206.00 

(3) 6" PVC and VCP 158.00164.00 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 32Packet Page     146

http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter11-2.htm#section11_2_9


 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(4) 6" RCP 222.00235.00 

(5) Manhole tap 560.00613.00 

(6) Call back for installing a sewer tap 80.0086.00 
 

Sales tax is due on materials portion of installation. 

Section 15.  Section 4-20-28, B.R.C. 1981, is amended as follows: 

4-20-28. Monthly Wastewater User Charges. 

(a)  Monthly service charge: 

Meter Size Inside City Outside City 

¾" $       1.101.05 $        1.661.58 

1" 1.931.84 2.922.78 

1½" 4.414.20 6.566.25 
2" 7.777.40 11.6911.13 

3" 17.4716.64 26.2424.99 

4" 31.0929.61 46.6444.42 

6" 69.9566.62 104.9199.91 

8" 124.36118.44 186.49177.61 
 

(b)  Quantity charge: 

(1)  Average strength sewage (up to and including two hundred twenty mg/l TSS, twenty-five 
mg/l NH3-N, or two hundred thirty mg/l BOD): 

Quantity Inside City Outside City 

Per 1,000 gallons of 
billable usage 

$4.434.22 $6.616.30 

 

(2)  Consumers with sewage strengths exceeding two hundred twenty mg/l TSS, or twenty-
five mg/l NH3-N, or two hundred thirty mg/l BOD, shall pay the quantity charge for average 
strength sewage and, additionally, $368.00360.00 per one thousand pounds of sewage which 
exceeds such sewage strengths for TSS, $2,613.002,500.00 per one thousand pounds of sewage 
which exceeds such sewage strengths for NH3-N, and $553.00530.00 per one thousand pounds 
of sewage which exceeds such sewage strengths for BOD. 
(3)  The quantity charge for all residential accounts with average strength sewage will be 
based on each property’s Average Winter Consumption (“AWC”) from the last AWC 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 33Packet Page     147



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

computation period or the number of thousand gallons of water actually consumed during the 
month, whichever is lower. “AWC” means the average number of thousand gallons of water use 
per month reflected on an account’s utility bill for the most recent consecutive months of 
December, January, February and March. For accounts registering no water use in one or more 
monthly billing periods, an average will be established based on those months in which there was 
usage, historical records or other available relevant data. The average for billing purposes will be 
recalculated in April of each year. 

.... 

Section 16.  Section 4-20-29, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-29. Wastewater Plant Investment Fees.  

(a)  Sanitary sewer utility customers shall pay the following plant investment fees: 

Customer Description PIF Amount 
(1) Single Unit Dwelling: $4,473.004,301.00 

 

  

(2) Multi Unit Dwelling: 

Description 
 1 or 2 bedroom unit (per unit) $2,556.002,458.00 

3 bedroom unit (per unit) 3,195.003,072.00 
4 bedroom unit (per unit) 3,834.003,687.00 

5 or more bedroom unit (per unit) 4,473.004,301.00 
(3)  Nonresidential: 

 
AWC Usage (Gallons)** 

Meter size* 25% 50% 85% 
¾” N/A 30,000 gallons 165,000 gallons 

1” 42,000 gallons 108,000 503,000 

1½” 99,000 228,000 924,000 

2” 183,000 483,000 1,941,000 

   PIF Amount ($) 

Meter size* 25% 50% 85% 

¾” N/A $    1,597.001,536.00 $   8,786.008,448.00 

1” $2,237.002,151.00 5,751.005,530.00 26,785.0025,755.00 

1½” 5,272.005,069.00 12,141.0011,674.00 49,204.0047,312.00 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 34Packet Page     148



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

2” 9,745.009,370.00 25,720.0024,731.00 103,359.0099,384.00 
  

* Nonresidential meters larger than 2 inches require a special agreement described under 
paragraph (4) of this section. The efficiency standard option with a corresponding special 
agreement is available to all nonresidential customers. 

** Average Winter Consumption Usage, (AWC Usage), is based on a usage distribution of all 
nonresidential accounts with a given meter size. 

“N/A” means this option is not available for purchase. 

(4) The PIF for a customer who exceeds the wastewater discharge described in subsection 11-2-
33(j), B.R.C. 1981, is calculated as follows: 

[(PDH/25,000,000 gallons per day) x A] plus 
[(ABOD/36,000 lbs. per day) x B] plus 

[(ATSS/39,000 lbs. per day) x C] plus 

[(ANH3/4,060 lbs. per day) x D] = Total PIF 

Where: 

PDH = customer's peak day hydraulic loading in million gallons per day 

25,000,000 gallons per day = City's current hydraulic and collection capacity 

A = value of City's hydraulic and collection capacity 

ABOD = thirty-day average BOD5 loading removal in lbs. per day where BOD5 is the amount 
of dissolved oxygen consumed in five days by biological processes breaking down organic 
matter 
36,000 lbs. per day = City's current BOD5 removal capacity 

B = value of City's BOD5 removal capacity 

ATSS = customer's thirty-day average total suspended solids (TSS) loading requiring removal in 
lbs. per day 

39,000 lbs. per day = City's current TSS removal capacity 

C = value of City's TSS removal capacity 

ANH3 = customer's thirty-day average ammonia nitrogen as N (NH3-N) loading requiring 
removal in lbs. per day 

4,060 lbs. per day = City's current NH3-N removal capacity 

D = value of City's NH3-N removal capacity 

Wastewater Asset Valuations 

A $257,006,963.00247,122,080.00 

B 28,303.584.0027,214,985.00 

C     4,982,469.004,790,836.00 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 35Packet Page     149



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

D   11,416,503.0010,977,407.00 

 
Section 17.  Section 4-20-31, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-31.  Wastewater Classification Survey Filing Fee and Industrial and Groundwater 
Discharge Permit Fees and Charges.  

(a)  Applicants for an industrial discharge permit shall pay the following permit fees:  

(1)  Flow: 

Gallons per Day Annual Fee 
0 – 100 $     500.00 

101 – 10,000 3,959.003,770.00 

10,001 – 25,000 5,590.005,324.00 

Over 25,000 7,046.006,710.00 
 

(2)  Industries that are issued more than one permit will be charged an annual fee 
based on the total gallons per day from all their permit discharges. 

(3)  Fee to review a wastewater classification survey is $100.00. 

(b)  An applicant for a groundwater discharge permit shall pay the following permit fees: 

(1)  The fee to review a groundwater discharge permit application shall be $100.00. 

(2)  For an applicant that will have a continuous, ongoing discharge, the annual fee 
shall be $450.00 per year. The first year permit fee shall be payable upon the 
issuance of the permit and shall be paid every year thereafter on the anniversary 
of such issuance for the duration of the permit. Annual fees are not applied to 
construction de-watering discharges occurring over a period of no more than one 
hundred eighty days. 

(c)  The fee for dumping domestic septic wastes at the septage receiving station at the 
wastewater treatment plant in accordance with section 11-3-10, “Septage Tank Waste,” 
B.R.C. 1981, shall be $70.00 per thousand gallons. 

Section 18.  Section 4-20-41, B.R.C. 1981, is repealed and amended to read: 

4-20-41. Park and Recreation Admission Fees. 

Repealed. 

(a)  The fees for admission to the East Boulder Community Center and the North and the 
South Boulder Recreation Centers are: 

(1)  Daily: 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 36Packet Page     150



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Category Fee 

Adult $7.00 

Youth 4.50 

Senior 5.25 
(2)  Annual Pass: 

Category Resident Nonresident 

Adult $552.00 $645.00 

Youth 260.00 330.00 

Senior 353.00 445.00 
(3)  Ten Admission Pass: 

Category Resident Nonresident 

Adult $63.00 $69.00 

Youth 40.00 45.00 

Senior 47.00 51.00 
(4)  Twenty Admission Pass: 

Category Resident Nonresident 

Adult $119.00 $131.00 

Youth 76.00 84.00 

Senior 89.00 99.00 
(5)  Forty Admission Pass: 

Category Resident Nonresident 

Adult $224.00 $247.00 

Youth 144.00 159.00 

Senior 168.00 185.00 
(b)  The fees for admission to the Spruce and Scott Carpenter pools are: 

Outdoor Pool Daily: 

Category Resident/Nonresident 

Adult $6.25 

Youth 3.75 

Senior 4.25 
(c)  The fees for season pass allowing admission to the Boulder Reservoir, Scott Carpenter 

Pool, and the Spruce Pool are: 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 37Packet Page     151



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Outdoor Aquatic Facility Season Passes (Splash 
Pass): 

Season Pass Resident Nonresident 

Adult 132.00 $165.00 

Youth 88.00 110.00 

Senior   90.00 112.50 

Family 264.00 330.00 

The “Splash Pass” provides admission to all three 
outdoor aquatic facilities: Boulder 
Reservoir, Scott Carpenter Park, and Spruce 
Pool. 

(d)  The fees for admission to Boulder Reservoir are: 

Gate Admission only: 

Category Fee 

Adult $6.25 

Youth 3.75 

Senior 4.25 
(e)  The fees for Flatirons Municipal Golf Course are: 

Per Round (Friday through Sunday and Holidays): 

Category Fee 

Adult Resident/Nonresident 

     9 holes $24.00 

     18 holes 39.00 

Regular fees apply Friday through Sunday 
and  Holidays October 15 through 
April 14. 

(f)  The fees for parks and recreation special events are: The city manager may set different 
entry fees for special events. 

(g)  For this section,  a youth is age three through eighteen, a junior is eighteen years of age or 
less, a student is a person age nineteen through twenty-five who has a valid student 
identification card from a recognized institution of higher education, an adult is age 
nineteen through fifty-nine, and a senior is age sixty and older. 

(h)  The city manager may set different fees for parks and recreation special promotional 
pricing. 

(i)  The city manager may reduce the fees from time to time as market conditions warrant, 
and may also raise them again, so long as the fee never exceeds that specified in this 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 38Packet Page     152



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

chapter. The manager shall give notice of fee reductions by filing a schedule of fees with 
the city clerk and displaying the reduced fees on the City's website. Reductions shall be 
in effect as of the effective date specified in the schedule. The manager shall give notice 
of fee increases in the same manner, but such increases shall not take effect until at least 
two weeks have passed since notice was given. 

(j)  If the city manager decides to allow any category of annual pass to be paid for in monthly 
installments of one-twelfth of the total fee, the manager shall charge holders who elect to 
pay in this way an additional fee totaling $45.00 per year ($3.75 per installment) to cover 
the increased transactional costs to the City. If one person pays for several annual pass 
installments (whether for one pass or for different passes within the same account) in a 
single transaction, only one transaction fee shall be charged. 

(k)  For recreation center annual passes, the first adult member of the household pays full 
price; all other family members pay half price when passes are purchased at the same 
time. 

Section 19.  Section 4-20-43, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-43. Development Application Fees. 
.... 
(c) Off-site Affordable Housing Design Review Fees. 
 

(1)  An applicant for an Off-site Affordable Housing Design Review shall pay the 
following fees: 

 
Initial application       $2,100 
 
Revisions (if applicable) – an hourly rate for staff time required after issuance of 
the first set of comments  $131.00/hour 

 
(2)  An applicant for a miscellaneous plan review (additional plan review required by 

changes, additions, or revisions to approved plans) shall pay $131.00 per hour of 
staff time required, with a minimum charge of one hour. 

 
(3)  An application fee paid under this section may be refunded, but only if an 

unambiguous written request to withdraw the application and refund the fee is 
received in the city office where the application was presented within five days of 
the date on which the application was received at that office. 

 
(cd) Technical document review fees: The utility documents and fees listed in this section may 
be required as part of a technical document review, but may also be requested for any review 
process which would warrant a review type listed below: 

.... 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 39Packet Page     153



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Section 20.  Section 4-20-45, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-45. Storm Water and Flood Management Fees.  

(a) Owners of detached residences and attached single-unit metered residences in the city shall 
pay the following monthly storm water and flood management fees: 

Size of Parcel  

(1)  Up to 15,000 sq. ft. $  7.697.47 

(2)  15,000-30,000 sq. ft. 9.619.34 

(3)  30,001 sq. ft. and over 11.5411.21 
 

(b) The owners of all other parcels of land in the city on which any improvement has been 
constructed shall pay a storm water and flood management fee based on the monthly rate in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section (for up to a fifteen thousand square foot parcel) multiplied by the 
ratio of the runoff coefficient of the parcel to a coefficient of 0.43 and by the ratio of the area of 
the parcel in square feet to a seven thousand square foot parcel. If the calculation results in a fee 
less than the monthly rate in paragraph (a)(1) of this section, then the fee specified in paragraph 
(a)(1) of this section will be assessed. 

Section 21.  Section 4-20-46, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-46. Storm Water and Flood Management Utility Plant Investment Fee.  

Owners of all parcels of land in the City submitting building permit applications shall pay a 
storm water and flood management plant investment fee based on the square feet of added 
impervious area. However, if new storm water detention facilities are built by the owner 
according to the most current City of Boulder Design and Construction Standards in effect at the 
time the building permit application is submitted, on or after April 2, 2009, the applicable fee 
shall be reduced by fifty percent. 

  PIF Amount 

(Per Square Foot of Impervious Area) $2.061.98 

Section 22.  Section 4-20-49, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-49. Neighborhood Parking Permit Fee.  

(a) A zone resident applying for a neighborhood parking permit shall pay $17.00 for each permit 
or renewal thereof. 

(b) A business applying for a neighborhood parking permit for employees shall pay $75.00 for 
each permit or renewal thereof. 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 40Packet Page     154



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(c) An individual who does not reside within the zone applying for a neighborhood parking 
permit, if permitted in the zone, shall pay $82.0078.00 for each quarterly permit or renewal 
thereof. 

Section 23.  Section 4-20-57, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read 

4-20-57.  News Box Fees. 

(a) The annual fee for leases of news boxes governed by chapter 4-27, “News Box Leases 
and Regulation,” B.R.C. 1981, is $96.0094.00 per full size box, $49.0048.00 for a double-
sized slot, and $27.5027.00 for a single-sized slot, payable in advance at time of 
application or renewal. Fees shall be prorated by month for partial year periods, and 
partial months shall constitute a full month. 

(b) The waiting list fee is $27.0026.50 for each box or slot desired, and shall not be prorated 
or refunded. 

Section 24.  Section 4-20-62, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-62. Capital Facility Impact Fee. 
(a) Impact Fee Rate: No person engaged in nonresidential or residential development in the 

City shall fail to pay a development impact fee. Fees shall be assessed and collected 
according to the standards of chapter 8-9, "Capital Facility Impact Fee," B.R.C. 1981, 
and the following rates: 

 
Table 1:  Impact Fee Rates for Single Family Residential per Dwelling Unit 

Size Range (SF) 
IMPACT FEE RATE 

Library Parks & 
Recreation 

Human 
Services 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

900 or less $207  $1,417  $67  $127  $133  $94  $2,045  

901-1000                
240  

            
1,644  

                 
77  

               
146  

               
154  

               
109  

             
2,370  

1001-1100                
268  

            
1,842  

                 
86  

               
164  

               
173  

               
121  

             
2,654  

1101-1200                
295  

            
2,024  

                 
95  

               
180  

               
190  

               
134  

             
2,918  

1201-1300                
319  

            
2,191  

               
104  

               
195  

               
205  

               
146  

             
3,160  

1301-1400                
342  

            
2,345  

               
110  

               
208  

               
220  

               
155  

             
3,380  

1401-1500                
363  

            
2,490  

               
117  

               
221  

               
232  

               
165  

             
3,588  

1501-1600                                                                                                     

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 41Packet Page     155



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

383  2,625  124  235  246  174  3,787  

1601-1700                
401  

            
2,753  

               
130  

               
245  

               
258  

               
182  

             
3,969  

1701-1800                
420  

            
2,871  

               
135  

               
255  

               
268  

               
191  

             
4,140  

1801-1900                
436  

            
2,984  

               
140  

               
265  

               
280  

               
199  

             
4,304  

1901-2000                
451  

            
3,091  

               
146  

               
275  

               
290  

               
205  

             
4,458  

2001-2100                
466  

            
3,193  

               
150  

               
284  

               
298  

               
211  

             
4,602  

2101-2200                
480  

            
3,291  

               
155  

               
293  

               
309  

               
218  

             
4,746  

2201-2300                
494  

            
3,383  

               
159  

               
300  

               
317  

               
224  

             
4,877  

2301-2400                
507  

            
3,473  

               
164  

               
310  

               
326  

               
230  

             
5,010  

2401-2500                
519  

            
3,558  

               
168  

               
317  

               
333  

               
237  

             
5,132  

2501-2600                
532  

            
3,639  

               
172  

               
324  

               
340  

               
242  

             
5,249  

2601-2700                
542  

            
3,718  

               
176  

               
331  

               
349  

               
247  

             
5,363  

2701-2800                
554  

            
3,794  

               
179  

               
337  

               
356  

               
252  

             
5,472  

2801-2900                
565  

            
3,868  

               
182  

               
344  

               
362  

               
257  

             
5,578  

2901-3000                
575  

            
3,939  

               
185  

               
351  

               
369  

               
261  

             
5,680  

3001-3100                
584  

            
4,006  

               
188  

               
357  

               
375  

               
266  

             
5,776  

3101-3200                
595  

            
4,073  

               
192  

               
362  

               
382  

               
271  

             
5,875  

3201-3300                
604  

            
4,137  

               
195  

               
369  

               
388  

               
275  

             
5,968  

3301-3400                
614  

            
4,200  

               
199  

               
374  

               
394  

               
280  

             
6,061  

3401-3500                
622  

            
4,260  

               
201  

               
380  

               
399  

               
283  

             
6,145  

3501-3600                
631  

            
4,319  

               
204  

               
385  

               
404  

               
287  

             
6,230  

3601-3700                
640  

            
4,376  

               
206  

               
389  

               
409  

               
290  

             
6,310  

        

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 42Packet Page     156



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Table 2:  Impact Fee Rates for Multifamily Family Residential per Dwelling Unit 

Size Range (SF) 
IMPACT FEE RATE 

Library Parks & 
Recreation 

Human 
Services 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

600 or less $218 $1,497 $70 $133 $140 $163 $2,221 

601-700                
264  

            
1,812  

                 
85  

               
160  

               
170  

               
197  

             
2,688  

701-800                
304  

            
2,086  

                 
98  

               
185  

               
195  

               
227  

             
3,095  

801-900                
339  

            
2,327  

               
110  

               
207  

               
218  

               
254  

             
3,455  

901-1000                
371  

            
2,542  

               
119  

               
226  

               
239  

               
277  

             
3,774  

1001-1100                
399  

            
2,737  

               
130  

               
244  

               
257  

               
298  

             
4,065  

1101-1200                
426  

            
2,915  

               
137  

               
260  

               
273  

               
318  

             
4,329  

1201-1300                
450  

            
3,079  

               
144  

               
274  

               
288  

               
336  

             
4,571  

1301-1400                
471  

            
3,231  

               
152  

               
288  

               
303  

               
353  

             
4,798  

1401-1500                
492  

            
3,372  

               
158  

               
299  

               
316  

               
369  

             
5,006  

1501-1600                
511  

            
3,503  

               
165  

               
312  

               
328  

               
383  

             
5,202  

        Table 3:  Impact Fee Rates for Nonresidential 
   

Nonresidential 
Uses 

Impact Fee Rates Per Square Foot of 
Nonresidential Floor Area 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

Retail/Restaurant $0.14 $0.47 $0.38 $0.99 

Business Park $0.16 $0.10 $0.09 $0.35 
Office $0.20 $0.16 $0.57 $0.93 
Hospital $0.17 $0.15 $0.48 $0.80 
School $0.04 $0.07 $0.13 $0.24 

Mini-Warehouse $0.00 $0.02 $0.00 $0.02 
Warehousing $0.06 $0.04 $0.04 $0.14 
Light Industrial $0.12 $0.05 $0.07 $0.24 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 43Packet Page     157



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Other 
Nonresidential 

Uses 

Impact Fee Rates for Other Nonresidential 
Uses Based on Unique Demand Indicators 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

Nursing Home 
(per bed) $18.85  $20.94  $51.30  $91.09  
Day Care (per 
student) $7.33  $18.85  $23.03  $49.21  
Lodging (per 
room) $23.03  $50.26  $63.87  $137.16  

 
Table 1:  Impact Fee Rates for Single Family Residential per Dwelling Unit 

Size Range 
(SF) 

IMPACT FEE RATE 

Library Parks & 
Recreation 

Human 
Services 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

900 or less $211  $1,443  $ 68  $ 129  $ 135  $  96  $2,082  

901-1000                
244  

            
1,674  

                 
78  

               
149  

               
157  

               
111  

             
2,413  

1001-1100                
273  

            
1,875  

                 
88  

               
167  

               
176  

               
123  

             
2,702  

1101-1200                
300  

            
2,060  

                 
97  

               
183  

               
193  

               
136  

             
2,969  

1201-1300                
325  

            
2,230  

               
106  

               
199  

               
209  

               
149  

             
3,218  

1301-1400                
348  

            
2,387  

               
112  

               
212  

               
224  

               
158  

             
3,441  

1401-1500                
370  

            
2,535  

               
119  

               
225  

               
236  

               
168  

             
3,653  

1501-1600                
390  

            
2,672  

               
126  

               
239  

               
250  

               
177  

             
3,854  

1601-1700                
408  

            
2,803  

               
132  

               
249  

               
263  

               
185  

             
4,040  

1701-1800                
428  

            
2,923  

               
137  

               
260  

               
273  

               
194  

             
4,215  

1801-1900                
444  

            
3,038  

               
143  

               
270  

               
285  

               
203  

             
4,383  

1901-2000                
459  

            
3,147  

               
149  

               
280  

               
295  

               
209  

             
4,539  

2001-2100                
474  

            
3,250  

               
153  

               
289  

               
303  

               
215  

             
4,684  

2101-2200                
489  

            
3,350  

               
158  

               
298  

               
315  

               
222  

             
4,832  

2201-2300                
503  

            
3,444  

               
162  

               
305  

               
323  

               
228  

             
4,965  

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 44Packet Page     158



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

2301-2400                
516  

            
3,536  

               
167  

               
316  

               
332  

               
234  

             
5,101  

2401-2500                
528  

            
3,622  

               
171  

               
323  

               
339  

               
241  

             
5,224  

2501-2600                
542  

            
3,705  

               
175  

               
330  

               
346  

               
246  

             
5,344  

2601-2700                
552  

            
3,785  

               
179  

               
337  

               
355  

               
251  

             
5,459  

2701-2800                
564  

            
3,862  

               
182  

               
343  

               
362  

               
257  

             
5,570  

2801-2900                
575  

            
3,938  

               
185  

               
350  

               
369  

               
262  

             
5,679  

2901-3000                
585  

            
4,010  

               
188  

               
357  

               
376  

               
266  

             
5,782  

3001-3100                
595  

            
4,078  

               
191  

               
363  

               
382  

               
271  

             
5,880  

3101-3200                
606  

            
4,146  

               
195  

               
369  

               
389  

               
276  

             
5,981  

3201-3300                
615  

            
4,211  

               
199  

               
376  

               
395  

               
280  

             
6,076  

3301-3400                
625  

            
4,276  

               
203  

               
381  

               
401  

               
285  

             
6,171  

3401-3500                
633  

            
4,337  

               
205  

               
387  

               
406  

               
288  

             
6,256  

3501-3600                
642  

            
4,397  

               
208  

               
392  

               
411  

               
292  

             
6,342  

3601-3700                
652  

            
4,455  

               
210  

               
396  

               
416  

               
295  

             
6,424  

 
Table 2:  Impact Fee Rates for Multifamily Family Residential per Dwelling Unit 

Size Range 
(SF) 

IMPACT FEE RATE 

Library Parks & 
Recreation 

Human 
Services 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

600 or less $222  $1,524  $ 71  $135  $143  $166  $2,261  

601-700                
269  

            
1,845  

                 
87  

               
163  

               
173  

               
201  

             
2,738  

701-800                
309  

            
2,124  

               
100  

               
188  

               
199  

               
231  

             
3,151  

801-900                
345  

            
2,369  

               
112  

               
211  

               
222  

               
259  

             
3,518  

901-1000                
378  

            
2,588  

               
121  

               
230  

               
243  

               
282  

             
3,842  

1001-1100                
406  

            
2,786  

               
132  

               
248  

               
262  

               
303  

             
4,137  

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 45Packet Page     159



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

1101-1200                
434  

            
2,967  

               
139  

               
265  

               
278  

               
324  

             
4,407  

1201-1300                
458  

            
3,134  

               
147  

               
279  

               
293  

               
342  

             
4,653  

1301-1400                
479  

            
3,289  

               
155  

               
293  

               
308  

               
359  

             
4,883  

1401-1500                
501  

            
3,433  

               
161  

               
304  

               
322  

               
376  

             
5,097  

1501-1600                
520  

            
3,566  

               
168  

               
318  

               
334  

               
390  

             
5,296  

 
Table 3:  Impact Fee Rates for Nonresidential 

Nonresidential 
Uses 

Impact Fee Rates Per Square Foot of 
Nonresidential Floor Area 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

Retail/ 
Restaurant $0.14 $0.48 $0.38 $1.00 
Business Park $0.16 $0.11 $0.10 $0.37 
Office $0.20 $0.16 $0.58 $0.94 
Hospital $0.17 $0.15 $0.49 $0.81 
School $0.04 $0.07 $0.13 $0.24 
Mini-
Warehouse $0.00 $0.02 $0.00 $0.02 
Warehousing $0.06 $0.04 $0.04 $0.14 
Light Industrial $0.12 $0.05 $0.07 $0.24 

Other 
Nonresidential 

Uses 

Impact Fee Rates for Other Nonresidential 
Uses Based on Unique Demand Indicators 

Municipal 
Facilities Police Fire TOTAL 

Nursing Home 
(per bed) $19.19  $21.32  $52.22  $92.73  
Day Care (per 
student) $7.46  $19.19  $23.44  $50.09  
Lodging (per 
room) $23.44  $51.16  $65.02  $139.62  

 
 
(b) Additional Floor Area – Affordable Housing Linkage Fee. Section 9-8-2, "Floor Area 

Ratio Requirements," B.R.C. 1981, permits floor area components above the base floor 
area in the DT-5 zoning district. No person engaged in nonresidential development that is 
associated with constructing additional floor area components permitted under the 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 46Packet Page     160



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

requirements of Section 9-8-2 shall fail to pay a housing linkage fee of $9.53 per sq. ft. 
for such floor area. 

Section 25.  Section 4-20-66, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-20-66. Mobile Food Vehicle Sales.  

An applicant for a mobile food vehicle permit shall pay a $225.00220.00 application fee and a 
$225.00220.00 renewal fee per year. 

Section 26.  Section 8-3-8, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

8-3-8 Fees. 

(a) The city manager may impose fees for recreational activities open to the public conducted by 
the City, or for the use of city facilities not otherwise addressed in this chapter. The city manager 
shall set such fees in amounts that are reasonable and necessary to preserve, maintain and 
manage such activities or facilities.  The city manager may establish discounted fees for group 
rates and promotional purposes. 

(b) Admission fees to the city recreation centers, pools, golf course, and Boulder Reservoir are 
those prescribed by section 4-20-41, "Park and Recreation Admission Fees," B.R.C. 1981. The 
city manager may establish discounted fees for group rates and promotional purposes in addition 
to those specified in that section. 

(bc) No person shall fail to pay a fee prescribed by this code for the use of a recreation center, 
pool, golf course or Boulder Reservoir or any other fee prescribed by the city manager. 

(cd) The term facility as used in this chapter shall mean any property owned by the City and 
designated by the city manager as a facility. 

Section 27.  This ordinance is effective on January 1, 2014. 

Section 28.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare 

of the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 29.  The council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 47Packet Page     161



 

K:\BDAD\o-7945 - 2014 Fees.doc 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October 2013. 

 
        
       Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this 15th day of October 2013. 

 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest:  
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Attachment D: Fee Ordinance

Agenda Item 5A     Page 48Packet Page     162



 
 

Attachment E: 2014 Recommended Budget Document Changes 

 

Item Budget Document Change Description   Document Section(s)   Page(s) 

       

1 Tax Increment Financing (TIF) – The 2014 Recommended Budget 

includes setting aside funds for a transfer to CAGID to help cover debt 

related to the construction of the parking garage at 10th and Walnut. 

With the expiration of the TIF, a funding gap exists as of  2015. The 

Recommended Budget shows the use of accommodations tax revenues, 

beginning in 2015, to cover this gap. As the distribution of 

accommodations tax revenue to the Boulder Convention and Visitors 

Bureau (BCVB) is based on prior year collections, the city recommends 

aligning the use of accommodation tax revenues for debt coverage 

with this timing. The result is that accommodations tax revenues would 

be set aside, starting in the first year after the TIF expiration  (2014 

rather than 2015) to cover the CAGID debt gap. The impact to the BCVB 

is a smaller revenue increase in 2015 and a larger increase in 2024. 

Total revenues to the BCVB would remain essentially the same. 

 Recommended 

Budget 

Fund Financials  226-230 

2 Utility Occupation Tax (UOT) – The December 6, 2011 ordinance 

extending and increasing the Utility Occupation Tax, states that the tax 

may be increased by the lesser of 3 percent or the average amount of 

rate increases made by public utility companies delivering natural gas 

or electricity in the city. At the time of preparing the 2014 

Recommended Budget, analysis on electric and gas utility rate 

increases had not yet been completed, so the budget was prepared 

using a conservative estimate of a 2 percent increase. Since that time 

the rate analysis has been completed and indicates that electric and 

gas rates have increased by over 3 percent. Therefore, the 2014 budget 

has been adjusted to include the maximum allowable rate increase of 3 

percent to the Utility Occupation Tax.  See attached updated General 

Fund Financial 

 Recommended 

Budget 

City Manager's Budget Message, 

Sources and Uses, Department 

Sections, Fund Financials 

 2, 3, 11, 18, 79-

84, 89-91, 97-98, 

101-103, 143-

145, 226-230 

3 CIP Pool Replastering Project - In the CIP document, the Pool 

Replastering project was noted as having $100,000 in funding from the 

.25 Cent Sales Tax fund in error.  This has been removed. There is no 

impact to the Recommended Budget. 

 Draft Capital 

Improvements 

Program 

Funding Summaries, Parks and 

Recreation 

 14-15, 28-30, 42, 

156, 170 

Attachment E: Document Changes

Agenda Item 5A     Page 49Packet Page     163



 
 

Attachment E:  2014 Recommended Budget Document Changes 

 

Item Budget Document Change Description   Document Section(s)   Page(s) 

       

4 CIP ADA Compliance Improvements Project - In the CIP document,  the 

ADA Compliance Improvements project was noted as having $100,000 

for 2014 and 2015 from the Permanent Parks and Recreation fund in 

error.  This has been removed.  The project is funded for $100,000 in 

2014 and 2015 in the .25 Cent Sales Tax Fund . There is no impact to 

the Recommended Budget. 

 Draft Capital 

Improvements 

Program 

Funding Summaries, Parks and 

Recreation 

 14-15, 28-30, 42, 

49, 156, 158 

5 CIP Flatirons Golf Course Irrigation System Replacement Project - In the 

CIP document, the Flatirons Golf Course Irrigation System Replacement 

project was noted has having $1,200,000 for 2014 in the Permanent 

Parks and Recreation fund in error.  This project funding is split with 

$600,000 funded each from the Permanent Parks and Recreation fund, 

and the .25 Cent Sales Tax fund. 

 Draft Capital 

Improvements 

Program 

Introduction, Funding Summaries, 

Parks and Recreation 

 14-15, 28-30, 42, 

49, 156, 165 

       

 

 

Attachment E: Document Changes

Agenda Item 5A     Page 50Packet Page     164



CITY OF BOULDER

2014 FUND FINANCIAL (in 1000's)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actual Revised Recommended Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 33,344$               38,530$                    29,992 29,354$          29,999$          30,254$          30,607$          31,712$          

Sources of Funds

Current Revenue-
Sales/Use Tax 46,206$               47,777$                    49,512$                   51,171$          52,885$          54,604$          56,351$          58,154$          
Tax Increment (10th & Walnut) surplus 1,242                   1,284                       530 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Food Service Tax 660                      680                          704 728                 752                 777                 803                 829                 
Property Tax 19,519                 19,677                      20,120 20,647            21,267            21,905            22,562            23,239            
Public Safety Property Tax 4,917                   4,951                       5,062 5,176              5,332              5,492              5,656              5,826              
Cable TV Franchise & PEG Fees 1,339                   1,339                       1,339 1,352              1,366              1,380              1,393              1,407              
Liquor Occupation Tax 633                      652                          672 692                 712                 734                 756                 779                 
Telephone Occupation Tax 774                      774                          774 774                 774                 774                 774                 774                 
Utility Occupation Tax1 6,000                   6,000                       6,180 6,365 6,556 6,753 6,956 7,164
Accommodation Tax 4,267                   4,395                       5,356 5,517              5,682              5,852              6,028              6,209              
Admission Tax 623                      639                          655 671                 688                 705                 722                 741                 
Xcel Franchise Fee -                           -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Specific Ownership Tax 1,431                   1,284                       1,310 1,336              1,362              1,390              1,417              1,446              
Tobacco Tax 357                      357                          357 357                 357                 357                 357                 357                 
NPP and Other Parking Revenue 174                      174                          157 157                 157                 157                 157                 157                 
Meters-Out of Parking Districts 555                      555                          545 545                 545                 545                 545                 545                 
Sale of Other Services 516                      526                          537 548                 559                 570                 581                 593                 
Sale of Goods 84                        87                            89 92                   95                   97                   100                 103                 
Licenses 554                      400                          412 424                 437                 450                 464                 478                 
Court Fees and Charges 2,299                   2,200                       2,200 2,200              2,200              2,200              2,200              2,200              
Parking Violations 2,056                   2,100                       2,100 2,100              2,100              2,100              2,100              2,100              
Other Fines & Penalties 25                        26                            27 27                   28                   29                   30                   31                   
Court Awards-DUI, No Ins. & Seized Property 146                      150                          155 160                 164                 169                 174                 180                 
Photo Enforcement Revenue 1,331                   1,445                       1,445 1,445              1,445              1,445              1,445              1,445              
Other Governmental 689                      350                          361 371                 382                 394                 406                 418                 
Interest Income 341                      300                          303 309                 315                 322                 328                 335                 
Rental Income 127                      131                          135 139                 143                 147                 152                 156                 
Other Revenue 324                      350                          350 350                 350                 350                 350                 350                 
Housing/Human Services Fees 338                      300                          148 151                 154                 157                 160                 163                 
Parks  Fees (see Other Revenue) 189                      190                          271                          272                 274                 275                 276                 278                 

Sub-Total Revenue 97,716$               99,092$                    101,803$                 104,076$        107,082$        110,129$        113,244$        116,456$        

Other Revenue-
Grants 1,086$                 756$                        798$                        605$               561$               560$               560$               562$               
Carryovers and Supplementals from Add'l 
Revenue 574                          -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Meters-Within Parking Districts 2,917                   2,800                       2,825 2,825              2,825              2,825              2,825              2,825              
Trash Hauler Occupation Tax 1,713                   1,656                       1,663 1,670              1,681              1,697              1,707              1,707              

GENERAL

Attachment E: General Fund

Agenda Item 5A     Page 51Packet Page     165



CITY OF BOULDER

2014 FUND FINANCIAL (in 1000's)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actual Revised Recommended Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

GENERAL

Education Excise Tax (to Fund Balance 
Reserves) 227                      -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Sub-Total Other Revenue 5,943$                 5,786$                      5,286$                     5,100$            5,067$            5,082$            5,092$            5,094$            
Transfers In-

Cost Allocation - Current Opr Costs-All Funds 7,546$                 7,557$                      7,841$                     8,233$            8,480$            8,734$            8,996$            9,266$            
Other Transfers 1,315                   81                            116 120                 123                 127                 131                 135                 

Mall Reimbursement from CAGID (see Revenue) -                           -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Sub-Total Transfers In 8,861$                 7,638$                      7,957$                     8,353$            8,603$            8,861$            9,127$            9,401$            

Total Annual Sources 112,520$             112,516$                  115,046$                 117,528$        120,752$        124,073$        127,464$        130,951$        

145,864$             151,046$                  145,038$                 146,883$        150,751$        154,326$        158,070$        162,664$        

Uses of Funds

Allocations (excluding debt and transfers) -
City Council 180$                    203$                        220$                        227$               233$               240$               248$               255$               
Municipal Court 1,822                   2,078                       2,047 2,096              2,159              2,227              2,296              2,368              
City Attorney 2,116                   2,282                       2,340 2,412              2,485              2,563              2,643              2,726              
City Clerk's Office 634                      637                          633 653                 672                 693                 715                 737                 
City Manager 1,008                   1,087                       1,136 1,171              1,207              1,244              1,283              1,323              
West Nile Virus Program 241                      250                          250 250                 250                 250                 250                 250                 
Energy Strategy1, 2 1,033                   2,203                       2,312 2,016              2,076              2,138              2,203              2,269              
Conference and Visitors Bureau 1,365                   1,389                       1,559 1,701              1,760              1,816              1,878              1,937              
Non-departmental 152                      114                          448 208                 233                 133                 133                 133                 
Cyber Café Loan Repayments -                           -                               269 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Citywide Memberships 118                      139                          142 142                 142                 142                 142                 142                 
Contingency 196                      159                          159 159                 159                 159                 159                 159                 
Fuel Contingency 6                          190                          190 190                 190                 190                 190                 190                 
Extraordinary Personnel Expense 52                        120                          120 120                 120                 120                 120                 120                 
Waste Reduction Project (6400 Arapahoe) 1,222                   -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
DUHMD/Parking Svcs 1,204                   1,292                       1,214 1,246              1,284              1,324              1,366              1,408              
Communications 757                      827                          877 904                 932                 961                 991                 1,021              
Unemployment & Volunteer Ins 125                      107                          107 110                 114                 117                 121                 125                 
Property & Casualty Ins. 1,510                   1,510                       1,610 1,610              1,610              1,610              1,610              1,610              
Compensated Absences 784                      844                          730 753                 775                 800                 825                 850                 
Worker's Compensation (Refund) 115                      -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Information Technology 4,212                   4,550                       4,650 4,794              4,939              5,093              5,252              5,416              
IT/Technology Funding -                           404                          404 404                 404                 404                 404                 404                 
IT/Telecommunications Funding 48                        48                            48 48                   48                   48                   48                   48                   
Human Resources 1,614                   1,734                       2,204 2,212              2,279              2,351              2,424              2,500              
Finance 3,168                   3,233                       3,533 3,560              3,668              3,782              3,900              4,022              
Campaign Financing -                           46                            -                               46                   -                      46                   -                      46                   

Total Sources 

(Including Beginning Fund Balance)        

Attachment E: General Fund

Agenda Item 5A     Page 52Packet Page     166



CITY OF BOULDER

2014 FUND FINANCIAL (in 1000's)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actual Revised Recommended Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

GENERAL

Police 30,368                 31,747                      32,041 33,031            34,032            35,095            36,190            37,320            
Fire 16,470                 16,546                      17,480 17,728            18,265            18,835            19,423            20,029            
Public Works 4,229                   1,878                       1,974 2,035              2,097              2,163              2,230              2,300              
Municipal Facilities Fund -                           880                          880 880                 880                 880                 880                 880                 
Equipment Replacement -                           26                            26 26                   26                   26                   26                   26                   
Facilities Renovation & Replacement -                           1,550                       2,619 1,669              1,669              1,669              1,669              1,669              
Parks 4,419                   4,616                       4,544 4,684              4,826              4,977              5,132              5,293              
Arts 528                      559                          518 534                 550                 567                 585                 603                 
Real Estate (Open Space) 146                      152                          153 158                 163                 168                 173                 178                 
Human Services 6,776                   6,714                       6,586 6,690              6,892              7,107              7,329              7,558              
Housing 132                      173                          158 163                 168                 173                 178                 184                 
Humane Society Bldg Loan 60                        94                            94 94                   94                   94                   94                   94                   
Community Sustainability 2,313                   2,735                       1,974 1,990              2,601              2,648              2,696              2,745              
Police/Fire Old Hire Contribution 376                      376                          626 628                 629                 630                 628                 627                 
Boulder Junction Phase I -                           -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Carryovers and Supplementals from Add'l 
Revenue -                           574                          -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Education Excise Tax Programs -                           -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Adjustment to balance Pay Period 27 Reserve -                           (2,044)                      -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
  Sub-Total Uses of Funds 89,499$               92,022$                    96,876$                   97,341$          100,632$        103,483$        106,434$        109,564$        

Debt-
Existing Debt 601$                    -$                             -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
Pension Obligation Bonds 688                      686                          689 687                 686                 685                 687                 688                 
CIS Bonds 2,755                   3,995                       3,995 3,995              3,994              3,995              3,334              3,331              
Waste Reduction Project (6400 Arapahoe) 438                      698                          428 423                 421                 424                 421                 423                 

  Sub-Total Debt 4,482$                 5,379$                      5,112$                     5,105$            5,101$            5,104$            4,442$            4,442$            

Transfers Out-
Recreation Activity Fund 1,548$                 1,594$                      1,453$                     1,498$            1,543$            1,591$            1,641$            1,692$            
Planning and Development Services Fund 1,971                   2,130                       2,125 2,191              2,257              2,328              2,400              2,475              
Affordable Housing Fund 325                      325                          240 240                 240                 240                 240                 240                 
Library Fund 6,298                   6,511                       6,587 6,698              6,901              7,116              7,338              7,567              
Open Space Fund (Mountain Parks) 1,026                   1,072                       1,103 1,137              1,172              1,208              1,246              1,285              
CAGID and UHGID Funds (Parking Meter 
Revenue) 1,800                   1,875                       1,950 1,950              1,950              1,950              1,950              1,950              
CAGID 10th & Walnut debt/costs -                           -                               -                               371                 356                 365                 349                 359                 
Utilities Fund (Fire Training Center property) 93                        93                            93 93                   93                   93                   93                   93                   
Prop and Casualty Fund 41                        -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transportation Fund (excess Photo Enforcement 
Rev) 106                      -                               -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fleet Fund (interfund loan for Valmont Butte) 145                      145                          145 145                 145                 145                 145                 145                 

Boulder Junction GID - Parking (interfund loan) -                           -                               -                               115                 107                 96                   80                   80                   

Attachment E: General Fund

Agenda Item 5A     Page 53Packet Page     167



CITY OF BOULDER

2014 FUND FINANCIAL (in 1000's)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actual Revised Recommended Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

GENERAL

Adjustment to balance Pay Period 27 Reserve -                           (290)                         -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
  Sub-Total Transfers Out 13,353$               13,455$                    13,696$                   14,438$          14,764$          15,132$          15,482$          15,887$          

.15% Sales Tax  Expenditures- Fund 117 -$                         -$                             -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
  Sub-Total .15 Sales Tax -$                         -$                             -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

   Total Uses of Funds 107,334$             110,856$                  115,684$                 116,884$        120,497$        123,720$        126,358$        129,893$        

Current Surplus (Deficit) 5,186$                 1,660$                      (637)$                       645$               255$               353$               1,106$            1,058$            
Less One-Time Expenditures -$                         (1,170)$                    -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Annual Surplus (Deficit)
 2 5,186$                 2,830$                      (637)$                       645$               255$               353$               1,106$            1,058$            

Carryovers and Supplementals from Fund 
Balance -$                         6,440$                      -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Encumbrance Carryovers from Fund Balance -                           1,424                       -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Total Carryovers -$                         7,864$                      -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Use of Pay Period 27 Reserve -$                         2,334$                      -$                             -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
Ending Fund Balance Before

Reserves 38,530$               29,992$                    29,354$                   29,999$          30,254$          30,607$          31,712$          32,771$          

Reserves

Reserved per 10% -15% reserve policy 10,625$               16,865$                    17,233$                   17,442$          17,990$          18,474$          18,870$          19,400$          
Legally restricted fund balance 1,414                   1,414                       1,414                       1,414              1,414              1,414              1,414              1,414              
Restricted by Management 3,008                   3,008                       3,008                       3,008              3,008              3,008              3,008              3,008              
Wage Accrual Reserve (PP27) 2,943                   1,101                       1,557                       2,013              2,469              2,925              3,381              3,837              
 

Total Designations 17,990$               22,388$                    23,212$                   23,877$          24,881$          25,821$          26,673$          27,659$          

Ending Fund Balance After Designations 20,540$               7,604$                      6,142$                     6,122$            5,372$            4,786$            5,040$            5,112$            

2 Previously titled Clean Energy Study.

1 The Utilities Occupation Tax expires at the end of 2017. Starting in 2018, if funding were not continued, either through tax renewal or other means, adjustments to expenditure would be made. For 
the purposes of current fund balance analysis, we have included ongoing revenue and corresponding expenditure in these years.

Attachment E: General Fund

Agenda Item 5A     Page 54Packet Page     168



Responses to Questions from the Oct. 1, 2013 First Reading of the 2014 Recommended Budget 

 

A public hearing and first reading for the 2014 Recommended Budget was held at the Oct. 1 

City Council meeting. Below are the questions asked by council at that meeting and staff 

responses. 

 

Question:   

Why shouldn’t CAGID pay the debt shortfall, net of corresponding revenues, resulting from the 

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) expiration? 

Response: 

While both CAGID and the city have benefitted from the success of the 10th and Walnut parking 

garage project, CAGID was not reimbursed for extra construction costs that CAGID paid, over 

what was covered by the bond, or for covering the revenue shortfall for debt payments in the 

early years. CAGID was also not compensated for air space. When this was reviewed by city staff 

and based on research into historical conversations leaving it open for the General Fund to 

cover the debt shortfall, staff felt it would be appropriate for the General Fund to cover this 

shortfall for the remaining life of the debt. 

 

Question:   

What would be the cost to increase the proposed North Boulder Library Station hours from 20 to 

40 per week? 

Response: 

The cost of this would be $60,000.   

 

Question: 

What is currently envisioned for the North Boulder Library Station under the recommended 

2014 Budget, and what additional information can be reported at this time involving the 

analysis of the site? 

 Response: 

The proposed 570 square foot North Boulder Library Station would be located in a storefront 

location at Broadway/Yarmouth. One-time funding is proposed for furniture, shelving, initial 

materials investment, signage, book returns, support systems and equipment, and on-going 

funding provides for one staff position (1.0 FTE)  and other expenses such as utilities, 

maintenance and janitorial services. Specific services for the station are still under consideration 

and could include Holds pick-up, Public Computers and Wi-Fi, Popular Materials, Children’s 

Materials, and Story-time programs. 

  

A service level of 20 service hours a week is proposed. An analysis of potential hours of 

operation is underway. Options for hours of operation include 4 days/week and 5 hours/day 

and options that provide morning, evening and afternoon coverage with a shift on a weekend 

day. The 1.0 FTE may be divided into two positions to cover breaks, training and vacations. The 

work schedule for this FTE would include time spent at the Main Library and on-site, both prior 

to the station’s opening and closing, to manage administrative tasks, sort materials for delivery 

and plan programming.   

Attachment F: Responses to Questions from the Oct 1, 2013 Public Hearing

Agenda Item 5A     Page 55Packet Page     169



 

Responses to Questions from the Oct. 1, 2013 First Reading of the 2014 Recommended Budget 

 

The on-going funding request for this scope is $115,000. The one-time request is $90,000.   

Based upon the analysis of this site, IT-related costs are currently projected to increase one-

time expenditures. However, options for connectivity are still being examined. If one-time costs 

exceed the proposed budget because of connectivity needs, staff would return to council with a 

budget supplemental request, possibly funded from DET. At that time, more information will be 

known about this unique Library Station model. Service delivery and hours of operation could 

also potentially be refined for 2014 at that time. 

 

Question:   

Why has the negotiations line item in the budget increased from approximately $46,000 in 

2013 to approximately $86,000 in 2014? 

Response: 

There will be two negotiations with collective bargaining units in 2014, compared to the normal 

one negotiation in a year. This additional one-time funding of $40,000 covers the cost of a 

second negotiation.  

 

Question:   

Given the impact of the flood, is it still a high priority to have $200,000 for the US Pro Cycle 

Challenge (USPCC) event and $63,000 for the Ironman event in the 2014 budget? 

Response: 

Given council’s direction to seek the USPCC and Ironman events for 2014 and to budget for 

them, staff used the best information available to prepare cost projections and included these 

in the budget. At this time, this is still the most accurate information that we have and it 

remains appropriate to show this in the budget.  

 

Question:   

Could you please provide an explanation of why it makes sense to reallocate $75,000 from 

human services funding given the issues individuals are facing in the current economic climate 

and due to the flood? 

Response: 

Since 2008, the recession has had a negative impact on local communities, with reductions to 

state and federal support and increased needs. The community places a high value on human 

services, much like open space, climate action and alternative transportation.  Although flat 

funding and inflationary costs have eroded buying power in the human services budget over the 

last decade, it has also done so across all other program and service budgets in the city. The 

proposed budget for human services continues to reflect community values and commitment to 

human services, and also recognizes other important needs across the city.  

 

The Human Services Department is starting the update to the Human Services Master Plan in 

2014. This will provide an opportunity for City Council to align the priorities and budget of 

human services with the new Human Services Strategy.   

Attachment F: Responses to Questions from the Oct 1, 2013 Public Hearing

Agenda Item 5A     Page 56Packet Page     170



 

Responses to Questions from the Oct. 1, 2013 First Reading of the 2014 Recommended Budget 

 

The $75,000 reduction to the Human Services Fund will be absorbed through assessment of 

how critical programs are to the core mission and purpose of the Human Services Fund and 

availability of other sources of funding for programs.  

 

Question:   

How will we ensure that the Prevention and Intervention Program continues to have adequate 

funding beyond the 2014 County commitment to pay $100,000 previously contributed by the 

city? 

Response: 

The Boulder County Department of Housing and Human Services will cover the $100,000 in 

2014, and may continue that funding in 2015 and beyond. The Board of Directors of the 

Prevention and Intervention Program will continue to work on an equitable and sustainable 

budget across the entire program (Boulder Valley School District and St. Vrain Valley School 

District). At this time, the source of ongoing funding needs to be determined and the program 

partners, including Boulder County, are exploring potential more sustainable resources past 

2014.  

 

Attachment F: Responses to Questions from the Oct 1, 2013 Public Hearing

Agenda Item 5A     Page 57Packet Page     171



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5A     Page 58Packet Page     172



 
 

CENTRAL AREA GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CAGID) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 

 
 

AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to 
the 2014 budget of the City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund 
(formerly known as the Central Area General Improvement District Fund): 
 

1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District 
Fund (formerly known as the Central Area General Improvement District 
Fund), adopting a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder Central Area General 
Improvement District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in 
part, of the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in 
relation thereto; and 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the 
City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 
Central Area General Improvement District Fund) for the 2014 fiscal year and 
setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the CAGID Board of Directors and to 
convene as the University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) Board of 
Directors. 

 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS 

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  

Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
 
 

Agenda Item 5B     Page 1Packet Page     173



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The name of the Central Area General Improvement District (CAGID) Fund has been 
changed to the Downtown Commercial District (DCD) Fund to better reflect that there 
are multiple sources of revenues within the fund.  
 
The purpose of this item is to adopt and appropriate the 2014 budget for the Downtown 
Commercial District Fund as well as set the 2013 Central Area General Improvement 
District property tax mill levy.  
 
To comply with Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution in establishing the 
Central Area General Improvement District property tax mill levy, a mill levy credit of 
5.095 mills is necessary.  Staff is recommending the following mill levy:  
 
 Base Mill Levy 9.990  
 Less: Mill Levy Credit (5.095) 
 Net Mill Levy 4.895 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Suggested Motion Language: 

 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 

 

 Motion to adopt Downtown Commercial District (DCD) Resolution No. 252 
adopting the 2014 budget for the DCD Fund; 

 Motion to adopt Downtown Commercial District (DCD) Resolution No. 253 
establishing the 2013 Boulder Central Area General Improvement District 
Property Tax mill levy; 

 Motion to adopt Downtown Commercial District (DCD) Resolution No. 254 
appropriating the 2014 budget for the DCD Fund; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the CAGID Board of Directors and to 
convene as the University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) Board of 
Directors. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5B     Page 2Packet Page     174



COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

These resolutions (Attachments A-C) adopt the 2014 budget, establish the 2013 property 
tax mill levy and appropriate funding presented to council in the City Manager’s 2014 
Recommended Budget for the Downtown Commercial District Fund, and were reviewed 
by council during the 2014 budget process.  Attachment D shows the impact of the 2014 
revenues and expenditures on the DCD fund balance.  
 
The budget supports a variety of projects and services within the Central Area General 
Improvement District that include social, environmental and economic issues. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - The 2014 budget for the Downtown Commercial District Fund is 
$7,027,956.   
 

 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s annual 
work plan. 

 
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The 2014 budget was also reviewed and approved by the Downtown Management 
Commission on Sept. 9, 2013. 
 

PUBLIC FEEDBACK 

A public hearing will be held on the 2014 budget appropriations, and mill levy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. Proposed resolution adopting a budget for the DCD Fund for 2014 

B. Proposed resolution establishing the Central Area General Improvement District 
Property Tax Mill Levy for 2013 to be collected in 2014 

C. Proposed resolution appropriating money to defray expenses and liabilities for the 
DCD Fund for 2014 

D. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the DCD Fund 

Agenda Item 5B     Page 3Packet Page     175



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5B     Page 4Packet Page     176



  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 252      

 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE CITY OF BOULDER 

DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL DISTRICT FUND (FORMERLY 

KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL AREA GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND), ADOPTING A BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014. 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-4 of the Revised Code of the City of Boulder requires that the Board 

annually determine the amount of money necessary to be raised for the District by an ad valorem 

tax levy on the taxable property in the District; and 

 WHEREAS, said chapter provides that prior to the start of proceedings for said levy of 

taxes, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget, and 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of said chapter pertaining to the giving of public notice have 

been accomplished; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CENTRAL AREA GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are as follows: 

 
 Operations $5,197,833 
 Debt Service    1,830,124 
  TOTAL $7,027,957 
  
 Section 2.  Estimated revenues available in fiscal year 2014 to fund the above expenditures 

are as follows: 

 
 Property Taxes $ 1,105,829 
 Parking Meter Revenue Transferred from General Fund 1,525,000
 Parking Fees 4,296,598 
 10th & Walnut Tax Revenues 889,575  
 Other Revenues       262,961      
   TOTAL $ 8,079,963 

  

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 5Packet Page     177



 

 Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized be adopted as 

the budget of the City of Boulder Downtown Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 

Central Area General Improvement District Fund) for the 2014 fiscal year. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Secretary 

  

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 6Packet Page     178



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 253 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2013 CITY OF BOULDER 

CENTRAL AREA GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROPERTY 

TAX MILL LEVY FOR PAYMENT OF EXPENDITURES, IN PART, OF 

THE DISTRICT DURING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014, AND SETTING 

FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the Board has prepared and adopted a budget for the District for the 2014 

fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the projected expenditures of the District for 2014; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has considered all sources of revenue of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that there will not be sufficient revenues produced 

by the facilities operated by the District along with income from investment to cover expenses of 

operation and debt service and that a tax levy of  4.895 mills should therefore be imposed; and 

 WHEREAS, the preliminary assessed valuation information received from the County 

under Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution indicates that the growth limit in the 

Central Area General Improvement District for 2013 property taxes is 2.43% and  

 WHEREAS, in order to conform with the County information, a mill levy credit of 5.095 

mills is necessary for a total of 4.895 mills to be assessed upon each dollar of assessed valuation 

of all taxable property with the City.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF BOULDER CENTRAL AREA GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT that: 

 Section 1.  Effective at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013 there is hereby 

levied for the year of 2013 to be collected in 2014, a tax of 4.895 mills upon each dollar of the 

total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the area of the City of Boulder Central 

Area General Improvement District.  The levy includes the following components: 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 7Packet Page     179



 

  General Operations and Debt 9.990   
  Less:  Mill Levy Credit (5.095) 
  Net Mill Levy (Subject to Article X,  
       Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution) 4.895 

 Section 2.  The secretary of the District is directed to certify the within levy to the County 

Assessor, Boulder County, Colorado. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
            Secretary   

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 8Packet Page     180



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 254 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY THE 

EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF BOULDER 

DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL DISTRICT FUND (FORMERLY 

KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL AREA GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT FUND) FOR THE 2014 FISCAL YEAR AND SETTING 

FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Central 

Area General Improvement District, has taken final action approving the revenues and 

expenditures of the budget for 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to make appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CENTRAL AREA GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of Boulder 

Downtown Commercial District Fund's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and 

ending December 31, 2014, from the funds of the District for the payment of the District's 

Operating Expenses, and Debt Service payments: 

 
 Operations $ 5,197,833 
 Debt Service     1,830,124 
 TOTAL $ 7,027,957 
 

 Section 2.  The following appropriation is hereby made for the City of Boulder 

Downtown Commercial District Fund's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014 and 

ending December 31, 2014, for fund balance: 

 Fund Balance (12/31/2013) $3,860,107 
 

  

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 9Packet Page     181



 

 Section 3.   The following appropriation is hereby made for the Downtown 

Commercial District Fund’s fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending 

December 31, 2014 for estimated carryover expenditures. 

 
 Capital Improvements Projects $250,000 

 

 Section 4.   The City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Central Area 

General Improvement District, hereby appropriates as revenues all 2013 year end cash 

balances not previously reserved for insurance or bond purposes for all purposes not 

designated as "emergencies", including without limitation subsequent years' expenditures, 

capital improvements, adverse economic conditions and revenue shortfalls, pursuant to 

Article X, Section 20 to the Colorado Constitution, approved by the electorate on 

November 3, 1992. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 
 
 
   ________________________________________ 
   Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
                     Secretary 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5B     Page 10Packet Page     182



Attachment D: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance

Downtown Commercial District 3,860                   8,080                   7,028                   4,912                   1,052                   

Totals 3,860$                 8,080$                 7,028$                 4,912$                 1,052$                 

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5B     Page 11Packet Page     183



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5B     Page 12Packet Page     184



 
 

UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (UHGID) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to 
the 2014 budget of the City of Boulder University Hill Commercial District Fund 
(formerly known as the University Hill General Improvement District Fund):   

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder University Hill Commercial District 

Fund (formerly known as the University Hill General Improvement District 
Fund), adopting a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder University Hill General 
Improvement District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in 
part, of the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation 
thereto; and 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the City 
of Boulder University Hill Commercial District Fund (formerly known as the 
University Hill General Improvement District Fund) for the 2014 fiscal year and 
setting forth details in relation thereto; and  

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the UHGID Board of Directors and convene 
as the Boulder Municipal Property Authority Board of Directors. 

 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  

Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
                                                     
 

Agenda Item 5C     Page 1Packet Page     185



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The name of the University Hill General Improvement District (UHGID) Fund has been 
changed to the University Hill Commercial District (UHCD) Fund to better reflect that 
there are multiple sources of revenues within the fund.  
 
The purpose of this item is to adopt and appropriate the 2014 budget for the University 
Hill Commercial District Fund as well as set the 2013 University Hill General 
Improvement District property tax mill levy. 
 
To comply with Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, a mill levy credit of 
2.747 mills is necessary.  Staff is recommending the following mill levy: 
 
 Base Mill Levy 4.984 
 Less: Mill Levy Credit       (2.747) 
 Net Mill Levy 2.237 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Suggested Motion Language 

 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 

 

 Motion to adopt University Hill Commercial District (UHCD) Resolution No. 188 
adopting the 2014 budget for the UHCD Fund; 

 Motion to adopt University Hill Commercial District (UHCD) Resolution No. 189 
establishing the 2013 University Hill General Improvement District Property Tax 
mill levy; 

 Motion to adopt University Hill Commercial District (UHCD) Resolution No. 190 
appropriating the 2014 budget for the UHCD Fund; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the UHGID Board of Directors and convene 
as the Boulder Municipal Property Authority Board of Directors. 

 
 

 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

These resolutions (Attachments A-C) adopt the 2014 budget, establish the 2013 property 
tax mill levy and appropriate funding as presented to council in the City Manager’s 2014 
Recommended Budget for the University Hill Commercial District Fund, and were 
reviewed by council during the 2014 budget process.  Attachment D shows the impact of 
the 2014 revenues and expenditures on the UHCD fund balance.  
 

Agenda Item 5C     Page 2Packet Page     186



The budget supports a variety of projects and services within the University Hill General 
Improvement District that include social, environmental and economic issues. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - The 2014 budget for the University Hill Commercial District Fund is 
$569,215 

 
 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s annual 

work plan. 
 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The budget for the University Hill Commercial District (UHCD) Fund was reviewed and 
approved by the University Hill Commercial Area Management Commission at its Sept. 
18, 2013 meeting. 
 

PUBLIC FEEDBACK 

A public hearing will be held on the 2014 budget appropriations and mill levy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A.  Proposed resolution adopting a budget for the UHCD Fund for 2014 
B.  Proposed resolution establishing the UHGID Property Tax Mill Levy for 2013 
C.  Proposed resolution appropriating money to defray expenses and liabilities for the 

UHCD Fund for 2014 
D. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the UHCD Fund 
 

Agenda Item 5C     Page 3Packet Page     187



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5C     Page 4Packet Page     188



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 188 

 
A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE CITY OF BOULDER 

UNIVERSITY HILL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT FUND 

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND), ADOPTING A BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-4 of the Revised Code of the City of Boulder requires that 

the Board annually determine the amount of money necessary to be raised for the District 

by an ad valorem tax levy on the taxable property in the District; and 

 WHEREAS, said chapter provides that prior to the start of proceedings for said 

levy of taxes, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget, and 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of said chapter pertaining to the giving of public 

notice have been accomplished; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING 

AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are as follows: 
  

 Operations $569,215 
 Debt Service               0 
       TOTAL $569,215 
 

 Section 2.  Estimated revenues for fiscal year 2014 to fund the above expenditures 

are as follows: 

 Property Taxes $  30,190 
 Parking Meter Revenue Transferred from General Fund 425,000 
 Parking Fees 116,034 
 Other Revenues       4,363 

      TOTAL $575,587 
 
 Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized be 

adopted as the budget of the City of Boulder University Hill Commercial District Fund 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 5Packet Page     189



 

(formerly known as the University Hill General Improvement District Fund) for the 2014 

fiscal year. 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 ____________________________________ 

 Chair 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

  Secretary 

  

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 6Packet Page     190



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 189 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2013 CITY OF 

BOULDER UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVY FOR PAYMENT OF 

EXPENDITURES, IN PART, OF THE DISTRICT DURING THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2014, AND SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN 

RELATION THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board has prepared and adopted a budget for the District for the 

2014 fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the projected expenditures of the District for 

2014, and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has considered all sources of revenue of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that there will not be sufficient revenues 

produced by the facilities operated by the District along with income from investment to 

cover expenses of operation and debt service and that a tax levy of 2.237 mills should 

therefore be imposed; and 

 WHEREAS, the preliminary assessed valuation information received from the 

County under Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution indicates that the 

growth limit in the University Hill General Improvement District for 2013 property taxes 

is 2.06% and  

 WHEREAS, in order to conform with the County information, a mill levy credit 

of 2.747 mills is necessary for a total of 2.237 mills to be assessed upon each dollar of 

assessed valuation of all taxable property with the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING 

AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF BOULDER UNIVERSITY 

HILL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  Effective at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013 there is 

hereby levied for the year of 2013, to be collected in 2014 a tax of 2.237 mills upon each 

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 7Packet Page     191



 

dollar of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the area of the City of 

Boulder University Hill General Improvement District.  The levy includes the following 

components: 

 
  General Operating and Debt 4.984  
  Less:  Mill Levy Credit (2.747) 
  Net Mill Levy (Subject to Article X,  
       Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution) 2.237 
 

 Section 2.  The secretary of the District is directed to certify the within levy to the 

County Assessor, Boulder County, Colorado. 

  

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
          Secretary 
 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 8Packet Page     192



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 190 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY THE 

EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF BOULDER 

UNIVERSITY HILL COMMERCIAL  DISTRICT FUND (FORMERLY 

KNOWN AS THE UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT FUND) FOR THE 2014 FISCAL YEAR AND SETTING FORTH 

DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the University 

Hill General Improvement District, has taken final action approving the revenues and 

expenditures of the budget for 2014 and 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to make appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE UNIVERSITY HILL GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of Boulder 

University Hill Commercial District Fund’s fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and 

ending December 31, 2014, from the funds of the District for the payment of the District's 

Operating Expenses, and Debt Service payments: 

 
 Operations $569,215 
 Debt Service               0 
       TOTAL $569,215 

 Section 2.  The following appropriation is hereby made for the City of Boulder 

University Hill Commercial District's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and 

ending December 31, 2014, for fund balance: 

 Fund Balance (12/31/2013) $739,493  

 Section 3.  The City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the University 

Hill General Improvement District, hereby appropriates as revenues all 2013 year end 

cash balances not previously reserved for insurance or bond purposes for all purposes not 

designated as "emergencies", including without limitation subsequent years' expenditures, 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 9Packet Page     193



 

capital improvements, adverse economic conditions and revenue shortfalls, pursuant to 

Article X, Section 20 to the Colorado Constitution, approved by the electorate on 

November 3, 1992. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
 Secretary 
 
 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5C     Page 10Packet Page     194



Attachment D: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance
University Hill Commercial District 739                      576                      569                      746                      6                          

Totals 739$                    576$                    569$                    746$                    6$                        

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5C     Page 11Packet Page     195



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5C     Page 12Packet Page     196



 
 

BOULDER MUNICIPAL PROPERTY AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of a motion to adopt a resolution formally adopting the 
2014 budget for the Boulder Municipal Property Authority; and 
 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Municipal Property Authority 
Board of Directors and convene as the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement 
District Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  

Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Boulder Municipal Property Authority (BMPA) was formed as a Colorado nonprofit 
corporation in February of 1988.  BMPA was formed for the purpose of acquiring real and 
personal property and leasing, selling or otherwise conveying the same to the city.  BMPA is 
governed by a nine-member board of directors, which consists of the members of the City 
Council.  BMPA’s officers include a President and Vice President, which, pursuant to its 
Bylaws, shall be the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, respectively, of the city and a Secretary-
Treasurer, which shall be the Director of Finance and Record, Ex Officio City Clerk of the city.  
BMPA has no assets, other than assets acquired from the issuance of debt securities, which are 
pledged to the repayment of such securities.  
 
BMPA is a nonprofit corporation.  However, it is a component unit of the city of Boulder as 
provided in the definition of "Reporting Entity" used by Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  This requires that the financial statements of BMPA be included in the city's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  Therefore, BMPA must adopt a formal annual budget. 
 
The debt service payments being appropriated by this resolution are made on Lease Purchase 
Revenue Notes and Certificates of Participation.  The revenues used to make these payments will 
be base rental payments from several city funds, including the General, Lottery, Permanent Parks 
and Recreation, Open Space, Affordable Housing and Transportation funds. 

Agenda Item 5D     Page 1Packet Page     197



 
This appropriation also includes a transfer from BMPA to the Open Space Fund for the eighth of 
10 annual payments BMPA will receive from Boulder County for the county’s share of the 
purchase of a conservation easement.  BMPA will transfer each of those annual payments from 
Boulder County to the Open Space Fund for payment of debt service on the Boulder Valley 
Farms, Inc., Series 2006A BMPA note that was issued for this purpose.  This resolution 
(Attachment A) adopts the 2014 BMPA budget. Attachment B shows the impact of the 2014 
revenues and expenditures on the BMPA fund balance.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Suggested Motion Language 

 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
 

Motion to adopt a BMPA Resolution No.134 adopting the 2014 budget for the Boulder 
Municipal Property Authority; and 
 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Municipal Property Authority 
Board of Directors and convene as the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement 
District Board of Directors. 

 
 

 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

This action is an accounting requirement of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - This appropriation of $1,661,878 includes $1,500,969 in the Boulder Municipal 
Property Authority Debt Service Fund for 2014 debt service payments and $160,909 for 
the transfer to the Open Space Fund from Boulder County for the Culver property 
purchase reimbursement. 
 

 Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s annual work plan. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. Proposed Resolution adopting a budget for the Boulder Municipal Property Authority 
for 2014 

B. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the Boulder Municipal Property Authority Fund 
Balance 

 

Agenda Item 5D     Page 2Packet Page     198



 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 134 

 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE BOULDER 

MUNICIPAL PROPERTY AUTHORITY (BMPA), 

ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014. 

 
  WHEREAS, the Boulder Municipal Property Authority is a nonprofit corporation 

duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado, and; 

  WHEREAS, the Boulder Municipal Property Authority is a component unit of the 

City of Boulder, for accounting purposes only, and as such, is required to formally adopt an annual 

budget, and; 

  WHEREAS, certain 2014 debt service obligations of the Boulder Municipal Property 

Authority are known; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BOULDER MUNICIPAL PROPERTY AUTHORITY, 

that: 

  Section 1.  Estimated debt service expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are $1,661,878. 

  Section 2.  Estimated revenues, in the form of base rental payments from city 

departments, and intergovernmental revenue from Boulder County available for fiscal year 2014 to 

fund the above expenditures, are $1,661,878. 

  Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized shall be 

adopted as the budget of the Boulder Municipal Property Authority for the 2014 fiscal year and 

appropriated into the Boulder Municipal Property Authority Debt Service Fund. 

  ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 
 

________________________________________ 
Attest:   President 
 
_______________________________________ 
 Secretary 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5D     Page 3Packet Page     199



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5D     Page 4Packet Page     200



Attachment B: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance

Boulder Municipal Property Authority -$                         1,662$                 1,662$                 -                       -$                         

Totals -$                         1,662$                 1,662$                 -$                         -$                         

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5D     Page 5Packet Page     201



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5D     Page 6Packet Page     202



 
 

FOREST GLEN TRANSIT PASS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 

 
 

AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to 
the 2014 budget of the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General 
Improvement District Fund:  

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General 

Improvement District, adopting a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 
2014; and 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass 
General Improvement District Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of 
expenditures, in part, of the District during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting 
forth details in relation thereto; and 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the 
City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District for the 
2014 fiscal year and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit 
Pass General Improvement District Board of Directors, and convene as the Boulder 
Junction Access Commission General Improvement District - Parking Board of 
Directors. 

 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  

Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  

Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 1Packet Page     203



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In November 2000, residents of the city’s Forest Glen neighborhood voted to form a 
General Improvement District (GID) to provide Regional Transit District (RTD) transit 
passes for all neighborhood residents. To comply with terms of the GID’s creation in 
2000, the Forest Glen GID Eco Pass Program was subject to a public audit and review in 
2006. One of the final recommendations of the audit and review was to continue the 
GID’s Eco Pass program.   
 
Subsequent informal reviews with the Forest Glen Transit Pass district participants occur 
annually in the Fall each year. Any resident living in the Forest Glen neighborhood is 
eligible to receive an RTD Eco Pass, regardless of whether they rent or own a home. 
Funding for the passes is generated from property tax revenues collected from property 
owners in the GID. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to adopt and appropriate the Forest Glen Transit Pass 
GID budget for 2014, and to establish the 2013 Forest Glen Transit Pass GID mill levy.  
A maximum mill levy of 2.310 mills and an exemption from Article X, Section 20 of the 
Colorado Constitution were approved by the voters during the GID’s formation. 

Staff is recommending the following mill levy:  

 Base Mill Levy 2.310  
 Less: Mill Levy Credit (1.028) 
 Net Mill Levy 1.282 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Suggested Motion Language:  
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 
 

 Motion to adopt Forest Glen Transit Pass Resolution No.43 adopting the 2014 
budget for the Forest Glen Transit Pass GID Fund; 

 Motion to adopt Forest Glen Transit Pass Resolution No. 44 establishing the 
2013 City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District 
Property Tax Mill Levy; 

 Motion to adopt Forest Glen Transit Pass Resolution No.45 appropriating the 
2014 budget for the Forest Glen Transit Pass GID Fund; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit 
Pass General Improvement District Board of Directors, and convene as the Boulder 
Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Board of 
Directors. 

 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 2Packet Page     204



 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 

These resolutions (Attachments A-C) adopt the 2014 budget, establish the 2013 property 
tax mill levy and appropriate funding, as presented to council in the City Manager’s 2014 
Recommended Budget, for the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District, 
and were reviewed by council during the 2014 budget process. Attachment D shows the 
impact of the 2014 revenues and expenditures on the Forest Glen Transit Pass GID fund 
balance.  
 
The budget supports the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District that was 
established to provide Eco Passes to residents living within the district. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - The 2014 budget for City of Boulder Forest Glen Transit Pass General 
Improvement District is $15,081. 
 

 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated as part of the Budget Division’s 
annual work plan. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. Proposed resolution adopting a budget for Forest Glen Transit Pass GID for 2014 
B. Proposed resolution establishing the Forest Glen Transit Pass GID Property Tax Mill 

Levy for 2013 
C. Proposed resolution appropriating money to defray expenses and liabilities for the Forest 

Glen Transit Pass GID for 2014 
D. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the Forest Glen Transit Pass GID Fund Balance 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 3Packet Page     205



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 4Packet Page     206



 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 43 

 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE FOREST GLEN 

TRANSIT PASS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 

ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014. 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-4 of the Revised Code of the City of Boulder requires that the 

Board annually determine the amount of money necessary to be raised for the District by an ad 

valorem tax levy on the taxable property in the District; and 

 WHEREAS, said chapter provides that prior to the start of proceedings for said levy of 

taxes, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget, and 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of said chapter pertaining to the giving of public notice 

have been accomplished; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FOREST GLEN TRANSIT PASS GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are as follows: 

  Operations $15,081 

 Section 2.  Estimated revenues available in fiscal year 2014 to fund the above 

expenditures are as follows: 

  Property Taxes $  9,343 

  Operating Subsidies from Transportation and CAP Funds 4,464 

  Specific Ownership Tax 369 

  Other Revenue 35 

  Estimated Fund Balance as of (12/31/13) 870 

          TOTAL $15,081 

  

 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5E     Page 5Packet Page     207



 

 

Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized be adopted as 

the budget of the Forest Glen Transit Pass General Improvement District for the 2014 fiscal year. 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
________________________________________ 

    Chair                              
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Secretary 
 
 
 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5E     Page 6Packet Page     208



 

 

  

RESOLUTION NO.  44 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2013FOREST 

GLEN TRANSIT PASS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVY FOR PAYMENT 

OF EXPENDITURES, IN PART, OF THE DISTRICT 

DURING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014, AND SETTING FORTH 

DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the Board has prepared and adopted a budget for the District for the 2014 

fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the projected expenditures of the District for 2014; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has considered all sources of revenue of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a tax levy of 1.282 should therefore be 

imposed; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to conform with the County information, a mill levy credit of 1.028 

mills is necessary for a total of 1.282 mills to be assessed upon each dollar of assessed valuation 

of all taxable property with the City; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  FOREST GLEN TRANSIT PASS GENERAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT that: 

 Section 1.  Effective at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013, there is hereby 

levied for the year of  2013 to be collected in 2014, a tax of 1.282 mills upon each dollar of the  

total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the area of the Forest Glen Transit Pass 

General Improvement District.  The levy includes the following components: 

 
  General Operations and Debt 2.310 
  Less:  Mill Levy Credit   (1.028) 
  Net Mill Levy  1.282 
 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5E     Page 7Packet Page     209



 

 

 Section 2.  The secretary of the District is directed to certify the within levy to the County 

Assessor, Boulder County, Colorado. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair                                
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
            Secretary   

  

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5E     Page 8Packet Page     210



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 45 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY 

THE EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE  FOREST 

GLEN TRANSIT PASS  GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT FOR THE 2014 FISCAL YEAR AND SETTING 

FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Forest Glen Transit 

Pass General Improvement District, has taken final action approving the revenues and 

expenditures of the budget for 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to make appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER , COLORADO, ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

FOREST GLEN TRANSIT PASS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, that: 

 Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the Forest Glen Transit 

Pass General Improvement District's fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending 

December 31, 2014, from the funds of the District for the payment of the District's Operating 

Expenses: 
 
 Operations $15,081 
  
   

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 
 
 
   ________________________________________ 
   Chair                                
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
  Secretary 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5E     Page 9Packet Page     211



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 10Packet Page     212



Attachment D: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance

Transit Pass GID 6                          14                        15                        5                          (1)                         

Totals 6$                        14$                      15$                      5$                        (1)$                       

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5E     Page 11Packet Page     213



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5E     Page 12Packet Page     214



 
 

BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT - PARKING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 
 

 
AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to 
the 2014 budget of the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Parking Fund: 

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 

Commission General Improvement District – Parking Fund, adopting a budget 
for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 
Commission General Improvement District – Parking Property Tax Mill Levy 
for payment of expenditures, in part, of the District during the 2014 fiscal year, 
and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the 
City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Parking Fund for the 2014 fiscal year and setting forth details in 
relation thereto; and  

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission 
General Improvement District - Parking Board of Directors and convene as the Board 
of Directors of the Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District 
– Travel Demand Management. 

 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
                                                     
 

Agenda Item 5F     Page 1Packet Page     215



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Boulder Junction Access General Improvement District - Parking (the “District”) 
was created by City Council with the adoption of ordinance 7731 on July 20, 2010. The 
District provides parking and transportation related services and improvements to support 
Travel Demand Management strategies of the Transit Village Plan. The District operates 
in conjunction with the Boulder Junction Access General Improvement District - Travel 
Demand Management. 
 
A mail ballot election on Nov. 2, 2010 approved a maximum mill levy and authorized the 
issuance of bonds. At its April 16, 2012 meeting, the Boulder Junction Access District – 
Parking Commission voted unanimously in support of increasing the property tax mill 
levy from 5.000 mills to 10.000 mills. The District’s expenditures and work plan will be 
determined by the timing and type of development within the District.  
 
The purpose of this item is to adopt and appropriate the 2014 budget for the Boulder 
Junction Access General Improvement District - Parking Fund as well as set the 2013 
property tax mill levy at 10 mills. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
Suggested Motion Language: 
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 

 
 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 

District – Parking Resolution No. 9 adopting the 2014 budget for the Boulder 
Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Fund; 

 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Parking Resolution No. 10 establishing the 2013 Boulder Junction 
Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Property Tax mill 
levy; 

 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Parking Resolution No. 11 appropriating the 2014 budget for the 
Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking 
Fund; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission 
General Improvement District – Parking Board of Directors and convene as the Board of 
Directors of the Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – 
Travel Demand Management. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5F     Page 2Packet Page     216



 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
These resolutions (Attachments A-C) adopt the 2014 budget, establish the 2013 property 
tax mill levy and appropriate funding as presented to council in the City Manager’s 2014 
Recommended Budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District (GID) – Parking Fund and were reviewed by council during the 
2014 budget process.  Attachment D shows the impact of the 2014 revenues and 
expenditures on the Boulder Junction Access Commission GID – Parking fund balance.  
 
The budget supports a variety of planning, capital improvements, and transportation 
services within the District that provide social and environmental benefits to the city as a 
whole. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - The 2014 budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Parking Fund is $12,599. 
 

 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s annual 
work plan. 

 
BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The 2014 budget was also reviewed and approved by the Boulder Junction General 
Improvement District – Parking Commission on Sept. 4, 2013. 
 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
A public hearing will be held on the 2014 budget appropriations and mill levy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A.  Proposed resolution adopting a budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Parking Fund for 2014 
B.  Proposed resolution establishing the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 

Improvement District – Parking Property Tax Mill Levy for 2013 
C.  Proposed resolution appropriating money to defray expenses and liabilities for the 

Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Fund 
for 2014 

D. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Parking Fund 

 

Agenda Item 5F     Page 3Packet Page     217



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5F     Page 4Packet Page     218



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 9 

 
A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE CITY OF BOULDER, 
BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - PARKING FUND, ADOPTING A 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-4 of the Revised Code of the City of Boulder requires that 

the Board annually determine the amount of money necessary to be raised for the District 

by an ad valorem tax levy on the taxable property in the District; and 

 WHEREAS, said chapter provides that prior to the start of proceedings for said 

levy of taxes, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget, and 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of said chapter pertaining to the giving of public 

notice have been accomplished; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING 

AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS 

COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT – PARKING, that: 

 Section 1.  Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014 are as follows: 
  
 Operations $12,599 
 Debt Service               0 
       TOTAL $12,599 
 

 Section 2.  Estimated revenues for fiscal year 2014 to fund the above expenditures 

are as follows: 

 
 Property Taxes $  26,041 
 Parking Meter Revenue Transferred from General Fund 0 
 Ownership Tax 781 
 Other  126 

      TOTAL $26,948 
 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 5Packet Page     219



 

 Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized be 

adopted as the budget of the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Parking Fund for the 2014 fiscal year. 

  

ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 ____________________________________ 

 Chair 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

  Secretary 

  

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 6Packet Page     220



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 10 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2013 CITY OF 
BOULDER, BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - PARKING 
PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVY FOR PAYMENT OF 
EXPENDITURES, IN PART, OF THE DISTRICT DURING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2014, AND SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN 
RELATION THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board has prepared and adopted a budget for the District for the 

2014 fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the projected expenditures of the District for 

2014, and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has considered all sources of revenue of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that there will not be sufficient revenues 

produced by the facilities operated by the District along with income from investment to 

cover expenses of operation and debt service and that a tax levy of 10.000 mills should 

therefore be imposed; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING 

AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, BOULDER 

JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - 

PARKING, that: 

 Section 1.  Effective at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013 there is 

hereby levied for the year of 2013, to be collected in 2014 a tax of 10.000 mills upon 

each dollar of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the area of the 

City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – 

Parking. 
 

 Section 2.  The secretary of the District is directed to certify the within levy to the 

County Assessor, Boulder County, Colorado. 

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 7Packet Page     221



 

  

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
          Secretary 
 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 8Packet Page     222



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 11 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY THE 
EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF BOULDER,  BOULDER 
JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT – PARKING FUND FOR THE 2014 FISCAL YEAR AND 
SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Boulder 

Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking, has taken final 

action approving the revenues and expenditures of the budget for 2014 and 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to make appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT – PARKING, that: 

 Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of Boulder, 

Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking Fund’s 

fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, from the funds 

of the District for the payment of the District's Operating Expenses, and Debt Service 

payments: 

 
  Operations $12,599 
  Debt Service              0 

    TOTAL $12,599 

 Section 2.  The following appropriation is hereby made for the City of Boulder, 

Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking’s fiscal 

year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, for fund balance: 
  

  Fund Balance (12/31/2013) $21,313  

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 9Packet Page     223



 

 Section 3.  The City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Boulder 

Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Parking, hereby 

appropriates as revenues all 2013 year end cash balances not previously reserved for 

insurance or bond purposes for all purposes not designated as "emergencies", including 

without limitation subsequent years' expenditures, capital improvements, adverse 

economic conditions and revenue shortfalls, pursuant to Article X, Section 20 to the 

Colorado Constitution, approved by the electorate on November 3, 1992. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
 Secretary 
 
 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5F     Page 10Packet Page     224



Attachment D: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance

Boulder Junction GID Parking 21                        27                        13                        36                        14                        

Totals 21$                      27$                      13$                      36$                      14$                      

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5F     Page 11Packet Page     225



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5F     Page 12Packet Page     226



 
 

BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND MANAGEMENT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 15, 2013 
 

 
AGENDA TITLE  Consideration of a motion to adopt three resolutions pertaining to 
the 2014 budget of the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund: 

 
1. A resolution concerning the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 

Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management 
Fund, adopting a budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014; and 

2. A resolution establishing the 2013 City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access 
Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management 
Property Tax Mill Levy for payment of expenditures, in part, of the District 
during the 2014 fiscal year, and setting forth details in relation thereto; and 

3. A resolution appropriating money to defray the expenses and liabilities of the 
City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Fund for the 2014 fiscal year and setting 
forth details in relation thereto; and  

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission 
General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Board of Directors and 
reconvene as the City Council. 

 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Bunzli, Budget Manager                                                   
                                                     
 

Agenda Item 5G     Page 1Packet Page     227



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Boulder Junction Access General Improvement District - Travel Demand 
Management (the “District”) was created by City Council with the adoption of ordinance 
7732 on July 20, 2010. The District provides parking and transportation related services 
and improvements to support Travel Demand Management strategies of the Transit 
Village Plan. The District operates in conjunction with the Boulder Junction Access 
General Improvement District - Parking. 
 
A mail ballot election on Nov. 2, 2010 approved a maximum mill levy and authorized the 
issuance of bonds. The initial levy was established at 5 mills and remains unchanged for 
2013. The District has entered into Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) agreements to 
initiate payment for services such as Eco Passes when certificates of occupancy are 
issued. The District’s expenditures and work plan will be determined by the timing and 
type of development within the District.   
 
The purpose of this item is to adopt and appropriate the 2014 budget for the Boulder 
Junction Access General Improvement District - Travel Demand Management Fund as 
well as set the 2013 property tax mill levy at 5 mills. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

Suggested Motion Language 
 
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the 
following motion: 

 
 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 

District – Travel Demand Management Resolution No. 8 adopting the 2014 
budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Fund; 

 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Resolution No. 9 establishing the 2013 
Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel 
Demand Management Property Tax mill levy; 

 Motion to adopt Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Resolution No. 10 appropriating the 
2014 budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement 
District – Travel Demand Management Fund; and 

 
Consideration of a motion to adjourn from the Boulder Junction Access Commission 
General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Board of Directors and 
reconvene as the City Council. 

 
 

Agenda Item 5G     Page 2Packet Page     228



 
 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
These resolutions (Attachments A-C) adopt the 2014 budget, establish the 2013 property 
tax mill levy and appropriate funding as presented to Council in the City Manager’s 2014 
Recommended Budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District (GID) – Travel Demand Management (TDM) Fund, and were 
reviewed by council during the 2014 budget process.  Attachment D shows the impact of 
the 2014 revenues and expenditures on the Boulder Junction Access Commission GID – 
TDM fund balance. 
 
The budget supports a variety of planning, capital improvements, and transportation 
services within the District that provide social and environmental benefits to the city as a 
whole. 
 
OTHER IMPACTS  

 Fiscal - The 2014 budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund is $50,347. 

 
 Staff time - Staff time for this process is allocated in the Budget Division’s annual 

work plan. 
 

BOARD AND COMMISSION FEEDBACK 
The 2014 budget was also reviewed and approved by the Boulder Junction General 
Improvement District – Transportation Demand Management Commission on Sept. 4, 
2013. 
 
PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
A public hearing will be held on the 2014 budget appropriations and mill levy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A.  Proposed resolution adopting a budget for the Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund for 2014 
B.  Proposed resolution establishing the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 

Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Property Tax Mill Levy for 
2013 

C.  Proposed resolution appropriating money to defray expenses and liabilities for the 
Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel 
Demand Management Fund for 2014 

D. Impact of the 2014 Budget on the Boulder Junction Access Commission General 
Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund 

 

Agenda Item 5G     Page 3Packet Page     229



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5G     Page 4Packet Page     230



 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  8 

 
A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE CITY OF BOULDER, 
BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT FUND, ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8-4 of the Revised Code of the City of Boulder requires that 

the Board annually determine the amount of money necessary to be raised for the District 

by an ad valorem tax levy on the taxable property in the District; and 

 WHEREAS, said chapter provides that prior to the start of proceedings for said 

levy of taxes, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget, and 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of said chapter pertaining to the giving of public 

notice have been accomplished; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING 

AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS 

COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND 

MANAGEMENT, that: 

 Section 1.  Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2014are as follows: 
  
 Operations $50,347 
 Debt Service               0 
      TOTAL $50,347 
 

 Section 2.  Estimated revenues for fiscal year 2014 to fund the above expenditures 

are as follows: 

  
 Property Taxes $ 17,601 
 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 113,064 
 Other Revenue 177 

      TOTAL $130,842 
 

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 5Packet Page     231



 

 Section 3.  The proposed budget as submitted and hereinabove summarized be 

adopted as the budget of the City of Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission 

General Improvement District – Travel Demand Management Fund for the 2014 fiscal 

year. 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 ____________________________________ 

 Chair 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

  Secretary 

  

Attachment A: Budget Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 6Packet Page     232



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 9 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2013 CITY OF 
BOULDER,  BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION 
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVY FOR 
PAYMENT OF EXPENDITURES, IN PART, OF THE DISTRICT 
DURING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014, AND SETTING FORTH 
DETAILS IN RELATION THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board has prepared and adopted a budget for the District for the 

2014 fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the projected expenditures of the District for 

2014, and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has considered all sources of revenue of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that there will not be sufficient revenues 

produced by the facilities operated by the District along with income from investment to 

cover expenses of operation and debt service and that a tax levy of 5.000 mills should 

therefore be imposed; and 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, 

ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND MANAGEMENT, that: 

 Section 1.  Effective at 12:00 Midnight at the end of December 31, 2013 there is 

hereby levied for the year of 2013, to be collected in 2014 a tax of 5.000 mills upon each 

dollar of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the area of the City of 

Boulder, Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel 

Demand Management. 
 

 Section 2.  The secretary of the District is directed to certify the within levy to the 

County Assessor, Boulder County, Colorado. 

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 7Packet Page     233



 

  

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
          Secretary 
 

  

Attachment B: Mill Levy Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 8Packet Page     234



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 10 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY THE 
EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, BOULDER 
JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND MANAGEMENT FUND FOR THE 2014 
FISCAL YEAR AND SETTING FORTH DETAILS IN RELATION 
THERETO. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Boulder 

Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand 

Management, has taken final action approving the revenues and expenditures of the 

budget for 2014 and 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to make appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, ACTING AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE BOULDER JUNCTION ACCESS COMMISSION GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT – TRAVEL DEMAND MANAGEMENT, that: 

 Section 1.  The following appropriations are hereby made for the City of Boulder, 

Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand 

Management Fund’s fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 

2014, from the funds of the District for the payment of the District's Operating Expenses, 

and Debt Service payments: 

 
  Operations $50,347 
  Debt Service              0 

    TOTAL $50,347 

 Section 2.  The following appropriation is hereby made for the City of Boulder, 

Boulder Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand 

Management’s fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, 

for fund balance: 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 9Packet Page     235



 

 Fund Balance (12/31/2013) $30,042  

  

 Section 3.  The City Council, acting as the Board of Directors of the Boulder 

Junction Access Commission General Improvement District – Travel Demand 

Management, hereby appropriates as revenues all 2013 year end cash balances not 

previously reserved for insurance or bond purposes for all purposes not designated as 

"emergencies", including without limitation subsequent years' expenditures, capital 

improvements, adverse economic conditions and revenue shortfalls, pursuant to Article 

X, Section 20 to the Colorado Constitution, approved by the electorate on November 3, 

1992. 

 

 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

 
________________________________________ 

 Chair 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
 Secretary 
 
 

Attachment C: Appropriation Resolution

Agenda Item 5G     Page 10Packet Page     236



Attachment D: 2014 Fund Activity Summary

Projected Fund 

Balance 

1/1/2014

Estimated 

Revenues 

Including 

Transfers In

Appropriations 

Including 

Transfers Out

Projected Fund 

Balance 

12/31/2014

Projected 

Changes in 

Fund Balance

Boulder Junction Access GID TDM 30                        131                      50                        111                      80                        

Totals 30$                      131$                    50$                      111$                    80$                      

ACTIVITY BY FUND, in thousands

Fund Title

Agenda Item 5G     Page 11Packet Page     237



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 5G     Page 12Packet Page     238



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE: Second reading and consideration of a motion to adopt three 
ordinances relating to alcohol: 
 

1.  Amend on second reading and order published by title only Ordinance No. 7938 
amending Chapter 6-3, “Trash, Recyclables, and Compostables,” and Title 9, 
“Land Use Code,” B.R.C., 1981, to reduce impacts of hospitality establishments 
on neighboring properties and setting forth related details; 

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 7939 amending section 4-2-4, “State Law Procedures 
Apply,” B.R.C., 1981, to modify the 500-foot Rule to allow Beer and Wine 
licenses only and setting forth related details; and 

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 7940 removing sections 2-3-3, “Beverage Licensing 
Authority,” and replacing with a new section 4-2-12, “Beverage Licensing 
Authority,” amending 4-2-3, “Authority to Issue City Licenses,” 2-6-3, “Creation, 
Jurisdiction, and Powers of Municipal Court,” 2-6-4, “Judges,” B.R.C. 1981, and 
setting forth related details. 
 

 
 
PRESENTER/S  
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager  
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager  
Cross-Departmental Staff Team (see page 21 for list of team members) 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
At a public hearing on Feb. 19, 2013, City Council directed city staff to move forward 
with the proposed action plan to reduce community impacts from the overconsumption of 
alcohol. Three elements of the action plan that require further council input include: 
 

1. Amendments to the land use code for hospitality establishments to differentiate 
between lower and higher intensity uses,  

2. Amendments to the city’s 500-foot rule, which governs liquor sales near schools 
and universities, and  

3. Beverage Licensing Authority (BLA) structural changes from a volunteer 
community board to a hearing officer. 

 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 1Packet Page     239



Since the Feb. 19th meeting, staff has also moved forward on the joint inspection teams – 
another component of the action plan to increase the level of enforcement on hospitality 
establishments. 
 
The purpose of this item is to consider ordinances to change the following areas related to 
reducing community impacts from the overconsumption of alcohol: 
 
Land Use Code Changes – The proposed land use code changes are intended to better 
distinguish between low-intensity and high-intensity hospitality establishments and their 
respective compatibility with neighboring land uses. Currently, the land use code 
regulates restaurants and taverns uniformly and in some cases, restaurants approved as 
such have converted to tavern-like uses in late hours, which present different impacts. 
The new definitions and standards are focused on operating characteristics of different 
types of hospitality establishments to regulate them more appropriately and better 
mitigate impacts. Staff recommends the proposed changes (Attachment A) in order to: 
 

• Better differentiate between hospitality establishments as to anticipate impacts 
and avoid the conversion of restaurants into taverns or night clubs in late hours; 

• Place a higher level of scrutiny on establishments in close proximity to residential 
areas and incentivize establishments without full-service liquor licenses in such 
areas; and 

• Continue to support Boulder’s economic vitality by permitting higher intensity 
uses in the core of downtown and within the Boulder Valley Regional Center 
where police and transportation services are already focused to address impacts 
and promote safety and where impacts to residential areas would be less. 

 
Amend the City’s 500-foot Rule – In September 1987, City Council waived the state 
requirement, thereby allowing establishments located within 500-feet (ft) of the principal  
campus of the University of Colorado (CU) to obtain Hotel-Restaurant type liquor 
licenses only. These licenses permit the sale of beer, wine, and hard liquor.  
 
Three options for the existing 500-ft rule are briefly described below.1

 

 Any changes to 
the 500-ft rule would only apply to new businesses. Existing businesses would be 
grandfathered, unless a business was closed for more than one year, and a business could 
also transfer their liquor licenses to future owners or tenants. 

1. Revoke the 500-foot liquor license waiver: No additional liquor licenses would 
be issued within 500-ft of CU. (Attachment B-1) 

2. Modify the 500-foot liquor license waiver to allow beer and wine licenses only: 
This approach would permit additional establishments that wish to serve alcohol 
within 500-feet of CU, but would prohibit the sale of hard alcohol. (Attachment 
B-2) 

                                                           
1 As a cleanup matter, each option includes removing the 400 foot waiver in section 4-2-4(a)(2) B.R.C., 
that applies to Boulder High in order to comply with state law. This wavier includes provisions relating to 
capacity and square footage. Removal of this section will not have an impact to any existing 
establishments. 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 2Packet Page     240



3. Status Quo: The existing waiver would remain in place. Existing and new 
businesses located within 500-ft of CU’s principal campus could continue to 
apply for licenses to sell and serve wine, beer or hard alcohol. (Attachment B-3)  

 
Staff has prepared three ordinances for council consideration with each of the options 
noted above.  Staff recommends modifying the existing 500-foot Rule to allow Beer & 
Wine licenses only (Attachment B-2) to: 
 

• Strike a balance between addressing overconsumption of alcohol on the Hill while 
minimizing the adverse impacts to the economic vitality of the community. 

• Allow for more family friendly restaurants while avoiding some of the 
community impacts that can be associated with the consumption of hard liquor 

 
Beverage Licensing Authority (BLA) Structural Changes – The BLA is a five member 
volunteer community board that has the responsibility of granting, denying, suspending, 
and revoking liquor licenses. They are required to apply state law. Suspension or 
revocation requires what is essentially a trial, with the BLA sitting in the role of a judge. 
There is no other city board placed in this position. Many other cities use a hearing 
officer model and it seems to work well. The hearing officer could either be hired by 
contract or be delegated to a municipal judge.  Staff has prepared two ordinances for 
council consideration with each of the options briefly described below.     
 

1. Municipal Judge: Dissolve the BLA and change the structure to a municipal 
judge model. (Attachment C-1) 

2. Hearing Officer: Dissolve the BLA and change the structure to a contracted 
hearing officer. (Attachment C-2) 

 
Staff recommends dissolving the BLA and adopting a hearing officer model. While a 
hearing officer can be a municipal court judge or a licensed attorney under contract with 
the city, staff recommends using a municipal judge2 as a hearing officer to handle all 
liquor licensing matters.3

 

 Approximate costs and resource impacts for both hearing 
officer options are included in Attachment D.  Staff is recommending this option in 
order to: 

• Achieve reliable enforcement through predictability of results 
• Achieve maximum efficiency  

 
At the first reading of the ordinance on Oct. 1st, City Council posed the following 
questions/requests of staff: 
 

• What is the stance of University Hill Neighborhood Association (UHNA) on this 
topic? 

                                                           
2 Judge Cooke is very active in collaborative community issues related to alcohol. While not technically a 
conflict, it would provide a clearer separation if council decided to take the approach that Judge Cahn be 
appointed as the hearing officer. 
3 The city clerk would continue to handle administrative matters. 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 3Packet Page     241



• How will the proposed changes affect economic vitality? Will there be unintended 
consequences? 

• Why doesn’t the definition for restaurants include beer and wine licenses? 
• Address the gap between restaurants that must close at 11pm and late night 

restaurants that can stay open until 12am. 
• What are the specific reasons for dissolving the BLA? Provide additional 

information about municipal hearing officers. 
 
These questions are answered at the end of the ‘Analysis’ section with this memorandum. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action as follows: 

1. Motion to amend on second reading and order published by title only Ordinance 
No. 7938 amending Chapter 6-3, “Trash, Recyclables, and Compostables,” and 
Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C., 1981, to reduce impacts of hospitality 
establishments on neighboring properties and setting forth related details. 
Attachment A 

2. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7939 amending section 4-2-4, “State Law 
Procedures Apply,” B.R.C., 1981, to modify the 500-foot Rule to allow Beer and 
Wine licenses only and setting forth related details Attachment B-2. 

3. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 7940 removing sections 2-3-3, “Beverage 
Licensing Authority,” and replacing with a new section 4-2-12, “Beverage 
Licensing Authority,” amending 4-2-3, “Authority to Issue City Licenses,” 2-6-3, 
“Creation, Jurisdiction, and Powers of Municipal Court,” 2-6-4, “Judges,” B.R.C. 
1981, and setting forth related details.  Attachment C-1. 

 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
• Economic: The proposed ordinance changes are an attempt to minimize adverse 

impacts to the economic vitality of the community by focusing on “problem” 
establishments and improving the use of existing licensing and enforcement tools. 
However, prohibition of, or additional restrictions on, establishments in certain areas 
of the city (e.g., University Hill) could have a negative economic impact to local 
business, the vitality of the areas and revitalization opportunities.  

• Environmental: The proposed ordinance changes leverage resources to improve the 
application of existing tools that impact the quality of life and the physical 
environment in the Boulder Community. 

• Social: Resolution 960, adopted by council in October 2004, recognizes that the city 
has a responsibility to provide leadership in addressing the critical issues of health, 
safety and well-being stemming from alcohol abuse and can influence policies, 
regulations and enforcement. The proposed ordinance changes further the city’s work 
efforts in the areas of beverage licensing, code enforcement, and land use.   

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 4Packet Page     242



OTHER IMPACTS 
• Fiscal: If the new land use code definitions are adopted, then the number of 

development review applications that are submitted for administrative (staff level) 
review would increase. The revenue associated with the increase in administrative 
reviews would cover the costs of additional staff time and resources. There would be 
no fiscal impacts related to modifying or revoking the 500-ft rule. If the BLA is 
replaced with a hearing officer/judge, then an adjustment to the 2014 budget request 
would be submitted. It is anticipated that a hearing officer would cost either 
approximately $16,200/year for an independent contractor or between $1,800 to 
$10,800/year for a municipal court judge (see Attachment D for details).  

• Staff Time: As stated above, with additional development review applications, as well 
as an increase in the number of required neighborhood meetings, additional staff time 
would be needed if the new land use code definitions are adopted. If the BLA is 
replaced with a hearing officer/judge, less attorney staff time is needed to support the 
BLA and efficiencies would increase. Licensing staff would likely require staff time 
similar to current practice to process applications under the proposed changes. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The proposed changes to the land use code definitions, 500-ft rule, and BLA structure are 
a few factors in a broader community effort to reduce the effects of overconsumption of 
alcohol. As such, the proposed changes are one component of a comprehensive action 
plan that was approved by City Council in Feb. 2013. Details of the comprehensive 
action plan, status updates on each action plan item, and the larger community efforts can 
be found at www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol. 
 
Three elements of the action plan that need further council input include updating of the 
land use code to reduce impacts of hospitality establishments on neighboring properties, 
amending the city’s 500-foot rule, and restructuring the BLA. At the June 11, 2013 Study 
Session on the city work plan, there was City Council consensus to update the land use 
code, bring options pertaining to the 500-foot rule and BLA restructuring forward for 
consideration through an ordinance process, and schedule council business meetings, 
including public hearings, for the proposed changes. 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND PUBLIC FEEDBACK 
As part of developing the comprehensive action plan approved by City Council in Feb. 
2013, staff presented the potential land use and licensing code change options to several 
boards and reconvened the Community Working Group composed of different 
stakeholders throughout the community. The options being considered at that time 
included new land use code definitions, as well as other land use code changes, and 
revoking or modifying the 500-ft rule. A summary of the public, board and commission 
feedback can be found at www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol. 
 
More recently, staff drafted the proposed changes related to the land use code, 500-ft rule 
and BLA structure, and encouraged members of the Community Working Group, 
business owners, and public to participate directly in the public hearing process at the 
Planning Board and City Council meetings. In addition, several boards and commissions 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 5Packet Page     243

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol�
http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol�


were notified of the proposed changes including the BLA, University Hill Commercial 
Area Management Commission (UHCAMC), Downtown Management Commission, 
Downtown Boulder Inc., Downtown Boulder Business Improvement District, and the 
City/CU Oversight Committee. An executive summary of the proposed changes was 
distributed to each of the review bodies and interested parties for consideration. Those 
that provided a recommendation are included below. Details of the specific board and 
commission member comments can be found on the website at 
www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol. Public comments were also heard at the 
Aug. 15, 2013 Planning Board meeting, which is discussed below. 
 
Planning Board 
Planning Board met on Aug. 15, 2013 and voted unanimously (5-0; May and Young 
absent) to recommend approval of the proposed land use code changes to City Council 
but with the following modifications and additional recommendations: 
 

• Change the conditional use category for the DT-1, DT-2, DT-3, BMS, and MU-3 
zoning districts for Neighborhood Pub or Bistros smaller than 1,500 square feet to 
the Use Review category; 

• Change the prohibition of Late Night Restaurants in the MU-1, MU-2, and MU-4 
zoning district to the Use Review category (supported by 4 board members, Gray 
opposed); 

• Make the requirement for serving solid food until closing stricter where proposed 
to be required; 

• Obtain more data before imposing a food sales percentage requirement; and 
• Further explore establishing licenses for late-night hospitality establishments. 

 
Staff has also prepared a matrix that lists the board recommendations and staff’s rationale 
to support or not support the proposed changes (see Attachment E). Data from 
establishments is forthcoming and will be provided to City Council once available. 
Planning Board did not comment specifically on the 500 foot rule.  
 
Beverage Licensing Authority (BLA) 
BLA met on June 19, 2013 and discussed the proposed structural changes. Three options 
were considered including transfer all BLA functions to a hearing officer, transfer only 
revocation/suspension hearings to a hearing officer (i.e., bifurcation of the BLA), and 
maintaining the status quo. In general, BLA did not believe that there is a consistency 
problem with status quo but supported transferring functions to a hearing officer. Some 
members felt that the hearing officer should be an independent, outside hearing officer 
rather than the municipal judge. A majority stated that bifurcation should not be 
considered an option.  
 
BLA met on July 17, 2013 and discussed the proposed 500-ft rule changes and new land 
use code definitions. The board has previously recommended to council on several 
occasions that council revisit the 500-ft rule. Therefore, the board did not make a motion. 
Additionally, no motion was made on the new land use code definitions. More detailed 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 6Packet Page     244

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol�


comments from the BLA can be accessed at www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-
manager/alcohol. 
 
University Hill Commercial Area Management Commission (UHCAMC) 
UHCAMC met on July 17, 2013 and provided the following motion (4 in favor and Raj 
abstaining) for City Council consideration regarding the proposed 500-ft rule changes 
and new land use code definitions: 
 
UHCAMC does not support the proposed changes to the 500 foot Rule; additionally, we 
recommend the solutions proposed include more consideration from the working groups 
and the individuals who presented testimony to us today, addressing education, 
prevention and enforcement.  The proposed changes in the land use code do not appear 
to us to adequately address the problem given the public testimony we received at our 
meeting today.  Consideration of public input from the working groups and effected 
parties should be included.  Further targeted analysis is needed in the following areas:  
economic impact to the hill, feedback from the students, impacts on public health, similar 
university’s solutions and proven results, before there are any new definitions created.  
UHCAMC requests that City Council more carefully define the problem so that tailored 
solutions can be implemented.  
 
Downtown Management Commission (DMC) 
DMC met on Aug. 1, 2013 and all commissioners unanimously approved the motion (4-
0).  
 
DMC supports the concepts in the UHCAMC motion regarding this issue made on July 
17; and, that the DMC finds some positives in the staff recommendation regarding the 
concept of the management plan and the additional options for businesses for different 
types of liquor licenses. It is critical that the City Council listen to input from all of the 
stakeholders to understand the potential ramifications of any ordinance or code changes; 
be mindful of unintended consequences from these changes; and, the DMC believes it is 
premature for the City Council to approve these changes without a clearer mandate of 
the problem to be solved. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Land Use Changes – Currently, the city’s land use code does not differentiate between 
restaurants, bars or taverns and regulates them uniformly. This is problematic as over 
time, some establishments have functioned more like taverns than restaurants, especially 
in the evening hours, and had a negative impact on neighboring properties. Proposed 
changes will create new use categories and update use standards and definitions to help 
mitigate impacts to residential neighborhoods through appropriate review processes.4

                                                           
4 Establishments go through one of the following approval or review processes in order to operate: (1) By-
Right – can begin operation without any discretionary approvals and only with a building permit, if 
necessary; (2) Conditional Use Review – staff level review to demonstrate meeting specific code criteria 
with no public call-up requirement; or (3) Use Review – generally a staff level review to demonstrate 
meeting specific code criteria with potential for Planning Board or public call-up. 

 It is 
anticipated that the proposed changes will better distinguish between lower intensity and 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 7Packet Page     245

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol�
http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/city-manager/alcohol�


higher intensity5

 

 hospitality establishments, which would enable more effective control 
over potential impacts of these establishments upon neighboring properties. For specific 
definitions and information related to where such uses are proposed to be permitted, 
please refer to Attachment F and G. 

To avoid situations where restaurants function as taverns in later hours, the proposed 
changes include updating the definition for ‘Restaurants’  and creating a new ‘Late Night 
Restaurants’ definition. 
 

• Restaurants – Required closing by 11 p.m. 
• Late Night Restaurants – Depending on context, late night restaurants would be 

permitted as follows: 
 
 Core of downtown, Boulder Valley Regional Center, shopping centers: 

Permitted through the Conditional Use Review process to stay open past 11 
p.m. in more intense business districts, such as areas of downtown including 
Pearl Street mall, Twenty Ninth Street, and the 28th Street Corridor.  

 Business areas near residential zones: Permitted as Conditional Uses in 
business areas near residential so long as they close at 12 a.m. and do not 
possess a liquor license.  In some business areas (i.e., MU-1, MU-2, MU-4, 
BMS, DT-1, DT-2 and DT-3) late night restaurants could be permitted 
through Use Review to operate after 12 a.m. if they do not possess a liquor 
license.  

 Within High Density Residential zones: Permitted with Use Review approval 
to operate so long as they close at 12 a.m., are limited to 1,500 square feet 
and do not possess a liquor license. 

 
To allow for congenial places for people to socialize that add vitality to existing and 
planned centers in the community, a definition for ‘Neighborhood Pub or Bistro’ was 
created.  Some existing establishments that would operate similar to how the proposed 
use is envisioned would be the Hungry Toad or Café Aion if they were operating with a 
beer and wine license. Some examples of establishments that hold Beer and Wine liquor 
licenses are Larkburger, Rincon Argentino and Laughing Goat. 
 

• Neighborhood Pub or Bistro – Permits pubs or bistros in residential interface 
areas and allows operation until 12 a.m. without Use Review approval, but rather 
staff level review. Also, the use definition is tied to establishments with a Beer 
and Wine liquor license. The rationale is that hard alcohol allows for quicker 
intoxication and the possibility for increased impacts on a surrounding area. This 
proposed use would not include a full service liquor license and would typically 
have less impact than establishments with full service licenses.  

 

                                                           
5 Typically, higher intensity establishments create higher impacts to the community and are those that serve 
a greater amount of alcohol than food, including hard alcohol, generally operate late hours (after 11 pm) 
and/or have outdoor seating in close proximity to residential zones. 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 8Packet Page     246



Currently, taverns or brewpubs are permitted on a limited basis in some residential zones 
with special approval (i.e., Use Review). The proposed changes would prohibit tavern or 
brewpub land uses in residential zones.  
 

• Taverns and Brewpubs – Includes bars and night clubs. Taverns and Brewpubs 
may require Use Review approval depending on location and zoning district. The 
use definition of ‘Tavern’ includes establishments that have a Tavern liquor 
license, which has no limitation on types of alcohol sold. The use definition of 
‘Brewpub’ is primarily a restaurant where malt liquor is manufactured on the 
premises as an accessory use. A Brewpub may include some off-site distribution 
of its malt liquor consistent with state law. Pursuant to state law, Brewpubs are 
allowed to purchase other alcohol not manufactured at the premises but are 
limited to a maximum of $2000/year of purchase from retail liquor stores. 

 
The proposed code changes include a new definition for ‘Retail Liquor Store.’ Currently, 
liquor stores fall under regular ‘Retail sales.’  
 

• Retail Liquor Store –Require Use Review for retail liquor stores in mixed use 
and residential interface zones. They could operate as an allowable use by-right in 
other business zones. 

 
Another part of the proposed changes is related to management plans. The effectiveness 
and accessibility of management plans has been an issue raised by the community. For 
hospitality establishments that are considered residential interface areas, applicants are 
required to conduct a meeting with neighborhood members to solicit comment and 
address potential impacts, which is accomplished through a management plan. This 
process will continue, but the plans will be more accessible, apply to all establishments 
near residential areas and require more descriptive information. 
 

• Management Plans – Require that management plans be accessible on premises 
of an establishment and easily accessible at the city offices (on-line). The code 
would be amended to broaden the requirement for management plans to all 
establishments located close to residential zones (before it was voluntary and 
encouraged for some). The code changes also would require more descriptive 
elements to better understand how a business intends to operate and how they 
intend to mitigate impacts.  

 
New standards to complement the land use definitions are also proposed and include 
without limitation, trash and recycling pick up times, bar area limitations and food sale 
requirements. Staff recommends that council support these land use code changes to: 
 

• Better differentiate between hospitality establishments as to anticipate impacts 
and avoid the conversion of Restaurants into Taverns or night clubs in late hours; 

• Place a higher level of scrutiny on establishments in close proximity to residential 
areas and incentivize establishments without full-service liquor licenses in such 
areas; and 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 9Packet Page     247



• Continue to support Boulder’s economic vitality by permitting higher intensity 
uses in the core of downtown and within the Boulder Valley Regional Center 
where police and transportation services are already focused to address impacts 
and promote safety and where there are less impacts on residential areas. 

 
It should be noted that Ordinance No 7938 related to the land use code changes has been 
updated since first reading to correct use designations and use standards in the land use 
table and Paragraph 9-6-5(b)(3) for  Restaurants in industrial areas. The intent of the 
regulations specific to restaurants in industrial areas has not changed from the current 
code requirements, but the use modules related to industrial districts were erroneously 
marked in the first reading version of Ordinance No. 7938. This small correction will 
require a third reading of the ordinance. 
 
500-Foot Rule Changes – Colorado liquor law can be accessed at the following web 
link: http://www.colorado.gov/revenue/liquor 
 
The City of Boulder also has an online map that shows the distribution and type of liquor 
licenses. This can be accessed at the following web link:  
www.bouldercolorado.gov/tax-license  
At the webpage select “Liquor Licensing” and then select “Liquor Licenses Map” 
 
In 1987, state liquor laws changed the minimum drinking age from 18 to 21 for 3.2 
percent beer (up until that time persons between 18 to 21 years old could lawfully drink 
3.2 percent beer) and prohibited the sale of alcohol within 500-feet (ft) of a school or 
principal campus of a university unless a local ordinance allowed for elimination or 
reduction of the 500-ft rule.   
 
In response to concerns from the businesses on the University Hill (Hill), City Council 
approved Ordinance No. 5069 on September 1, 1987, which waived the state 
requirement, thereby allowing establishments located within 500-ft of the principal 
campus of the University of Colorado (CU) to obtain “Hotel-Restaurant” liquor license 
only. Hotel-Restaurant liquor licenses require at least 25 percent food sales and permit 
the sale of beer, wine, and hard liquor. 
 
The method for measuring the 500-ft distance restriction is set out in the state regulations. 
In 1991 and pursuant to state law, the principal campus was further defined to exclude 
other CU properties. The “principal campus” of CU is defined as the area generally 
bordered by Broadway Street on the west; Baseline Road on the south; 28th Street, 
Colorado Avenue and Folsom Street on the east; and Boulder Creek, 17th Street and 
University Avenue on the north (see map in Attachment H). The 500-ft area includes 
most of the Hill along with a majority of the Basemar Shopping Center at the corner of 
Broadway and Baseline, a variety of commercial properties on the south frontage of 
Baseline Road and a limited number of commercial businesses on the 28th Street frontage 
road. 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 10Packet Page     248



At the direction of City Council on Feb. 19, 2013, changes to the 500-ft liquor license 
rule are being considered. The proposed changes are intended to address perceived 
concerns about the overconcentration of liquor establishments on the Hill and the service 
of hard alcohol, which has the potential to exacerbate the problem of overconsumption as 
it enables quick intoxication as compared to beer and wine. The three options for 
changing the existing 500-ft rule along with potential impacts are listed below. Any 
changes to the 500-ft rule would only apply to new businesses. Existing businesses would 
be grandfathered, unless a business were closed for more than one year, and could 
transfer their liquor licenses to future owners or tenants.  
 

(1) Revoke the 500-ft liquor license waiver around CU (Attachment B-1): No 
additional liquor licenses would be issued within 500-ft of CU. If this option were 
undertaken, existing establishments (i.e., license owners) would likely see an 
increase in value by virtue of the diminished likelihood of new competition. 
Similarly, there could be an economic impact to the Hill as it would turn away 
some businesses that could support revitalization efforts (e.g., new restaurants that 
want a full-service liquor license may locate elsewhere). 

o Impacts to new businesses within 500-feet of CU – Would not be 
permitted to sell any liquor including wine, beer or hard alcohol.  

o Impacts based on existing land use code definitions – Use Reviews for 
late operating establishments could continue to be requested; however, 
these and any new hospitality establishments would not be permitted to 
serve alcohol. 

o Impacts based on new land use code definitions – Neighborhood Pubs or 
Bistros would not be permitted within 500-ft of CU. Restaurants would be 
permitted under the zoning code but could not serve alcohol and they 
would be required to close by 11 p.m. New Taverns and Brewpubs would 
not be permitted, as Tavern and Brewpub liquor licenses (no limitation on 
types of alcohol sold) would not be permitted in the 500-ft area. Pursuant 
to state law, Taverns have no limitation on the types of alcohol sold.  
Moreover, Brewpubs are allowed to purchase other alcohol not 
manufactured at the premises but are limited to a maximum of $2000/year 
of purchase from retail liquor stores.  

 
(2) Modify the 500-ft liquor license waiver to allow beer and wine licenses only 

(Attachment B-2): This approach would permit additional establishments that 
wish to serve alcohol, but would prohibit the sale of hard alcohol. It is anticipated 
that this approach would likely be less impactful to the economic vitality of the 
Hill. 

o Impacts to new businesses within 500-feet of CU – Permitted to sell beer 
and wine but would not be permitted to sell hard alcohol.  

o Impacts based on existing land use code definitions – Use Reviews for 
late operating establishments could continue to be requested; however, 
these and any new hospitality establishments could only serve alcohol 
under a Beer and Wine license if within 500-ft of CU’s principal campus. 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 11Packet Page     249



o Impacts based on new land use code definitions – New Neighborhood 
Pubs or Bistros would be permitted within 500-ft of CU (and could be 
open to new customers until 12 a.m. without Use Review) and could sell 
beer and wine. New Restaurants would close by 11 p.m. unless they are 
Late Night Restaurants, which would be permitted as described on page 6. 
Restaurants, per the proposed definition, would not be able to hold a liquor 
license by virtue of the revised 500-foot rule, which only permits Beer and 
Wine licenses. (A very small area within the 500-ft buffer is zoned to 
support late night restaurants). New Taverns or Brewpubs would not be 
permitted, as Tavern and Brewpub liquor licenses (no limitation on types 
of alcohol sold) would be prohibited in the 500-ft area. Pursuant to state 
law, taverns have no limitation on the types of alcohol sold whereas 
brewpubs are allowed to purchase other alcohol not manufactured at the 
premises but are limited to a maximum of $2000/year of purchase from 
retail liquor stores.  

 
(3) Status Quo (Attachment B-3): If the current 500-ft waiver for hotel-restaurant 

liquor licenses remains in effect, then existing and new businesses located within 
500-ft of CU’s principal campus could continue to apply for licenses to sell and 
serve any liquor, including wine, beer or hard alcohol. If the new land use code 
definitions were approved then: 

o Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros would not be possible on the Hill because 
per the new definition, they can only operate with a Beer and Wine 
license. The current 500-ft waiver only applies to a full service hotel-
restaurant liquor license. 

o Restaurants could operate with the hotel-restaurant liquor license but 
would be required to close by 11 p.m.  

o Late Night Restaurants would only be permitted as described on page 6. 
 

The option above results in somewhat of an anomalous outcome as it prohibits a 
use that is intended to be more encouraged (i.e., Neighborhood Pub or Bistro). 
Therefore, this informs staff’s recommendation that the waiver be revised to be 
Beer and Wine liquor licenses only. 

 
Alternative to the three options above, City Council could also approve changes to Title 4 
that would permit more than one liquor license type around the university if so desired. 
Options (1) and (2) above would effectively grandfather all of the liquor license holding 
establishments on University Hill as most establishments hold Hotel and Restaurant 
liquor licenses as a result of the 1987 changes. A list of liquor license types per 
establishment on University Hill and a description of hours of operation and food service 
is provided in Attachment I. 
 
To give council a better understanding of the relationship between the 500-foot rule and 
the proposed land use code changes, the following matrix has been provided as a 
summary: 
 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 12Packet Page     250



Different 
Scenarios 
assuming 
proposed 
Land Use 
Definitions 
are adopted  

Licensing Implications (Title 
4) 

Land Use Implications (Title 9) 

Scenario A 
(No action 
on 500-foot 
rule,) 

Hotel and Restaurant Licenses 
could continue to be issued on 
the Hill.  

• The option for applicants to request Use 
Review approval to operate after 11pm 
for restaurants would not exist as 
restaurants are required to close at 
11pm. 

• Late Night Restaurants could be 
permitted through the Use Review 
process (would not be allowed to have a 
liquor license). 

• Taverns and Brewpubs would not be 
permitted as the new definitions would 
require a Tavern and Brewpub liquor 
license respectively, which are currently 
not permitted within 500-foot of the 
university.  

• The proposed Neighborhood Pub or 
Bistro use would not be permitted as 
Beer and Wine licenses are currently 
not permitted within the 500-foot 
waiver area. 

Scenario B 
(Revoke 
waiver) 

Revoking the waiver would 
not permit any additional 
liquor licenses on the Hill. 
Existing license holders would 
be grandfathered. 

• Existing hospitality establishments 
would be grandfathered. 

• The option for applicants to request Use 
Review approval to operate after 11pm 
for restaurants would not exist as 
restaurants are required to close at 
11pm.  

• Late Night Restaurants could be 
permitted through the Use Review 
process.. 

• No establishment could be established 
with a new liquor license. 

Scenario C 
(Modify 
waiver to 
allow beer 
and wine 
licenses 
only) 

Would limit liquor licenses 
within the 500-foot of the 
University to Beer and Wine 
Licenses only. Existing license 
holders would be 
grandfathered. 

• Existing hospitality establishments 
would be grandfathered. 

• The option for applicants to request Use 
Review approval to operate after 11pm 
for restaurants would not exist as 
restaurants are required to close at 
11pm. 

• Late Night Restaurants could be 
permitted through the Use Review 
process (both restaurants and late night 
restaurants would not be allowed to 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 13Packet Page     251



have a liquor license under this option). 
• Taverns and Brewpubs would not be 

permitted as the new definitions would 
require a Tavern and Brewpub liquor 
license respectively, which are currently 
not permitted within 500-foot of the 
university.  

• Neighborhood Pub or Bistros would be 
permitted as conditional uses.   

• Other permitted uses, such as hair 
salons (defined as personal service uses 
in the land use code) and gyms could 
request Beer and Wine liquor licenses 
since the liquor license type does not 
require service of meals. Service of 
beverages at such establishments would 
have to be accessory to the principal use 
and an establishment would not be able 
to function like a restaurant or bar. 
Alcohol sales at such establishments are 
only a small portion of their proceeds. 

 
  
 
BLA Structural Changes – One of the challenges to effective alcohol enforcement is 
adjudicating violations and revocation proceedings. The BLA is a five member volunteer 
community board that has the responsibility of granting, denying, suspending, and 
revoking liquor licenses. Suspension or revocation requires what is essentially a trial, 
with the BLA sitting in the role of a judge. Under Colorado law, liquor licenses can be 
issued, renewed, or revoked by a local licensing authority. The local licensing authority is 
the City Council or any authority designated by city ordinance. In 1991, the City Council 
delegated this authority to the BLA.   
  
The BLA is in a unique position in that it acts as the adjudicative body for liquor 
violations. In its quasi-judicial role, the BLA must consider evidence, decide on the legal 
admissibility of evidence, and rule on legal objections. There is no other city board 
placed in this position. The Planning Board, Landmarks Board and the Board of Zoning 
Appeals all hear applications, but none sits as a trial court. Only the BLA is required to 
conduct hearings on violations of state law.  
Based on staff research, there are three typical liquor licensing models. Liquor licensing 
is either handled by (1) a hearing officer (2) city council/board or (3) bifurcation of 
responsibilities between a hearing officer and council/board.   
 
Many jurisdictions in Colorado use a hearing officer to administer all aspects of liquor 
licensing. These include Longmont, Greeley, Loveland, Fort Collins, Golden, Grand 
Junction, Erie, and Denver. The town of Lone Tree and Rifle have a bifurcated liquor 
licensing structure in which a hearing officer handles violations and renewals and the city 
council handles all other matters related to licensing.  

Agenda Item 3H     Page 14Packet Page     252



 
Maximum efficiency would be achieved if all of the BLA’s functions were transferred to 
a hearing officer. Other jurisdictions have found that hearings do not last as long when 
they are conducted by a single legally trained hearing officer. Currently BLA meetings 
require a significant staff commitment. The licensing clerk prepares the board’s packet 
and provides other staff support before, during, and after all hearings. The city attorney’s 
office provides two attorneys to staff the board. Sandra Llanes, staff attorney, provides 
legal advice and support to the board, while Michael Whitney acts as the prosecutor with 
regard to violations and contested renewals. A hearing officer/judge would require 
significantly less legal staff support. 
 
There is also the question of fairness. The BLA turns over completely every five years. 
There is no requirement that board members have any legal training. Results can change 
from year to year as the board’s composition changes. Reliable enforcement requires 
predictability of results. This is a challenging aspect for a five member board.  
  

1. Municipal Judge (Attachment C-1): Dissolve the BLA and change the structure 
to a municipal judge model. 

2. Hearing Office (Attachment C-2): Dissolve the BLA and change the structure to 
a contracted hearing officer. 

 
City Council questions/requests from the Oct. 1 first reading of the ordinances 

 
• What is the stance of University Hill Neighborhood Association (UHNA) on this 

topic? 
 

A representative from UHNA served on the city’s community working group in 2010. 
UHNA was invited again in 2012, but no executive committee members attended. At 
council’s request, staff has reached out to UHNA and the chair indicated that the 
group was going to discuss the matter and either provide a position on the proposed 
changes or at a minimum, members would express their independent opinions on the 
matter to City Council. 

 
• How will the proposed changes affect economic vitality? Will there be 

unintended consequences? 
 

Resolution No. 960 states: “The City of Boulder, as part of this community-wide 
effort, will undertake a review of city beverage licensing policies, code enforcement 
and zoning and land use regulations in order to identify the existing and relevant 
authorities available to the city. Staff shall propose policy and ordinance changes, as 
appropriate, to address identified concerns.” This goal has informed staff’s 
recommendation on the land use code changes as well as the changes to the 500-foot 
rule and the restructuring of the BLA. 

 
In this case, the concerns identified and recommendations received in the community 
working group meetings as well as through public outreach included: 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 15Packet Page     253



 
o addressing “bad actor” establishments through more focused enforcement 

(e.g., joint inspection teams, already in process); 
o establishments that morph into more intense drinking establishments in 

late hours and present impacts to nearby residential neighborhoods; 
o easy access to hard alcohol which leads to quicker intoxication resulting in 

behaviors impacting neighboring properties as well as individuals and the 
community at large; and  

o the efficacy of the BLA, as a civilian volunteer board asked to make 
decisions like a court of law. 

 
As presented at the Feb. 2013 discussion on the topic, many of the researched studies 
with respect to alcohol consumption recommend strict control of access to alcohol in 
order to reduce overconsumption – in essence, make alcohol (particularly hard 
alcohol) less available. Specifically, many studies recommend limiting alcohol outlet 
density. This may be accomplished by strict prohibition of additional alcohol serving 
establishments and/or by spacing requirements that prohibit alcohol serving 
establishments within a certain distance of residential areas or each other.  

 
If these options were implemented, there would be a significant change in where such 
hospitality establishments could locate in the city, and there would likely be a 
negative impact to the city’s economic vitality as a result. Based on this concern, staff 
did not recommend spacing requirements or prohibitions in business districts.  City 
Council agreed with staff’s recommendation. What was recommended and 
incorporated into the action plan reviewed in the February discussion were new land 
use definitions to better differentiate different types of hospitality establishments by 
level of impact. Staff finds that the proposed changes to the land use code will not 
deter economic investment, but rather would enable a review of applications for 
hospitality establishment uses that is based on standards that better anticipate and 
mitigate the impacts of those uses furthering the city’s goal of mitigating the impacts 
of hospitality establishments on the community.  

 
While it would be difficult to forecast every potential impact to the city’s economic 
vitality as a result of the proposed changes, staff finds that the list below may paint a 
better picture as to the potential outcomes of implementing the new regulations. The 
list describes what areas of the land use code would become stricter and what other 
areas would become less strict. This should give the City Council a better idea of 
what changes would occur and how the changes are meant to better manage and 
monitor hospitality establishments to address impacts. 

 
 

Where the regulations would become stricter: 
 

o Many Hospitality establishments currently permitted as by-right uses would 
become conditional uses (two week or less staff level review/no call up). 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 16Packet Page     254



o The possibility for brewpubs and taverns within some high density residential 
zoning districts would be eliminated as these uses would be prohibited in 
residential zones. 

o In interface zones (i.e., zones near residential such as BMS, MU and the DT-1, 
DT-2 and DT-3 zoning districts), Use Review would automatically be required for 
brewpubs or taverns where today Use Review would  only be required if 
operating past 11pm. 

o In interface zones (i.e., zones near residential such as BMS, MU and the DT-1, 
DT-2 and DT-3 zoning districts), restaurants that have a liquor license would be 
required to close at 11pm; restaurants could operate in such areas after 11pm if 
they did not possess a liquor license. If operating after 12am, a Use Review 
approval would be required. 

o Restaurants that are larger than 1,500 square feet would require Use Review in the 
BMS zone where the current code permits up to 4,000 square feet if it does not 
operate after 11pm. 

o Late night restaurants operating after 12 am in residential zones would not be 
permitted. 

o Minimum food percentages for restaurants (50%) and Neighborhood Pubs or 
Bistros (40%) would be added to promote food consumption for alcohol serving 
establishments. 

o Management plans (with additional descriptive elements required) and 
neighborhood meetings would be required in all interface areas (i.e., zones near 
residential such as BMS, MU and the DT-1, DT-2 and DT-3 zoning districts) as 
opposed to just around University Hill under the current regulations. Could be 
reviewed as part of conditional review (staff level) or Use Review (discretionary 
review with call up) as applicable. 

o Limitation of trash and recycling pick up near residential zones has been added. 
o Requirement added for active food preparation area for restaurants and 

Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros during all business hours. 
o Bar areas limited to 35% of dining areas in Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros. 
o Retail liquor stores, a new defined use, would require Use Review in interface 

areas (i.e., zones near residential such as BMS, MU and the DT-1, DT-2 and DT-
3 zoning districts) where under current code, would be permitted by-right as a 
retail store. 

Where the regulations would become less strict: 
 

o Where the current code does not permit restaurants in the RH-3, RH-6 and RH-7 
(the latter of which is not yet implemented), the proposed changes would permit 
restaurants or Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros s no larger than 1,500 square feet 
through Use Review to promote mixed use in high density areas. 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 17Packet Page     255



o Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros and late night restaurants without a liquor license 
would be allowed to operate until 12am without Use Review. 

o The square footage threshold differentiating by-right restaurants in some MU 
zones has changed from 1,000 square foot to the uniform 1,500 sf. used in other 
zones. 

• Why doesn’t the definition for Restaurants include beer and wine licenses? 
 

Establishments serving food with a beer and wine liquor license are captured by the 
neighborhood pub or bistro use.  The definitions and regulations for Restaurants and 
Neighborhood Pub or Bistros largely overlap and the use designation in the use table 
is the same for the two types of establishments for all zoning districts. Beer and Wine 
liquor licenses were not included in the definition of Restaurants to avoid ambiguities 
in the code for establishments with beer and wine licenses that would meet the 
definitions for both Restaurants and Neighborhood Pub or Bistro.   It was assumed 
that if a Restaurant wanted to only possess a Beer and Wine liquor license they would 
prefer to be categorized as a Neighborhood Pub or Bistro so that they could operate 
until 12am as opposed to 11pm. The latter use is incentivized in this manner to 
encourage establishments that would not have hard alcohol available.  

 
• Address the gap between Restaurants that must close at 11pm and late night 

restaurants that can stay open until 12am. 
 

Initially, staff had drafted code changes where late night restaurants were proposed to 
be permitted only in the most intense commercial areas of the city (e.g., core of 
downtown, Boulder Valley Regional Center along 28th Street etc.).  Planning Board 
suggested providing a late night option for restaurants without liquor licenses in other 
areas like BMS (e.g., the Hill) with a Use Review approval. As such establishments 
have a lesser impact on neighboring properties than late night restaurants with a 
liquor license, staff incorporated that recommendation by distinguishing in the use 
table between late night restaurants with liquor licenses and those without.  To avoid 
a situation where a neighborhood pub and bistro serving beer and wine could stay 
open until 12 a.m. as a conditional use, while, in the same zoning district, a restaurant 
without a liquor license would have to go through a Use Review if open until 12 a.m., 
an additional distinction was created in the use table to avoid that result.   

 
• What are the specific reasons for dissolving the BLA? Provide additional 

information about municipal hearing officers. 
 

Staff recommends dissolving the BLA and adopting of a municipal court judge model 
for the following reasons: 

 
1. One of the ways to address overconsumption of alcohol is to increase enforcement 
of licensed establishments that over-serve and to focus on “problem” establishments. 
Prosecutions of these types of cases are typically more complicated from a legal and 
enforcement perspective than under-age compliance checks.  Suspension or 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 18Packet Page     256



revocation of a liquor license requires what is essentially a trial.   A legally trained 
hearing officer is much better equipped to handle these types of enforcement cases 
than a volunteer board. 
 
2. Reliable enforcement requires predictability of results.  The makeup of the BLA  
board changes often and this affects consistency and therefore predictability of 
results.  A legally trained hearing officer would provide the police department and 
prosecution with the confidence to bring forward the types of cases mentioned above 
which can be very resource intensive.  
 
3. A municipal judge is familiar with the community’s overconsumption of alcohol 
concerns and with problem liquor establishments because they preside over all 
municipal court cases including charges such as minor in possession of alcohol, 
brawling, assault, noise.   As a result, they are likely to have a better understanding of 
the broader impacts of overconsumption of alcohol at liquor establishments in our 
community than a volunteer board may have. 
 
4. Efficiencies would result from one hearing officer versus a five member board.  
For example, in a show cause hearing (a trial for a liquor code violation) each witness 
testifies by answering questions of the prosecutor /defense attorney who has called 
the witness, is then cross-examined by the opposing party, followed by questions 
from board members.  Each of the five board members individually may ask 
questions of a witness.  Lastly, the party who called the witness has another 
opportunity to ask the witness questions (redirect).  When several witnesses testify, 
show cause hearings can easily last many hours.  A single hearing officer would 
significantly cut down the hearing time. 
 
5. A reduction in hearing time has a direct impact on Officers.  Officers must be 
subpoenaed for the hearing and are paid time and half for overtime attendance.  
Spending less time at hearings means that officers can be out doing their primary 
work.  
 
6. Efficiencies in staff attorney time would result from one hearing officer versus a 
five member board.  Currently, a CAO attorney provides legal support to the BLA 
board.  In its quasi-judicial role, the BLA must consider evidence, decide on the legal 
admissibility of evidence, and rule on legal objections.  This requires a significant 
amount of attorney time to support the BLA.  A hearing officer (judge/licensed 
attorney) would not require such support.  Efficiencies in administrative staff time 
would also be achieved. 
 
7. If a municipal judge takes over, the municipal court is already set up for hearings, 
recordings of the record, security, and witness sequestration. 
 
8. Other jurisdictions use this model and have found it to be beneficial for many of 
the reasons stated above.  
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 19Packet Page     257



The municipal court is working to collect information on court decisions on quality of 
life offenses through use of their standard reports, and this collected information will 
be provided as soon as it is available. 

 
• Provide City Council with a list of every group that has been convened since 

1995 to consider any of the following: 1) rebranding the Hill; 2) improving the 
quality of life on the Hill, land use planning or land use changes related to the 
Hill; 4) addressing alcohol problems on the Hill. Please provide the name of the 
group, its mission, whether it drafted a report or recommendation, where that 
report or recommendation can be found, the date during which the group 
convened, and the name of the people or entity who convened the group. 
 
This information was provided to City Council in a HOTLINE response dated Oct. 9, 
2013. 
 

• As part of consideration of land use changes proposed to regulate alcohol 
licensees, provide City Council with a summary of the history of Whittier's 
alcohol land use changes.  Whittier was the first neighborhood to have an 
'interface zone' that regulated size and hours of establishment (not just liquor) 
and it was expanded with the Downtown Alliance work. The Whittier 
regulations are widely viewed as being successful in helping to increase the fun 
and interest surrounding East Pearl. These changes are viewed as successful by 
residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
This information was provided to City Council in a HOTLINE response dated Oct. 9, 
2013. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS  
A – Ordinance No. 7938 amending Chapter 6-3, “Trash, Recyclables, Compostables,” 
and Title 9, “Land Use Code,” B.R.C., 1981, to reduce impacts of hospitality 
establishments on neighboring properties and setting forth related details. 
 B – Ordinance No. 7939 amending section 4-2-4, “State Law Procedures Apply,” 
B.R.C., 1981, and setting for the related details either as Option #B-1 (revoke), Option 
#B-2 (modify), or Option #B-3 (status quo). 
C – Ordinance No. 7940 amending sections 2-3-3, “Beverage Licensing Authority,” 2-6-
3, “Creation, Jurisdiction, and Powers of Municipal Court,” 4-2-3, “Authority to Issue 
City Licenses,” 4-2-12, “Local Liquor Licensing Authority,” B.R.C., 1981, and setting 
forth related details either as Option #C-1 (municipal judge) or Option #C-2 (hearing 
officer). 
D – Cost Estimates for Beverage Licensing Hearing Officer Options  
E – Staff and Planning Board Recommendations for Changes to Land Use Definitions  
F – Summary Table of Proposed Land Use Code Definitions 
G – Map of City of Boulder Zoning Districts 
H – Map of 500-ft Buffer around CU 
I- Hospitality establishments and associated liquor licenses on University Hill 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 20Packet Page     258



 
Cross-Departmental Staff Team 
Bob Eichem, Chief Financial Officer 
Mishawn Cook, Licensing and Collections Manager         
Tom Carr, City Attorney 
David Gehr, Deputy City Attorney  
Hella Pannewig, Assistant City Attorney 
Sandra Llanes, Assistant City Attorney III 
Linda P. Cooke, Municipal Court Judge 
Jennifer Korbelik, Community Coordinator 
Mark Beckner, Police Chief 
Greg Testa, Deputy Police Chief 
Jennifer Riley, Code Enforcement Supervisor 
David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability  
Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager for Community Planning & Sustainability 
Karl Guiler, Planner II/Zoning Code Amendment Specialist 
Molly Winter, Director of Downtown/ Univ. Hill Management Division/Parking Services 
Maureen Rait, Executive Director of Public Works 
Joanna Crean, Public Works Project Coordinator 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 21Packet Page     259



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 22Packet Page     260



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7938 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6-3, “TRASH, 
RECYCLABLES AND COMPOSTABLES,” AND TITLE 9, 
“LAND USE CODE,” B.R.C. 1981, REGARDING TRASH 
REMOVAL AND ZONING STANDARDS FOR HOSPITALITY 
ESTABLISHMENTS, AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
DETAILS. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, 

COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  Section 6-3-2, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 

6-3-2 Definitions. 
 
The definitions in chapter 1-2, "Definitions," B.R.C. 1981, shall apply to this chapter, including, 
without limitation, the definitions of compostables, hauler, recyclable materials, trash, trash 

container, visible to the public and wildlife-resistant container. 
 
The following terms used in this chapter have the following meanings unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise: 
 
Person shall have the meaning set forth in chapter 1-2, "Definitions," B.R.C., and shall also 
include, without limitation, owner of any property or vacant land; occupant, owner, operator or 
manager of any single unit dwelling, multi unit dwelling, mobile home, mobile home park, 
private club or other similar property; or owner, operator, manager or employee of any business 
or business property. 

Hospitality establishment shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9-16-1, “General 
Definitions,” B.R.C. 1981. 

 Section 2.  Section 6-3-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

6-3-3 Accumulation of Trash, Recyclables and Compostables Prohibited.  
 
(a)  No owner of any vacant land or property; occupant, owner or manager of any single 

family dwelling or similar property; owner, manager or operator of any multiple family 
dwelling, private club or similar property; or owner, operator, manager or employee of 
any commercial or industrial establishment or similar property shall fail to: 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 23Packet Page     261



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(1)  Prevent the accumulation of trash, recyclables and compostables that are visible to 
the public on such property and on the public right of way adjacent to the 
property;  

(2)  Remove trash, recyclables and compostables located on such property and on the 
public right of way adjacent to the property; 

(3)   Remove trash frequently enough so that it does not cause putrid odors on the 
property. 

(4)  Remove or repair broken or damaged windows located on such property. 
However, it shall be an affirmative defense to a violation of this provision that a 
person is a tenant who, under the terms of the tenancy, is not responsible for the 
maintenance of that property and who failed to address a particular maintenance 
issue for that reason; 

(5)  Remove accumulated newspapers or other periodical publications from such 
property when such accumulated newspapers or publications are visible to the 
public and remain so for a period of more than twenty-four hours. It shall be an 
affirmative defense to any alleged violation of this provision that no more than 
three such newspapers or periodicals were accumulated for each residential unit 
or each business entity located on the property and that no newspaper or 
periodical more than three days old is located on the property; and 

(6)  Sufficiently bundle or contain recyclable materials so that those materials are not 
scattered onto the public right of way or onto other properties. 

(b)  No owner of any property containing one or more rental dwelling units shall fail to 
maintain in effect a current and valid contract with a hauler providing for the removal of 
accumulated trash from the property, which contract shall provide for sufficient trash 
hauling to accommodate the regular accumulation of trash from the property no less 
frequently than on a biweekly basis. 

(c)  No property owner or contractor in charge of any construction site or responsible for any 
construction activity shall fail to: 

(1)  Prevent trash from being scattered onto the public right of way or onto other 
properties; and 

(2)  Ensure that all trash generated by construction and related activities or located on 
the site of construction projects is picked up at the end of each workday and 
placed in containers sufficient to prevent such trash from being scattered onto the 
public right of way or onto other properties. 

(d)  No owner, operator, or manager of any hospitality establishment or any other business 
shall fail to: 

(1) Prevent trash from being scattered from the business property onto the public 
right of way or onto other properties; and 

(2) Remove or cause to remove immediately after closing all trash located on an 
outdoor seating area of the establishment and on the public right of way adjacent 
to the establishment.  

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 24Packet Page     262



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(e) The maximum penalty for a first or second conviction within two years, based on date of 
violation of this section, is a fine of $500.00. For a third and each subsequent conviction 
within two years, based upon the date of the first violation, the general penalty provisions 
of section 5-2-4, "General Penalties," B.R.C. 1981, shall apply. 

  
Section 3.  Section 9-2-1, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 
Section 9-2-1 Types of Reviews. 

(a) Purpose: This section identifies the numerous types of administrative and development 
review processes and procedures. The review process for each of the major review types is 
summarized in table 2-1 of this section. 

(b) Summary Chart: 

TABLE 2-1: REVIEW PROCESSES SUMMARY CHART 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEWS 

II. ADMINISTRATIVE 

REVIEWS - CONDITIONAL 

USES 

III. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 

AND 

BOARD ACTION 

 Building permits  

 Change of address  

 Change of street name  

 Demolition, moving and 
removal of buildings with no 
historic or architectural 
significance, per section 9-11-
23, "Review of Permits for 
Demolition, On-Site Relocation, 
and Off-Site Relocation of 
Buildings Not Designated," 
B.R.C. 1981  

 Easement vacation  

 Extension of development 
approval/staff level  

 Landmark alteration certificates 
(staff review per section 9-11-
14, "Staff Review of 
Application for Landmark 
Alteration Certificate," B.R.C. 
1981)  

 Landscape standards variance  

 Minor modification  

 Nonconforming use (extension, 

 Accessory Units 
(Dwelling, Owners, 
Limited)  

 Antennas for Wireless 
Telecommunications 
Services  

 Bed and Breakfasts  

 Cooperative Housing 
Units  

 Daycare Centers  

 Detached Dwelling 
Units with Two 
Kitchens  

 Drive-Thru Uses  

 Group Home Facilities  

 Home Occupations  

 Manufacturing Uses 
with Off-Site Impacts  

 Neighborhood Service 
Centers  

 Offices, Computer 
Design and 
Development, Data 

 Annexation/initial zoning  

 BOZA variances  

 Concept plans  

 Demolition, moving, and 
removal of buildings with 
potential historic or 
architectural significance, 
per section 9-11-23, 
"Review of Permits for 
Demolition, On-Site 
Relocation, and Off-Site 
Relocation of Buildings Not 
Designated," B.R.C. 1981  

 Landmark alteration 
certificates other than those 
that may be approved by 
staff per section 9-11-14, 
"Staff Review of Application 
for Landmark Alteration 
Certificate," B.R.C. 1981  

 Lot line adjustments  

 Lot line elimination  

 Minor Subdivisions  

 Out of City utility permit  

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 25Packet Page     263



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

change of use (inc. parking))  

 Parking deferral per subsection 
9-9-6(e), B.R.C. 1981  

 Parking reduction of up to fifty 
percent per subsection 9-9-6(f), 
B.R.C. 1981  

 Parking stall variances  

 Public utility  

 Rescission of development 
approval  

 Revocable permit  

 Right of way lease  

 Setback variance  

 Site access variance  

 Solar exception  

 Zoning verification  

Processing, 
Telecommunications, 
Medical or Dental 
Clinics and Offices, or 
Addiction Recovery 
Facilities in the Service 
Commercial Zoning 
Districts  

 Recycling Facilities  

 Religious Assemblies  

 Residential Care, 
Custodial Care, and 
Congregate Care 
Facilities  

 Residential 
Development in 
Industrial Zoning 
Districts  

 Restaurants and Taverns 
Hospitality 
Establishments 

 Sales or Rental of 
Vehicles on Lots 
Located Five Hundred 
Feet or Less from a 
Residential Zoning 
District  

 Service Stations  

 Shelters (Day, 
Emergency, Overnight, 
temporary)  

 Temporary Sales  

 Transitional Housing  

 Rezoning  

 Site review  

 Subdivisions  

 Use review  

 Vacations of street, alley or 
access easement  

 

 Section 4.  Section 9-2-4, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 
9-2-4  Good Neighbor Meetings and Management Plans. 
 
(a)  Purpose and Applicability: Good neighbor meetings and management plans are required 

for some uses, such as shelters and some restaurants and taverns, in order to ensure that 
applicants, owners and operators of specific uses are informed of the effects of their use 
upon neighboring properties, and are educated about ways to mitigate, reduce, or 
eliminate potential impacts upon neighboring properties. The specific use standards of 
chapter 9-6, "Use Standards," B.R.C. 1981, identify those uses that must complete these 
procedures. 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 26Packet Page     264



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(b)  Good Neighbor Meeting: When required, owners and operators shall conduct a good 
neighbor meeting that meets the following standards: 

(1)  Meeting With Surrounding Property Owners Required: Prior to submitting an 
application, the owner or operator shall be required to organize, host, and 
participate in a meeting with the surrounding property owners. The time and place 
of the meeting shall be approved by the city manager. Nothing in this section shall 
relieve the owner or operator of the responsibility to otherwise comply with all 
other laws applicable to the property or business. 

(2)  Purpose of Meeting: The purpose of the meeting described in subsection (a) of 
this section is to provide interested persons in the surrounding neighborhood an 
opportunity to inform the facility owner or operator of the concerns of the 
neighborhood. The facility owner or operator shall also provide interested persons 
in the surrounding neighborhood an opportunity to comment on its proposed 
management plan. The issues to be addressed at this meeting may include, 
without limitation, hours of operation; client and visitor arrival and departure 
times; coordinated times for deliveries and trash collection; mitigation of noise 
impacts; security; the facility's drug and alcohol policy; loitering; employee 
education; the facility's responsibilities as good neighbors; neighborhood outreach 
and methods for future communication; and dispute resolution with the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

(3)  Notice for the Meeting: Notice of the meeting shall be provided as set forth in 
section 9-4-3, "Public Notice Requirements," B.R.C. 1981. 

(4)  Waiver of Requirement: The city manager may waive the requirement that the 
applicant organize, host, and participate in a good neighbor meeting upon finding 
that the applicant will not require a use review, and that the needs of the facility's 
clients for anonymity and a safe and secure environment will be compromised by 
such a meeting. 

(c)  Management Plan: When required, owners and operators shall develop a management 
plan that addresses how the applicant will mitigate the potential adverse impacts that a 
facility may have on the surrounding neighborhood. The approving authority will not 
approve a management plan unless it adequately addressees such impacts. The following 
standards apply to the preparation, submission, and approval of a management plan: 

(1)  Elements of a Management Plan: The management plan shall contain the 
following components that describe the business operation and address the 
mitigation of potential adverse impacts the facility may have on the surrounding 
neighborhood, to the extent necessary, including without limitation:  

(A) A description of the food service offered; 
(B) hHours of operation;  
(C) cClient and visitor arrival and departure times;  
(D) cCoordinated times for deliveries and trash collection; 
(E) A description of the type of entertainment provided; 
(F) Size, location, and number of electronic amplifiers;  
(G) Techniques and strategies to mitigateion of noise impacts;  

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 27Packet Page     265



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(H) A description of how the applicant will prevent littering and maintain an 
orderly appearance of the premises and any adjacent right of way; 

(I) A security plan describing security features, including without limitation 
personnel and equipment; 

(J)  tThe facility's drug and alcohol policy; 
(K)  Strategies to avoid loitering;  
(L) eEmployee education; 
(M)  tThe facility's responsibilities as good neighbors; 
(N)  nNeighborhood outreach and methods for future communication; and  
(O) dDispute resolution strategies for any conflicts with the surrounding 

neighborhood. 
 

(2)  Preparation and Distribution of a Proposed Management Plan: The owner or 
operator shall prepare a proposed management plan and present it to the 
surrounding property owners at the good neighbor meeting required by subsection 
(a) of this section. 

(3)  Submission of a Management Plan: After the good neighbor meeting, the 
applicant shall submit a revised management plan with its application. 

(4)  Approved Management Plan: An approved management plan shall be used to 
define the operating characteristics of a facility and shall be retained by the 
applicant and the city manager and readily available to any member of the public 
at all times during business hours. No person shall operate a facility in violation 
of an approved management plan. 

(5)  Amendment of a Management Plan: When the owner or operator changes the 
operating characteristics in a manner that does not comply with the approved 
management plan, the owner or operator shall resubmit a management plan. No 
owner or operator shall fail to resubmit a management plan that meets the 
requirements of this section. The city manager is authorized to require an owner 
or operator to organize, host, and participate in a good neighbor meeting if the 
city manager determines that such a meeting will be of assistance in identifying 
additional adverse impacts that may have been created by the facility. The 
amended management plan shall address how the facility will address any 
additional adverse impacts that have been identified by the city manager. The city 
manager will approve the amended management plan upon finding that any such 
additional adverse impacts will be mitigated by amendments to the management 
plan. 

(6)  Management Plan as a Condition of a Use Review Approval: A management plan 
shall be incorporated into the conditions of approval if the applicant is required to 
complete a use review pursuant to section 9-2-15, "Use Review," B.R.C. 1981. 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 28Packet Page     266



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

 
Section 5.  Section 9-6-1(d), B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 

. . .  
 
(d)  Use Table: 
 

TABLE 6-1: USE TABLE 

Zoning 
Districts 

RR-
1, 

RR-
2, 

RE, 
RL-

1 

RL-
2, 

RM-
2 

RM-
1, 

RM-
3 

RMX
-1 

RMX
-2 

RH-
1, 

RH-
2, 

RH-
4, 

RH-
5 

RH-
3, 

RH-
7 

RH-
6 MH 

MU-
1 

MU-
2 

MU-
3 

MU-
4 

BT-
1, 

BT-2 BMS 

BC-
1, 

BC-
2 BCS 

BR-
1, 

BR-
2 

DT-
4 

DT-
5 

DT-
1, 

DT-
2, 

DT-3 

IS-
1, 

IS-
2 IG IM 

IM
S P A 

 

Use Modules R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 
M
H M1 M2 M3 M4 B1 B2 B3 B4 B5 D1 D2 D3 I1 I2 I3 I4 P A 

Specific 
Use 

Standar
d 

…  
Dining and Entertainment  
… 

Breweries, 
distilleries or 
wineries 
<15,000 
square feet 
and with a 
restaurant 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b)(3.5) 

Breweries, 
distilleries or 
wineries 
<15,000 
square feet 
and without a 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * A A A A * * 9-6-
5(b)(3.5) 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 29Packet Page     267



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

restaurant 

Breweries, 
distilleries or 
wineries with 
or without a 
restaurant 
>15,000 
square feet 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * U C C * * * 9-6-
5(b)(3.5) 

Brewpubs * * * * * * * * * U U U U U U C C C C C U * * * * * * 9-6-
5(b) 

… 

Neighborho
od Pub or 
Bistro 
≤1,500 
square feet 

* * * * * U U U * C C C C U C C C C C C C C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Neighborho
od Pub or 
Bistro > 
1,500 square 
feet 

* * * * * * * * * U U U U U U C C C C C U C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Restaurants 
≤1,500 
square feet 

* * * * * U U U * C C C C U C C C C C C C C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Restaurants 
> 1,500 
square feet 

* * * * * * * * * U U U U U U C C C C C U C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Restaurant, 
late night, 
without  a 
liquor 
license and 
which closes 
no later than 
12 a.m. 

* * * * * U U U * C C * C * C C C C C C C C C C C * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 30Packet Page     268



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Restaurant, 
late night, 
without a 
liquor 
license and 
which closes 
after 12 a.m. 

* * * * * * * * * U U * U * U C C C C C U U U U U * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Restaurant, 
late night, 
with a liquor 
license and 
which closes 
after 11 p.m. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * C C C C C * U U U U * * 9-6-
5(b) 

Restaurants 
(general) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a C C C C n/a n/a 9-6-5(b) 

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns no 
larger than 
1,000 square 
feet in floor 
area, which 
may have 
meal service 
on an outside 
patio not more 
than ⅓ the 
floor area, and 
which close 
no later than 
11:00 p.m. 

* * * * * U A * * A A A n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a   

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns no 
larger than 
1,500 square 
feet in floor 
area, which 

* * * * * n/a * * * * A * A U A A A A A A C n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a 9-6-5(b) 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 31Packet Page     269



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

may have 
meal service 
on an outside 
patio not 
morethan ⅓ 
the floor area, 
and which 
close no later 
than 11:00 
p.m. 

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns over 
1,000 square 
feet in floor 
area, or which 
close after 
11:00 p.m., or 
with an 
outdoor 
seating area of 
300 square 
feet or more 

* * * * * U * * * U A U n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a   

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns that 
are: over 
1,500 square 
feet in floor 
area, outside 
of the 
University 
Hill general 
improvement 
district; over 
4,000 square 
feet within the 
University 
Hill general 

* * * * * n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a U U U A A A A A U n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a   

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 32Packet Page     270



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

improvement 
district; or 
which close 
after 11:00 
p.m. 

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns in the 
University 
Hill general 
improvement 
district that 
are greater 
than 1,500 
square feet 
and do not 
exceed 4,000 
square feet in 
floor area, and 
which close 
no later than 
11:00 p.m. 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a C n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a 9-6-5(b) 

Restaurants, 
brewpubs and 
taverns with 
an outdoor 
seating area of 
300 square 
feet or more 
within 500 
feet of a 
residential 
zoning district 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a U U U U U U U U U n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a n/a n/a n/a   

… 

Taverns 
(general) 

n/a
* 

n/a
* 

n/a
* n/a* n/a* n/a

* 
n/a
* 

n/a
* 

n/a
* 

n/a
U 

n/a
U 

n/a
U 

n/a
U 

n/a
U 

n/a
U 

n/a
C 

n/a
C 

n/a
C 

n/a
C 

n/a
C 

n/a
U * * * * n/a

* 
n/a
*  9-6-5(b) 

…  

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 33Packet Page     271



 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Commercial, Retail and Industrial Uses  
…  
Retail Sales Uses:  
… 

Retail liquor 
store * * * * * * * * * * * * U * U A A A A A U * * * * * *  

…                             

A: Allowed use. 
C: Conditional use. See Section 9-2-2 for administrative review procedures. 
*: Use prohibited. 
U: Use review. See Section 9-2-15 for use review procedures. 
G: Allowed use provided that it is located above or below the ground floor. 
M: Allowed use provided at least 50% of the floor area is for residential use and the nonresidential use is less than 7,000 square feet 
per building, otherwise use review. 
N: Allowed use provided at least 50% of the floor area is for nonresidential use, otherwise by use review. 
n/a: Not applicable; more specific use applications apply. 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 34Packet Page     272



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 Section 6.  Section 9-6-5, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

9-6-5 Temporary Lodging, Dining, Entertainment, and Cultural Uses. 

. . . 

 (b)  Restaurants and TavernsHospitality Establishments: The intent of this subsection is to 
ensure that restaurant and tavernhospitality establishment owners and operators in close 
proximity to residential districts operate their establishments so as are informed of the 
effects upon neighboring residential properties of operating a business, and are educated 
about ways to mitigate, reduce or eliminate potential impacts of a restaurant or tavern 
operationtheir establishments upon neighboring properties. 

The applicant shall include all areas inside the restaurant measured to the inside surface 
of the outside walls, except for floor area that is used exclusively for storage that is 
located on another floor of the building, when determining whether the floor area 
thresholds under section 9-6-1, "Schedule of Permitted Land Uses," B.R.C. 1981, 
necessitate review under this subsection. 

(1) General Operating Requirements and Review Processes for Specific Hospitality 
Establishments: 

(A) Brewpub:  The following criteria apply to brewpubs: 

(i) Snacks shall be provided for consumption on the premises during all operating 
hours of a brewpub; and 

(ii)  If the use is located within 500 feet of a residential zoning district, trash, 
recyclables, and compostables shall not be collected between the hours of 
10:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. 

(B) Neighborhood Pub or Bistro:  The following criteria apply to neighborhood pubs and 
bistros: 

(i) The bar area shall not exceed 35% of the dining area in size; 
(ii) A neighborhood pub or bistro shall close no later than 12:00 a.m.; 
(iii) A food preparation area shall be in operation on the premises during all 

business hours, and solid food, prepared in the food preparation area, shall be 
offered and available for consumption on the premises during all business 
hours;  

(iv) Not less than forty percent of the gross income from the sales of food and 
drink of the establishment over any 30-day period of time must be from sales 
of food; receipts of all sources of income showing the name of the 
establishment, the date of sale, a description of each item sold, and the price 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 35Packet Page     273



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

paid for each item sold shall be retained for one year and must be provided to 
the city manager within seven days of request; and 

(v) If the use is located within 500 feet of a residential zoning district, trash, 
recyclables, and compostables shall not be collected between the hours of 
10:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. 

 
(C) Restaurant:  The following criteria apply to restaurants: 

(i) A restaurant shall close no later than 11:00 p.m.; 
(ii) A food preparation area shall be in operation on the premises during all 

business hours, and solid food, prepared in the food preparation area, shall be 
offered and available for consumption on the premises during all business 
hours;  

(iii) Not less than fifty percent of the gross income from sales of food and drink of 
the establishment over any 30-day period of time must be from sales of food; 
receipts of all sources of income showing the name of the establishment, the 
date of sale, a description of each item sold, and the price paid for each item 
sold shall be retained for one year and must be provided to the city manager 
within seven days of request: and 

(iv) If the use is located within 500 feet of a residential zoning district, trash, 
recyclables, and compostables shall not be collected between the hours of 
10:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. 

(D) Restaurant, Late Night:  The following criteria apply to restaurants, late night: 

(i) In residential districts, late night restaurants shall be limited to a maximum 
size of 1500 square feet; 

(ii) A food preparation area shall be in operation on the premises during all 
business hours, and solid food, prepared in the food preparation area, shall be 
offered and available for consumption on the premises during all business 
hours;  

(iii) Not less than fifty percent of the gross income from sales of food and drink of 
the establishment over any 30-day period of time must be from sales of food; 
receipts of all sources of income showing the name of the establishment, the 
date of sale, a description of each item sold, and the price paid for each item 
sold shall be retained for one year and must be provided to the city manager 
within seven days of request; and 

(iv) If the use is located within 500 feet of a residential zoning district, trash, 
recyclables, and compostables shall not be collected between the hours of 
10:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. 

(E) Tavern:  The following criteria apply to taverns: 

(i) Snacks shall be offered and available for consumption on the premises during 
all operating hours; and 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 36Packet Page     274



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(ii) If the use is located within 500 feet of a residential zoning district, trash, 
recyclables, and compostables shall not be collected between the hours of 
10:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. 

(2) Restaurants and TavernsHospitality Establishments in the DT-1, DT-2, and DT-3, 
BMS, and MU Zoning Districts and Portions of the BMS Zoning District: The 
following criteria apply to hospitality establishmentsOwners and operators of 
restaurant and tavern uses permitted as a conditional use or pursuant to a use review 
in the DT-1, DT-2, and DT-3, BMS, and MU zoning districts and those portions of 
the BMS zoning district that are outside of the University Hill General Improvement 
District are required to organize and participate in a meeting with the surrounding 
property owners pursuant to section 9-2-4, "Good Neighbor Meetings and 
Management Plans," B.R.C. 1981. 

(2)  Restaurants and Taverns in the University Hill General Improvement District 
Within the BMS Zoning District: The following criteria apply to restaurants and 
tavern uses permitted as a conditional use or pursuant to a use review in the BMS 
zoning district that is also located within the University Hill General 
Improvement District: 

(A)  Meeting With Surrounding Property Owners Required: Restaurant and 
tavern oOwners and operators of hospitality establishments shall be 
required to organize and participate in a good neighbor meeting with the 
surrounding property owners pursuant to section 9-2-4, "Good Neighbor 
Meetings and Management Plans," B.R.C. 1981. 

(B)  Preparation and Distribution of a Proposed Management Plan: The owner 
or operator shall prepare a proposed management plan, pursuant to section 
9-2-4, "Good Neighbor Meetings and Management Plans," B.R.C. 1981, 
and present it to the surrounding property owners at the neighbor meeting. 

(3)  Restaurants, Late Night Restaurants, and Neighborhood Pub or Bistros in the 
Industrial Districts: The following criteria will apply to restaurant, late night 
restaurant, and neighborhood pub or bistro uses located in an Industrial 
industrial district except as provided in paragraph (b)(3.5) of this section: 

(A)  The use is intended generally to serve the industrial area in which it is 
located; 

(B)  The use is not located along a major street or higher classification street as 
shown in appendix A, "Major Streets," of this title; 

(C)  In the IMS district only, the use shall be limited to a maximum size of two 
thousand square feet of floor area; 

(D)  Parking for restaurants, late night restaurants, and neighborhood pub 
or bistros in industrial districts shall meet the minimum number of off-
street parking spaces per square foot of floor area for nonresidential uses. 
The indoor and outdoor seating requirements of Section 9-9-6(b), "Off-
Street Parking Requirements," B.R.C. 1981, shall not be applied to 
industrial service centers; and 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 37Packet Page     275



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(E)  The use may operate daily between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 11:00 
p.m.; and 

(F)  No person shall operate a late night restaurant use in an industrial 
district the use between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m., unless 
the use is: 

 (i)  Approved through a use review process; and 
(ii)  Locatedlocated more than five hundred500 feet from any adjacent 

residential use or zone. 

(3.5)  Restaurants in Breweries, Distilleries and Wineries: The following criteria will 
apply to any restaurant use located in a brewery, distillery or winery in an 
industrial district: 

(A)  The restaurant shall be limited to a maximum size of thirty percent of the 
total floor area of the facility, or one thousand1,000 square feet, whichever 
is greater, including any outdoor seating or accessory sales areas; 

(B)  Parking for the restaurant shall meet the parking requirements for 
restaurants or tavernshospitality establishments in section 9-9-6, "Parking 
Standards," B.R.C. 1981; 

(C)  The use may operate daily between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m.; 
unless the extended hours are approved through a use review process; and 

(D)  If the restaurant requires a use review, the applicant shall demonstrate that 
it meets use review criteria in paragraphs 9-2-15(e)(1), (3), (4) and (5) 
"Use Review," B.R.C. 1981, as well as the use standards in paragraph 
(b)(4) for outdoor seating areas within five hundred500 feet of a 
residential use modulezoning district. 

(4)  Restaurants and TavernsHospitality Establishments With Outdoor Seating Within 
Five Hundred500 Feet of a Residential Use ModuleZoning District: The 
following criteria apply to any outdoor seating area that is within five hundred500 
feet (measured from the perimeter of the subject property) of a residential use 
modulezoning district. Outdoor dining areas that are within the BMS, DT and I 
zoning districts are also subject to the provisions of subparagraph (b)(4)(A), 
(b)(4)(B) or (b)(4)(C) of this subsection (b)(4), when applicable. 

(A)  Size Limitations: Outdoor seating areas shall not exceed the indoor seating 
area or seating capacity of the restaurant or tavernhospitality 
establishment. 

(B)  Parking Required: Parking in compliance with section 9-9-6, "Parking 
Standards," B.R.C. 1981, shall be provided for all outdoor seating areas 
except those located in general improvement districts. 

(C)  MusicOutdoor Entertainment: No outdoor music or other outdoor 
entertainment shall be provided after 11:00 p.m. 

(D)  Sound Levels: The outdoor seating area shall not generate noise exceeding 
the levels permitted in chapter Chapter 5-9, "Noise," B.R.C. 1981. 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 38Packet Page     276



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(E)  Trash: All trash located within the outdoor dining area, on the restaurant 
or tavernhospitality establishment property, and adjacent streets, sidewalks 
and properties shall be picked up and properly disposed of immediately 
after closing. 

(F)  Food service:  Any food required to be offered and available for 
consumption on the premises of the use, shall also be offered and available 
for consumption on the patio during all operating hours of the 
establishment. 

(G) Use Review:  Any hospitality establishment use with an outdoor seating 
area of 300 square feet or more that is located within 500 feet of a 
residential zoning district, shall complete a use review and may be 
approved only if the approving authority finds that the use review criteria 
of Subsection 9-2-15(e), “Criteria for Review,” B.R.C. 1981, and the 
requirements of this subsection are met. 

(5)   No owner or operator of any hospitality establishment shall fail to operate the 
establishment in compliance with the requirements of this Subsection 9-6-5(b), 
“Hospitality Establishments,” B.R.C. 1981, and any approval granted under this 
title. 

. . . 

 

Section 7.  Section 9-9-6, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 
9-9-6 Parking Standards. 
 
 . . . 

(b)  Off-Street Parking Requirements: The number of required off-street parking spaces shall 
be provided in tables 9-1, 9-2, 9-3, and 9-4 of this section: 

 … 
 

(4) Supplemental Requirements for Nonresidential Uses: 
 

TABLE 9-4: SUPPLEMENTAL PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR NONRESIDENTIAL 
USES IN ALL ZONES 

Use Parking Requirement 

Large daycare (less than 50 children) Determined through review 

Nonresidential uses in General Improvement Parking 
Districts 

No parking required 

Restaurant or tavernHospitality establishment – interior 
seating 

Greater of 1 per 3 seats, or the ratio for the use module 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 39Packet Page     277



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Restaurant or tavernHospitality establishment – outdoor seating: 

a. Outside seats for restaurant or tavernhospitality 
establishment with up to and including =50 interior 
seats if outside seats do not exceed the greater of 6 
seats or 25 percent of interior seats or 

b. Outside seats for restaurant or tavernhospitality 
establishment with more than =50 interior seats if 
outside seats do not exceed the greater of 12 seats or 20 
percent of indoor seats 

No additional parking spaces required 

c. Outside seats for restaurant or tavernhospitality 
establishment in excess of requirements of subsection a 
or b of this use 

1 space per 3 outdoor seats in excess of exempted outdoor 
seats 

d. Outside seats for restaurants hospitality 
establishment that do not meet the parking requirement 
for their indoor seats 

The maximum number of outdoor seats shall be calculated 
in accordance with the following formula: 

(the number of parking spaces provided on site) x 3 x (the 
percentage of seats permitted in subsection a or b of this 
use) = the maximum number of outdoor seats that may be 
provided without providing additional parking 

Motels, hotels and bed and breakfasts 1 space per guest room or unit, plus required spaces for 
nonresidential uses at 1 space per 300 square feet of floor 
area 

Theater Greater of 1 parking space per 3 seats, or the parking ratio 
for the zone district 

Gasoline service station General ratio for the use zone plus storage of 2 vehicles per 
service bay 

Religious assembly: (See paragraph (f)(8) of this section for permitted parking 
reductions) 

a. Religious assemblies created prior to 9/2/1993 1:300 

b. Religious assemblies created after 9/2/1993 1 space per 4 seats, or 1 per 50 square feet of assembly area 
if there are no fixed seats - assembly area includes the 
largest room plus any adjacent rooms that could be used as 
part of the assembly area 

c. Uses accessory to a religious assembly and created 
after 9/2/1993 

Uses accessory to the religious assembly shall meet the 
standards applicable to the use as if the use is a principal 
use 

d. Total parking of a religious assembly and accessory 
uses created after 9/2/1993 

Parking for the religious assembly use and any accessory 
use shall be for the use which has the greatest parking 
requirement 

Small recycling collection facility 1 space for attendant if needed 

Large recycling collection facility General parking ratio for the zone plus 1 space for each 
commercial vehicle operated by the facility 

Recycling processing facility Sufficient parking spaces for a minimum of 10 customers, 
or the peak load, whichever is greater, plus 1 space for 
each commercial vehicle operated by the facility 

 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 40Packet Page     278



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

… 
 

Section 8.  Subsection 9-16-1(c), B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 
 
9-16-1  General Definitions. 
 
. . . 
 
(c)  The following terms as used in this title have the following meanings unless the context 

clearly indicates otherwise: 
 
… 
 
“Bar area” means the cumulative total of indoor and outdoor areas of a hospitality establishment 
where food or beverages are offered to and consumed by customers seated or standing at a 
counter rather than tables.   
 
… 
 
“Brewery" means a use with a manufacturer or wholesaler license issued under § 12-47-401, et 
seq., C.R.S., and does not include any retail type liquor license under § 12-47-309, et seq., 
C.R.S., on the lot or parcel, that is primarily a manufacturing facility, where malt liquors are 
manufactured on the premises, that may include a tap room that is less than or equal to thirty 
percent of the total floor area of the facility or one thousand square feet, whichever is greater. 
 
"Brewpub" means an establishment with a brewpub license under § 12-47-415 C.R.S.that is 
primarily a restaurant where malt liquor is manufactured on the premises and food is offered and 
available for consumption on the premises as an accessory use. A brewpub may include some 
off-site distribution of its malt liquor consistent with state law. 
 
… 
 
“Dining area” means the cumulative total of indoor and outdoor areas of the hospitality 
establishment where food or beverages are offered to and consumed by customers seated at 
tables and not including bar, kitchen, service areas, offices, storage, or restrooms. 
 
"Distillery" means a use with a manufacturer or wholesaler license issued under § 12-47-401, et 
seq., C.R.S., and does not include any retail type liquor license under § 12-47-309, et seq., 
C.R.S., on the lot or parcel, that is primarily a manufacturing facility, where spirituous liquors 
are manufactured that may include a tasting room that is less than or equal to thirty percent of the 
total floor area of the facility or one thousand square feet, whichever is greater. 
  
… 
“Food” means nourishment in solid form consumed for the purpose of sustenance, but also 
includes soup, coffee and tea drinks, soft drinks, water, fruit juice and smoothies, milk, and milk 
and yoghurt products. (Hospitality Establishments) 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 41Packet Page     279



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

“Hospitality establishment” means the following: a brewpub, neighborhood pub or bistro, 
restaurant, late night restaurant, and tavern,  

… 
 
"Indoor amusement establishment" means a commercial operation open to the public without 
membership requirements, including, without limitation, bowling alleys, indoor arcades, theaters, 
pool halls, skating rinks, dance halls, and reception/banquet facilities. 
 
… 
 

“Neighborhood pub or bistro” means an establishment with a beer and wine license issued under 
§ 12-47-409, C.R.S., with a food preparation area, dining room equipment, and persons to 
prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests that closes no later than 
12:00 a.m. 

… 
 
"Restaurant" means an establishment with no liquor license or with a hotel and restaurant license 
issued under § 12-47-411, C.R.S., provided with a food preparation area, dining room 
equipment, and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to 
guests that closes no later than 11:00 p.m. and includes without limitation full-service, fast-food, 
or drive-through restaurants, cafes, coffee shops, lunchrooms, cafeterias, and delicatessens. 
 
“Restaurant, late night” means an establishment with no liquor license or with a beer and wine 
license issued under § 12-47-409, C.R.S., or a hotel and restaurant license issued under § 12-47-
411, C.R.S., provided with a food preparation area, dining room equipment, and persons to 
prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests that may operate after 
11:00 p.m. 
 
“Retail liquor store” means an establishment with a retail liquor store license issued under § 12-
47-407, C.R.S., engaged primarily in the sale of malt, vinous, and spirituous liquors and soft 
drinks and mixers, all in sealed containers for consumption off the premises and otherwise 
consistent with the definition of retail liquor store under § 12-47-103, C.R.S. 
 
… 
 
"Small theater or rehearsal space" means an establishment for live dramatic, operatic, or dance 
performances open to the public, without membership requirements, whose seating capacity does 
not exceed three hundred seats and seating area does not exceed three thousand square feet, or 
any area for the rehearsal of such live performances. 
… 
 
"Tavern" means an establishment with a tavern license issued under § 12-47-412, C.R.S., serving 
malt, vinous, and spirituous liquors in which the principal business is the sale of such beverages 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 42Packet Page     280



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

at retail for consumption on the premises and where snacks are available for consumption on the 
premises, including, but not limited to bars, cabarets, cocktail lounges, dance halls, discotheques, 
and night clubs. 
 
… 
 
"Winery" means a use with a manufacturer or wholesaler license issued under § 12-47-401, et 
seq., C.R.S., and does not include any retail type liquor license under § 12-47-309, et seq., 
C.R.S., on the lot or parcel, that is primarily a manufacturing facility, where vinous liquors are 
manufactured that may include a tasting room that is less than or equal to thirty percent of the 
total floor area of the facility or one thousand square feet, whichever is greater. 
 
 Section 9.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

 Section 10.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published 

by title only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city 

clerk for public inspection and acquisition. 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 

____________________________________ 
       Mayor 

Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk  
 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 43Packet Page     281



 

   

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 READ ON SECOND READING, AMENDED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this 15th day of October, 2013. 

 

____________________________________ 
       Mayor 

Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk  
 
 
 

READ ON THIRD READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED 

BY TITLE ONLY this ___ day of _______________, 2013. 

  
        _____________________________  
        Mayor 
Attest: 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938

Agenda Item 3H     Page 44Packet Page     282



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option A 4-2-4- 500 ft Elimination - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7939 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 4-2-4, “STATE LAW 
PROCEDURES APPLY” OF THE B.R.C. 1981 TO ELIMINATE THE 
EXISTING FIVE HUNDRED FOOT DISTANCE WAIVER 
REGARDING HOTEL AND RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSES, 
AND SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 

FINDS AND RECITES THE FOLLOWING: 

 
A. Findings. 

 
1. In 2004, City Council adopted Resolution No. 960 to acknowledge the city’s 

leadership role in addressing overconsumption of alcohol as an important health, 
safety, and welfare issue in the community. 
 

2. State law mandates that a liquor license cannot be applied for within five hundred feet 
of a school or principal campus of a university unless there is a local ordinance that 
allows for elimination or reduction of the five hundred foot rule. 
 

3. On September 1, 1987, the city passed Ordinance No. 5069 which removed the 
University of Colorado campus from the application of the five hundred foot distance 
limitation for Hotel-Restaurant liquor licenses only. 
 

4. City Council has determined that eliminating the existing waiver and thereby 
prohibiting liquor license applications within five hundred feet of a university 
supports the goals of Resolution No. 960.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  Section 4-2-4, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-2-4 State Law Procedures Apply. 

(a) Provisions of the Colorado Liquor Code and the Colorado Beer Code governing procedures 
for applications, hearing, and decisions for state liquor or fermented malt beverages apply for 
city licenses. 

Attachment B-1 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 45Packet Page     283



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option A 4-2-4- 500 ft Elimination - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(1) The principal campus of the University of Colorado is eliminated from the application of 
the five hundred foot distance restriction of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., for 
hotel-restaurant liquor licenses only. For the purposes of this section, the principal campus is 
defined as the area generally circumscribed by Broadway Street on the west; Baseline Road 
on the south; 28th Street, Colorado Avenue and Folsom Street on the east; and Boulder 
Creek, 17th Street and University Avenue on the north.  

(2) The five hundred-foot distance restrictions of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S. as 
it applies to the principal campus of Boulder High School shall be changed to four hundred 
feet for hotel-restaurant liquor licenses only. In addition, the distance change shall only apply 
to establishments with full kitchen facilities, with a seating capacity not to exceed thirty-five, 
and with a square footage not to exceed 1,200 square feet. 

(b) The optional procedures set forth in subsections 12-47-601(3) to (6), C.R.S., are accepted and 
adopted for application by the Beverage Licensing Authority. 

Section 2.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 3.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment B-1 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 46Packet Page     284



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option A 4-2-4- 500 ft Elimination - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this ____ day of _________ 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment B-1 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 47Packet Page     285



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 48Packet Page     286



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option B - 4-2-4 500 ft Beer and Wine - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7939 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 4-2-4, “STATE LAW 
PROCEDURES APPLY” OF THE B.R.C. 1981 BY CHANGING THE 
CLASS OF LIQUOR LICENSE FROM A HOTEL-RESTAURANT 
LICENSE TO A BEER AND WINE LICENSE FOR PURPOSES OF 
THE EXISTING FIVE HUNDRED FOOT DISTANCE WAIVER, AND 
SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 

FINDS AND RECITES THE FOLLOWING: 

 
A. Findings. 

 
1. In 2004, City Council adopted Resolution No. 960 to acknowledge the city’s 

leadership role in addressing overconsumption of alcohol as an important health, 
safety, and welfare issue in the community. 

 
2. State law mandates that a liquor license cannot be applied for within five hundred feet 

of a school or principal campus of a university unless there is a local ordinance that 
allows for elimination or reduction of the five hundred foot rule. 

 
3. On September 1, 1987, the city passed Ordinance No. 5069 which removed the 

University of Colorado campus from the application of the five hundred foot distance 
limitation for Hotel-Restaurant liquor licenses only. 

 
4. City Council has determined that amending the existing waiver by changing the class 

of liquor license from a Hotel-Restaurant liquor license to a Beer and Wine liquor 
license supports the goals of Resolution No. 960.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  Section 4-2-4, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-2-4 State Law Procedures Apply. 

(a) Provisions of the Colorado Liquor Code and the Colorado Beer Code governing procedures 
for applications, hearing, and decisions for state liquor or fermented malt beverages apply for 
city licenses. 

Attachment B-2 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-2

Agenda Item 3H     Page 49Packet Page     287



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option B - 4-2-4 500 ft Beer and Wine - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(1) The principal campus of the University of Colorado is eliminated from the application of 
the five hundred foot distance restriction of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., for 
hotel-restaurantbeer and wine liquor licenses as defined by 12-47-409, C.R.S., only. For the 
purposes of this section, the principal campus is defined as the area generally circumscribed 
by Broadway Street on the west; Baseline Road on the south; 28th Street, Colorado Avenue 
and Folsom Street on the east; and Boulder Creek, 17th Street and University Avenue on the 
north.  

(2) The five hundred-foot distance restrictions of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S. as 
it applies to the principal campus of Boulder High School shall be changed to four hundred 
feet for hotel-restaurant liquor licenses only. In addition, the distance change shall only apply 
to establishments with full kitchen facilities, with a seating capacity not to exceed thirty-five, 
and with a square footage not to exceed 1,200 square feet. 

(b) The optional procedures set forth in subsections 12-47-601(3) to (6), C.R.S., are accepted and 
adopted for application by the Beverage Licensing Authority. 

Section 2.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 3.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013 

 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment B-2 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-2

Agenda Item 3H     Page 50Packet Page     288



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option B - 4-2-4 500 ft Beer and Wine - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this ____ day of _________ 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment B-2 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-2

Agenda Item 3H     Page 51Packet Page     289



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 52Packet Page     290



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option C - 500 ft Status Quo - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7939 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 4-2-4, “STATE LAW 
PROCEDURES APPLY” OF THE B.R.C. 1981 TO RETAIN THE 
EXISTING FIVE HUNDRED FOOT DISTANCE WAIVER 
REGARDING HOTEL AND RESTAURANT LICENSES WITH 
RESPECT TO THE UNIVERSITY OF COLORADO AND 
ELIMINATING THE EXISTING FIVE HUNDRED FOOT DISTANCE 
WAIVER WITH RESPECT TO THE PRINCIPAL CAMPUS OF 
BOULDER HIGH SCHOOL, AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
DETAILS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 

FINDS AND RECITES THE FOLLOWING: 

 
A. Findings. 

 
1. In 2004, City Council adopted Resolution No. 960 to acknowledge the city’s 

leadership role in addressing overconsumption of alcohol as an important health, 
safety, and welfare issue in the community. 
 

2. State law mandates that a liquor license cannot be applied for within five hundred feet 
of a school or principal campus of a university unless there is a local ordinance that 
allows for elimination or reduction of the five hundred foot rule. 
 

3. On September 1, 1987, the city passed Ordinance No. 5069 that removed the 
University of Colorado campus from the application of the five hundred foot distance 
limitation for Hotel-Restaurant liquor licenses only. 
 

4. On May 6, 2003, the city passed Ordinance No. 7276 that removed Boulder High 
School from the application of the five hundred foot distance limitation by creating an 
exception which allowed hotel and restaurant liquor licenses within four hundred feet 
of the school but only to establishments with full kitchen facilities with a seating 
capacity not to exceed thirty-five, and with a square footage not to exceed 1,200 
square feet. 
 

5. City Council has determined that eliminating the existing waiver as it applies to 
Boulder High School is consistent with state law.  

 

  

Attachment B-3 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-3

Agenda Item 3H     Page 53Packet Page     291



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option C - 500 ft Status Quo - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  Section 4-2-4, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-2-4 State Law Procedures Apply. 

(a) Provisions of the Colorado Liquor Code and the Colorado Beer Code governing procedures 
for applications, hearing, and decisions for state liquor or fermented malt beverages apply for 
city licenses. 

(1) The principal campus of the University of Colorado is eliminated from the application of 
the five hundred foot distance restriction of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., for 
hotel-restaurant liquor licenses only. For the purposes of this section, the principal campus is 
defined as the area generally circumscribed by Broadway Street on the west; Baseline Road 
on the south; 28th Street, Colorado Avenue and Folsom Street on the east; and Boulder 
Creek, 17th Street and University Avenue on the north.  

(2) The five hundred-foot distance restrictions of subparagraph 12-47-313(1)(d)(I), C.R.S. as 
it applies to the principal campus of Boulder High School shall be changed to four hundred 
feet for hotel-restaurant liquor licenses only. In addition, the distance change shall only apply 
to establishments with full kitchen facilities, with a seating capacity not to exceed thirty-five, 
and with a square footage not to exceed 1,200 square feet. 

(b) The optional procedures set forth in subsections 12-47-601(3) to (6), C.R.S., are accepted and 
adopted for application by the Beverage Licensing Authority.  

 

Section 2.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 3.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

 

Attachment B-3 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-3

Agenda Item 3H     Page 54Packet Page     292



 

K:\CMAD\o-7939 option C - 500 ft Status Quo - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013 

 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this ____ day of _________ 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment B-3 
Ordinance 7939 - Option B-3

Agenda Item 3H     Page 55Packet Page     293



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 56Packet Page     294



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7940 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE SECTION 2-3-3, “BEVERAGE 
LICENSING AUTHORITY” AND REPLACE WITH A NEW 
SECTION 4-2-12, “BEVERAGE LICENSING AUTHORITY” 
AND AMENDING SECTION 4-2-3, “AUTHORITY TO ISSUE 
CITY LICENSES”; AND 2-6-3, “CREATION, JURISDICTION, 
AND POWERS OF MUNICIPAL COURT” B.R.C. 1981, AND 
SETTING FORTH RELATED DETAILS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 

FINDS AND RECITES THE FOLLOWING: 

 
A. Findings. 

 
1.   From1967 to 1982 pursuant to Ordinances 3280 and 3321, the City Council served as 

the city’s Liquor Licensing Authority. 
 
2.   From 1982 to 1991 pursuant to Ordinances 4651and 4722, one city council member 

served as chair and two city residents were appointed by mayor to serve the city’s 
Liquor Licensing Authority. 

 
3.   In 1991, the City Council enacted Ordinance No. 5440, which established the 

Beverage Licensing Authority (“Authority”), consisting of five residents of the city 
appointed by city council, and set forth the duties and powers of the Authority. 

 
4.   In 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 960 to acknowledge the city’s 

leadership role in addressing overconsumption of alcohol as an important health, 
safety, and welfare issue in the community. 

 
5.   The City Council has determined that restructuring the local liquor licensing authority 

from a board to a municipal court judge supports the goals of Resolution No. 960. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 57Packet Page     295



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

Section 1.  Section 2-3-3, B.R.C. 1981, is deleted: 

2-3-3 Beverage Licensing Authority. 

(a) The City of Boulder Beverage Licensing Authority consists of five members serving five year 
staggered terms, all of whom are city electors. The council shall appoint members at a 
regular meeting in March of every year. The council shall adjust terms as needed to stagger 
the terms. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the term. 

(b) The city manager shall serve as secretary to the authority. The secretary may be known as the 
licensing clerk, and shall serve as the authority's agent for all functions. 

(c) The authority's functions are: 

(1) To grant or refuse applications for licenses to sell malt, vinous, or spirituous liquor and 
fermented malt beverages; 

(2) To conduct investigations; 

(3) To suspend or revoke such licenses for cause; 

(4) To perform all other acts or duties required to carry out the purposes of the state and city 
liquor and fermented malt beverage licensing laws; and 

(5) To perform all other responsibilities that the council may delegate to it. 

(d) The city manager shall issue all licenses granted by the authority upon receipt of the license 
fees prescribed by sections 4-20-2, "Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and 
Application Fees," and 4-20-12, "Local Improvement District Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

(e) Sections 1-3-3, "Notice of Agency Action," 1-3-4, "Exception for Emergencies," and 
subsections 1-3-5(a) and (c), B.R.C. 1981, do not apply to hearings conducted by the 
authority. 

(f) The city council shall establish and adopt by resolution rules of procedure for the authority. 

(g) The authority may adopt supplemental rules of procedure provided that the authority's 
supplemental rules shall not be in conflict with those adopted by the city council. 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 58Packet Page     296



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

Section 2.  Section 4-2-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-2-3 Authority to Issue City Licenses. 

(a) An applicant for a city license under this chapter shall apply therefor to the Beverage 
Licensing Authority (“Authority”) established by section 4-2-122-3-3, "Beverage Licensing 
Authority," B.R.C. 1981, on forms provided by the Aauthority. 

(b) The Aauthority may issue the following types of city licenses:  

(1) Retail liquor store; 

(2) Liquor-licensed drugstore; 

(3) Beer and wine; 

(4) Hotel and restaurant; 

(5) Tavern; 

(6) Club; 

(7) Arts; 

(8) Racetrack; 

(9) Brew pub; 

(10) Fermented malt beverage on-premises; 

(11) Fermented malt beverage off-premises; 

(12) Fermented malt beverage on-premises and off-premises; 

(13) Hotel and restaurant with optional premises; and 

(14) Tastings of alcoholic beverages conducted on licensed retail liquor stores and liquor-
licensed drugstore premises;  

(15) Art gallery permit; 

(16) Bed and breakfast permit; and 

(17) Special Event Permit. 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 59Packet Page     297



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(c) In order to qualify for a city license under this chapter, an applicant must meet all conditions 
for the issuance of the parallel state license prescribed by the Colorado Liquor Code, for 
malt, vinous, and spirituous liquors, and the Colorado Beer Code, for fermented malt 
beverages, except that the fees for a city license are those prescribed by section 4-20-2, 
"Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and Application Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 3.  Section 4-2-12, B.R.C. 1981, is created to read:  

4-2-12 Beverage Licensing Authority. 

(a)  The Beverage Licensing Authority (“Authority”) shall have all powers and duties granted to 
local liquor licensing authorities as set forth in Title 12, Articles 46, 47 and 48, C.R.S.  The 
Authority shall have the duty and authority to grant or refuse licenses for the possession, sale 
and offering for sale of malt, special malt, vinous or spirituous liquors and fermented malt 
beverages as provided by law, to conduct investigations as are required by law and to levy 
penalties against licensees in the manner provided by law. 

(b) The Authority shall consist of a sole Hearing Officer who shall be a judge in the Municipal 
Court. The term “Hearing Officer” and “Authority” as used in Chapter 4-2, shall be 
synonymous with “Beverage Licensing Authority”. 

(c) The city manager shall serve as secretary to the Authority. The secretary may be known as 
the licensing clerk, and shall serve as the Authority's agent for all functions. 

(d) The Authority's functions are: 

(1) To grant or refuse applications for licenses to sell malt, vinous, or spirituous liquor and 
fermented malt beverages; 

(2) To conduct investigations; 

(3) To suspend or revoke such licenses for cause; 

(4) To perform all other acts or duties required to carry out the purposes of the state and city 
liquor and fermented malt beverage licensing laws; and 

(5) To perform all other responsibilities that the council may delegate to it. 

(e) The city manager shall issue all licenses granted by the Authority upon receipt of the license 
fees prescribed by sections 4-20-2, "Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and 
Application Fees," and 4-20-12, "Local Improvement District Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 60Packet Page     298



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(f) Sections 1-3-3, "Notice of Agency Action," 1-3-4, "Exception for Emergencies," and 
subsections 1-3-5(a) and (c), B.R.C. 1981, do not apply to hearings conducted by the 
Authority. 

(g) The Authority shall adopt the existing rules of procedure established by the city council. 

(h) The Authority may adopt supplemental rules of procedure provided that the Authority's 
supplemental rules shall not be in conflict with those adopted by the City Council.   

Section 4.  Section 2-6-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read:  

2-6-3 Creation, Jurisdiction, and Powers of Municipal Court. 

(a)  Pursuant to charter section 86 there exists a municipal court in and for the City of Boulder, 
Colorado. 

 
(b) The municipal court has original jurisdiction of all criminal cases arising under the charter, 

this code, and other ordinances of the city, with power to punish violations thereof by 
imposing fines and penalties as authorized by this code or any ordinance. 

 
(c) The municipal court has original jurisdiction of all civil cases arising under the charter, this 

code, and other ordinances of the city, with power to assess and collect civil penalties, order 
and enforce by contempt abatement of nuisances, and perform other responsibilities 
prescribed by the charter, this code, and other ordinances of the city. 

 
(d) The municipal court has the jurisdiction and powers of an administrative hearing officer, 

where so provided by this code or other ordinance of the city. 
 
(e) Each judge is authorized to issue search warrants for the inspection of premises or property 

by municipal or city-county officials or inspectors in accordance with the Colorado 
Municipal Court Rules. Each judge may also issue such inspection warrants for the 
inspection and examination of any structure or property if it satisfactorily appears that the 
applicant for the warrant is required to make the inspection by any provision of this code or 
other ordinance of the city or any regulation or routine policy of inspection and enforcement 
and that for the purpose of making a complete inspection the applicant is required to go upon 
privately owned premises or enter a privately owned structure. But nothing in this subsection 
shall be deemed to require the issuance of a warrant for emergency inspections or in any 
other case where warrants are not required by law. 

 
(f) The municipal court is a qualified municipal court of record and shall comply with 

requirements of state law and regulations for courts of record. The municipal court shall 
furnish the record to any party wishing to appeal from a judgment of the municipal court for 
transcription at such party's expense. 

 
(g) In all casesExcept as otherwise provided in this code, whenre a judge acts as an 

administrative hearing officer under this code or other ordinance of the city, the judge shall 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 61Packet Page     299



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

conduct hearings under the procedures prescribed by chapter 1-3, "Quasi-Judicial Hearings," 
B.R.C. 1981. In all such cases, other than “Beverages License” pursuant to Chapter 4-2, the 
judge may impose court costs in an amount not exceeding the amount specified in section 4-
20-55, "Court and Vehicle Impoundment Costs, Fees and Civil Penalties," B.R.C. 1981. 

 
(h) Except as otherwise provided in this code, the municipal court shall be conducted under the 

procedures prescribed by the Colorado Municipal Court Rules and title 13 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes. 

 
(i) Code and ordinance violations for which imprisonment is not a possible penalty and that are 

not criminal under counterpart state law are civil, but the judge shall follow the Colorado 
Municipal Court Rules in all such cases unless the rules are clearly inapplicable. 

 
 
Section 5.   This ordinance shall take effect on January 2, 2014. 

Section 6.  Upon the effective date of this ordinance, the terms of any previously 

appointed members of the Authority shall terminate.   

Section 7.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 8.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 62Packet Page     300



 
 

k:\cmad\o-7940 option a - bla restructuring with muni judge - 2nd reading-914.doc 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this ____ day of _________ 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
  

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 63Packet Page     301



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 7940 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE SECTION 2-3-3, “BEVERAGE 
LICENSING AUTHORITY” AND REPLACE WITH A NEW SECTION 
4-2-12, “BEVERAGE LICENSING AUTHORITY” AND AMENDING 
SECTION 4-2-3, “AUTHORITY TO ISSUE CITY LICENSES” OF THE 
BOULDER REVISED CODE AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
DETAILS  

 
 

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO, 

FINDS AND RECITES THE FOLLOWING: 

 
A. Findings. 

 
 

1.   From1967 to 1982 pursuant to Ordinances 3280 and 3321, the City Council served as 
the city’s Liquor Licensing Authority. 

 
2.   From 1982 to 1991 pursuant to Ordinances 4651and 4722, one city council member 

served as chair and two city residents were appointed by mayor to serve the city’s 
Liquor Licensing Authority. 

 
3.   In 1991, the City Council enacted Ordinance No. 5440, which established the 

Beverage Licensing Authority (“Authority”), consisting of five residents of the city 
appointed by City Council, and set forth the duties and powers of the Authority. 

 
4.   In 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 960 to acknowledge the city’s 

leadership role in addressing overconsumption of alcohol as an important health, 
safety, and welfare issue in the community. 

 
5.   The City Council has determined that restructuring the local liquor licensing authority 

from a board to a sole hearing officer supports the goals of Resolution No. 960. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BOULDER, COLORADO: 

  

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 64Packet Page     302



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

Section 1.  Section 2-3-3, B.R.C. 1981, is deleted: 

2-3-3 Beverage Licensing Authority. 

(a) The City of Boulder Beverage Licensing Authority consists of five members serving five year 
staggered terms, all of whom are city electors. The council shall appoint members at a 
regular meeting in March of every year. The council shall adjust terms as needed to stagger 
the terms. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the term. 

(b) The city manager shall serve as secretary to the authority. The secretary may be known as the 
licensing clerk, and shall serve as the authority's agent for all functions. 

(c) The authority's functions are: 

(1) To grant or refuse applications for licenses to sell malt, vinous, or spirituous liquor and 
fermented malt beverages; 

(2) To conduct investigations; 

(3) To suspend or revoke such licenses for cause; 

(4) To perform all other acts or duties required to carry out the purposes of the state and city 
liquor and fermented malt beverage licensing laws; and 

(5) To perform all other responsibilities that the council may delegate to it. 

(d) The city manager shall issue all licenses granted by the authority upon receipt of the license 
fees prescribed by sections 4-20-2, "Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and 
Application Fees," and 4-20-12, "Local Improvement District Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

(e) Sections 1-3-3, "Notice of Agency Action," 1-3-4, "Exception for Emergencies," and 
subsections 1-3-5(a) and (c), B.R.C. 1981, do not apply to hearings conducted by the 
authority. 

(f) The city council shall establish and adopt by resolution rules of procedure for the authority. 

(g) The authority may adopt supplemental rules of procedure provided that the authority's 
supplemental rules shall not be in conflict with those adopted by the city council. 

  

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 65Packet Page     303



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

Section 2.  Section 4-2-3, B.R.C. 1981, is amended to read: 

4-2-3 Authority to Issue City Licenses. 

(a) An applicant for a city license under this chapter shall apply therefor to the Beverage 
Licensing Authority (“Authority”) established by section 4-2-122-3-3, "Beverage Licensing 
Authority," B.R.C. 1981, on forms provided by the Aauthority. 

(b) The Aauthority may issue the following types of city licenses:  

(1) Retail liquor store; 

(2) Liquor-licensed drugstore; 

(3) Beer and wine; 

(4) Hotel and restaurant; 

(5) Tavern; 

(6) Club; 

(7) Arts; 

(8) Racetrack; 

(9) Brew pub; 

(10) Fermented malt beverage on-premises; 

(11) Fermented malt beverage off-premises; 

(12) Fermented malt beverage on-premises and off-premises; 

(13) Hotel and restaurant with optional premises; and 

(14) Tastings of alcoholic beverages conducted on licensed retail liquor stores and liquor-
licensed drugstore premises;  

(15) Art gallery permit; 

(16) Bed and breakfast permit; and 

(17) Special Event Permits. 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 66Packet Page     304



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(c) In order to qualify for a city license under this chapter, an applicant must meet all conditions 
for the issuance of the parallel state license prescribed by the Colorado Liquor Code, for 
malt, vinous, and spirituous liquors, and the Colorado Beer Code, for fermented malt 
beverages, except that the fees for a city license are those prescribed by section 4-20-2, 
"Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and Application Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

Section 3.  Section 4-2-12, B.R.C. 1981, is created to read:  

4-2-12 Beverage Licensing Authority. 

 (a) The Beverage Licensing Authority (“Authority”) shall have all powers and duties granted to 
local liquor licensing authorities as set forth in Title 12, Articles 46, 47 and 48, C.R.S.  The 
Authority shall have the duty and authority to grant or refuse licenses for the possession, sale 
and offering for sale of malt, special malt, vinous or spirituous liquors and fermented malt 
beverages as provided by law, to conduct investigations as are required by law and to levy 
penalties against licensees in the manner provided by law. 

(b) The Authority shall consist of a sole Hearing Officer who shall serve at the pleasure of City 
Council. The Hearing Officer shall be appointed by the City Council by resolution and may 
be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of City Council.  City Council may, in 
its discretion, appoint an Alternate Hearing Officer who may serve in the event that the 
appointed Hearing Officer is unavailable.  City Council shall establish compensation for such 
Hearing Officer and Alternate Hearing Officer.  The term “Hearing Officer” shall be 
synonymous with “Beverage Licensing Authority”.  

 
(c)  The Hearing Officer and any Alternate Hearing Officer shall be an individual over the age of 

twenty-one, an attorney at law admitted to practice in the State of Colorado, and with 
sufficient knowledge and expertise to apply and enforce the State of Colorado Beer Code, 
Liquor Code, Special Events Code, and Code of Regulations.  The Hearing Officer shall not 
hold any other city office, appointment or position.  Additionally, the Hearing Officer shall 
not have any financial interest in the operation of any business located or operating in the city 
that holds a license pursuant to C.R.S. § 12-46-101 et seq., or C.R.S. §12-47-101 et seq.  
Before assuming the office, the Hearing Officer shall take and file with the council an oath or 
affirmation to support the Constitution and laws of the United States and of the State of 
Colorado and the charter, this code, and other ordinances of the city and faithfully to perform 
the duties of the office.  

(d) The city manager shall serve as secretary to the Authority. The secretary may be known as 
the licensing clerk, and shall serve as the Authority's agent for all administrative functions. 

(e) The Authority's functions are: 

(1) To grant or refuse applications for licenses to sell malt, vinous, or spirituous liquor and 
fermented malt beverages; 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 67Packet Page     305



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

(2) To conduct investigations; 

(3) To suspend or revoke such licenses for cause; 

(4) To perform all other acts or duties required to carry out the purposes of the state and city 
liquor and fermented malt beverage licensing laws; and 

(5) To perform all other responsibilities that the council may delegate to it. 

(f) The city manager shall issue all licenses granted by the Authority upon receipt of the license 
fees prescribed by sections 4-20-2, "Alcohol and Fermented Malt Beverage License and 
Application Fees," and 4-20-12, "Local Improvement District Fees," B.R.C. 1981. 

(g) Sections 1-3-3, "Notice of Agency Action," 1-3-4, "Exception for Emergencies," and 
subsections 1-3-5(a) and (c), B.R.C. 1981, do not apply to hearings conducted by the 
Authority. 

(h) The Authority shall adopt the existing rules of procedure established by the City Council. 

(i) The Authority may adopt supplemental rules of procedure provided that the Authority's 
supplemental rules shall not be in conflict with those adopted by the City Council.   

Section 4.   This ordinance shall take effect on February 1, 2014. 

Section 5.  Upon the effective date of this ordinance, the terms of any previously 

appointed members of the Authority shall terminate.    

Section 6.  This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the residents of the city, and covers matters of local concern. 

Section 7.  The City Council deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title 

only and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available in the office of the city clerk for 

public inspection and acquisition. 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 68Packet Page     306



 

K:\CMAD\o-7940 option B - BLA Restructuring Hearing Officer - 2nd reading-914.docx  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY this 1st day of October, 2013. 

 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 

READ ON SECOND READING, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY this ____ day of _________ 2013. 

 
      
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 

Attachment C-1 
Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1

Agenda Item 3H     Page 69Packet Page     307



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 70Packet Page     308



C I T Y   O F   B O U L D E R,   C O L O R A D O  
 
Office of the City Attorney 
Municipal Building 
1777 Broadway 
Post Office Box 791  
Boulder, Colorado  80306 
Telephone (303) 441-3020 
Facsimile (303) 441-3859 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Mishawn J. Cook, Tax and License Manager 
 
FROM: Sandra Llanes, Assistant City Attorney III 
 
SUBJECT: Cost Estimates for Beverage Licensing Authority (BLA) Hearing Officer  
 
DATE:  September 10, 2013 
 
 
I have compiled some information about the approximate costs and department impacts 
associated with contracting for an independent hearing officer versus using the existing 
Associate Municipal Court Judge for Beverage Licensing Board (BLA) liquor hearings.  After 
reviewing the information provided by you, your staff and Lynne Reynolds; Court 
Administrator, I can offer you the following information. 
 
Breakdown of BLA hearings in 2012: 
 
 13 New Applications 
 16 Transfer of Ownership 
   9 Permanent Modifications 
 12 Registered Manager, change of location or class or rulemaking hearing items 
 23 Renewal Hearings 
 25  Show Cause Hearing for violations 
  6 were contested 
  19 were stipulated to the facts 
____________________________________ 
 98 Total Hearings in 2012 
 
Hearing officer/Judge Estimated Workload: 

 
 Review monthly packet in preparation for hearing:  estimated 4 – 6 hours per month 
 Conduct hearing:  2-3 hours per month 

Total Average:  6 – 10 hours per month 
 

Attachment D - Cost Estimates for Hearing Officer Options

Agenda Item 3H     Page 71Packet Page     309



Mishawn Cook, Tax and License Manager  
Page 2 
September 25, 2013 
 
 Re:  Cost Estimates for BLA Hearing Officer  
 
 
Independent Contractor Hearing Officer: 

 
An RFP process would be used to identify and contract with a potential hearing officer. 
 

Contracted hearing officer rates:  between $90 – 150 per hour 
Example of City contracted marijuana hearing officer rate:  $135 
Average rate of $135 x 10 hours/month = $1,350/month or $16,200/year 

 
Municipal Court judge: 

 
Based on the information provided by Lynne Reynolds regarding the Municipal Court staff and 
budgetary impacts, the total annual cost of covering liquor licensing responsibilities would range 
from $1,800 minimum to $10,800 maximum per year1. This range was determined based upon 
the following assumptions: 
 

 Hearings will be held at the Boulder County Justice Center during regular business hours, 
one Wednesday a month, beginning at 8:30 AM.  This allows for security and will not 
result in incurring overtime security costs. 

 Current courtrooms will be available for all hearings (no expenses for additional 
courtroom setup or recording equipment is included in these projections). 

 Finance department / licensing division will continue to provide administrative support.  
Additionally, they will attend the Court sessions and perform limited data entry into the 
Court database. 

 Associate Judge Cahn will preside over the liquor licensing sessions. 
 Currently, the Court's dockets are full with no open days, and the filing impacts from 

Minor in Possession of Marijuana and Consumption of Marijuana in Public are largely 
unknown since the ordinances just went into effect on June 6, 2013.  The Court will make 
every effort to create an available Wednesday, once a month, through increasing the 
volume of all other dockets.  If the Court is unable to create a Wednesday each month for 
the licensing hearings, then two courtrooms will need to operate simultaneously.  Judge 
Cahn will preside over the licensing hearings and a current contract Relief Judge will 
preside over the regular Court docket.   

 Additionally, the Court will contract with a Relief Judge with appropriate expertise, to be 
trained as a back-up for Judge Cahn’s licensing responsibilities.   

 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 If the court is unable to manage all hearings within the current docket then the higher costs would apply.  This is 
not a likely scenario. 

Attachment D - Cost Estimates for Hearing Officer Options

Agenda Item 3H     Page 72Packet Page     310



Mishawn Cook, Tax and License Manager  
Page 3 
September 25, 2013 
 
 Re:  Cost Estimates for BLA Hearing Officer  
 
Cost Savings: 

 

Replacing the BLA with a hearing officer/judge would promote efficiency.  Other jurisdictions 
have found that hearings do not last as long when they are conducted by a legally trained hearing 
officer.  Currently BLA meetings require a significant staff commitment.  The licensing clerk 
prepares the board’s packet and provides other staff support before, during, and after all 
hearings.  A change to a hearing officer model would result in an estimated administrative cost 
savings of $430 a month or $5,160 a year and staff resource savings of 5 hours a month or 60 
hours a year. 
 
The city attorney’s office provides two attorneys to staff the board.  I provide legal advice and 
support to the board, while Michael Whitney acts as the prosecutor with regard to violations and 
contested renewals.  Mr. Whitney would continue as prosecutor.  However, a hearing officer 
would not require legal staff support resulting in an appropriate CAO attorney resource savings 
of five to ten hours per month. 
 

Expected effective date: 
 
A hearing officer could be hired and in place by February 2014.  The Associate Judge could 
assume the hearing officer responsibilities with six week's notice as the court's dockets are full 
six weeks into the future. Based on the effective date of the ordinance and court docket, that 
would translate into starting in January 2014. 
  

Attachment D - Cost Estimates for Hearing Officer Options

Agenda Item 3H     Page 73Packet Page     311



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 74Packet Page     312



 
 

Land use definitions for Hospitality Establishments- Staff and Planning Board recommendations 
Staff recommendation to 
Planning Board 

Planning Board 
recommendations 

Intended impact/Benefit Potential consequences/Disadvantage Staff’s revised 
recommendation 

Require snacks or food to be 
served during all business 
hours for hospitality 
establishments 

Make solid food requirements 
more strict (i.e., requirement for 
full service menus) 

Encourage more food consumption at 
establishments to minimize affects of 
alcohol 

None identified Require kitchen to be open 
during all business hours to 
prepare food for certain 
hospitality establishments 

Allow neighborhood pubs or 
bistros to operate until 12am 
without Use Review approval 
(conditional use; staff level) 

Revise the Use Table to require 
Neighborhood Pubs or Bistros to 
obtain Use Review approval in 
BMS, MU-3, DT-1, DT-2 and  DT-3 
instead of just conditional use 
approval 

Enable greater protections for residential 
neighborhoods; avoids overconcentration 
of establishments which may impact 
residential areas with late hours 
operations 

Removes the incentive of encouraging 
neighborhood pubs or bistros over other 
establishments like restaurants, which can 
serve a full range of alcohol with Hotel and 
Restaurant licenses. Neighborhood pubs or 
bistros would not be able to serve hard 
alcohol with Beer and Wine licenses.  

Staff does not support this 
modification and does not 
anticipate an overconcentration 
of such establishments 

Prohibit late night restaurants 
in interface areas like MU 
zones adjacent to residential 
zones so as to avoid 
“morphing” issue 

Allow Late Night Restaurants in 
MU-1, MU-2 and MU-4 with Use 
Review approval (*) 

Would allow more late night food options 
in mixed use areas through Use Review 
process 

Creates conditions where restaurants could 
morph into more tavern-like 
establishments in late hours as is currently 
experienced 

Create subcategories for late 
night restaurants that would 
not permit liquor licenses after 
11 p.m. in MU & DT zones 

Prohibit late night restaurants 
in interface areas like BMS 
adjacent to residential zones 
as to avoid “morphing” issue 

Allow Late Night Restaurants in 
BMS with Use Review approval 
(**) 

Allow more late night food options in 
mixed use areas and encourage more 
investment in  business areas  

Creates conditions where restaurants could 
morph into more tavern-like 
establishments in late hours as is currently 
experienced - particularly in sensitive areas 
like University Hill 

Create subcategories for late 
night restaurants that would 
not permit liquor licenses after 
11 p.m. in the BMS zone 

NA Require Use Review for hospitality 
establishments in the DT-5 zone 
within 300 feet of a residential 
zone (***) 

Avoid or mitigate impacts on nearby 
residential areas from more intense 
establishments in Boulder’s downtown 
core 

Protections already exist in the code such 
that outdoor patios in DT-5, areas where 
there could be noise impacts, already 
require Use Review. Could also impair 
economic vitality in an area expected for 
more intense commercial uses 

Staff does not support this 
modification as protections 
already exist due to Use Review 
being required for outdoor 
patios; DT-5 is intended to be 
one of the most urban, intense 
zoning districts 

(*) Four Planning Board members supported this change; one was opposed 
(**) Three Planning Board members supported this change; two were opposed 
(***) Only two Planning Board members supported this change; no official motion passed 

Attachment E - Planning Board Recommendations

Agenda Item 3H     Page 75Packet Page     313



Agenda Item 3H     Page 76Packet Page     314



                                                                                                                              Summary of Proposed Land Use Code Definitions   
                                                                                                                                                       Attachment F 

 
New Land Use Definitions Review Process & Allowed Zoning District  Liquor License Types 

Restaurants < 1500 sf 

"Restaurant" means an establishment with no liquor license or a hotel and restaurant license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., provided with a food preparation area, dining 

room equipment, and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests that must close no later than 11 p.m. and includes without limitation full-

service, fast-food, or drive-through restaurants, cafes, coffee shops, lunchrooms, cafeterias, and delicatessens. 

USE REVIEW*:  
RH-1, RH-2, RH-4, RH-5, RH-3, RH-7, RH-6, BT-1, BT-2  
 
CONDITIONAL USE**:  
MU-1, MU-2, MU-3, MU-4, BT-1, BT-2, BMS, BC-1, BC-2, 
BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3, DT-4, DT-5 

Beer and Wine License 
or 
Hotel Restaurant License 
(full service) 
or 
 No liquor license 

Restaurants > 1500 sf 

"Restaurant" means an establishment with no liquor license or a hotel and restaurant license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., provided with a food preparation area, dining 

room equipment, and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests that must close no later than 11 p.m. and includes without limitation full-

service, fast-food, or drive-through restaurants, cafes, coffee shops, lunchrooms, cafeterias, and delicatessens. 

USE REVIEW:  
MU-1, MU-2, MU-3, MU-4, BT-1, BT-2, BMS, BC-1, BC-2, 
BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-4, DT-5 

Beer and Wine License 
or 
Hotel Restaurant License 
(full service) 
or 
 No liquor license 

Restaurants, Late Night 

“Restaurant, late night” means an establishment with no liquor license or with a beer and wine license or a hotel and restaurant license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., 

provided with a food preparation area, dining room equipment, and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests that may operate after 11 p.m . 

USE REVIEW (NO LIQUOR LICENSE): 
RH-1, RH-2, RH-3, RH-4, RH-5, RH-6, RH-7, MU-1, MU-
2, MU-4, BMS, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-4, DT-5 

Beer and Wine License 
or 
Hotel Restaurant License 
(full service) 
or 
 No liquor license  

Neighborhood Pub or Bistro < 1500 sf 

“Neighborhood pub or bistro” means an establishment with a beer and wine license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., with a food preparation area, dining room equipment, 

and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests where a full food menu is offered and available for consumption on the premises during all 

business hours. that must close no later than 12 a.m. 

USE REVIEW:  
RH-1, RH-2, RH-3, RH-7, RH-6, BT-1, BT-2 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
MU-1, MU-2, MU-3, MU-4, BMS, BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, 
BR-2, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3, DT-4, DT-5 

Beer and Wine Licenses 
Only 

Neighborhood Pub or Bistro > 1500 sf 

“Neighborhood pub or bistro” means an establishment with a beer and wine license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., with a food preparation area, dining room equipment, 

and persons to prepare and serve, in consideration of payment, food or drinks to guests where a full food menu is offered and available for consumption on the premises during all 

business hours. that must close no later than 12 a.m. 

USE REVIEW:  
RH-1, RH-2, RH-4, RH-5, RH-3, RH-7, RH-6, MU-1, MU-
2. MU-3, MU-4BT-1, BT-2, BMS, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, DT-4, DT-5 

Beer and Wine Licenses 
Only 

Tavern  

"Tavern" means an establishment with a tavern license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., serving fermented malt beverages and/or malt, vinous, and/or spirituous liquors in 

which the principal business is the sale of such beverages at retail for consumption on the premises and where snacks are available for consumption on the premises, including, but not 

limited to bars, cabarets, cocktail lounges, dance halls, discotheques, and night clubs. 

USE REVIEW:  
MU-1, MU-2, MU-3, MU-4, BT-2, DT-1, DT-2, DT-3 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-4, DT-5 

Tavern License 

Brewpub 
 
"Brewpub" means an establishment with a brew pub license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., that is primarily a restaurant where malt liquor is manufactured on the premises 
as an accessory use. A brewpub may include some off-site distribution of its malt liquor consistent with state law. 

USE REVIEW:  
MU-1, MU-2, MU-3, MU-4, BT-1, BT-2, BMS, DT-1, DT-2, 
DT-3 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, BR-2  

Brew Pub License  

Retail Liquor Store 

“Retail liquor store” means an establishment with a retail liquor store license issued under § 12-47-401, et seq., C.R.S., engaged primarily in the sale of malt, vinous, and spirituous 

liquors and soft drinks and mixers, all in sealed containers for consumption of the premises and otherwise consistent with the definition of retail liquor store under § 12-47-103, C.R.S. 

USE REVIEW:  
MU-4, BMS, DT-1, DT-2 
 
APPROVED USE BY-RIGHT:  
BC-1, BC-2, BCS, BR-1, BR-2, DT-4, DT-5 

Retail Liquor License 

*Use Review applications are discretionary and may be called-up by neighbors or the Planning Board. Use Review applications can also be referred to the Planning Board for decision by staff. 
**Conditional Use applications are reviewed administratively by staff and are not subject to call-up by neighbors or the Planning Board.  

Agenda Item 3H     Page 77Packet Page     315

http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_15
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2
http://www.colocode.com/boulder2/chapter9-2.htm#section9_2_2


Agenda Item 3H     Page 78Packet Page     316



A

P

BMS

RH-5

P

BT-1
MU-1

P

RL-1

RL-2

RE

RMX-2

RM-2

P

MH

RM-2

RE

E

RMX-1

RE

RR-1

RH-5

RM-1

RM-3

RM-1

RM-2

BT-2

RH-4

RH-5

P

RM-1

RM-1

MU-4

IG

IS-2

IG

P

RMX-2

RL-2

IS-2

RR-1

E

BC-1

P

E

BC-2

P

RL-2

E

BC-1

IG

RR-1

RH-4

BR-2

RL-2

IM

E

BT-2

E

RL-2

RL-2

BT-2

P

BT-2

BC-2

P

IS-2

P

MU-1

DT-2

RL-1

RL-2

RR-1

E

MU-3

A

E

E

RL-1

RH-2

RM-1

RR-1

RL-1

BC-2

MH

RL-1

BC-2

BT-1

BMS
IS-1

F

RL-1

E

RM-2

IG

BT-2

MH

E

E

IM

E
RH-5

P

RM-1

BC-1

RM-2

E

RE

RM-1

RMX-1

RR-2

E

IMS

IS-1

BC-2

P

RM-1

RM-2

RE

RR-1

DT-1

RL-2

E
RE

E

P

RE

BC-2

RH-5

RR-1

RH-3

RM-2

IG

BC-1

A

RL-2

RM-1

RL-1

BMS

IG

MH

P

BC-1

RE

E

RM-1

A

P

RH-5

IG

IG

E

IG

P

P

IG

IG

RM-1

E

P

RE

RL-2
RM-1

RL-2

MU-2

IMS

BC-1

RM-2

RH-2

A

E

RR-1

RH-5

P

RH-2

RH-1

RE

RE

RH-5

RL-2

RL-2

BR-1

BT-1

RM-2

RH-6

RMX-2

P

IS-1

RL-1

IG

IG

RL-2

RM-1

IG

BT-1

RM-2

RH-4

RH-5

BC-1

RM-1

RL-1

E

IG

RM-1

IM

IG

RL-2

RH-4

IM

IM

IM

IG

RL-1

RM-1

BT-2

RE

RL-1

E

RH-1

A

E

E

RH-5

RM-2

RE

RE

E

RM-2

E

RR-1

RM-2

RM-2

RH-4

P

RH-4

P

BT-1

IMS

BC-2

P

RM-1

RM-2

BT-1

RM-1

IS-2

RM-2

RL-2

RM-2

P

P

RL-2

E

E

P

RE

IG

IG

RL-2

RM-1

BT-1

RL-1

RM-1

DT-2

RH-2

BT-2

RM-2

RE

P RL-1

BMS

BT-2

DT-4

RM-1

BMS

DT-2

RR-1
RR-1

RE

RMX-1

P

BT-2

BC-1

BT-1

RL-2

RM-2

BT-1

IS-1

RH-3

BT-2

P

RM-1

IG

BT-1

RL-1

IG

RE

IG

P

E

RL-1

P

IM

P

RH-2

RL-2
RR-1

RH-2

BT-2

DT-5

DT-5

BT-2

P

RH-1

RE

RL-1

RL-1

E

E

RR-1

RH-5
RM-2

IS-1

BT-2

RH-4

P

IG

RM-1

RM-1

RH-4

RM-1

RM-2

RM-1

E

RR-2

BT-1

RH-5

RM-1

RM-3

RM-1

P

A

RMX-1

RMX-1

RH-2

RH-5

E

IS-1

RL-1

DT-3

RH-2

BT-2

DT-2

RL-1

E

E

RE

RL-2

RL-1

RL-2

E

E

BMS

E

RL-1

RM-1

BCS

BT-1

RL-2

RL-2

E

IS-1

RM-2

P

BT-1

RE

E

RR-1

IS-2

IG

BC-2

E

IS-1

Bluebell   C
a ny

on   C
re

ek

Greg
ory

   C
ree

k

Wonderland  Creek

Goos e   Creek

FL
AG

ST
AF

F

TO
RY

C
T

C
IR

C
LE

B
LU

E

S
T

S
T

NORTH STAR

4T
H

 S
T

P
A

EUCLID

S
T

PL

ALLEY

S
T

C
T

LAND

AV
E

9T
H

   
S

T

7T
H

 S
T

LYKINS AV

D
E

N
V

ER
 ST

8T
H

8T
H

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

C
R

ORANGE

AVE

AVE

D

10
TH

LI
N

C
O

LN

10
TH

EUC LID

S
T

UNIVERSITY  AVE

CRESS

OAK

AVE

YELLOWPINE AV

E
A

SY R IDER

AVE

S
T

15
TH

PINE ST

CT

LN

S
T

YELLOWPINE AV

DR

S
T

S
T RD

19
TH

S
T

C
T

IRIS AV

LE
AF

CLOVER C
A

TA
LP

A AVE

AVE

AVE

AVE

DR

APPLE-

STO

A
B

B
Y

19
TH

20
TH

ST

20
TH

ST

W
E

S
T

EDGEWOOD

R
E

PP

G
U

A
V

A APRICOT

NY

RO
C

K
M

O
NT

GLEN

CT

ST

22
N

D

AINE

S
T

CT

KALMIA

RU
BY

SUMAC  AVE

LN.

BENTHAVEN

CT.

DR

D
E

NN
I S O N  LN

25
TH

EAST

IRIS 
HOLLOW
PL 

CR

NORTHBROOK

PL

ARBOR

JULLIARD

LE
H

IG
H

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  S

T

S
T.

LN.

CU
LV

C
T

A
R

TH
U

R
C

T

PL
Pu

tte
r C

t

D
R

.

M
ES

A

AVE

ST

STMAN    AV

33
R

D
 S

T
M

A
R

TI
N

BIXBY AVE

CR

AVE

GE

MAYA

CORRIENTE

PL

S
TO

N
E

  P
L

ST

Niblick Dr

TR.

SQ.

DR.

KITTRELL

ENDICOTT

AVE.

C
LA

R
E

M
O

N
T 

D
R

.

B
E

R
E

A

DR.

RD

32
N

D
 S

T

ARROWWOOD

30
TH

32
N

D
 S

T

CR

O'NEAL

PEN

OURAY ST

C
T

G
U

A
D

E
LO

U
P

E
 S

T

C
T C

T

MARTINIQUE AV

P
E

A
C

H

DR.

S
. 3

9T
H

38
TH

34
TH

 S
T

35
TH

S
T

FR
O

N
TIE

R

34
TH

 S
T

ROSE

AVE

NASSAU PL

CT

D
R

E
W

INGS

LN.

42
N

D

E

APACHE

E
R

I.E

39
TH

  S
T

DRIVE

DR

C
T

MIT
CHELL

AVE

C
R

PL

PL

DR

WY

M
O

O
R

H
E

AD

C
R

.

OSAGE

SIOUX          DR

PL

PL

LN

CR

LO
V

E
LA

N
D

DR

LO
O

P
E

N
N

E

PL

P
O

N
C

A

TELLER

M
C

IN
TI

R
E

 S
T

48
TH

LA
N

D
IS

48
TH

 S
T

D
R

GALLATIN PL

JO
H

N
S

O
N

WATERSTONE

WESTRIDGE DR

C
R

IL
LI

N
I

DR

A
ZT

E
C

RARITAN

D
R

.

R
O

X
W

O
O

D
   

 L
N

LO
D

G
E

CONESTOGA

S
T

55
TH

COLLEGE

CT

CENTRAL

E

FL
AM

IN
G

O
 D

R

APPLEWOOD

S
T

DR

C
A

S
C

A
D

E

P
L

RUSTIC

N.

DIMMIT

M
U

LB
ER

R
Y

BRANDYWINE CT

LN

M
A

LL
A

R
D

CT

RD

CT.

INDIGO

LONGBOW

SPIN
E

LO
OKOUT 

RD

SIMMONS

GALE DR

DR

B
A

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
T

63
R

D
 S

T

P
IE

D
M

O
N

T

N
A

U
TI

LU
S

 C
T 

S

DR

GUNPARK

C
LI

P
P

E
RPL

.

LA
KE

S CT

D
R

BEAN

C
R

E
S

T

RD

 FORK

I

Gunbarrel North Sub

WY

NDON

FRYINGPAN RD

ROARING

COUNTRY 
C

LU
B

CT

INDIAN

TR

PEA
KS

C
T

W
EST

PARK

WAY

SOR DR.

DR

C
LU

B
H

O
U

S
E

MT E
VANS  P

L

DRY

CT

P
O

S
T

PINE CT

C
T

A

N
. 7

5T
H

 S
T

W
ILD

RD

3R
D

4T
H

   
   

   
 S

T MORRISON

4T
H

CEDAR

S
T

C
T

PL

G- ASTOR LN

B- KINNIKINIC RD

ST D
E

A
N

PENNSYLVANIA

SPRUCE

DR

AVE

6T
H

AVE

ORION CT

7T
H

 S
T

YELLOW PINE AVE

WINGATE AV

COLLEGE

PLEASANT

10
TH

ST

AVE

11
TH

AVE

C
T

PL

OAKDALE PL

10
TH

 S
T

I

C

CASCADE

P
L

13
TH

S
T

14
TH

HAWTHORN  AVE

A
S

P
E

N

KINGWOOD PL

C
IR

13
TH

LEE HILL DR

C
T

BASELINE                        RD

AVE

16
TH

W
A

S
H

.

ELDER

S
T

JIMSON CT

CL
O

VE
R

WILSON

SUMAC

YAUPON

AV

16
TH

SIDE
RD

S
T

2O
TH

VISTA

S
T

ORANGE

W
IN

TE
R

C
R

E
S

S

RD.

P
L

C
A

M
D

E
N

S
T S

T

GOSS

S
T

ST

MESA DR

BLUFF

AV

DR

AVE

P
L

PL

PL

LN

LN

TOPAZ

WY

22
N

D

BE
AR

W
O

O
DL

AN
D

FU
RMAN

HILLSDALE

E
C

H
O

2O
T

H

21
S

T

S
T

GROVE

ST
S

T

AVE

S
T

RD

PREMIER PL

WOODSTOCK

WY

STEPHENS

DR.

DR

ST

W
E

S
TW

O
O

D

LN

LLOYD

DR

A
M

B
E

R
   

S
T

GLEN PL

D
R

.

DR.

TABLE

RD.

DR D
R

A
K

E

HARTFORD  DR.

28
TH

   
   

  S
T

OLSON

ST

AVE

S
H

A
D

Y

G
LE

N
W

O
O

D

GLENWOOD     DR

C
T

DE
L

CT

LANE

DR.

CASE

Y
A

LE
29

TH
   

S
T

CREEK

AV

EA

CT

C
T

S
T.

DOMINICA PL

30
TH

Ea
gl

e 
C

t

GREENBRIAR      BV

EVERETT DR.

DR.

ST

LN

DENTON

MADISON

PRAIRIE

31
S

T 
S

T

IRON FORGE PL

C
H

IS

HOLM TR

KALMIA

FR
E

D
 R

IC
K

S

PKWY

C
T

B
O

S
Q

UECORRIENTE DR

C
T

APPLE

W
Y.

S
.

S
.

ST

DISCOVERY

PEARL   ST

PL

R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y
 S

T

S

DARLEY AVE.

ST
.

CT

DR

ST JOHNS

LUDL

S
T.

PL

LI
P

A
N

GILPIN

DR

MILLIKEN

PITKIN

CT

DR

I

G
A

M
O

W
 LN

BLVD

G
A

LLIE
O

 LN

S
E

N
TI

N
E

L

KELSO RD

AVE

DR

CR

W
Y

W
AL

D
EN

PAWNEE

N
A

VA
JO

RICARA

P
A

W
N

SHAWNEE

COMANCHE  DR

D
R

COOLIDGE

HARRISON

AVE

BURR

49
TH

   
S

T

W
RIGHT

S.

ANASAZI

CT E

PL

MEREDITH

C
T

CR

SIOUX

D
R

E   LAU

E  EUCLID  AVE

ELLSWORTH PL

PENNSYLVANIA    AVE

CENTENNIAL

PATTON

PEAK

D
R

W
Y

CIM
M

AR
O

N

O
N

E
ID

A
  S

T
YU

M
A

TR

C
T

D

ON

C
T

PL

CT

LN

LO
V

E

D: Robin Ct
E: Bobolink Ct

BOULDER DENVER TNPK

AURORA

CT

AVE

KN
OL

L

PU
SS

Y

R
D

CIR

CREEK

SCOTTS

CT

GUNBARREL

WOOD

C
T

CR

BIR
D

ROB

LN

WILLOW LN

SOUTH BOULDER RD

CLEARVIEW

R
A

IN

CT

CT

LOW

C
R

SPINE

AVE

PO
RTS

ID
E

ODELL PL

W
ES

TV
IE

W

LA

LEFT HAND CR

E: SLICK ROCK

B: PARKSADDLE

BAR
I C

T

S
. 6

8T
H

 S
T

RD

CARTER CT

IDYLWILD TR

SPOT

HORSE

J M

F

69
TH

SWEET WATER

SILVER

DRIVE

C
IR

.

CEDARWOOD

P
IN

E
H

U
R

ST

CT

C
T

C
IR

.

PL

M
A

LL
A

R
D

LA
R

IA
T 

W
Y

P
A

LI
 W

A
Y

S. MEADOW CT

MEADOW CT

FI

ISLAN
D

 CR

CLUBHOUSE  RD

WIND

SIENA

C
T

M
T.

PKW
Y

SPRING DR

C
O

R
O

N
A

D
O

 C
T

E
D

D
Y

C
O

U
N

TR
Y

 L
N

PARK PL

CIRCLE

Briarri dge Tr

D
A

N
C

E

BU
CK

DESERT

LI
TT

LE
 L

E
A

G
U

E
 L

N

W.ARAP.LN

DR

HAPGOOD

SID
E

CT

4T
H

S
T

GRAPE LN

NEWPORT

LN

CR

4T
H 

ST
2N

D
 S

T

C- CLEMATIS DR

LN

AVE

R
O

SE  HIL L

S
T

LYNTON

S
T

JO
N

Q
U

IL

DR

ORCHARD

LN

LOCUST      AVE

6T
H

 S
T

8T
H

 S
T

FRONT RANGE AV

5T
H

 S
T

5T
H

 S
T

P
IE

R
R

E
 S

T

7T
H

P
L

S
T S
T

AVE

9T
H

 S
T

LINDEN

O
R

A
N

G
E

 L
N

M
T 

LA
U

R
E

L

POPLAR B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

C
T

ST

PL
C

O
LN

11
TH

PEARL STREET MALL

PL

14
TH

S
T

H
A

W
TH

O
R

N
H

O
LL

O
W

C
O

N
IF

E
R

CT

MEADOW

A
V

E

NORTHRIDGE

OAK HILL

AVE

HOLIDAY D
R

R
IF

LE

BELLEVU
E

KING

AVE

AVE

SUNSET  BLVD

S
T

PL

S
T

S
T

PL

LE
M

O
N

S
T

18
TH

ST

ST

EVER-

DR

19
TH

POPLAR

RIVERSIDE

KING

AVE

S
T

OVE

TH

KINCAID PL

W
O

O
D

22
N

D
 S

T

S
T

VINEYARD 
LN

CINNAMON

BL
UE

SAGE

CR.

W.W.

CR
AN

BR
O

O
K

ITHACA DR.

CR

NORTO
N

P
L

S
T

GOSS

ST

25
TH

23
R

D CT

23
R

D

N
O

R
W

O
O

D
 C

T

VINE PL

CRAG MO OR

BRIAR
W

O
O

D

POWDER-

HORN LN.

STONE

SAND-

SN
O

W
M

ASS

CR
.

CT
PL

A
R

N
E

TT

IR
IS

 W
A

LK
 C

T

TABRIZ PL

GRAPEWOOD

CR

F
ai

rw
ay

 D
r

PL.

H
AR

D
S

C
R

ABB
LE

DR
.

K
E

N
D

A
LL

K

YON

CR.

DR.

DOV

3O
TH

ASH

27
TH

 S
T.

PL

E
R

LINKS DR

CULEBRA

RD

CT
.

REDSTONE

H
A

R
TF

O
R

D

CR.

STAN

ER

BA
TE

S

DR.

CT

S
T

32
N

D

MOORHEAD  AVE

K
E

N
T 

S
T

ADAMS

LN

SHADOW
DR
CREEK

ST

S
T

WY

30
TH

   
S

T

PI E DRA

CR

LO
Y

C
T.

GIL
LA

SPIE

GILLASPIE

BRITTING

ARMER AV.

AVE

LASHLEY  LN.

35
TH

S
T.

S
T.

CARBON PL

33
R

D
 S

T

VALMONT     RD

C
A

M
PO

E
LE

U
TH

E
R

A

ST VINCENT   PL

LN.

DR.

A
LB

IO
N

40
TH

MARTIN                DR.

37
TH

IN
N

O
V

A
TI

0N
 W

Y

34
TH

E
S

C
U

E
LA

W
Y

WHITNEY PL.

S
T.

TABLE         MESA         DR.

FO
X

H
O

P
I

D
R

PINON  DR

G
R

E
E

N

EDISON LN

O
LD

   
  W

E
S

T
B

U
R

Y
 C

T

AIKINS

PARK

EATON
CT

PK
W

Y

N
R

O
E

E
D

IS
O

N
 C

T

AVE

FRANK LI
N

MACINTOSH PL

M
A

R
S

H
A

LL
 R

D
.

TH
O

M
A

S

DR

VIVIAN

DR

CT
DR

H
A

R
R

IS
O

N

AARON

MAC

A
V

E IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
C

E

MILLNER

KENOSHA

BUTTE ST

CR

LL
A

CR

LEE  CR

C
T

PEARL      
  PKWY

C
R

TTAN

KEWANEE

M
A

N
H

A
TT

A
N

PL

AVEE CASCADE

C
T

P
A

T
TO

N

R
A

N
G

E
   

   
S

T

AVE

AIRPORT

INDEPENDENCE        RD

WY

O
N

TA
R

IO

BLACKHAWK

TATUM LA

CT LO
DR

CT

MILNE

C
T

C
T

TARIO       PL

PL

S
57

TH AVE

CR
ES

T 
CT

M
AP

LE
ZI

N
G

E
R

IN
D

IA
N

CLO
UD

WELLINGTON

DR

R
D

LN

BO
W

S

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

LN

AVE

TA
I.L

DRIFT

NAUTILUS

KALUA

JIB

RD

D
R

D
R

M
OO

R

CT

TALLY HO TR

B

N: GLENDALE GULCH

FAIRVIEW

BC CR

CREEK DR

TR

TED

MEEKER RD

IDYLW
ILD

S
T

LODGEPOLE

CT

H
U

N
T

E
R

 CR

PAINTBRUSH TR

TR

DORAL DR

S
O

U
T

H

SAG
E

 C
T

IS
LA

N

D G REEN

PARK LANE R
D

PANORAMA

CORTEZ LN

CRANNEL DR

C
LO

V
E

R
 L

N

D
E

S
E

R
T 

M
T

N

GUN

U
E

R
O

BE
A

C
O

N

KN
O

LLW
O

O
D

DR
DR

BROOK

C
T

GREGORY LN

P
E

A
R

L
D

A
K

O
TA

FOR EST

LINDEN

U
TI

C
A

S
T

PIERRE ST

F- PRIMROSE RD

R
K

6T
H

S
T

IRIS   AVE

AVE

WONDER

CR

CHERRY   AVE

CT

LEE HILL DR

CHINLE   A

V

GRANITE

ST

AVE

AVE

P
L

C
IR

E

GRANDVIEW

PENNSY LVANIA

ST
10

TH

AVE

CEDAR

C
T

14
TH

   
   

  S
T

MOSSROCK  PL

CT

D
R

ST

MAPLETON   AV

ALPINE

NUT

S
T

AVE

ST

15
TH

C
O

P
P

ER
 S

T

NUGGGET

NORWOOD

ORCHARD

16
TH

 S
T

C
T

C
T

LN.

HOLLYBERR
Y

EUCLID

17
TH

AVE

AVE

GREEN

AVE

AVE

ROSA
CT

KI

AVE

AVE

TREE

RD

WY

TANSY PL

AVE

17
TH

18
TH

AVE

S
T

GR

21
ST

ALPINE DR

21
S

T 
 S

T

E
A

S
T

GLENWOOD

22
N

D
 S

T

S
T

EMERALD

P
LU

M

BLUEBERRY

W

ILDWO
O

D
CT.MOUNTAIN

CT

HO
LY

O
K

E

D
R

.

RD
EM

POR
IA

REGENT

CR

23
R

D

S
T

PANORAMA

DR

CT

ONT

PL

AGATE

TA
M

. C
T

CT

VINEYARD PL

ITHACA

DARTMOUTH

DR.

S. BRO
ADW

AY

SUNNY SIDE
LN.

COLORADO    AVE

ST

C
T

Iron
Ct

Niblick
 Dr

TINCUP

PL.

CT.

E

CR.

C
T

D
R

.

ELM

ST

AVE

SYLVANIA

S
T

C
T

DAW
N W

E
LC

H

JUNEA

Greens P
l

RD.

WY.

R
D G

ILLA
S

P
IE

BU
CK

NE
LL

LN

RINE

29
TH

CORONA TR

CT

A
B

E
Y

T
A

PL

REDWOOD  CT

BLACK
CHERRY CT

Birdie
Ct

O
LA

CR

CT

AV
E

33
R

D
 S

T

BLUFF ST

BR I D
G

ER
 T

R

C
T

C
T

N
E

V
IS

 S
T

BARBADOS       PL

C
T

LN.

C
T.

AV.

CHAS
E

S
T S

T

E
X

P
O

DR

G
R

EE
N

P
IN

E
D

A
LE

 S
T

N
E

W
 H

A
V

E
N

 C
T

Hogan Ct

K
N

O
X

 D
R

.

CR.

AVE.

T

BROOKFIELD

S
T.

GRAH
AM

W

CT

D
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

B
R

O
O

K

COOPER

FRANKLIN DR

AV

GRNBR.

MACKY

HAM
IL

TO
N

CT

APACHE

EUTAW  DR.

PK
W

Y

CT

CT

PEARL

CT

CURIE       C
T

K
IN

G
'S

 R
ID

G
E

 B
V

D

B
R

A
D

LE
Y

WY

C
R

S
T

PKW
Y

DR
LAGUNA

DR

ORM
AN

DR

H
A

N
C

DALLAS

AVE

CT

ST

M

CT

CT

VAIL

A
V

E
TH

O
R

THUNDERBIRD

P
L

DR

SHOUP

E
IS

E
N

H
O

W
E

R

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

ASHLEY

SHOSHONE

D
R

SANTA

TENINO  AVE

HATTAN

BR
O

O
K

LA
W

N

C
Y

PR
ES

S

E AURORA AVE

FORSYTHE PL

M
EA

D
O

W

PUEBLO

SENECA

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

DR

STONE

D
R

FRIENDS

SCENIC

DR

G
E

N
E

S
S

E
E

M
IN

E
O

LA

PL

PENN

FLATIRON

JUHLS DR

ST

S.

ORCHARD

O
LD

 T
A

LE
  R

D

MCSORLEY

S
P

IN
E

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

M
E

R
R

Y
 L

N

RD

MANOR

ROCK

LONG

HABITAT

N

DAPPLE

A
V

E

N
. 6

3R
D

S
T

WOOD

S
A

N

D PIPER

R
D

S. CT

RD

DR

TR

D

D: RIM ROCK
J: JEWEL CREEK

M: HIGH COUNTRY

K: INDIAN SUMMER

ND

DR

CREEK

B
U

G
LE

  C
T

W
AY

CT

FIRE ROCK

YAMPA

B
A

C
A

RED DEER 

OLD POST RD

SAG
E

TR

CIRCLE

SU
N

D
IA

L

QUAIL

P
L

BO
W

R
O

N

C
R

E
E

K

SPRING CT

Briarridge Ct

Clubhouse C
t

CO
VENTRY

A
U

G
U

STA  DR

PL

DR
O

LD

B
U

C
K

IN
G

H
A

M

R
D

M
ONARCH PK

arbrook R
d

Fir L
n

C
T

ROCK

PLU
M

LA
K

E
B

R
IA

R

CHRISTMAS

M
A

R
S

H
A

LL
VIE

W

3R
D

JA
PO

N
IC

A

LINDEN

OAKWOOD PL

3R
D

 S
T

6T
H

5T
H

S
T

MARINE

ALLEY

7T
H

8T
H

7T
H

PARK

CT

QUIN
CE

LILLY LN

SILVER LAKE AV

AVE

6T
H

 S
T

A

B

G
R

A
N

T

S
T

M
OFFIT

10
TH

 S
T

LARAMIE BL

K

11
TH

CANYON BLVD

13
TH

C
T C

T

RIVERSIDE

13
TH

 S
T.

S
T

14
TH

 S
T

ARAPAHOE

NORTH  ST

E
LL

IS
O

N

15
TH

14
TH

  S
T

16TH CR

IR
IS

 C
T

C
T

LOMBARDY DR

17
TH

VIOLET

UPLAND

C
T

AVOCADO

YARMOUTH

15
TH

 S
T

R
O

A
N

AVE

14
TH

ATHENS ST

16
TH

TYLER

17
TH

AVE

PL

ST

DR

CR

IVY

P
O

P
LA

R

B
R

O
O

K P
L

18
TH

BALSAM

S
T

N
IC

H
O

LL

LI
ER

FLORAL

JORDAN

RK

POPLAR AVE

RIV
ERSID

E

AVE

W
.W

.
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

HOWARD

W
Y.

GODDARD P
L

VASSAR

ST.

S
T

22
N

D

23
R

D
ST

DR

LORR

FOREST  AVE

HEMLOCK

JUNIPER    AVE

LINDEN          AVE

ST

RD

R
D

.

FO
LS

O
M

  S
T

26
TH

S
T

SHER

LA
R

KW
OOD

CT

C
T

RD.
LAFAYETTE

CT

LAGRANGE

T.
M

. DU
KE

CR

DR.

E COLLEGE

26
TH

H
O

LL
O

W
E

W
O

O
D

WT PL

PR
A

Ace   Ct

JO
LI

E
T 

 W
Y

EMERSON

RD.

M
IAM

I

YALE  RD.

FORD

C
O

LG
AT

E

HARVARD LN.

ST
H

O
LL

Y
PL

29
TH

EAGLE

O'NEAL PKWY

IS
LA

ND D
R

C
T

QUINCE  CT

SUMAC  CT

YALE

C
T

FORDHAM

AV
E

APACHE RD

S
T

33
R

D
   

S
T

32
N

D
 S

T

IRIS

DIAGONAL

S
T 

C
R

O
IX

 S
T

CAYMAN PL

PEACH

PL.

CARLOCK
DR.

AV

ST

C
E

N
TE

R

WY

LUDLOW     ST

DR.

LER

SQ

S
.

S
.

S
.

EL
M

HURST

G
IL

P
IN

  D
R

38
TH

 S
T

ARAPAHOE                     AV

S
T

ST

MONTCLA
IR

 

LN

HUEY

GORDON

DR
TANTRA

S
.

IN
C

A

CHIPPEW
A

IN
C

A

EVANS
DR

48
TH

S
TE

R
LI

N
G

FU
LT

O
N

G
A

TLIN
G

 LN

DARWIN     CT

TESLA

LN

D
R

.

ST

E
.

CT

OTTA
W

DR

TA
LB

OT

M
C

K
IN

LE
Y

ART

ROLLINS

CR

S
T

DR

RIVER

LD
E

R

CT.

IR
O

Q
UO

IS

CLARA

AVE

C
R

ES
C

E
N

T
D

R

GANDHI

STERLING

C
R

O
SS

 L
N

B
LA

C
K

H
A

W
K

PL

D
R

C
R

A
V

E

PL

C
A

S
S

IN

BRANDT

DR

M
IN

S
H

A
LL

  D
R

BLVD

C
T

55
TH

S
T

RACQ
U

E
T

WALL PL

M
E

A
D

O
W

   
 G

LE
N

   
   

D
R

AVE

W
Y

P
L

N

C
T

ORCHARD CREEK

S
TA

ZI
O

   
D

R

DR
CIR

LN

 C
T G
A

R
D

E
N

S

S
P

IN
E

 R
D

C
T

BLA
CK
CT

DR

C
T

BRUNTWOOD

RD

RD

CT

TWIN

RI
D

G
LE

A

C
T

STARBOARD

W
Y

DR

DO
N

N C
T

W
Y

LEFT HAND CR

G: NORTH FORK

H: MESA TOP
I: LONE EAGLE

CT

FO
X

H
IL

L

Q
U

AI
L

R
E

D
 F

O
X

 T
R

BRA

K

E

CT

 P
L

VALTEC  CT

BLUEGRASS CT

RUSTIC TRAIL

FOUR RIVERS RD

D
R

Y

P
A

LI
 C

T

M
E

A
D

O
W

 D
R

POSTON

C
T

O
A

K
 T

R
E

E

D
R

EMPIRE DR

RED D
EER

TR

S
Q

C
T

SINGING HILLS

D
R

C
T

C
IR

.

DRY  CREEK  PKWY

CHO
LLA CT

W
IL

LO
W

SPR
IN

G
VALLEY

P
R

O
M

O
N

TREE DR

S
T

4T
H

S
T

C
T

5T
H

DR

VALLEY

BAL SAM

HAWTHORN

W H CT

QUAIL

6T
H

H- LUPINE LN

K- BOGGES CR

I- GOLDEN ROD DR

A- BLUEBELL RD

G
IL

B
E

R
T 

S
T

S
T

CON CORD

ALPINE

S
T

GRAPE

KALMIA AVE

HILL

R
A

IN

UTICA          AVE

8T
H

 S
T

FO
U

N
TA

IN
 S

T

D
A

K
O

TA
 B

L

AV TERRACE CIR N

S
T

D
R

9T
H

   
S

T

AVE

PORT LAND

S
T

JASMINE 
CIR

LI
N

D
E

N

PL

C
T

QUINCE AVE

UTICA

ROSEWOOD

F

AUR ORA

LI
N

ST

SPRUCE ST

ST

S
T

JENNINE

POPLAR          AVE

R
A

W
H

ID
E

SIERRA

12
TH

S
T

13
TH

ST

P
L

W
A

S
H

IN
G

TO
N

CHEST

FOREST

HAWTHORN

AVOCADO

PERSIMMON

P
L

PE
A

C
H

18
TH

 S
T

MARY LN

FO
XT

AI
L

MAR INE ST

ST

18
TH

AVE

GRAPE

GARLAND LN

D
E

L
W

Y

CR

AVE

STRAWBERRY

BLUEBELL

GRANDVIEW

S
T

W
A

LN
U

T

22
N

D

GRAPE

DR

JONATHAN

K
A

LM
IA

21
S

T

22
N

D

C
T

CR

N
 2

1S
T 

 S
T

HILL

BEAR

CT

CR.

BA
R

BE
R

RY

RD.

HILLSDALE

KOHLER

22
N

D

CR

24
TH

23
R

D

SPOTSWOOD

TAMARACK

MTN DR

OAK

GREEN

VASSAR

O V E RLO
OK

TAFT  DR

BELLA

HEIGHTS  AVE

W

AVE

C
T

THORNBIRD PL

C
T

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

B
IR

C
H

W
O

O
D

DR

NORTHBROOK PL

C
T

JU
D

S
O

N

DR.

COLBY

KOHLE
R

LAS HELY

27
TH

28
TH

 S
T

DAHLIA

W
Y

AV
E

RD

LN

SUNDOWN

27
TH

C
T

PALO PKY

ST.

FI
NDLA

Y

CT.

W
Y

.

AV
E

AV
E

DARTMOUTH AV

BIRCH AVE

31
S

T

C
A

N
Y

O
N

AVE

C
T

29
TH

   
S

T

D
O

ROSA CT

CR.

SILV
ER

36
TH

S
. 3

0T
H

31
S

T 
S

T

FOUNDRY PL

HICKOCK

BIG HORN ST

C
T

B
IM

IN
I C

T

G
ol

f C
lu

b 
D

r

CR.

PLU
ME CR.

GRINNELL

TOEDTLI

WALNUT

W
IL

D
ER

N
E

SS
PL

SPRING CREEK PL

S
A

V
A

N
N

A
H

 C
T

S
T 

P
E

TE
R

S
B

U
R

G
 C

T

C
T

JAY RD

PLEASANT RIDGE

C
R

S.       BROADW
AY

43
TH

PL

47
TH

BELL DR

KINGS RIDGE

CR

RD

RES

IN
GRAM

K
IO

W
A

CADDO

PEARL

W
R CR

M CR

PL

PL

A

C
H

E
Y

EE

W
AITE   DR

OCK

JACKSON

TESLA

BER
T

DR

PIMA

Q
U

A

CT

HICKORY

D
R

BR
O

O
K

LA
W

N

RD

H
O

U
D

M
A

N
H

A

C
H

E
R

O
K

E
E

MAN

C
R

HICKORY

LO
D

G
E

VIEW CT

C
O

N
E

S
T

O
G

A

H
U

R
O

N

PENN

PIO
NEER  R

D

SLE
EPYTI

ME   
    

    
DR

S.        BOULDER       RD.

PL

Wood bourne Hollow Rd

R
D

MESA DR

C
H

E
R

R
Y

V
A

LE
 R

D

ALM
OND

BU
RGUNDY

LA
R

K

NOTTING

DR

LA
W

N

SWAL

TWIN CT CTOUTRIGGER

S
TE

A
R

N
S

M
A

S
T

CT

C
T.

WHALEY DR

LAKEVIEW DR

JAY RD

C
R

A

C
T

PL

IDYLWILD CT

R
D

TR

C
A

R
TE

R
 T

R

GREEN WILLOW

CT

CORDWOOD

LI
C

H
E

N
 P

L

C
R

E
S

TO
N

E
 C

IR
.

V
A

LT
E

C
 L

N
D

E
E

R
 C

R
E

E
K

TERRACE PL

P
O

N
D

 D
R

O
LD

 PO
S

T C
R

AU
D

U
BO

N

C
R

EE
K

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D

SUN

C
T

S
P

Y
G

LA
S

S

CT

C
T

BAR
R

EL

E

SUNSHINE RD

Bo
ul

de
r V

ie
w

 L
n

RD

D
R

CLEVE LAND

LN

MOUNTAIN VIEW

DEWEY

P
L

5T
H

S
T

W
Y

JA
C

K
P

IN
E

C
T

POPLAR

C
T

LOCUST

LARAMIE BL

D- GAILLARDIA LN

R
D

W I

LL
O

W
B

R
O

O
K

AVE

GENEVA

S
T

AVE

CT

UNION       AVE

ZAMIA

DAKOTA BL

R
A

LS
TO

N
 S

T TERRACE CIR S

10
TH

9T
H

AVE

10
TH

O
R

A
N

G
E

10
TH

   
S

T

J

9T
H

11
TH

ST

BR
O

A
D

W
AY

HIGH    ST

JE
FF

.
B

U
C

K
E

Y
E

PERIWINKLE

15
TH

S
T

YAUPON AV

15
TH

 S
T

13
TH

11
TH

13
TH

S
T

14
TH

ST

BALSAM 

S
T

16
TH

S
T

AVE

DOGWOOD

OAK

REDWOOD

DR

RD

18TH ST

DEER VALLEY

COLUM BINE

14
TH

S
T

18
TH

17
TH

JOSLYN

NEHER    LN

CT

P
L

19
TH

AVE

S
T

AVE

22
N

D
 S

T

S
T

HERMOSA

P
L

C
R

NORWOOD

G
A

R
N

E
T

TAMARACK

LN

DR

CR

CT.

P
L

AVE

P
L

SOUTH

24
TH

HAWTHORN

JU
N

IP
E

R
   

  C
T 

KEYSTONE

MEADOW         AVE

AVE

PAMPAS

AG
AT

E

DR

CT. PL

D
R

.

VIE
SCRUB

B.M.CT.

CR

PL

YARROW

CR.

C
O

R
-

N
E

LL
26

TH
 A

V

UNIVERSITY

ST

S
T

C
R

Y
S

TA
L

Niblick
Ct

ILIFF  ST.

N

STANFORD

AVE

29
TH

28
TH

 S
T 

FR
O

N
T

A
G

E

PENN

SPRINGDALE

CORDRY

28
TH

   
 S

T

R
OU

N
D

TR
E

E

C
T

PIEDRA CT

TI
NC

U
P

LN.

CRIPPLE

IT
H

A
C

A

G
E

O
R

G
E

TO
W

N

FA
IR

FI
E

LD
  D

R
.

D
R

.

DARLEY

AU
BU

RN

ST

D
R

MA

PL

PL

M
O

N
TE

R
E

Y

CT

N
.

NOGALES

Pebble Beach Ln

EEK

SMUGGLER

CT.

CT.

LONGWOOD AVE.

DR.

E
D

IN
B

O
R

O

D
R

E
X

E
L 

 S
T.

D
R

.
34

TH
 S

T
C

T

BERKLEY

E. EUCLID AV

QUIN
N

ST

AVE

S
IL

V
E

R
TO

N
 S

T

A
N

G
 E

LO
V

IC

H
O

W
E

PALO

D
E

H
E

S
A

MUSTIQUE

AP
PL

E

PL.

TELLURIDE

DR.

HLEY

ST
PL

AVE

SITIO
N

FISHER

mer Ct

DR.

HANOVER  AVE.

S
.

44
TH

CT.

38
TH

  S
T

E AURORA AVE

FO
O

T
H

IL
LS

   
   

  P
K

W
Y

C
E

N
TE

R

LOKI

CHAMBERS

AIKINS

CR

S
T.

S
.

45
TH

DR

M
OHAW

K

EAST CR

EIN
STE

IN
 C

T

GIBBS AVE

HOP KINS

V
A

LK
Y

R
IE

BROWN

DR

W.

S
.

FO
OTHILLS        PKW

Y

M
ORG

AN        DR

CT

NOBLE

LA
 V

E
TA

D
R

WAY

S.
BO

U

TH
U

N
D

E
R

B
IR

D

DR

D
R

HOLMES PL

INGERSOLL PL

M
E

R
R

IT
T

D
R

CR

ILLINI

M
A

N
H

A
TT

A
N C

T
CREE

AVE

WHITE

C
T.

LN

DGE

WESTERN  AVE

E
 S

T
E

R
LIN

G
 C

R

C

PL

SIOUX

EUCLID

FAIRWAY C
T

C
T

C
E

N
TR

A
L

PKWY

S
T

WELLINGTON

WHITE

CHELSEA
CT.

OLD

SONGBIRD

BEN PL

62
N

D

S
O

N
P

L

TON GATE

LN

S
T

GL
EN

M
O

O
R

PI.N

S
W

A
LL

O
W

C
T

LN

MONTESSORI WY

BEACHCOMBER

R
A

V
E

N
W

O
O

D

CT

BAR NACLE ST

C
H

A
P

P
A

R
A

L

WILLIAMS

R
D

MOUNTAIN LN

DIA
GONAL  

    
  H

W
Y

M
EA

D
O

W
L

CHINOOK

ARK

G
ALLEY

C
T

TA
LL

Y
 H

O
 C

T

G
H

F: TABLE TOP
L: DRY CREEK

DR

COTONWOOD

N

MT

HARVEST  RD

CIRCLE

CT

LA
P

LA
TA

R
U

ST
IC

HOLL
OW

TE
EP

EE
 D

R

C
T.

M
U

IR
FI

E
LD

MT. S
HERMAN R

D.

GLACIE
R V

I E
W

 R
D

PARAGON

VAQ

PA
R

K 
C

T
C

T

MILL

TA
N

G
LE

W
O

O
D

 T
R

TA
N

G
LE

W
O

O
D

W
Y

GUNBARREL RD

C
O

LT
  D

R

EAST

Acorn Ln

South C
ed

CACTUS CT

G
LE

N
 C

T

GREEN

HIGH LAND      AVE

DELL WOOD

EVER GREEN

4T
H

 S
T

J- WILD ROSE LN

Chataqua Subdivision

E- MORNING GLORY DR

5T
H

  S
T

JA
Y

AVE

6T
H

7T
H

MAX WELL

NORTH

JUNIPER AVE

COTTAGE

ZAMIA

S
T

7T
H

S
T

8T
H

ST

ST

AVE

S
N

O
W

B
E

R
R

Y

FRONT RANGE DR

H

G

S
T S
T

ST

WALNUT ST

JE
FF

E
R

S
O

N

S
T

KALMIA

OAKLEAF

DR

OAK

TAMARACK

LONGHORN RD

C
T

C
T

R
E

M
U

D
A

AVE

13
TH

ST

S
T

DELLWOOD

15
TH

  S
T

16
TH

PL

C
T

CLOVERLEAF DR

QUINCE

17
TH

 S
T

17
TH

 S
T

AVE

ZAMIA

R
IA

TA

CT
.

MARIPOSA

15
TH

S
T

HILL

20
TH

  S
T

FERN

PL

VISTA

ST

AVE

AVOCADO

AV

21
S

T

H
O

LL
O

W
LN

19
TH

2O

22
N

D

21
S

T 
 S

T
2O

T
H

AVE

AVE

P
L

RD.

PL.

D
E

V
O

N

FA
IR

S
T

ST

AVE

S
T

DR

FR
E

M

AVE

JASPER

KELLER FARM DR

LN

VINCA

23
R

D

W
 POINT

DR.

C
R

KENWOOD

KITTREDGE

24
TH

ST

TUMWATER LN

WOOD

C
T

W
IN

D
IN

G T
RAIL 

DR

S
U

N
R

IS
E

AMBER

N
  2

6T
H

  S
T

Bogey
Ct

Divot
Ct

HEIDELBERG

C
A

R
N

EGIE

BA
YLOR  DR

REGIS DR.

VISTA

BLUFF

H
A

ZE
LW

O
O

D

P
A

S
E

O

A
U

TU
M

N

Spy Glass Ln

CR.

GALENA WY

EA

ST RID

29
TH

 S
T

K
A

LM
IA

NEBRINA

LOMA  PL

P
L

MADERA

H
O

Y
A

30
TH

PONDE

REDWOOD  PL

PLUM
CT

B
A

R
R

36
TH

   
S

T.

B
E

R
K

LE
Y

ST

36
TH

US HWY 36

S
T

AVE

MARINE    ST

H
A

U
P

 T
M

A
N

A
R

B
O

L

C
T

AVE.

LAS

DARTMOUTH

DAVI
DSO

NCT

BASELINE                    RD

36
TH

ARNOLD DR

AVE

HAYDEN PL

PL

HAMPTON 

S
T 

LU
C

IA
 S

T

KINGSTOWN PL SCARSDALE PL

BUT

H
A

S

UI

41
S

T
ST

FU
LL

ER

FOX

D
R

38TH

STERLING

EDISON

TALIS
M

AN
 D

R

V
A

LH
A

LL
A

O
D

IN

C
T.

OW

46
TH

TA
N

TR
A

CT

RD.

W
Y

CT
HUNT

M
O

ST

C
R

BALDWIN PL

DR

DR

DR

CR

PL

M
O

H
A

W
K

D
R

D
R

CR

H CT
DR

HUR

ONARCH

VAIL    CR

C
T.

D
R

D
R

KELL OGG  CR

BEN
D

CT

A
IR

P
O

R
T 

R
D

A
irp

or
t R

d

S
E

M
IN

O
LE

WY

PL

REL AVE

D
R

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

   
 S

T

OMAHA

AZTEC

CYPRESS
PA

R
KW

AY

W
 S

T
E

R
LIN

G
 C

R

DR

N
. 5

5T
H

 S
T

PL

56
TH

 S
T

S
W

A
LL

O
W

 L
N

CLAY

PL

FLATIRON

KNOLL

CT

W
IL

LO
W

 C
T

ORCHARD CREEK

G
A

P
TE

R

C
H

E
R

R
Y

V
A

LE

C
T

RESERVE

WONDER V
IE

W

RD

BROMP

C
R

G
A

LE
 A

V
E

DR

TEAL  CT

S
T

ANDRUS RD

IN

RD

HILL

CT

BOW

P
IN

TA
IL

VALMONT

KE
EL

C
T

N
A

U
TI

LU
S

 C
T 

N

WY

B.

EW RANCH

NEWLA

DR

C

C: QUARRY

A: OUTBACK

IE
R

G
LA

C

LN

L

HOMESTEAD

WINCHESTER

E
A

S
TV

IE
W

 D
R

WAPITI

CT

W
Y

FORK

C
IR

.

PETURSDALE CT

CT

DR

P
TA

R
M

G
A

N

GLACIER  VIEW  RD

PKW
Y

E LD CT

YUCCA

P
IN

E
 V

A
LL

E
Y

MT. M
EEKER R

D.

PL

O
LD

C
R

C
Lubhouse C

ir

IN
G

H
A

M

C
T

W
IL

D
 D

U
N

E
S

DR

N.  Foothills   Hwy.

Boulder Denver Turnpike

Diag
onal  

 Hwy.
S.  Foothills   Hwy.

Baseline  Rd.

Arapahoe  Rd.

The  Flatirons

Fern Cany on

      Bear       C
anyon

Shan ahan
 R

id
ge

Chautauqua 
Park

N.C.A.R.

N.I.S.T.

Boulder Municipal Airport

University of Colorado

University of Colorado
      Main Campus

IBM

Boulder Canyon

University of Colorado
    Research Park

Sunshine

Canyon

Sk
un

k 
  C

ree
k

Boulder   C
reek

Bear   Canyon   Cree
k

Fourmile   Canyon   Creek

Boulder  Creek

So
ut

h 
  B

ou
ld

er
   

C
re

ek

Sou
th 

  B
ou

lde
r  

 C
re

ek

Be
ar

 C
an

yo
n C

re
ek

Boulder Reservoir

Twin      L
akes

Valmont Reservoir

Viele
Lake

Sixmile
Reservoir

 Baseline
Reservoir

Wonderland
      Lake

Hayden
   Lake

Coot
Lake

Sombrero Marsh

36

36

119

7

93
W08

S02

S05

S04

S03

S01

N01

N02

N03

N04

N05

N06

N07

N08

N09

N10

N11

N12

N13

W08 W07 W06 W05 W04 W03 W02 W01 E01 E02 E03 E04 E05

E05E04E03E02W07 W06 W05 W04 W03 W02 W01 E01

LEE HILL DR

ALLEY

ST

15
TH

PINE ST

ST

RD

19
TH

20
TH

ST

20
TH

ST

VE

10
TH

SIDE

GOSS

ST

ST

PL
C

O
LN

11
TH

PEARL STREET MALL

18
TH

ST

ST

OVE

ST

GRANDVIEW

ST
10

TH

AVE

MAPLETON   AV

17
TH

ST

GR

NE

ST

11
TH

CANYON BLVD

ARAPAHOE

ATHENS ST

16
TH

H
   

ST

AVE

LI
N

ST

SPRUCE ST

H

ST

MAR INE ST

ST

18
TH

GRANDVIEW

W
AL

N
U

T

10
TH

ST

BR
O

AD
W

AY

HIGH    ST

14
TH

ST

H

ST

A

7T
H

ST

8T
H

ST

ST

ST

WALNUT ST

13
TH

ST

HILL

H
O

LL
O

W
LN

19
TH

BMS

BT-2

BT-2

DT-2

RL-2

M

RMX-1

DT-1

BC-1

RH

RH-1

RM-2

DT-2

RH-2

DT-4

DT-2

RMX-1

BT-2

DT-5

DT-5

BT-2

RH-1

RMX-1

RH-2

DT-3

RH-2

BT-2

DT-2

Downtown Boulder Zoning Districts Inset

1" = 1000'

Zoning District Map of the City of Boulder, Colorado
Adopted 7/12/2006 (Ordinance 7476)*

0 2,000 4,0001,000

Feet

Zoning Districts
(Previous Zoning District Name in Parentheses)

Residential Commercial & Business Mixed Use
MH Mobile Home   (MH-E)

RE Residential - Estate  (ER-E) 

RH-1 Residential - High 1  (HR-X)

RH-2 Residential - High 2   (HZ-E) 

RH-3 Residential - High 3   (HR1-X)       

RH-4 Residential - High 4   (HR-D)  

RH-5 Residential - High 5   (HR-E)   

RL-1 Residential - Low 1    (LR-E) 

RL-2 Residential - Low 2    (LR-D)        

RM-1 Residential - Medium 1   (MR-D)   

RM-2 Residential - Medium 2    (MR-E)       

RM-3 Residential - Medium 3   (MR-X)       

RMX-1 Residential - Mixed 1    (MXR-E)  

RMX-2 Residential - Mixed 2    (MXR-D)  

RR-1 Residential - Rural 1     (RR-E)    

RR-2 Residential - Rural 2     (RR1-E) 

Industrial

Agricultural and Public

Other

BC-1 Business - Community 1    (CB-D)  

BC-2 Business - Community 2    (CB-E)  

BCS Business - Commercial       (CS-E) 

BMS Business - Main Street      (BMS-X) 

BR-1 Business - Regional 1       (RB-E)  

BR-2 Business - Regional 2       (RB-D) 

BT-1 Business - Transitional 1    (TB-D) 

BT-2 Business - Transitional 2    (TB-E) 

DT-1 Downtown 1    (RB3-X/E) 

DT-2 Downtown 2    (RB2-X) 

DT-3 Downtown 3    (RB2-E) 

DT-4 Downtown 4    (RB1-E) 

DT-5 Downtown 5   (RB1-X) 

MU-1 Mixed Use 1  (MU-D) 

MU-2 Mixed Use 2  (RMS-X) 

MU-3 Mixed Use 3  (MU-X) 

IG Industrial - General   (IG-E/D) 

IM Industrial - Manufacturing   (IM-E/D) 

IMS Industrial - Mixed Services  (IMS-X)

IS-1 Industrial - Service 1   (IS-E)

IS-2 Industrial - Service 2   (IS-D)

A  Agricultural    (A-E)

P  Public    (P-E)

Map produced by the City of Boulder, Planning and Development Services GIS 
For information call (303)441-1880 or visit us on the web at www.boulderplandevelop.net 
 
 
All rights reserved. The map information contained hereon is intended for the sole use of the purchaser and may not be copied, duplicated or redistributed  
in any way, in whole or in part, without the expressed written consent of the City of Boulder. The information depicted is provided as a graphical representation  
only. While source documents were developed in compliance with National Map Accuracy Standards, the City of Boulder provides no guarantee, express or  
implied, as to the accuracy and/or completeness of the information contained hereon. Printed on Wednesday, March 19, 2008 
 

 
 © 2008 City of Boulder, Co S U B J E C T  TO  R E V I S I O N 

RH-6 Residential - High 6 

MU-4 Mixed Use 4 

E  Enclave    (E)

Flex (F)

Medium Density District Overlay Zone

Designated Local Historic Districts

Boulder Valley Regional Center

Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date

7363 4/20/2004 7665 6/4/2009 7835 3/7/2012
7369 7/20/2004 7689 10/6/2009 7849 8/7/2012
7374 8/17/2004 7705 12/15/2009 7882 1/22/2013
7407 12/21/2004 7739 8/17/2010 7894 5/7/2013
7425 7/5/2005 7740 8/17/2010
7429 9/20/2005 7741 8/17/2010
7431 10/18/2005 7742 8/17/2010
7446 1/17/2006 7745 8/6/2010
7455 3/20/2006 7746 8/6/2010
7476 7/12/2006 7749 9/24/2010
7490 11/17/2006 7774 1/18/2011
7533 8/21/2007 7775 1/18/2011
7586 5/20/2008 7776 1/18/2011
7587 5/23/2008 7806 10/18/2011
7609 9/2/2008 7810 10/18/2011
7637 1/20/2009 7811 10/18/2011
7655 5/5/2009 7812 10/18/2011

*Zoning Map Amendments:

Attachment G1 - Zoning Map

Agenda Item 3H     Page 79Packet Page     317



Agenda Item 3H     Page 80Packet Page     318



MS

RH-5

BT-2

DT-2

RL-2

-1

DT-1

BC-1

RM-2

H-1

RM-2

DT-2

RH-2

DT-4

DT-2

RMX

RH-2

BT-2

DT-5

DT-5

BT-2

RH-1

RMX-1

RH-2

RH-5

DT-3

RH-2

BT-2

DT-2

8T
H

UNIVERSITY  AVE

ST

15
TH

PINE ST

ST

RD

ST

10
TH

ST

SIDE

PL
C

O
LN

11
TH

PEARL STREET MALL

PL
SUNSET  BLVD

18
TH

ST

ST

ST

GRANDVIEW

ST
10

TH

AVE

MAPLETON   AV

17
TH

ST

11
TH

CANYON BLVD

ARAPAHOE

NORTH  ST

ATHEN

16
TH

9T
H

   
ST

AVE

PORT LAND

LI
N

ST

SPRUCE ST

13
TH

ST

MAR INE S

ST

18
TH

10
TH

ST

BR
O

AD
W

AY

HIGH    ST

14
TH

ST

14
TH

ST

ST

ST

WALNUT ST

13
TH

ST

HILL

TH

1" = 1000'

Downtown Zoning District Map of the City of Boulder, Colorado
Adopted 7/12/2006 (Ordinance 7476)*

Zoning Districts
(Previous Zoning District Name in Parentheses)

Residential Commercial & Business Mixed Use
MH Mobile Home   (MH-E)

RE Residential - Estate  (ER-E) 

RH-1 Residential - High 1  (HR-X)

RH-2 Residential - High 2   (HZ-E) 

RH-3 Residential - High 3   (HR1-X)       

RH-4 Residential - High 4   (HR-D)  

RH-5 Residential - High 5   (HR-E)   

RL-1 Residential - Low 1    (LR-E) 

RL-2 Residential - Low 2    (LR-D)        

RM-1 Residential - Medium 1   (MR-D)   

RM-2 Residential - Medium 2    (MR-E)       

RM-3 Residential - Medium 3   (MR-X)       

RMX-1 Residential - Mixed 1    (MXR-E)  

RMX-2 Residential - Mixed 2    (MXR-D)  

RR-1 Residential - Rural 1     (RR-E)    

RR-2 Residential - Rural 2     (RR1-E) 

Industrial

Agricultural and Public

Other

BC-1 Business - Community 1    (CB-D)  

BC-2 Business - Community 2    (CB-E)  

BCS Business - Commercial       (CS-E) 

BMS Business - Main Street      (BMS-X) 

BR-1 Business - Regional 1       (RB-E)  

BR-2 Business - Regional 2       (RB-D) 

BT-1 Business - Transitional 1    (TB-D) 

BT-2 Business - Transitional 2    (TB-E) 

DT-1 Downtown 1    (RB3-X/E) 

DT-2 Downtown 2    (RB2-X) 

DT-3 Downtown 3    (RB2-E) 

DT-4 Downtown 4    (RB1-E) 

DT-5 Downtown 5   (RB1-X) 

MU-1 Mixed Use 1  (MU-D) 

MU-2 Mixed Use 2  (RMS-X) 

MU-3 Mixed Use 3  (MU-X) 

IG Industrial - General   (IG-E/D) 

IM Industrial - Manufacturing   (IM-E/D) 

IMS Industrial - Mixed Services  (IMS-X)

IS-1 Industrial - Service 1   (IS-E)

IS-2 Industrial - Service 2   (IS-D)

A  Agricultural    (A-E)

P  Public    (P-E)

Map produced by the City of Boulder, Planning and Development Services GIS 
For information call (303)441-1880 or visit us on the web at www.boulderplandevelop.net 
 
 
All rights reserved. The map information contained hereon is intended for the sole use of the purchaser and may not be copied, duplicated or redistributed  
in any way, in whole or in part, without the expressed written consent of the City of Boulder. The information depicted is provided as a graphical representation  
only. While source documents were developed in compliance with National Map Accuracy Standards, the City of Boulder provides no guarantee, express or  
implied, as to the accuracy and/or completeness of the information contained hereon. Printed on Wednesday, March 19, 2008 
 

 
 © 2008 City of Boulder, Co S U B J E C T  TO  R E V I S I O N 

RH-6 Residential - High 6 

MU-4 Mixed Use 4 

E  Enclave    (E)

Flex (F)

Medium Density District Overlay Zone

Designated Local Historic Districts

Boulder Valley Regional Center

Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date

7363 4/20/2004 7665 6/4/2009 7835 3/7/2012
7369 7/20/2004 7689 10/6/2009 7849 8/7/2012
7374 8/17/2004 7705 12/15/2009 7882 1/22/2013
7407 12/21/2004 7739 8/17/2010 7894 5/7/2013
7425 7/5/2005 7740 8/17/2010
7429 9/20/2005 7741 8/17/2010
7431 10/18/2005 7742 8/17/2010
7446 1/17/2006 7745 8/6/2010
7455 3/20/2006 7746 8/6/2010
7476 7/12/2006 7749 9/24/2010
7490 11/17/2006 7774 1/18/2011
7533 8/21/2007 7775 1/18/2011
7586 5/20/2008 7776 1/18/2011
7587 5/23/2008 7806 10/18/2011
7609 9/2/2008 7810 10/18/2011
7637 1/20/2009 7811 10/18/2011
7655 5/5/2009 7812 10/18/2011

*Zoning Map Amendments:

0 200 400100
Feet

Attachment G2 - Zoning Map - Downtown

Agenda Item 3H     Page 81Packet Page     319



Agenda Item 3H     Page 82Packet Page     320



RH-5

RM-2

BMS

RH-2

BT-2
11

th
 S

t

Broadway
12

th
 S

t

13
th

 S
t

Pleasant St

College Av

14
th

 S
t

University Av

15
th

 S
t

Pennsylvania Av

Broadw
ay

13
th

 S
t

11th St

15
th

 S
t

1" = 1000'

Uni Hill Zoning District Map of the City of Boulder, Colorado
Adopted 7/12/2006 (Ordinance 7476)*

Zoning Districts
(Previous Zoning District Name in Parentheses)

Residential Commercial & Business Mixed Use
MH Mobile Home   (MH-E)

RE Residential - Estate  (ER-E) 

RH-1 Residential - High 1  (HR-X)

RH-2 Residential - High 2   (HZ-E) 

RH-3 Residential - High 3   (HR1-X)       

RH-4 Residential - High 4   (HR-D)  

RH-5 Residential - High 5   (HR-E)   

RL-1 Residential - Low 1    (LR-E) 

RL-2 Residential - Low 2    (LR-D)        

RM-1 Residential - Medium 1   (MR-D)   

RM-2 Residential - Medium 2    (MR-E)       

RM-3 Residential - Medium 3   (MR-X)       

RMX-1 Residential - Mixed 1    (MXR-E)  

RMX-2 Residential - Mixed 2    (MXR-D)  

RR-1 Residential - Rural 1     (RR-E)    

RR-2 Residential - Rural 2     (RR1-E) 

Industrial

Agricultural and Public

Other

BC-1 Business - Community 1    (CB-D)  

BC-2 Business - Community 2    (CB-E)  

BCS Business - Commercial       (CS-E) 

BMS Business - Main Street      (BMS-X) 

BR-1 Business - Regional 1       (RB-E)  

BR-2 Business - Regional 2       (RB-D) 

BT-1 Business - Transitional 1    (TB-D) 

BT-2 Business - Transitional 2    (TB-E) 

DT-1 Downtown 1    (RB3-X/E) 

DT-2 Downtown 2    (RB2-X) 

DT-3 Downtown 3    (RB2-E) 

DT-4 Downtown 4    (RB1-E) 

DT-5 Downtown 5   (RB1-X) 

MU-1 Mixed Use 1  (MU-D) 

MU-2 Mixed Use 2  (RMS-X) 

MU-3 Mixed Use 3  (MU-X) 

IG Industrial - General   (IG-E/D) 

IM Industrial - Manufacturing   (IM-E/D) 

IMS Industrial - Mixed Services  (IMS-X)

IS-1 Industrial - Service 1   (IS-E)

IS-2 Industrial - Service 2   (IS-D)

A  Agricultural    (A-E)

P  Public    (P-E)

Map produced by the City of Boulder, Planning and Development Services GIS 
For information call (303)441-1880 or visit us on the web at www.boulderplandevelop.net 
 
 
All rights reserved. The map information contained hereon is intended for the sole use of the purchaser and may not be copied, duplicated or redistributed  
in any way, in whole or in part, without the expressed written consent of the City of Boulder. The information depicted is provided as a graphical representation  
only. While source documents were developed in compliance with National Map Accuracy Standards, the City of Boulder provides no guarantee, express or  
implied, as to the accuracy and/or completeness of the information contained hereon. Printed on Wednesday, March 19, 2008 
 

 
 © 2008 City of Boulder, Co S U B J E C T  TO  R E V I S I O N 

RH-6 Residential - High 6 

MU-4 Mixed Use 4 

E  Enclave    (E)

Flex (F)

Medium Density District Overlay Zone

Designated Local Historic Districts

Boulder Valley Regional Center

Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date Ordinance # Date

7363 4/20/2004 7665 6/4/2009 7835 3/7/2012
7369 7/20/2004 7689 10/6/2009 7849 8/7/2012
7374 8/17/2004 7705 12/15/2009 7882 1/22/2013
7407 12/21/2004 7739 8/17/2010 7894 5/7/2013
7425 7/5/2005 7740 8/17/2010
7429 9/20/2005 7741 8/17/2010
7431 10/18/2005 7742 8/17/2010
7446 1/17/2006 7745 8/6/2010
7455 3/20/2006 7746 8/6/2010
7476 7/12/2006 7749 9/24/2010
7490 11/17/2006 7774 1/18/2011
7533 8/21/2007 7775 1/18/2011
7586 5/20/2008 7776 1/18/2011
7587 5/23/2008 7806 10/18/2011
7609 9/2/2008 7810 10/18/2011
7637 1/20/2009 7811 10/18/2011
7655 5/5/2009 7812 10/18/2011

*Zoning Map Amendments:

0 90 18045
Feet

University of Colorado

Attachment G3 - Zoning Map - Uni Hill

Agenda Item 3H     Page 83Packet Page     321



Agenda Item 3H     Page 84Packet Page     322



 

Attachment H – 500-ft Buffer 

 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 85Packet Page     323



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 86Packet Page     324



 
Hospitality establishments and associated liquor licenses on University Hill 

 

Establishment Location Liquor 

License type 

Meal 

service? 

Square 

footage 

Closing 

time 

The Corner 1100 13th St. HR* Yes 1,776 sf 11 pm 
Cheba Hut 1315 College HR Yes 1,490 sf 11 pm 
Illegal Pete's 1320 College HR Yes 1,700 sf 2:30 am 

Rose Hill 
Liquor 1089 13th Retail liquor 

Liquor sales 
only 

706 sf 
12 am 

Qdoba 1119 13th HR Yes 2,763 sf 12 am 

Fox Theater 
1135 
Broadway Tavern 

No  - 
2 am 

Geisty's Dogg 
House 111413th HR 

Yes 2,517 sq. ft. 
11 pm 

Abo's Pizza 1124 13th HR Yes 3,010 sf 2 am 

Mamacita's 1149 13th HR Yes 1,222 sf 2 am 

The Sink 1165 13th HR Yes 1,900 sf 2 am 

Hapa Sushi  
1220 
Pennsylvania HR 

Yes 1,741 sf 
12 am 

Aion Cafe 

1235 
Pennsylvania HR 

Yes 1,500 sf 
11 pm 

Half Fast Subs 1215 13th HR Yes - 12 am 

Everyday store 1275 13th 

off premise 
3.2% 

No 3,015 sf 
12 am 

The 
Goose/Fatty 
J’s 

1301 
Broadway HR 

Yes 1,768 sf 

3 am 

Cosmo's Pizza 

1325 
Broadway HR 

Yes 2,695 sf 
2:30 am 

Rib House 

1335 
Broadway HR 

Yes 1,555 sf 
11 pm 

K's China 

1325 
Broadway HR 

Yes 3,301 sf  
2 am 

7-Eleven Store 1091 13th st 
off-premise 
3.2% 

No 2,850 sf 
12 am 

  

 “*” Hotel & Restaurant liquor license 
 “-“ data not available 

 
 

Attachment I - Hospitality Establishments & Liquor Licences on Uni Hill

Agenda Item 3H     Page 87Packet Page     325



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Item 3H     Page 88Packet Page     326



 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
MEETING DATE: October 15, 2013 

 
 
AGENDA TITLE:  Request for direction on a proposal for a Boulder stage of the 
2014 U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge. 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTERS  
 
Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff seeks direction regarding council’s intention with respect to the city’s participation 
in the 2014 U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge.  Council previously had indicated an interest in 
exploring the city’s options and staff had scheduled this check in as part of the process.  
In light of the recent devastating flooding and the limited options available at this time, it 
is even more important that council weigh in on whether the city should seek to 
participate.  The damage to Flagstaff Road, the additional duties for city staff and other 
priorities related to the flood create questions about whether the city would support the 
submission of a proposal by the Boulder-based Local Organizing Committee (LOC) for a 
2014 race stage.  The race is the type of popular event that demonstrates the city values 
and would show the city’s resilience and recovery to a worldwide audience.   
 
Based on discussions with the LOC, two options have been identified for 2014: 1) a start 
in downtown Boulder with a finish in Denver; and 2) no participation.  Due to 
community benefit this race provides, staff recommends option 1, a downtown Boulder 
start with a finish in Denver. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Suggested Motion Language:  
Staff requests council consideration of this matter and action in the form of the following 
motion: 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 1Packet Page     327



 
Motion to: 
 

(1) Support the submission of a proposal by the Boulder based Local Organizing 
Committee for a 2014 U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge race stage that starts in 
downtown Boulder; and  

(2) Authorize the city manager to enter into an agreement to host a stage of the 2014 
U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge if an agreement can be reached for the city to host 
only a race start in downtown Boulder. 

 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS 
  

• Economic – A University of Colorado Leeds School of Business study of the 
2012 U.S. Pro Cycling Boulder stage estimated that spending by non-Boulder 
residents was $2.4 million, of which direct taxes totaled $98,000. Based on the 
percentage of visitors in Boulder specifically for the USA Pro Cycling Challenge, 
spending and taxes totaled $1.2 million and $48,000 based on a crowd of 60,000.   

• Environmental – The primary environmental concern related to the race was the 
potential impact on open space lands adjacent to the race course, where spectators 
gathered to watch the race.  The Open Space and Mountain Parks Department’s 
after action report found minimal impact on open space lands 

• Social – The 2012 race was an extraordinary success for our community.  It was 
called by some one of the best staged races ever held in the United States.  
Although the crowds were not as large as predicted, the route was lined with 
thousands of spectators.   It was difficult to find anyone in the community who 
did not enjoy the event.   

 
OTHER IMPACTS  

• Fiscal –The proposed council budget includes $200,000 for management of a 
professional bicycle race.  As a start would not include Flagstaff Road, this 
amount could be reduced depending on council direction.   This is a reduction 
from the $283,000 that the city expended on the 2012 race.  Staff believes that 
experience in managing the earlier race should produce significant savings in the 
management of future races. 

• Staff time – Any bicycle race will be managed with existing staff, although 
overtime may be required. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The United States Pro Cycling Challenge is a men’s professional bicycling stage race that 
was first run in 2011.  In 2012, Boulder participated as the finish location for the sixth 
stage - which began in Golden passed through Boulder twice and finished in the parking 
lot at the Flagstaff amphitheater.  A local organizing committee has approached city staff 
about participating in the 2014 race.  Race organizers have insisted on a Flagstaff finish 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 2Packet Page     328



for a finish stage in Boulder, such a finish in 2012 produced some of the most iconic 
images of American bicycle stage racing.  In light of the recent flood, the organizers are 
interested in alternatives for Boulder’s participation.  The community suffered what some 
have described as a “once in a thousand year” event.  Open space lands have suffered 
extraordinary damage.  Flagstaff road, west of 6th Street currently is open only for local 
residents and patrons of the Flagstaff House restaurant.  There is no public access to 
Realization Point.  Both the race organizers and LOC have expressed sensitivity to the 
community’s need to address flood damage.  Accordingly, the race organizers and local 
organizing committee – who have a strong commitment to pursue a Flagstaff finish in 
2015 - have suggested an alternative for 2014.  Under this alternative, Boulder could 
submit a proposal to host the start of the race on the final day.  The peloton would pass 
through downtown Boulder, not involve any portion of Flagstaff Road or open space 
properties and finish in Denver.    
 
Staff seeks direction from council on whether to support the LOC’s application for a 
stage of the 2014 U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge.      
 
ANALYSIS 
The 2012 U.S. Pro Cycling Challenge stage in Boulder was an immensely popular 
community event.  From an economic perspective, the Leeds School study concluded as 
follows: 
 

The level of direct purchases and taxes depend on the number of visitors. 
While crowd estimates are still pending from the city of Boulder, this 
report estimates spending and taxes for a variety of crowd levels based on 
survey data collected on race day. With a crowd of 60,000, roughly 35,000 
were visitors to the city of Boulder, of which 17,200 were in Boulder 
specifically for the USA Pro Cycling Challenge. In this scenario, direct 
visitor spending totaled $2.4 million, and visitor spending linked to USA 
Pro Cycling Challenge visitors totaled $1.2 million. Taxes related to 
visitors exceeded $98,000 for the day, while taxes related to those visitors 
who specifically cited the USA Pro Cycling Challenge as the purpose of 
their visit exceeded $48,000. 
 
While this study measures the visitor impacts immediately captured during 
the USA Pro Cycling Challenge, the city of Boulder will reap long-term 
benefits associated with the advertising and brand-building efforts that 
influence future visits to the city of Boulder. First-hand visitor experiences 
will lead to return visits, with nearly every visitor surveyed indicating they 
plan on visiting the city again in the future. 

 
On the one hand, the direct tax benefit of $48,000 did not meet the city’s investment of 
over $283,481 to support the event.  On the other, such an investment may be justifiable 
based on direct visitor spending of $2.4 million with additional future benefits.   
 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 3Packet Page     329



The proposed 2014 budget includes a reduced amount of $200,000 to support the race in 
2014.  This amount could be reduced by an additional $50,000 with a Boulder start.   A 
downtown start would require staff support but would not have any effect on OSMP.   
 
Staff recommends the option of seeking a start in Boulder for the 2014 race.  There are 
several reasons driving this recommendation.  First, the race was a great community 
experience.  Boulder has a long history of hosting professional bicycle races, including 
the Red Zinger and stages of the Coors Classic.  Boulder is home to many world class 
cyclists, including the Garmin-Sharp-Barracuda Professional Cycling team.  A significant 
portion of the peloton for the 2012 race had Boulder ties.  The Boulder community values 
bicycling as a competitive sport and as a sustainable and healthy form of transportation.  
The race also offers the city the opportunity for worldwide media exposure.  The 2012 
race was televised in 161 countries.  A 2014 race would not only demonstrate that 
Boulder is a great bicycling destination, but that the city is open for business. 
 
Although a Flagstaff finish is ideal, it is not good a good choice for this year for the city 
or for the race (according to the LOC).  The city suffered devastating flooding.  The city 
set records for daily, monthly and annual rainfall.  Open space was hit particularly hard.  
The department is working full time to restore access and repair damage.  This work will 
naturally slow during the winter, but will resume with complete staff commitment in the 
spring.  It would not be appropriate to divert these resources to a bicycle race next 
summer.  Open space will need every available hand to repair the damage and return 
complete access to the community. 
 
Thus, while staff supports having the race in Boulder once again, staff recommends that 
the city seek a route that avoids open space and focuses on the downtown.  It is important 
to show the world what Boulder is about, but also important to focus the city’s priorities 
in this challenging time.   
 
Representatives of the LOC will be available at the October 15 meeting to address 
council questions. 

Agenda Item 6A     Page 4Packet Page     330



 
 

 
 
 

TO: Members of Council 
FROM: Dianne Marshall, City Clerk’s Office 
DATE: October 15, 2013 

SUBJECT: Information Packet 
 

1. Call Ups 
  A. Vacation of an 829 square foot portion of an existing fourteen-foot 

utility easement located at 3220 Arnett Street (ADR2013-00170). 
 B. Vacation of a 3,638 square foot portion of an existing eighty-foot utility 

easement located at 1005 Gilbert Street (ADR2013-00005). 
 C. Landmark Alteration Certificate to rehabilitate and add 1,030 sq. ft. to 

the main house linking it with the existing garage and construction of a 
new 530 sq. ft. free-standing, two car garage at 3015 Kalmia Ave., per 
section 9-11-18 of the Boulder Revised Code (HIS2013-00219). This 
Landmark Alteration Certificate is subject to City Council call-up no 
later than October 15, 2013. 
 

2. Information Item 
 None. 

3. Boards and Commissions 
 A. Landmarks Board – September 4, 2013 
 B. Library Commission – October 2, 2013 
 C. Open Space Board of Trustees – September 25, 2013 
 D. Transportation Advisory Board – June 6, 2013 
 E. Transportation Advisory Board – July 8, 2013 
 F. Water Resources Advisory Board – July 15, 2013 

 
4. Declarations 

 None. 
 
 

 

Packet Page     331



 

Packet Page     332



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
 Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
 Sloane Walbert, Associate Planner 
 
Date:   October 8, 2013 
 
Subject: Call-Up Item:  Vacation of an 829 square foot portion of an existing fourteen-foot 

utility easement located at 3220 Arnett Street (ADR2013-00170). 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The applicant requests vacation of an 829 square foot portion of an existing fourteen-foot utility 
easement at 3220 Arnett Street (refer to Attachment D for exact location) to accommodate a new 
detached art studio/workshop on the northeast corner of the property.  The easement was originally 
dedicated on the Third Addition to High Meadows plat, recorded December 17, 1959. The portion 
of the easement running along the east property line contains overhead power lines. The applicant 
is proposing the vacation of the westerly two-feet of this portion of easement, which has been 
approved by Xcel Energy. It appears that the portion of the easement running along the north 
property line was intended for an electrical connection to a street light from the overhead power 
lines. A street light was never installed in this location. All public utilities have been placed in 
public right-of-way or other easements and no public need exists for the portion of easement to be 
vacated. 
 
The proposed vacation was approved by staff on September 24, 2013.  There is one scheduled City 
Council meeting on October 15th within the 30 day call-up period. 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS:  
Pursuant to the procedures for easement vacations set forth in subsection 8-6-10(b), B.R.C. 1981, 
the city manager has approved the vacation of an 829 square foot portion of the existing fourteen-
foot utility easement.  The date of final staff approval of the easement vacation was 
September 24, 2013 (refer to Attachment E, Notice of Disposition).  This vacation does not 
require approval through ordinance based on the following criteria:  
 

 It has never been open to the public; and 
 It has never carried regular vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  

Call Up 1A     Page 1Packet Page     333



 
The vacation will be effective 30 days later on October 24, 2013 unless the approval is called up 
by City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None identified. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS:  
 Economic: No economic impact is anticipated. 

 
 Environmental: No impacts are anticipated through this utility easement vacation.  
 
 Social: None identified.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is a 7,759 square foot lot located in a Residential - Low 1 (RL-1) zone district 
(refer to Attachment A, Vicinity Map).  The property is encumbered by a fourteen-foot utility 
easement that runs along the north and east property lines, with 7 feet located on the subject 
property (please refer to Attachment B, Site Plan).  The easement was originally dedicated for 
electric services in 1959.  Overhead electric lines are currently located in the easement along the 
east property line. The applicant is proposing the vacation of the westerly two feet of this portion 
of easement. Xcel Energy has approved the vacation of this portion of easement since it is not 
needed for the maintenance of the power lines. It appears the portion of easement along the north 
property line was intended for an electric connection from the power lines to a street light on 
Arnett Street. The street light was never installed at this location and another street light is located 
on Arnett Street to serve the neighboring houses. Since there is no public purpose for this portion 
of easement the applicant is proposing the vacation of the southerly seven-feet of easement located 
on their property.  
 
There are no public utilities or encroachments located in the portion of easement to be vacated. All 
surrounding properties are served by public utilities located on Arnett Street, Glenwood Drive, and 
Folsom Street. Given that there is no public need for the easement for which it was intended, 
failure to vacate the requested portion of easement would cause hardship to the property owner by 
limiting the development potential of the property.  
 
ANALYSIS:  
Staff finds the proposed vacation of an 829 square foot portion of an existing fourteen-foot utility 
easement consistent with the standard set forth in subsection (b) of section 8-6-10, “Vacation of 
Public Easements”, B.R.C. 1981.  Specifically, staff has determined that no public need exists for 
the portion of easement to be vacated because all public utilities are located in public right-of-way 
or other easements. 
 
No vacation of a public easement shall be approved unless the approving agency finds that: 
 
    1. Change is not contrary to the public interest. 

    2. All agencies having a conceivable interest have indicated that no need exists, either 
in the present or conceivable future, for its original purpose or other public purpose. 

Call Up 1A     Page 2Packet Page     334



    3. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations. 

    a. Failure to vacate the easement would cause a substantial hardship to the use of the 
property consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations; or 

  The portion of easement to be vacated is not necessary because all private utilities 
can be accommodated in the remaining portion of easement. The building site on 
this lot is currently unnecessarily limited by the utility easement since there is no 
public need for the easement. 

 N/A  b. Would provide a greater public benefit than retaining the property in its present 
status. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PROCESS:  
Notice of the vacation will be advertised in the Daily Camera within the 30 day call up period.  
Staff has received no written or verbal comments adverse to the vacation.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  
If the requested vacation is not called up by City Council then the Deed of Vacation (Attachment  
C) will be recorded.  If the requested vacation is called up, and subsequently denied, the applicant 
will be limited to development on the property outside of the easement area. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A:   Vicinity Map 
Attachment B:   Site Plan 
Attachment C:   Deed of Vacation 
Attachment D:  Exhibit A 
Attachment E:  Notice of Disposition 

Call Up 1A     Page 3Packet Page     335



 

Packet Page     336



 

3220 Arnett St 

GLENWOOD DR 

GRAPE AVE 

AR
N

ETT ST 

FO
LSO

M
 ST 

Attachment A 
Vicinity Map

Call Up 1A     Page 4Packet Page     337



 

Packet Page     338



 

Subject 
Easement 

Attachment B 
Site Plan

Call Up 1A     Page 5Packet Page     339



 

Packet Page     340



 
 

 
 

Attachment C 
Deed of Vacation

Call Up 1A     Page 6Packet Page     341



 

Packet Page     342



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1A     Page 7Packet Page     343



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1A     Page 8Packet Page     344



 
 

Attachment E 
Notice of Disposition

Call Up 1A     Page 9Packet Page     345



 

Packet Page     346



 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning & Sustainability 
 Charles Ferro, Development Review Manager 
 Sloane Walbert, Associate Planner 
 
Date:   October 8, 2013 
 
Subject: Call-Up Item:  Vacation of a 3,638 square foot portion of an existing eighty-foot utility 

easement located at 1005 Gilbert Street (ADR2013-00005). 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The applicant requests vacation of a 3,638 square foot portion of an existing eighty-foot utility 
easement at 1005 Gilbert Street (refer to Attachment D for exact location) for the construction of 
a single-family home to replace the existing structure. The portion of land to be vacated was 
originally dedicated as public right-of-way on the Geneva Park Addition plat, recorded in 1904. 
Ordinance No. 1489 vacated this portion of Euclid Avenue right-of-way west but reserved the 
“right for maintenance of water and sewer lines and requirements for public utility services” for 
the City of Boulder within the vacated portion of right-of-way. The vacation will maintain a 
fourteen-foot utility easement on the property’s southern boundary. A light pole and associated 
overhead electric lines previously located within the area of vacation has been relocated to the 
south within the remaining portion of easement. There is no public need for the portion of utility 
easement to be vacated because all private utilities will be located in the remaining westerly 
portion of the easement. All surrounding properties are served by public utilities located within the 
right-of-way on Gilbert Street and Euclid Avenue. 
 
The proposed vacation was approved by staff on October 1, 2013.  There is one scheduled City 
Council meeting on October 15th within the 30 day call-up period. 
 

Call Up 1B     Page 1Packet Page     347



CODE REQUIREMENTS:  
Pursuant to the procedures for easement vacations set forth in subsection 8-6-10(b), B.R.C. 1981, 
the city manager has approved the vacation of the northerly twenty six feet of the existing eighty-
foot utility easement. The date of final staff approval of the easement vacation was 
October 1, 2013 (refer to Attachment E, Notice of Disposition). This vacation does not require 
approval through ordinance based on the following criteria:  
 

 It has never been open to the public; and 
 It has never carried regular vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  

 
The vacation will be effective 30 days later on October 31, 2013 unless the approval is called up 
by City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None identified. 
 
COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY ASSESSMENTS AND IMPACTS:  
 Economic: None identified.  

 
 Environmental: None identified.  
 
 Social: None identified.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is a large 17,472 square foot lot located in the Residential - Low 1 (RL-1) 
zone district (refer to Attachment A, Vicinity Map). The property is encumbered by an eighty-foot 
utility easement running east-west along the south property line, with forty feet located on the 
subject property (please refer to Attachment B, Site Plan). The portion of land to be vacated was 
originally dedicated as right-of-way for Euclid Avenue on the Geneva Park Addition plat, recorded 
in 1904. In 1948, Euclid Avenue right-of-way west of Gilbert Street was vacated per Ordinance 
No. 1489. The ordinance reserved the utility rights within the vacated portion of right-of-way for 
the City of Boulder. The proposed vacation will maintain fourteen-feet of utility easement on the 
property’s southern boundary. An existing gas line runs ten-feet from the south property line and 
will be contained within the remaining portion of easement. Additionally, a light pole and 
associated overhead electric lines previously located within the area of vacation has been relocated 
to the south within the remaining 14-foot easement. 
 
The subject easement significantly limits the building envelope on the property. The applicant is 
designing a new single-family home to replace the existing structure and would like to expand the 
building footprint into the current easement area. Given that there is no public need for the 
easement for which it was intended, failure to vacate the requested portion of easement would 
cause hardship to the property owner by limiting the development potential of the property.  
 
ANALYSIS:  
Staff finds the proposed vacation of the northerly twenty six feet of the existing forty-foot utility 
easement consistent with the standard set forth in subsection (b) of section 8-6-10, “Vacation of 
Public Easements”, B.R.C. 1981. Specifically, staff has determined that no public need exists for 
the portion of easement to be vacated due to the fact that all public utilities are located within the 

Call Up 1B     Page 2Packet Page     348



public-right-of way and existing private utilities will be located within the remaining portion of 
easement. 
 
No vacation of a public easement shall be approved unless the approving agency finds that: 
 
    1. Change is not contrary to the public interest. 

    2. All agencies having a conceivable interest have indicated that no need exists, either 
in the present or conceivable future, for its original purpose or other public purpose. 

    3. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations. 

    a. Failure to vacate the easement would cause a substantial hardship to the use of the 
property consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Regulations; or 

  The applicant is interested in constructing a new single-family home to replace the 
existing structure. The utility easement reservation unnecessarily limits the building 
envelope for the new home to the far north end of the property. The portion of 
easement to be vacated is not necessary because all private utilities are 
accommodated in the remaining portion of easement. There is no public need for 
the easement.  

 N/A  b. Would provide a greater public benefit than retaining the property in its present 
status. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PROCESS:  
Notice of the vacation will be advertised in the Daily Camera within the 30 day call-up period. 
Staff has received no written or verbal comments adverse to the vacation.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  
If the requested vacation is not called-up by City Council then the Deed of Vacation (Attachment  
C) will be recorded. If the requested vacation is called-up, and subsequently denied, the applicant 
will be limited to development on the property outside of the easement area. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Vicinity Map 
Attachment B: Site Plan 
Attachment C: Deed of Vacation 
Attachment D: Exhibit A 
Attachment E: Notice of Disposition 

 
 
 
 
 

Call Up 1B     Page 3Packet Page     349



 

Packet Page     350



 
 

  5TH ST

6TH ST 

1005 Gilbert St 

EUCLID AVE 

G
IL

B
ER

T 
ST

GENEVA AVE 

5TH
 S

T 

6TH
 S

T 

Attachment A 
Vicinity Map

Call Up 1B     Page 4Packet Page     351



 

Packet Page     352



 
 
 

ELDER AVE 

Attachment B 
Site Plan

Call Up 1B     Page 5Packet Page     353



 

Packet Page     354



 
 
 
  

 
 

Attachment C 
Deed of Vacation

Call Up 1B     Page 6Packet Page     355



 

Packet Page     356



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1B     Page 7Packet Page     357



 

Attachment D 
Exhibit A

Call Up 1B     Page 8Packet Page     358



 

Attachment E 
Notice of Disposition

Call Up 1B     Page 9Packet Page     359



 

Packet Page     360



 

 
 
 

INFORMATION PACKET 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Members of City Council 
 
From:  Jane S. Brautigam, City Manager 
 Paul J. Fetherston, Deputy City Manager 
 David Driskell, Executive Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
 Susan Richstone, Deputy Director of Community Planning and Sustainability 
 Lesli Ellis, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
 James Hewat, Senior Historic Preservation Planner 
 Marcy Cameron, Historic Preservation Planner 
  
Date:   October 15, 2013 
 
Call-up Item: Landmark Alteration Certificate to rehabilitate and add 1,030 sq. ft. to the main 
house linking it with the existing garage and construction of a new 530 sq. ft. free-standing, two-
car garage at 3015 Kalmia Ave., per section 9-11-18 of the Boulder Revised Code (HIS2013-
00219). This Landmark Alteration Certificate is subject to City Council call-up no later 
than October 15, 2013.  
  
 
Executive Summary 
The proposal for the rehabilitation of the historic house and garage, construction of an addition at 
the rear of the main house and construction of a free-standing garage as shown on plans dated 
08/29/2013, was approved with conditions by the Landmarks Board (4-1, N. Fiore objecting) at 
the October 2, 2013 meeting. The decision was based upon the board’s consideration that the 
proposed construction meets the requirements in Section 9-11-18, B.R.C. 1981.  
 
The board’s approval is subject to a 14-day call-up period by City Council. The approval of this 
Landmark Alteration Certificate is subject to City Council call-up no later than October 15, 
2013. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Notice of Disposition dated October 2, 2013 
B. Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave. 
 

 
 

Call Up 1C     Page 1Packet Page     361



 

Packet Page     362



 
 

Notice of Disposition 
 
 
You are hereby advised that on October 2, 2013 the following action was taken: 
 
ACTION:     Approved by a vote of 4-1 (N. Fiore objecting)  
 
APPLICATION: Public hearing and consideration of a Landmark Alteration 

Certificate to rehabilitate and add 1,030 sq. ft. to the main house 
linking it with the existing garage and construction of a new 530 
sq. ft. free-standing, two-car garage at 3015 Kalmia Ave., per 
section 9-11-18 of the Boulder Revised Code (HIS2013-00219). 

 
LOCATION:   3015 Kalmia Ave. 
 
ZONING:   Flex – (F) 
 
APPLICANT:  Markel Homes/Kalmia Estates Dev., LLC 
      
This decision was arrived at based on the purposes and intent of the Historic Preservation Code as set 
forth in 9-11-18, B.R.C., 1981, as applied to the Landmark Alteration Certificate application.  
 
Public Hearing   
Abby Daniels, 1123 Spruce St., Boulder, CO spoke in support of the Landmark Alteration 
Certificate application. 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by M. Gerwing, seconded by K. Snobeck, the Landmarks Board adopted (4-1, N. 
Fiore objecting) the staff memorandum dated October 2, 2013 in Matter 5C (HIS2013-00219) as 
the findings of the board and approves rehabilitation of the historic house and garage at 3015 
Kalmia Ave., construction of an addition at the rear of the main house and construction of a free-
standing garage as shown on plans dated 08/29/2013, finding that they generally meet the 
standards for issuance of a Landmark Alteration Certificate in Chapter 9-11-18, B.R.C. 1981, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) The applicant shall be responsible for the rehabilitation, addition and new garage in 

compliance with the approved plans dated 08/29/2013, except as modified by these 
conditions of approval. 
 

2)  Prior to submitting a building permit application and final issuance of the Landmark 
Alteration Certificate, the applicant shall submit the following, which shall be subject to the 
final review and approval of the Landmarks design review committee: final architectural 
plans that include: 
a. Revisions to reduce the perceived mass and scale of the proposed rear addition to the 

main house; 

Attachment A 
Notice of Disposition - October 2, 2013 

Call Up 1C     Page 2Packet Page     363



b. Dormers and fenestration that have been revised to be more compatible with that of the 
historic house; 

c. A smaller attachment of historic house and historic garage, minimizing the loss of 
historic eastern wall of the garage; and  

d. The reduction of the overall amount of built area on the property to preserve the 
historically rural character of the property. 
 

3) The Landmarks design review committee shall review details regarding the rehabilitation of 
the historic house, including porch restoration, window and door rehabilitation and 
replacement; wall materials, doors and window details including moldings, and proposed 
insets, paint colors, fencing and hardscaping on the property to ensure that the approval is 
consistent with the General Design Guidelines and the historic preservation ordinance. 

   
N. Fiore’s vote against the motion was a result of his consideration that some of the conditions 
of approval were too restrictive.   

Attachment A 
Notice of Disposition - October 2, 2013 

Call Up 1C     Page 3Packet Page     364



 
 

 
Figure 1. 3015 Kalmia Avenue Tax Assessor Card photograph c.1949. 

 
 

   
Figure 2. Location Map, 3015 Kalmia Ave. and Kalmia Estates Development (L) and Landmark 

Boundary Map (dashed line) (R) 
 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 4Packet Page     365



 
Figure 3. South and east elevations, 3015 Kalmia Ave., 2013. 

 

 

 
Figure 4. East elevation, 3015 Kalmia Ave., 2013. 

 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 5Packet Page     366



 
Figure 5. West elevation, garage and house, 3015 Kalmia Ave., 2013. 

 

 
Figure 6. North elevation, view of rear additions, 3015 Kalmia, 2013. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 6Packet Page     367



 
Figure 7. Existing Site Plan 

 

 

 

 
Figure 8. Proposed Site Plan 

 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 7Packet Page     368



 
Figure 9. Existing South Elevation (façade) 

 
 

 
Figure 10. Proposed South Elevation (façade) 

 

 
Figure 11. Existing North Elevation (rear) 

 

 
 

Figure 12: Proposed North Elevation (rear) 
 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 8Packet Page     369



 
Figure 13: Existing east Elevation (street facing) 

 

 
Figure 14: Proposed east Elevation (street facing) 

 

 
Figure 15: Existing west Elevation  

 

 
Figure 16: Proposed west Elevation 

 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 9Packet Page     370



 
Figure 17: Rendering of 3015 Kalmia Ave. 

 

 
Figure 18: Rendering of 3015 Kalmia Ave. 

 

 
Figure 19: Rendering of 3015 Kalmia Ave. 

 

Attachment B 
Photographs and Drawings of 3015 Kalmia Ave

Call Up 1C     Page 10Packet Page     371



 

Packet Page     372



Boards and Commissions 3A    Page 1Packet Page     373



Boards and Commissions 3A    Page 2Packet Page     374



Boards and Commissions 3A    Page 3Packet Page     375



Boards and Commissions 3A    Page 4Packet Page     376



 

CITY OF BOULDER, COLORADO 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEETING ACTION SUMMARY FORM 

NAME OF BOARD/COMMISSION:  LIBRARY COMMISSION 
DATE OF MEETING: October 2, 2013 at Main Library 
NAME/TELEPHONE OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:  Leanne Slater, 303-441-3106 
LIBRARY COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:  Anne Saw yer, Celeste Landry, Donna O’Brien, Anna Lull, and Paul Sutter 
(new  Library Commissioner, sw orn in during this meeting) 
LIBRARY COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  None  
LIBRARY STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:   Maureen Rait , Jennifer Miles, Gw en Holton, and Leanne Slater 
CITY STAFF PRESENT:  Glenn Magee, Joe Castro, Jennifer Bray, and Peggy Bunzli 
PUBLIC PRESENT: Doris Hass, Peter Richards, Alice McDonald, Margaret Porter, and Amy Tremper  
 
Call to order: The meeting w as called to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Approval of Agenda: Saw yer amended the agenda by adding an item as 3A, ent it led Welcome Maureen Rait  as Library and 
Arts Director. 

Public Participation: No public part icipat ion 
 
Welcome and Swearing In of New Commissioner:  Paul Sutter w as w elcomed as the new  Library Commissioner and 
Commissioner O’Brien administered his oath of off ice. 
 

A. Welcome Maureen Rait  as Act ing Library and Arts Director  
 
Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of Sept. 4, 2013 minutes- The Sept. 4, 2013 minutes w ere unanimously approved as amended (4-0, 
Sutter abstained as he w as not a member of the Library Commission at the Sept. meet ing). 

B. Commission Update (from memo) 
C. Library Update (from memo)- Saw yer amended the agenda by adding an item ent it led Proposed North Boulder Library 

Stat ion, before the Commission Priority Discussion and Input.  
D. Motion to Approve Warner Charitable Trust Donation- The Library Commission unanimously passed a resolut ion (5-0) 

accept ing the annual revenue from the Warner Charitable Trust.  In addit ion, the Library Commission agreed 
to send a let ter of grat itude to the Warner Family for this yearly donat ion.     
 

Update on the New Library Director Search: Rait  provided an update on the new  library director search and stated that she 
w ill provide more details next month. 
 
Proposed North Boulder Library Station (10 minutes): 
The Library Commission voted unanimously in favor (5-0) of the follow ing motion w hich states:  The Library Commission 
requests that City Council increase the 2014 operat ing budget for the North Boulder Library Stat ion by $60,000 in order to 
increase the operat ing hours from 20 to 40 per w eek. This w ould increase the operat ing budget from $115,000 to 
$175,000 for the year. One-t ime costs w ill remain at $90,000. 

Commission Priority Discussion and Input: 
A. Update on Flood Impact to Library Facilit ies (23 minutes) 
B. Main Library Renovat ion Project Design Advisory Group Update (25 minutes) 
C. Renovat ion Project Ideas for Possible Funding by Boulder Library Foundation  

 
Matters from the commission: 

A. Library Commission Web Pages (10 minutes) 

Matters from the department: 
        A. Review  Boulder Library Foundation Fall Program Funding Requests (12 minutes) 
        B. Plan for Target Patron Survey on Library Programming 
 
Adjournment – The meeting w as adjourned at 7:52 p.m.  
 
Next commission meeting (rollover items):  Shelley Sullivan, BoulderReads!  manager, w ill present the Janet Driskell Turner-
Outstanding Adult  Learner aw ard, library’s renovat ion update regarding the contractor select ion process and review  of the 
public art  select ion panel recommendations, funding goal w ith information and vision information in relat ion to the library’s 
master plan,  update on the approved 2014 Library & Arts budget, begin priorit izat ion of Library Commission goals in 
preparat ion of sending the commission’s let ter to City Council in December, report  on Boulder Library Foundation’s grants, 
and  an update on securing a recruitment f irm for the library and arts director search, and possibly information on a patron 
survey iterat ion.  
 
 
 
 

Boards and Commissions 3B     Page 1Packet Page     377



 

 
 
ATTACH BRIEF DETAILS OF ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS (LIMIT TO ONE PAGE):  
 
TIME AND LOCATION OF ANY FUTURE MEETINGS, COMMITTEES OR SPECIAL HEARINGS:   6 p.m. on Wed., Nov. 6, 2013 
at the Main Library, in the North Meeting Room, 1001 Arapahoe Ave. 

 
 

Boards and Commissions 3B     Page 2Packet Page     378



    
 
 

 
 

CITY OF BOULDER 
Boards and Commissions Minutes 

 
NAME OF COMMISSION:  Open Space Board of Trustees 

DATE OF MEETING: September 25, 2013 

NAME/EXTENSION OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:   Leah Case x2025 

NAMES OF MEMBERS, STAFF AND INVITED GUESTS PRESENT:   
 
MEMBERS:  Allyn Feinberg, Tom Isaacson, Shelley Dunbar, Molly Davis 
 
STAFF:  Mike Patton     Jim Reeder     Dean Paschall     Eric Stone      Annie McFarland     Mike Orosel    
   Phillip Yates     Dave Kuntz    Leah Case        Michele Gonzales 
 
GUESTS: Marni Ratzel, Senior Transportation Planner  
 
TYPE OF MEETING:                     REGULAR        CONTINUATION          SPECIAL 

SUMMATION:  
 
AGENDA ITEM 1- Approval of the Minutes 
Postponed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 2- Public Participation 
Four people spoke encouraging staff to open up the trails on Open Space. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3- Director’s Updates 
Mike Patton gave a presentation to the Board showing damage from the flood in various parts of the system. 
This is saved in S: OSMP\Admin\OSBT\Minutes\Minutes 2013\September.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 4- Matters from the Board 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5 – Consideration and recommendation to the city manager and City Council on the 
prospect for holding a stage of the USA Pro-Cycle Challenge that could impact Open Space and 
Mountain Parks-managed property.* 
Mike Patton, OSMP Director, gave a presentation regarding Pro Cycle. The City of Boulder is being 
considered for a stage of the USA Pro-Cycle Challenge (USA PCC) bicycle race to be held during August of 
2014. The proposed stage would be similar to that held in 2012 and would end with travel up Flagstaff Road, 
turn into Realization Point with the finish line in the parking area NW of Sunrise Amphitheater. It is 
anticipated that staging in and around the finish line would be similar to that of 2012 with VIP seating and 

 

Boards and Commissions 3C     Page 1Packet Page     379



food tents located around the area. 
 
This item spurred three motions: 
Tom Isaacson moved the Open Space Board of Trustees recommend to City Council that granting a 
non-exclusive license for a professional bike race finishing on Flagstaff Mountain Summit Road is 
consistent with the city charter governing Open Space, provided  that there is appropriate 
management plan to mitigate impacts on Open Space. Shelley Dunbar seconded. This motion does not 
pass. Allyn Feinberg, Frances Hartogh and Molly Davis dissented.   
 
Allyn Feinberg moved the Open Space Board of Trustees recommend to City Council that granting a 
non-exclusive license for a professional bike race finishing on Flagstaff Mountain Summit Road is not 
consistent with the city charter governing Open Space, finding that a professional bike race is not 
passive recreation under the charter. Molly Davis seconded. This motion passed three to two. Shelley 
Dunbar and Tom Isaacson dissented.   
 
Allyn Feinberg moved the Open Space Board of Trustees ask staff to investigate alternatives to 
holding this race and race-related activities on Open Space. Frances Hartogh seconded. This motion 
passed three to two. Shelley Dunbar and Tom Isaacson dissented.  
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6 – Consideration of a recommendation to City Council for an Open Space and 
Mountain Parks supplemental appropriation to provide for repair and reconstruction of land 
damaged by the recent storm.* 
Mike Orosel, Financial Services Manager, gave a presentation regarding a supplemental appropriation. 
During the week of Sept. 8, 2013, the City of Boulder experienced an historic rainfall that in the latter half of 
the week caused flooding and substantial damage to both the Open Space and Mountain Parks (OSMP) 
system and city infrastructure. At the time of the writing of this memorandum, department staff was 
completing an onsite assessment and analysis of the damage. Preliminary reports from staff performing the 
onsite assessment are that the damage to the system is both extensive and severe. Costs associated with the 
damage have not been determined; however, the City Council will be requested to approve a 2013 
supplemental appropriation to provide funds for repairs to the system. 
 
This item spurred one motion: 
Tom Isaacson moved the Open Space Board of Trustees recommend that the City Council approve a 
supplemental appropriation $1,000,000 to the Open Space and Mountain Parks 2013 budget for 
necessary repairs and reconstruction of resource damage caused by the September storm and floods. 
Frances Hartogh seconded. This motion passed unanimously.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 7 – Consideration of City of Boulder Transportation Department’s proposal to 
recommend to the City Council a pilot project allowing electric-assisted bicycles on certain hard-
surfaced, multi-use paths.* 
Mike Patton, OSMP Director, gave a presentation regarding e-bikes. The pilot project proposes to evaluate 
behavior of e-bike riders to determine whether these vehicles can co-exist with current uses on these city-
owned and city–maintained multi-use paths. The project focuses on the urban service area where there is a 
network of hard-surface, off-street multi-use paths. The pilot project will not include use on trails that are 
pedestrian only or intended to preserve the natural environment or are soft surface. The map displayed is 
saved in S:OSMP\Admin\OSBT\Minutes\Minutes 2013\September. 
 
This item spurred one motion: 
Tom Isaacson moved the Open Space Board of Trustees finds that the use of e-bikes on Open Space 
paved paths is not appropriate under the charter, however the Open Space  Board of Trustees 
recommends that the Open Space and Mountain Parks staff begin investigating a possible disposal of 

Boards and Commissions 3C     Page 2Packet Page     380



those identified paved multi use paths on  Open Space and Mountain Parks land that principally serve 
a transportation function. Shelley Dunbar seconded. This motion passed four to one. Frances Hartogh 
dissented.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 
ATTACH BRIEF DETAILS OF ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
Two people spoke asking the Board to support the re-opening of OSMP trails, as well as encouraged 
including the public as much as possible in volunteer/restoration efforts. One person spoke regarding the e-
bike pilot program, and does not support this taking place on Open Space.  
 
 
TIME AND LOCATION OF ANY FUTURE MEETINGS, COMMITTEES OR SPECIAL HEARINGS:   
The next OSBT meeting will be at 1777 Broadway in the Council Chambers October 9, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Boards and Commissions 3C     Page 3Packet Page     381



 

Packet Page     382



Boards and Commissions 3D     Page 1Packet Page     383



Boards and Commissions 3D     Page 2Packet Page     384



Boards and Commissions 3D     Page 3Packet Page     385



Boards and Commissions 3D     Page 4Packet Page     386



Boards and Commissions 3E     Page 1Packet Page     387



Boards and Commissions 3E     Page 2Packet Page     388



Boards and Commissions 3E     Page 3Packet Page     389



Boards and Commissions 3E     Page 4Packet Page     390



Boards and Commissions 3E     Page 5Packet Page     391



 

Packet Page     392



Boards and Commissions 3F     Page 1Packet Page     393



Boards and Commissions 3F     Page 2Packet Page     394



Boards and Commissions 3F     Page 3Packet Page     395



Approved by Council 10/19/04  

Council Working Agreements 
 

Council Process: 
• The Council will work on general discipline in being prepared to ask questions and make 

comments. 
• The Council asks the Mayor to intervene if discussion on agenda items extends beyond a 

reasonable time frame. 
• The council will engage in the practice of colloquy to fully explore the different sides of a 

specific point. 
• The Mayor will ask the city clerk to set the timer lights for council members if 

discussions begin to exceed efficient debate.  Members should respect the lights as a time 
reminder, but will not be bound by them as absolute limits. 

• Rather than restating a point, council members should simply say “I agree.” 
• The council agenda committee may, with advance notice, adjust each public speaker's 

time to two rather than three minutes during public hearings for items on which many 
speakers want to address the council. 

• Council members will grant each other permission to mentor and support each other on 
how each person contributes to the goal of being accountable for demonstrating 
community leadership. 

• In order to hear each other respectfully and honor the public, council will avoid body 
language that could convey disrespect, side conversations, talking to staff, whispering to 
neighboring council members, passing notes, and leaving the council chambers. 

• Regarding not revisiting past discussions, the council should check-in with fellow 
members periodically to ensure that this is not an issue. 

 
Council Communication: 

• Council members agree to keep quasi-judicial roles scrupulously clean between members 
of boards and members of council, like expressing ideas to board members on things 
coming before the Board, and carefully disclose or recuse themselves when they're is 
involvement with board members on a topic.   

• Council agrees to e-mail the city manager about issues that they run into that staff or 
boards may be working on so that the manager can be actively involved in managing 
issues and keeping the full council informed well in advance of items coming before 
council for action.  

• Members will keep the full council informed on issues from committees, public groups or 
other agencies that they are following, the a hot line e-mails, brief verbal reports at the 
end of council meetings or other means. 

• The Council will find ways to support majority council decisions and adequately inform 
the public, through response letters that explain how divergent points of view were heard 
and honored in decisions, via standard e-mail responses for hot issues, by occasional 
council Letters to the Editor to clarify the facts, or by seeking out reporters after meetings 
to explain controversial decisions. 

 
Council Committees 

• Council goal committee meetings will be scheduled to accommodate the council 
members on the committee.   

• Notice of the times and places for each goal committee meeting will be noticed once per 
month in the Daily Camera.   

• The council agenda will include time for reports from committees under Matters from 
Members of Council, noting that written communications from the committees are 
appropriate as well. 

 
 

Packet Page     396



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Packet Page     397



 2013
Study Session Calendar

Printed on: 9/13/2013, 2:49 PM

Date Topic Time Televised
11/26/13 No Meeting
12/10/13 Hold for CMO
12/24/13 No Meeting

Packet Page     398



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Packet Page     399



October 22, 2013
Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

Science Tuesday Presentation: Net Zero Cities

1st Reading Grandview Bungalow Relocation Project
Motion amending the Benson Annexation agreement

Downtown Boulder Business Improvement District (DBBID) Annual Report and Board Appointments

2nd Reading, Electric Assist Bicycles Pilot Demo Project 3 Hours
Second Reading Emergency Ordinance appointing city manager as entity to 
receive applications for recreational marijuana businesses/Second reading of 3 
ordinances related to amendment 64

  

October 29, 2013
Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

Consideration of a resolution approving an amended and restated Fire and Police Money Purchase 
Pension Plan and Trust Agreement of the City of Boulder and authorizing the City Manager to execute 
it on the cityâ's behalf
First reading Jewish Commons Annexation

If necessary: Consideration of items relating to the 2014 budget Only if required
If necessary: 3rd Reading Alcohol Changes (500 Foot Rule and BLA Structure) Only if required
Tentative: Historic Preservation Plan 1 Hour

Economic Sustainability Strategy Adoption 1 Hour

Board and Commission Subcommitttee Checkin 5 Min.
  

Vacation of a 3,638 square foot portion of an existing eighty-foot utility easement that straddles the 
south property line at 1005 Gilbert Street (ADR2013-00005).

CONSENT:

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:

CALL-UPS:

CONSENT:

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:

CALL-UPS:

Packet Page     400



November 12, 2013
Administrative Hearing followed by Study Session

Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

Platform of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 1 Hour 5-6 PM
November 19, 2013

10 AM Special Meeting 
Oath of Office

Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

Certification of Election Results and Oath of Office for new members
November 19, 2013

Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

1st Reading Food Vehicle Follow Up to April 16, 2013 IP
First reading of an emergency ordinance BRC Supplement 118 Quarterly

First Reading Three NPP Expansions (in east Ridge/Pennsylvania, Mapleton, 
Whittier zones) and One Street Removal (in Fairview NPP zone)
First Reading of the Second Adjustment to Base Ordinance

Municipalization Exploration Update 10 Min.
Evaluation Committee: Six Month Check-in 10 Min.
Legislative Agenda 30 Min.

  

CONSENT:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:

CALL-UPS:

Packet Page     401



December 3, 2013
Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

Second adjustment to Base - CAGID Resolution 
On the agenda right after 2nd reading 
of adj. to base

First Reading of an ordinance to renew the cable television franchise 
agreement between the City of Boulder and Comcast of Colorado LLC
Legislative Agenda
Second Reading of Second Adjustment to Base of the 2013 Budget None

Second Reading Three NPP Expansions (in east Ridge/Pennsylvania, 
Mapleton, Whittier zones) and One Street Removal (in Fairview NPP zone) 15 min.

Legislative Agenda 1 Hour

December 17, 2013
Est. time Timing Issues/ Comments

2nd Reading Food Vehicle Follow Up to April 16, 2013 IP 1 Hour
Second Reading Jewish Commons Annexation 1 Hour
First Reading of an ordinance to renew the cable television franchise 
agreement between the City of Boulder and Comcast of Colorado LLC 1 Hour

Municipalization Exploration Project Update 1-2 Hours

  

CONSENT:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:

CALL-UPS:

Consent

Public Hearing

MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER:

MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY:

MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND MEMBERS:

CALL-UPS:

Packet Page     402



 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Packet Page     403



 
 
 
 

City Council Goals – 2013  
 
Top Priorities:  
 
1. Boulder’s Energy Future  
The top priority for the City in 2013 is the development of a framework for planning the 
energy future for the city of Boulder. This framework will focus on the idea of localization, 
the overarching goal of which is:  
To ensure that Boulder residents, businesses and institutions have access to energy that 
is increasingly clean, reliable and competitively priced.  
 
2. Climate Action Plan  
  
Outline the next generation of climate action efforts in Boulder  
 
Consider extension of CAP tax  
 
3. Affordable Housing  
  
Receive report of the Task force created in 2010 to evaluate goals and the approach to 
affordable housing and Based on Council review and discussion of these recommendations, 
develop an action plan to improve the availability of affordable housing in the city  
 
Consider policies regarding inclusionary housing for rental units  
 
4. Civic Center Master Plan  
  
Study and develop a master plan for the area between 15th and 9th Streets, with a focus on 
Farmer’s Market and area between Broadway and 15th Street.  
 

Packet Page     404



Next Tier Priorities:  
1. University Hill Revitalization  
  
Continue work of Ownership Group to develop comprehensive revitalization strategy  
 
Investigate formation of a general improvement district, including the commercial area and 
part of the residential area to control trash and other problems  
 
Change boundaries of BMS land use to coincide with UHGID through BVCP process  
 
Support private development and investment in Hill area  
 
Partner with CU to consider opportunities for properties in the Hill area  
 
Provide an opportunity to explore big ideas  
 
2. Homelessness  
  
Participate in Ten Year Plan to Address Homelessness  
 
Balance long term and short term approaches to address needs  
 
Invest new resources in Housing First model  
 
Work with partners, such as BOHO, to address approaches to immediate needs  
 
3. Boulder Junction Implementation  
 
Work with RTD and selected developer of site to maximize mixed use urban center  
  
Invest in planned infrastructure  
 
Achieve goals of plan while ensuring flexibility in working with developers  
 
Prioritize city actions to facilitate private investment  
 
Focus additional planning work on reconsidering use for Pollard site  
 

Packet Page     405



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 1

 
City Council 

2013 Work Plan by Council Goal 
 

TOP PRIORITIES 
 

GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBooouuullldddeeerrr’’’sss   EEEnnneeerrrgggyyy   FFFuuutttuuurrreee   
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – ongoing 
analysis of municipalization and 
work on Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at roundtables  

 Recommended strategies to achieve 
community’s energy goals - Study 
Session and Public Hearing 

 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – 
based on the strategies 
approved by Council in 1st 
Quarter, ongoing analysis of 
municipalization and work on 
Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at 
roundtables  

 Municipalization Exploration 
Project Work Plan Phase 2 – 
Study Session 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – 
ongoing analysis of 
municipalization and work on 
Energy Action Plan with updates 
to council at roundtables  

 Study Session 

 Boulder’s Energy Future – ongoing 
analysis of municipalization and 
work on Energy Action Plan with 
updates to council at roundtables 

 Study Session  

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCllliiimmmaaattteee   AAAccctttiiiooonnn   PPPlllaaannn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric 

Project 
 Climate Commitment – RFQ for 

consulting assistance for targets and 
goal setting, development of new 
GHG inventory, and tracking and 
reporting tools 

 Energy Efficiency: 
o Launch of 2013 program priorities 
o Upgrades in City Buildings – 

employee education and outreach 
project (IP) 

 Disposable Bag Fee – 
implementation plan and revised 
budget (IP) 

 Transportation Master Plan (TMP) – 

 Commercial Energy Efficiency 
Strategy (CEES) - feedback on 
options (Study Session) 

 Climate Commitment – Study 
Session to review program 
annual targets, short/ long term 
goals, tracking and reporting 
systems 

 Electric/ Hybrid vehicles – 
project closeout 

 Energy Efficiency – finalize 
Market Innovations approach  
(Study Session) 

 Solar/ Wind Generation Facility 
Code Changes 

 SmartRegs – code changes 

 CEES – adopt Energy Rating and 
Reporting Ordinance 

 Climate Commitment – policy 
integration with TMP and ZWMP 

 Energy Efficiency – launch 
Market Innovations competition 

 Zero Waste Master Plan (ZWMP) 
– draft 

 Climate Commitment – policy 
integration with TMP and ZWMP 

 Energy Efficiency  
o Upgrades in City Buildings – 

results of employee education 
and outreach (IP) 

 SmartRegs – options for quality 
control of rental housing 
inspections 

 

Packet Page     406



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 2

initial results of Transportation 
Funding Task Force (Study Session) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAffffffooorrrdddaaabbbllleee   HHHooouuusssiiinnnggg   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 ADU/ OAU – study results (IP) 
 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 

issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 Density and Distribution of 
affordable and special needs 
housing - report 

 Inclusionary Housing Rental Policy 
– consideration of ordinance 
changes following stakeholder 
engagement process 

 Mobile Homes Parks – legislative 
agenda 

 Comprehensive Housing 
Strategy 
o Stakeholder engagement 

process 
o Study Session 

 

 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 
issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 

 Comprehensive Housing Strategy 
issues  - stakeholder engagement 
process 

 

 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCiiivvviiiccc   AAArrreeeaaa   PPPlllaaannn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Board and community input 
 Council participation in Ideas 

Competition 
 

 Council direction on preferred 
option(s) and strategies  

 Draft plan  
o Development 
o Community input 
o Study Session 

 Municipal Space Study Final 
Report 

 Boulder Civic Area vision and 
plan  
o Study session 
o Public hearings on adoption 

 

 

Packet Page     407



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 3

 
NEXT TIER PRIORITIES 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      UUUnnniiivvveeerrrsssiiitttyyy   HHHiiillllll    RRReeevvviiitttaaallliiizzzaaatttiiiooonnn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 2013 action priorities confirmed by 

Council at January retreat 
 Hill Residential Service District – 

update 
 Innovation District - update 

 Action on other priorities 
 Hill Residential Service District 

– 1st reading of petition 
 

 Capital infrastructure 
improvements for the residential 
and commercial areas – consider 
during CIP process 

 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAddddddrrreeessssssiiinnnggg   HHHooommmeeellleeessssssnnneeessssss      

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 City and Community Efforts – 

Denver sleeping ordinance (IP) 
 Housing First (1175 Lee Hill Road) 

– Statement of Operations (IP)  
 Work plan check in and priority – 

Council retreat 
 

 Analysis of funding for 
homeless services and 
alignment with the Ten Year 
Plan and unmet needs 

 Ten Year Plan to Address 
Homelessness – progress 
update (IP) 

 Analysis and recommendations 
regarding banning panhandling on 
street corners 

 Ten Year Plan to Address 
Homelessness – progress update 
(IP) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBooouuullldddeeerrr   JJJuuunnnccctttiiiooonnn   IIImmmpppllleeemmmeeennntttaaatttiiiooonnn   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 Depot Square implementation – 

update 
 MU-4 zone change - consideration 
 TDM District Implementation 

Update (IP) 
 Update on potential policy issues 

related to key public improvements 
and city owned site (as needed) 

 Update on potential policy 
issues related to key public 
improvements and city owned 
site (as needed) 

 Boulder Junction Access District 
Parking – update  

 TDM Access District 
implementation - IP  

 

 

 
 
 

Packet Page     408



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 4

 
OTHER 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      OOOttthhheeerrr   CCCiiitttyyy   GGGoooaaalllsss   aaannnddd   WWWooorrrkkk   PPPlllaaannn   IIIttteeemmmsss   

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
 13th Street Plaza - IP 
 28th Street Multi-use Path and 

Bikeable Shoulders Iris to Yarmouth 
CEAP – potential call up 

 Acquisition Plan Update - OSMP 
 Alcohol/ Land Use Code Changes – 

options and recommendations 
 Boating on Barker Reservoir 
 Burke Park/ Thunderbird Lake – 

recommendations on lake water 
levels and enhancing park facilities 

 BVCP Area III Planning Reserve 
Amendments (if approved by 
County) 

 Chautauqua Guiding Principles, 
Next Steps –update on progress 

 Civic Use Task Force – update from 
Council members 

 Cultural Master Plan 
 Design and Construction Standards 

Update – consideration of minor 
updates 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Hogan Pancost – annexation and 

site review 
o Wonderland Creek Townhouses – 

potential call up 
o 28th and Canyon (Eads/ Golden 

Buff) – potential call up 
o Landmark Lofts II (970 28th 

Street) – potential call up 
 East Arapahoe Study – potential 

action on limited zoning changes 
 Economic Sustainable Strategies – 

 Access and Parking 
Management Strategies – study 
session 

 Alcohol Land Use Code 
Changes - action 

 Baseline Underpass East of 
Broadway CEAP – Call up 

 Bike Parking Ordinance 
Updates 

 Capital Improvement Bond 
Projects status update - IP 

 Capital Projects – carry over 
and first supplemental 

 Critical Facilities Ordinance – 
public hearing and motion 

 Education Excise Tax – 
consideration of City Manager 
funding recommendations 

 Floodplain Management 
including Boulder Creek 
Mapping, South Boulder Creek 
Mitigation, and Critical 
Facilities 

 Human Rights Ordinance – 
proposed changes regarding age 
discrimination 

 Integrated Pest Management 
Program Changes - IP 

 International Building and 
Energy Codes – public hearing 

 North Boulder Subcommunity 
Plan - IP 

 Old Hire Fire and Police 
Pension Plans – Study Session 

 2014 Budget Process 
 Access and Parking Management 

strategies (update) 
 Boulder Reservoir Site 

Management Plan – status of 
planning efforts and outcomes of 
community engagement (IP) 

 Capital Improvement Program – 
study session 

 Carter Lake Pipeline – thru CIP 
process 

 Contractor Licensing – proposed 
changes (IP) 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Blue Spruce Auto (4403 

Broadway) – potential call up 
o Boulder Outlook Hotel 

Redevelopment (800 28th 
Street) –  potential call up 

o Colorado Building Parking Lot 
(1301 Walnut) - ordinances 

o 1000 Alpine – potential call up 
o 3085 Bluff – potential call up 
o 3390 Valmont (Former 

Sutherlands Site) – potential 
call up 

 Eco Pass- report on results of 
Joint Study with Boulder County 
on community-wide Eco Pass 
Feasibility 

 FAM Master Plan – study session 
 Harbeck-Bergheim House – 

Future Use Options (IP) 
 North Trail Study Area – study 

 Access and Parking Management 
Strategies – update 

 Agriculture Plan (OSMP) – public 
hearing 

 Capital Improvement Program – 
adoption of CIP; 2nd budget 
supplemental 

 Contractor Licensing – 
consideration of proposed changes 

 Design and Construction Standards 
Update – consideration of 
additional changes 

 Development Review Projects: 
o Village Shopping Center Hotel 

(26th and Canyon) – potential call 
up 

 East Arapahoe Study – check in on 
project scope and work plan (3/4Q) 

 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City 
Buildings – results of employee 
education and outreach project (IP) 

 FAM Master Plan – consideration 
of acceptance 

 Fourmile Canyon Creek Violet 
Avenue to Broadway CEAP – 
potential call up 

 Human Relations Commission 
Work Plan update - IP 

 Human Services Fund allocations - 
IP 

 Light Response Vehicle Pilot 
Program - IP 

 OSMP Natural Resources 
Overarching Issues – Study session 

Packet Page     409



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 5

study session 
 Education Excise Tax Allocation of 

Funds – refine RFP criteria 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City 

Buildings – employee education and 
outreach project (IP) 

 Floodplain Management including 
Boulder Creek Mapping, South 
Boulder Creek Mitigation, and 
Critical Facilities 

 Hazardous Materials Management 
IGA 

 Hydroelectric operations and 
opportunities - IP 

 Keep It Clean IGA 
 Mobile Food Vending – options for 

ordinance changes 
 Multi-hazard mitigation plan – 

possible consent item 
 Nuisance Mosquito Control Pilot 

Project Evaluation - IP 
 OSMP Overarching Issues – 

discussion and possible action on 
Voice and Sight Tag Program, 
Commercial Use Program, Pilot 
Parking Permit Program; IP on 
timeline and process for evaluation 
of remaining topics 

 Police Department Master Plan – 
Study Session 

 State of the Court Presentation 
 Sustainable Streets & Centers – 

update on proposed scope options, 
next steps and integration with 
TMP, East Arapahoe Area Plan and 
proposed Economic Sustainability 
Strategy 

 Transportation Funding (SS) 
 TMP Update – additional direction 

 OSMP natural resources – 
overarching policy issues 
o Temporal Regulations 
o Penalties for violations 
o Multi-modal access and 

parking opportunities 
o Analysis of trail network and 

distribution of activities 
 Parks and Recreation Master 

Plan 
 Pearl Street Mall Code Changes 
 Police Department Master Plan 
 Randolph Center Condominium 

Declaration 
 Recirculation of wastewater – 

CU Williams Village North (IP 
if necessary) 

 Skunk Creek, Bluebell Creek 
and King’s Gulch Flood 
Mapping Update – public 
hearing and motion 

 Smoking Ban on Pearl Street 
Mall - IP 

 Snow and Ice Control 
Evaluation – study session 

 Transportation Funding – study 
session 

 TMP Update – additional 
direction 

 Twomile and Upper Goose 
Creek Flood Mapping Update – 
public hearing and motion 

 Water budgets – commercial, 
industrial and institutional – 
Council direction 

 Water supply status – IP 

session or dinner discussion 
 Old Hire Fire and Police Pension 

Plans – possible discussion during 
budget process 

 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
 Regional Trail Connections 

(OSMP) – IP 
 South Boulder Creek Flood 

Mitigation Study – public hearing 
and motion 

 Transportation Demand 
Management Toolkit - IP 

 Valmont Butte Future Use 
Discussions – study session 

 Water Conservation Futures Study 
 Youth Opportunities Funding 

allocations - IP 

on remaining topics 
 Urban Wildlife – Consideration of 

Wildlife Protection Ordinance  
 Water budgets – commercial, 

industrial and institutional – 
consideration of changes 

Packet Page     410



 

H:\My Documents\CMO\2013WorkPlan.doc 6

 US36 Bikeway Maintenance – 
Enhancements IGA (tentative based 
on if extra community investments 
are desired) 

 Urban Wildlife – Black Bear 
Education and Enforcement pilot 
program update 

 Woodland Creek Diagonal to 
Winding Trail CEAP – potential call 
up 

 Zero Waste Master Plan Update 
 

KEY 
ADU Accessory Dwelling Units 
BVCP Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 
CEAP Community and Environmental Assessment Process 
CIP Capital Improvement Program 
CU University of Colorado 
DUHMD/PS Downtown and University Hill Management District/ Parking Services (City 

Division) 
FAM Facility and Asset Management 
ICC International Code Council 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
IP Information Packet 
OAU Owner Accessory Units 
OSMP Open Space/Mountain Parks Department 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
RFP Request for Proposals 
TDM Transportation Demand Management 
TMP Transportation Master Plan 
ZWMP Zero Waste Master Plan 

 

Packet Page     411



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS – 1ST AND 2ND QUARTER 2012  

 
TOP PRIORITIES: 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBOOOUUULLLDDDEEERRR’’’SSS   EEENNNEEERRRGGGYYY   FFFUUUTTTUUURRREEE   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Hiring of Executive Director for Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development 
 Retention of FERC and acquisition legal counsel 
 Initial work in developing appraisal of distribution system and preparing legal strategy 
 Initial work on Phase 1 of a new Energy Action Plan, including demand side programs and renewables modeling 
 Active participation at the PUC to advance Boulder’s energy goals and protect community interests 
 Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Facility Agreement: City Council authorized the dedication of easements to Public Service 

Company of Colorado to facilitate upgrades to the city’s Boulder Canyon Hydroelectric Facility. 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCLLLIIIMMMAAATTTEEE   AAACCCTTTIIIOOONNN   PPPLLLAAANNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Third party review and evaluation of CAP tax funded programs to date 
 Preparation of November 2012 CAP tax ballot options for Council consideration 
 Initial steps to develop and refine a new Climate Action Framework consisting a renewed climate action commitment, five-year 

goals, annual targets, integration with appropriate master plans and city operations, and new reporting tools 
 Initial work to identify priorities for the next generation of energy efficiency programs (as part of Phase 1 of the Energy Action 

Plan) 
 Development of Commercial Energy Efficiency Strategy approach and stakeholder process (to be integrated as part of Phase 1 of 

the Energy Action Plan) 
 Continued delivery of CAP programs and services to achieve annual targets (EnergySmart, Ten for Change, SmartRegs 

compliance, etc.) 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City Facilities - (a) Energy Performance Contract (EPC) – Phase III; (b) Lease purchase financing 

for energy conservation measures; and (c) Energy improvements, lease amendments, and payments. - Implemented the third phase 
of Energy Performance Contracts (EPC) for city facilities, including the installation of another 347 kilowatts of solar photovoltaic 

Packet Page     412



 
at the Municipal Service Center buildings, Fleet Services, OSMP Annex and The Dairy Center for the Arts. 
 Energy Efficiency Upgrades in City Facilities – Employee Education and Outreach Project (Information Packet) - A staff team 

participated in three workshops with McKinstry, the city’s Energy Performance Contractor, to help develop a new PowerED energy 
education and outreach program for employees. Program development will continue with other city staff focus groups through the 
end of December 2012. 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAAFFFFFFOOORRRDDDAAABBBLLLEEE   HHHOOOUUUSSSIIINNNGGG   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Added 12 new permanently affordable homes to inventory  
 Affordable housing agreement for Gunbarrel Town Center 
 Affordable Housing Program Work plan - Council Consideration and Direction; new initiatives identified 
 Analysis completed of affordable housing distribution 
 Completed funding of major renovations to improve housing quality and economic sustainability of three BHP properties 
 Development of voluntary affordable housing agreement for Depot Square project 
 Inclusionary Housing Rental Policies – Council Consideration and Direction 
 Thistle Community Housing completing fire sprinklers in all of its properties 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      CCCIIIVVVIIICCC   CCCEEENNNTTTEEERRR   MMMAAASSSTTTEEERRR   PPPLLLAAANNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Development of interdepartmental project team and approach; project goals and objectives; and public engagement strategy 
(reviewed at joint Planning Board / City Council study session in April) 
 Detailed design of community visioning process and articulation of key project assumptions (reviewed with Council at June 12 

study session) 
 Preparation of baseline materials and launch of public engagement in July. 
 The Municipal Space Study contract was awarded to StudioTerra on March 23.  FAM and the consultants are interviewing city 

departments and conducting research on industry trends and standards for office space.  Preliminary results of the space study, as it 
relates to the Civic Center Master Plan, will be presented at the July 31 study session. 

 

Packet Page     413

http://www.peoplepowerplanet.com/


 
 
 

NEXT TIER PRIORITIES: 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      UUUNNNIIIVVVEEERRRSSSIIITTTYYY   HHHIIILLLLLL   RRREEEVVVIIITTTAAALLLIIIZZZAAATTTIIIOOONNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Zoning change: Business Main Street (BMS) boundary to coincide with the University Hill General Improvement District 
boundary; rezoning of UHGID lots to BMS zoning (approved by Planning Board; scheduled for Council consideration in August) 
 Continued work of the Hill Ownership Group to develop a comprehensive revitalization strategy. 
 In coordination with a volunteer, stakeholder committee completed a proposal for a Residential Service District which includes: 

boundaries, scope of services, proposed budget, proposed governance structure, agreements for financial participation by tax-
exempt sororities and fraternities, and a timeline for a 2013 Petition and Election process.   
 Landmarking of Flatirons Theater building (and associated building renovation) 
 955 Broadway (Acacia Fraternity site redevelopment) 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      AAADDDDDDRRREEESSSSSSIIINNNGGG   HHHOOOMMMEEELLLEEESSSSSSNNNEEESSSSSS   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Council Consideration and Direction on:  1175 Lee Hill Project; added 31 permanent housing units for chronically homeless, 
disabled adults 
 Continued Homeless Service Provider Coordination Project to develop action plans for case management, outreach and service 

coordination 
 Continued implementation of Ten year Plan to Address Homelessness 

 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      BBBOOOUUULLLDDDEEERRR   JJJUUUNNNCCCTTTIIIOOONNN   IIIMMMPPPLLLEEEMMMEEENNNTTTAAATTTIIIOOONNN   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Developed and implemented a funding strategy to finance the acquisition of 100 parking spaces by the Boulder Junction Access 
District – Parking (BJAD-P) in the Depot Square parking garage including a Lease/Purchase Agreement between BJAD-P and the 
developer, and a City of Boulder/BJAD-P Cooperation Agreement 
 Developed a strategy to manage parking in the parking structure through technology and a management agreement among the 

Packet Page     414



 
users.  The arrangement provides for parking spaces to be paid, unbundled, and shared in a manner to meet the needs of the various 
users of Depot Square (hotel, residential, RTD) and general parking in BJAD-P spaces.  Agreement was reached with RTD 
regarding short term and long term parking management strategies given their current legislative mandate. 
 Finalized the ownership structure for five different owners to coordinate management of their units and common areas through a 

Condominium Declaration for the Depot Square project 
 Finalized a renovation agreement and lease consistent with guiding principles with Pedersen Development Corporation for the 

Depot 
 Finalized legal agreements for joint public/private development of Depot Square (RTD facility, shared parking, affordable housing, 

hotel, public space and rehabilitation of historic depot  
 Approved changes to the Transportation Network Plan in support of the Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP) 
 Revised Street Design for Pearl Parkway and Connections Plan Revisions (adopted by Council January 17) 
 Consistent with the TVAP connections plan and along with private redevelopment, a number of capital improvements are 

underway, including the installation of underground power lines, preparations for installing a traffic signal at Junction Place and 
Pearl Parkway, and portions of the Pearl Parkway multi-way boulevard 
 Consistent with the TVAP connections plan, design work continues for the bridge over Goose Creek and the multi-use path on the 

north side of Pearl Parkway between 30th Street and Foothills Parkway 
 Received a Federal Hazard Elimination Program grant award through the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) that will 

allow installation of a traffic signal at 29th Street and Valmont Road, improving safety and implementing improvements identified 
in the Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP) (project will begin in 2014)  
 Completion of engineering and building construction plan review for a 319 unit residential development at 3100 Pearl and the RTD 

Depot Square transit-oriented development  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page     415



 
 
GGGOOOAAALLL:::      OOOTTTHHHEEERRR   CCCIIITTTYYY   GGGOOOAAALLLSSS   AAANNNDDD   WWWOOORRRKKK   PPPLLLAAANNN   IIITTTEEEMMMSSS   

FIRST AND SECOND QUARTER 
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

CCCAAAPPPIIITTTAAALLL   IIITTTEEEMMMSSS   
 Anemone Trails (new) – design work completed 
 Arapahoe Avenue (Folsom to 30th) - Multimodal Improvements Project Completed construction on the Arapahoe Avenue multi-

use path project. The remaining street resurfacing and landscaping work will be completed in 2012. 
 Boulder Creek and South Boulder Creek – restoration of grassland and riparian areas continued 
 Broadway (Euclid to 18th) - Transportation Improvements Project - Made progress on the Broadway (Euclid to 18th) 

Transportation Improvements Project. 16th Street opened the first week of May and the Broadway underpass and the four lanes on 
Broadway (two in each direction) are scheduled for completion by early July. 

 Broke ground in January for a new multi-use path on the south side of Baseline, connecting U.S. 36 and the Bear Creek 
Underpass, including a pedestrian crossing for Baseline Road at Canyon Creek.  Completion of the multi-use path on the west end 
is underway through a redevelopment project. 

 Completed a new sidewalk along Gillaspie Drive, connecting Greenbriar Boulevard and Juilliard Street connecting to Fairview 
High School 

 Completed the course bunker renovation/playability project at Flatirons Golf Course by installing 19 new sand bunkers  
 Continued work at Valmont City Park, including additional construction at Valmont Bike Park; outreach and design for Valmont 

Dog Park; and design and construction of the interim disc golf course 
 Facility ADA Compliance - An Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) consultant completed comprehensive ADA assessments 

for the Park Central and Municipal buildings. Costs for the recommendations are being identified and prioritized, with other 
buildings planned for assessment. 

 Green Bear Trail Re-route – work in progress with one section completed and opened to public 
 Gregory Canyon Trailhead Site Plan – initial site plan design work began 
 Homestead Trail Re-route – work in progress with one section completed and opened to public 
 Library Facility Upgrades and Enhancements (New Children’s Library and New Teen Space): The selection of a design firm is 

underway 
 Linden Avenue Sidewalk Project (Safe Routes to School) - Completed a Safe Routes to School Project, providing a sidewalk on 

the north side of Linden Avenue between Fourth Street and Broadway. 
 New Wildland Fire Facilities - Responses to the request for qualifications (RFQ) for facility designs were received on May 11. 

Requests for proposals (RFP) to be sent in early June 
 Organic farming – agricultural contract written for 47 acres 

Packet Page     416



 
 Replaced traffic signal incandescent lamps with sustainable, energy-saving light-emitting diode (LED) lamps 
 Sanitas Stone Hut Repair – hut was reinforced and stonework repaired 
 South Boulder Creek West Trailhead – Parking areas for cars and horse trailers completed and open to public; working through 

permit process for outhouse and kiosk installations; interpretive signs in production 
 South Boulder Recreation Center - The contaminated sub floors from the gymnasium, racquetball court, and Pilates room have 

been removed and are expected to be replaced with new wood floors by early June 2012.  
 Street repair expanded efforts – began the first of three years 

 
OOOTTTHHHEEERRR   SSSIIIGGGNNNIIIFFFIIICCCAAANNNTTT   AAACCCTTTIIIOOONNNSSS 111    
 Boulder B-cycle station at the North Boulder Recreation Center sponsored 
 Boulder Community Hospital Expansion Rezoning 
 BVCP: Area II study results and potential next steps (IP to City Council in July) 
 BVCP Comprehensive Rezoning (scheduled for council consideration in August) 
 BVCP 2010 Major Update: planning reserve policy changes (study session discussion with Council on May 29; Council and 

County Commissioner dinner discussion on June 14) 
 Boulder Reservoir Master Plan completed 
 Boulder Valley School District Faculty and Staff Eco Pass Program Expansion - Continued partnership with the Boulder Valley 

School District (BVSD) to expand the BVSD faculty and staff Eco Pass program. 
 Chautauqua Stewardship Framework: Draft and Next Steps 
 City Website Redesign Kickoff - Kicked off redesign with Vision Internet and the City of Arvada. Gathered a list of key 

stakeholders and surveyed them regarding elements the new website should contain. 
 Code enforcement - reallocation of resources to the Boulder Police Department was fully implemented to ensure efficient and 

effective service delivery 
 Community and Environmental Assessment Process (CEAP) for flood mitigation and transportation improvements along Fourmile 

Canyon Creek, near Crest View Elementary School completed, including a City Council call-up opportunity. 
 Compatible Development implementation - annual report to Council 
 Congregate Care code changes (pending further consideration based on Council direction) 
 Constituent Relationship Management (CRM) procurement effort - Designed and implemented a staff engagement and 

procurement initiative to implement a new CRM application resulting in the unanimous selection of Government Outreach.  
Vendor contract negotiations are currently underway.  This initiative is designed to significantly improve our customers’ ability to 
request, track and ultimately receive more timely and effective services while providing staff with automated tools to better 

                                                 
 

Packet Page     417



 
manage these requests. 

 Disposable Bag Reduction Ordinance: research and options presented to Council on May 15; work on nexus study underway 
 Draft Fire-Rescue Master Plan completed and approved by Planning Board.   
 Economic Sustainability Strategy: phase one study of primary employer space needs underway; presentation of results to Council 

scheduled for August  
 Elks neighborhood park planning, outreach and design continued with construction and completion in 2013 
 Family Resource Center opened at Manhattan Middle School in partnership with Boulder County Housing and Human Services 
 FasTracks’ Northwest Rail Plan - Approved guiding principles for developing and designing a hybrid approach to FasTracks’ 

Northwest Rail Plan. 
 Fire Master Plan – Council feedback on strategies (April 3, 2012); Planning Board recommendation for acceptance (May 17, 

2012); Scheduled for Council consideration (June 19, 2012) 
 Heather wood Trail Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) - City Council authorized the signing of an intergovernmental agreement 

(IGA) with Boulder County related to the maintenance of a trail that crosses the Wastewater Treatment Facility property. 
 Integrated Pest Management Policy Revision and Program Direction (Council provided direction on May 1) 
 Landmarking of First Christian Church building (950 28th Street) 
 Locomotive #30 narrow gauge historic cosmetic restoration completed  
 Mesa Memorial Park design and development initiated 
 Mosquito control annual report (Completed report on the IPM web site – link will be provided to council with first weekly 

mosquito report in June) 
 Named number 3 on list of best cities for bicycling by Bicycling Magazine, in part due to the Valmont Bike Park and new path 

connections made possible by the capital improvement bond 
 New Transportation Safety Ordinances - Approved ordinance changes to improve transportation safety in the city and initiated 

education and enforcement efforts to support the ordinance changes 
 Organic turf and landscape bed program at six park locations launched 
 Received a Safe Routes to School Grant to install a traffic signal at South Boulder Road and Manhattan Drive to create a safe 

crossing for middle school students taking transit, riding, or walking to and from school. 
 RH-2 Zone District Changes (scheduled for council consideration in August) 
 Safe Streets Boulder report published in February. 
 SmartRegs - Continued the successful implementation of SmartRegs and the pilot program for rental housing licensing 

enforcement. The backlog of rental license compliance cases is almost entirely eliminated. 
 Transportation Report on Progress, Transportation to Sustain a Community published in February. 
 Valmont Butte – VCUP implementation commenced; excavation work began on April 4 with both the tribe-designated native 

cultural monitor and the city’s archaeologist consultant present.   

Packet Page     418



 
 Veterans and active duty military personnel recreation pass program developed 

 
 
 
 
Key: 
 
ADA = Americans with Disabilities Act 
BHP = Boulder Housing Partners 
BVSD = Boulder Valley School District 
BMS = Business Main Street   
CAP = Climate Action Plan 
CDOT = Colorado Department of Transportation  
EPC = Energy Performance Contract 
EET = Education Excise Tax 
FAM = Facilities and Asset Management (City Division) 
FERC = Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
IGA = Inter-governmental Agreement 
IP = Information Packet 
OSMP = Open Space/ Mountain Parks Department 
PUC = Colorado Public Utilities Commission 
RFP = Request for Proposals 
RFQ = Request for Qualifications 
RTD = Regional Transportation District 
TVAP = Transit Village Area Plan 
UHGID = University Hill General Improvement District 
VCUP = Colorado Voluntary Cleanup Program 
 
 

Packet Page     419



1/23/2013 
 

                                                             COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

Matthew 
Appelbaum 

 Mayor 

Lisa Morzel  Mayor Pro Tem 
Suzy Ageton  Council Member 

KC Becker  Council Member 
Macon Cowles  Council Member 
Suzanne Jones  Council Member 

George Karakehian  Council Member 
Tim Plass  Council Member 

Ken Wilson  Council Member 
                                                               
 
                                                             COUNCIL EMPLOYEES 
 

Thomas A. Carr  City Attorney 
Jane S. Brautigam  City Manager 

Linda P. Cooke  Municipal Judge 
                                                                
 
                                                              KEY STAFF 
 

Bob Eichem  Chief Financial Officer 
Alisa D. Lewis  City Clerk 

Patrick von Keyserling  Communications Director 
David Driskell  Community Planning + Sustainability -  Executive Director 

Paul J. Fetherston  Deputy City Manager 
Molly Winter  Downtown, University Hill Management & Parking Services 

Director 
Heather Bailey  Energy Strategy and Electric Utility Development Executive Director 

Larry Donner  Fire Chief 
  Housing, Assistant City Manager for 

Mary Ann Weideman  Human Resources (Acting) Director 
Karen Rahn  Human Services Director 

Don Ingle  Information Technology Director 
Eileen Gomez  Labor Relations Director 

Valerie Maginnis  Library and Arts Director 
Lynne C. Reynolds  Municipal Court Administrator 

Michael Patton  Open Space and Mountain Parks Director 
Kirk Kincannon  Parks and Recreation Director 

Mark Beckner  Police Chief 
Maureen Rait  Public Works - Executive Director  

Tracy Winfree  Transportation Director 
Jeff Arthur  Utilities Director 

 

Packet Page     420



1/30/13     Approved   01-22-2013 

2013 City Council Committee Assignments 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Beyond the Fences Coalition Morzel, Plass 
Boulder County Consortium of Cities Karakehian, Wilson (alt) 
Colorado Municipal League (CML) – Policy Committee Jones, Appelbaum (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) Becker, Jones (Alternate) 
Housing Authority (Boulder Housing Partners) Ageton 
Metro Mayors Caucus Appelbaum 
National League of Cities (NLC) Appelbaum 
Resource Conservation Advisory Board Plass, Morzel (at large seat) 
Rocky Flats Stewardship Morzel, Plass (1st alternate), Castillo (2nd alternate) 
University of Colorado (CU) / City Oversight Wilson, Jones, Karakehian 
US36 Mayors and Commission Coalition Appelbaum, Ageton (alternate) 
US36 Commuting Solutions Ageton, Karakehian (alternate) 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Morzel 

 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art (BMoCA) Cowles, Becker (alternate) 
Boulder Convention and Visitors Bureau Becker, Plass (alternate)  
Dairy Center for the Arts Karakehian 
Downtown Business Improvement District Board Plass, Jones 
 
INTERNAL CITY COMMITTEES 
Audit Committee Morzel, Becker, Cowles 
Boulder Urban Renewal Authority (BURA)  
Mayoral Appointment 

Becker (appointed through 2015) 

Charter Committee Morzel, Cowles, Ageton, Karakehian 
Civic Use Pad/ 9th and Canyon Morzel, Jones, Becker 
Council Budget Action Plan Committee Ageton, Becker, Plass 
Evaluation Committee Karakehian, Morzel 
Legislative Committee Ageton, Karakehian, Wilson, Jones 
 
SISTER CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
Jalapa, Nicaragua Jones 
Kisumu, Kenya Morzel 
Llasa, Tibet Ageton 
Dushanbe, Tajikistan Karakehian 
Yamagata, Japan Wilson 
Mante, Mexico Plass 
Yateras, Cuba Cowles 
Sister City Sub-Committee Morzel, Cowles 
 

Packet Page     421


	00_Agenda
	2A_Overarching Goals for Flood Cleanup and Recovery
	Executive Summary, Council Action Requested & Background
	Preliminary Damage Assessment
	Attachment A - Key Objectives for Near-term Recovery and Long-term Resiliency
	Attachment B - Department Status Updates and Priorities/Goals Going Forward

	2B_Status Report on Urban Wildlife Issues
	Executive Summary & Impacts
	Feedback and Background
	Analysis
	Attachment A - City of Boulder Urban Wildlife Management Plan Black Bear and Mountain Lion Component
	Attachment B - Colorado Parks and Wildlife Administrative Directive W-2
	Attachment C - Colorado Parks and Wildlife Blue Line Article

	3A_Emergency Ordinance 7946 Temporary Exceptions
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation & Impacts
	Feedback & Analysis
	Attachment A - Emergency Ordinance No. 7946

	3B_Resolution supporting Ballot Question 2G
	Executive Summary, recommendation & Impacts 
	Background & Analysis
	Next Steps
	Attachment A - Resolution 1128

	5A_COB Ordinances COB Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Questions
	Budget Materials Online, Feedback & Next Steps
	Attachment A - Budget Ordinance
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Ordinance
	Attachment C - Appropriation Ordinance
	Attachment D - Fee Ordinance
	Attachment E - Document Changes
	Attachment F - Responses to Questions from the Oct 1, 2013 Public Hearing

	5B_Resolutions CAGID Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Feedback
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Resolution
	Attachment C - Appropriation Resolution
	Attachment D - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5C_Resolutions UHGID Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Feedback
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Resolution
	Attachment C - Appropriation Resolution
	Attachment D - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5D_Resolutions BMPA Budget
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation & Impacts
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5E_Resolutions Forest Glen Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Resolution
	Attachment C - Appropriation Resolution
	Attachment D - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5F_Resolutions BJGID Parking Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Feedback
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Resolution
	Attachment C - Appropriation Resolution
	Attachment D - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5G_Resolutions BJGID-TDM Budget
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Feedback
	Attachment A - Budget Resolution
	Attachment B - Mill Levy Resolution
	Attachment C - Appropriation Resolution
	Attachment D - 2014 Fund Activity Summary

	5H_Ordinances Related to Alcohol
	Executive Summary
	Recommendation & Impacts
	Background & Feedback
	Analysis
	BLA Structural Changes
	Attachment A - Ordinace No. 7938
	Attachment B-1 Ordinance 7939 - Option B-1
	Attachment B-2 Ordinance 7939 - Option B-2
	Attachment B-3 Ordinance 7939 - Option B-3
	Attachment C-1 Ordinance 7940 - Option C-1
	Attachment D - Cost Estimates for Hearing Officer Options
	Attachment E - Planning Board Recommendations
	Attachment F - Summary of Proposed Land Use Code Definitions
	Attachment G1 - Zoning Map
	Attachment G2 - Zoning Map - Downtown
	Attachment G3 - Zoning Map - Uni Hill
	Attachment H – 500-ft Buffer
	Attachment I - Hospitality Establishments & Liquor Licences on Uni Hill

	6A_US Pro Cycling Challenge Update
	Executive Summary & Recommendation
	Impacts & Background
	Analysis

	88_Information Packet
	Cover Sheet
	1A  Call Up 3220 Arnett Street
	1B  Call Up 1005 Gilbert Street
	1C  Call Up 3015 Kalmia
	3A  Landmarks  09042013
	3B  Library  10022013
	3C  OSBT  09252013
	3D  TAB  06102013
	3E TAB 07082013
	3F  WRAB  07152013

	99_Reference Materials
	1. Council Working Agreements
	2. SS Calendar
	2013 Study Session Calendar

	3. Master Calendar
	October '13
	November '13
	December '13

	4. City Council Goals 2013
	5. Council Work Plan - 2013
	6. Workplan Update - 2012 Accomplishments
	7. Council and Key Staff
	8. Council Committee Assignments




